
C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities

Committed
to inclusive
and sustainable growth

Consolidated Report
Colombia 2021



2 3

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Consolidated Report Colombia 2021



4 5

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

General Coordinator’s Office
General Accounting
Óscar Rodríguez - o.rodriguez@bbva.com
Luz Marina Gutiérrez - luzmarina.gutierrez@bbva.com 
Yeimy Carolina Pérez - yeimycarolina.perez@bbva.com 
Zuli Catalina Navarro - zulicatalina.navarro@bbva.com
	
Legal
Myriam Cala - myriam.cala@bbva.com
Andrea Karina Giraldo - andrea.giraldo@bbva.com
	
Communication and Image
Constanza García - constanza.garcia@bbva.com 
Andrea Marriaga - andrea.marriaga@bbva.com 
Derly Quintero - derlyjosefa.quintero@bbva.com

Proofreading, Design and Layout

J. Torres Consultores

 

Contents

1.  Reports and Certifications...............................................12

2.  Consolidated Financial Statements............... 22

2.1  . Consolidated Statement of Financial Position....................................... 22

2.2 . Consolidated Statement of Income........................................................ 28

2.3 . Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity....................................... 32

2.4 . Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow.....................................................41

2.5 . Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income..................44

3. Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements................................................................ 48

1. . Reporting Entity........................................................................................48

2. . Bases for the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements................................................................................ 52

2.1. . Statement of Compliance........................................................................ 52

2.2.. Consolidation Criteria............................................................................... 54



6 7

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

2.3.  .Measurement Basis................................................................................... 56

2.4 . Functional and Presentation Currency.....................................................57

2.5.  .Judgments and Estimates   .......................................................................57

3.. Main accounting policies for the preparation and presentation 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements.............................................. 58

3.1.. Cash and cash equivalents....................................................................... 58

3.2. . Money market and related transactions................................................. 58

3.3.. Transactions in Foreign Currency............................................................. 59

3.4.. Financial Collateral.................................................................................... 59

3.5.. Financial investment assets, derivative financial instruments and cash 
transactions............................................................................................... 60

3.6. . Non-current Assets Held for Sale............................................................ 82

3.7.. Properties taken under lease.................................................................... 83

3.8.. Property and equipment............................................................................87

3.9.. Prepaid expenses.......................................................................................91

3.10..Intangible Assets........................................................................................91

3.11.. Impairment of non-financial assets......................................................... 93

3.12..Deposits and current liabilities................................................................. 94

3.13..Financial obligations................................................................................. 94

3.14. Outstanding investment securities........................................................... 95

3.15..Labor liabilities............................................................................................ 95

3.16. Estimated Liabilities and Provisions..........................................................98

3.17.. Income tax...................................................................................................99

3.18..Real value unit – RVU.................................................................................101

3.19. Adequate equity.........................................................................................101

3.20. Share issue premium............................................................................... 103

3.21 Recognition of revenue and expenses..................................................... 103

3.22 Statement of cash flow............................................................................. 105

3.23. Earnings per share................................................................................... 105

3.24 Standards issued by the IASB that are not yet effective........................ 105

4.. Relevant Evens.........................................................................................109

5. . Business Segments.................................................................................. 111

5.1 Description of the segments........................................................................ 111

5.2 Income by segments at December 31, 2021 and 2020 ............................113

December 31, 2021.............................................................................................119

6.  . Maturity of assets and expiration of liabilities ...................................... 124

7. . Foreign currency transactions................................................................130
8. . Cash and cash equivalents..................................................................... 135



8 9

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

9.  . Financial investment assets ................................................................... 139

10.. Loan portfolio and finance lease transactions (net) and interest on loan 
portfolio and other items (net)...............................................................150

11. . Right-of-use fixed assets.........................................................................168

12. . Securitization and buyback of securitized portfolio............................. 173

13.. FAIR VALUE .............................................................................................. 178

14. . Financial instruments, hedging derivatives and cash transactions.....196

14.1. Hedging derivatives........................................................................ 209

15.. Accounts receivable, net......................................................................... 215

16. . Non-current assets held for sale............................................................ 217

17.. Property and equipment......................................................................... 221

18.. Intangible assets .................................................................................... 226

19.. Investments in joint ventures................................................................. 228

20. . Other assets (net)................................................................................... 230

21. . Prepaid expenses and advances from contracts and suppliers........... 231

22. . Deposits and current liabilities.............................................................. 234

23. . Money market and simultaneous transactions.................................... 238

24. . Bank loans and other financial obligations........................................... 240

25. . Derivative financial instruments and cash transactions (liabilities)... 246

26. . Accounts payable................................................................................... 250

27. . Outstanding debt securities................................................................... 252

28. . Other liabilities........................................................................................ 255

29. . Accrued liabilities and provisions...........................................................257

30. . Labor liabilities........................................................................................ 262

31. . Income tax and deferred tax ..................................................................274

31.1. Components of the income  tax expense............................................... 274

31.2 .Reconciliation of the tax rate in accordance with the tax 
provisions and the effective rate:............................................................ 274

31.3. Current tax assets and liabilities............................................................. 278

31.4. Deferred taxes by type of temporary difference:.................................... 278

31.4.1 Deferred taxes for subsidiaries and joint operations  ..........................282

31.4.2 Effect of current and deferred taxes on each component 
   of other comprehensive income in equity............................................283

31.5 .Transfer prices..........................................................................................284

31.6 .Uncertainty in tax positions.....................................................................284

32. . Subscribed and paid-in capital.............................................................. 285



10 11

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

33. . Reserves.................................................................................................. 285

34. Earnings per share.....................................................................................287

35. Other comprehensive income - OCI........................................................ 288

36. Legal controls ............................................................................................291

37. Financial reporting disclosure and control accounts.............................. 292

38. Commitments and contingencies........................................................... 294

39. Interest revenues...................................................................................... 299

40. Non-interest revenues.............................................................................. 302

41. Non-interest expenses ............................................................................. 305

42. Transactions with related parties............................................................ 309

43. Market, interest, structural and credit risk report .................................. 321

44. Corporate governance............................................................................. 354

45. Subsequent events....................................................................................361

46. Other items of interest............................................................................. 362

1.	Reports and 
Certifications



12 13

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Basis for the Opinion

I carried out my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA) accepted 
in Colombia. My responsibilities, according to said standards, are described in the section of my 
report named “Responsibilities of the Statutory Auditor Regarding the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.” I am independent from the Group, in accordance with the International 
Code of Ethics for Accounting Professionals issued by the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants (IESBA), included in the Reporting Assurance Standards accepted in Colombia, 
as well as the relevant ethical requirements established in Colombia for my audit of the Separa-
te Financial Statements, and I have fulfilled all other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the aforementioned IESBA Code. I believe the audit evidence I have obtained offers sufficient and 
appropriate grounds to issue my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

The key audit matters are those that, in my professional judgment, were most relevant for my 
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were agreed 
in the context of my audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole in forming my opi-
nion in this regard, and I do not issue a separate opinion on these matters.

© 2022 KPMG S.A.S., Colombian simplified stock company and member firm of the global 
organization of independent member firms of KPMG, affiliated with KPMG International Li-
mited, a private limited liability English company. All rights reserved.

KPMG S.A.S.
TIN 860.000.846-4

1. Reports and Certifications

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Colombia S A.:

Opinion

I have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Colom-
bia, S. A. (the Bank), which include the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at December 
31, 2021, and the Consolidated Statements of Income, of Other Comprehensive Income, of Chan-
ges in Equity and of Cash Flow for the year ended on that date, along with their respective notes, 
which include the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the aforementioned consolidated financial statements attached hereto reasonably 
present, in all material aspects, the Group’s consolidated financial position at December 31, 2021, 
the consolidated income of its operations and the consolidated cash flows for the year ended on 
that date, in accordance with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Co-
lombia, applied consistently with the previous year.

KPMG Advisory, Tax & Legal S.A.S.

Calle 90 No. 19C – 74

Bogotá D.C. – Colombia

Telephone No.: 

+57 (1) 6188000 

 +57 (1) 6188100

www.kpmg.com.co
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Other Matters

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on December 31, 2020, which are pre-
sented exclusively for comparative purposes, were audited by me, and in my report dated February 
23, 2021, I issued a clean opinion on them.

•	 Professionals who are knowledgeable of cre-
dit risk assessment and information techno-
logy assisted me in: (1) evaluating the key me-
thodologies and data used to determine the 
probability of loss, the severity and exposure 
at the time of default, and the parameters 
produced by the models; (2) evaluating the 
macroeconomic variables and scenarios wei-
ghted by probability used in the internal.

•	 Models,including considering alternative data 
for certain variables; (3) recalculating a sam-
ple of the expected loss model and its related 
data; and (4) assessing the qualitative adjust-
ments applied to the model.

•	 On a sample of loans, assess the credit risk 
assigned by the Group and the Group’s ju-
dgment to determine whether a significant 
increase in the risk of the related loan had oc-
curred.

.

Impairment Assessment of the Loan Portfolio under IFRS 9 (see notes 3.5 and 10  
to the consolidated financial statements)

Key Audit Matter How it was Addressed by the Audit

The Group periodically reviews the credit risk 
exposure of its loan portfolio. Determining 
such exposure is one of the most significant 
and complex estimations in the preparation 
of the attached consolidated financial sta-
tements, due to the substantial amount of 
judgment involved in developing the models 
used to determine impairment based on the 
expected loss approach required by IFRS 9. 
The balances of the commercial loan portfolio 
and its credit risk allowance at December 31, 
2021, totaled COP 58,952,914 million and COP 
3,223,150 million, respectively.

I considered to assessment of impairment of 
the loan portfolio a key audit matter because 
it involves significant uncertainty in measu-
rement, which requires complex judgments, 
knowledge and industry experience. Such ele-
ments could have effects mainly on: (1) the 
evaluation of the methodologies used.

The following, among others, were the audit 
procedures used to assess the sufficiency of 
the impairment due to credit risk:

•	 Involvement of professionals with expe-
rience and knowledge in the assessment 
of credit risk and information technologies, 
to assess certain internal controls related 
to the Group’s process for determining 
the impairment of the loan portfolio. This 
included controls related to: (1) validation 
of the model that determine the probabili-
ty of loss, its severity, and the exposure at 
the time of default; (2) the Group’s moni-
toring for determining impairment of the 
loan portfolio: (3) information technology 
controls on the input data of the models 
that determine loan impairment and their 
related calculations; (4) the assessment to 
determine whether significant changes in 
credit risk have occurred; (5) review of the 
macroeconomic variables and weighted 
scenarios used in the models to determine 
impairment of the loan portfolio: and (6) 
testing was performed on the controls rela-
ted to reviewing commercial loans that are 
assessed individually.

including the methodology to estimated loss 
given default; (2) the probability of loss gi-
ven default, its factors and key assumptions; 
(3) the ratings of the loans and qualitative 
factors incorporated in the variables of the 
Group’s internal models; and (4) the calcu-
lation of estimated impairment due to credit 
risk of the full loan portfolio
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Those charged with corporate governance are responsible for supervising the Group’s financial 
reporting process.

Responsibilities of the Statutory Auditor regarding the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements, taken as 
a whole, are free from material misstatements, due to either fraud or error, and to issue a report 
containing my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not gua-
rantee that an audit carried out in accordance with NIAs will always detect an existing material 
misstatement. Misstatements may be due to fraud or error, and they are considered material if, 
individually or in combination, they could be reasonably expected to influence the decisions made 
by users based on these Consolidated Financial Statements.

I obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the financial information of the entities or bu-
siness activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
I am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Group. I conti-
nue to be solely responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate to those charged with governance at the Group, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, as well as any significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies of internal controls I may identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with corporate governance confirmation that I have fulfilled all rele-
vant ethical requirements of independence, and I have communicated all relationships and other 
matters that could reasonably be considered to influence my independence and, if applicable, the 
associated safeguards.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information is information included 
in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and my corresponding audit 
report. My opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other informa-
tion and I do not express any type of assurance conclusion on such information. Regarding my 
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, my responsibility is to read the other information, 
and in doing so, to consider whether any material inconsistency exists between such information 
and the Consolidated Financial Statements or the knowledge I have obtained through my audit, 
or whether it otherwise appears to contain any material misstatements. If, based on my work, I 
conclude that such other information contains a material misstatement, I am under the obligation 
of reporting this fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and of those Charged with Corporate Governance at the 
Bank Regarding the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and reasonable presentation of these Consolida-
ted Financial Statements in accordance with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards 
accepted in Colombia. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining the 
internal control that Management deems necessary for the preparation and presentation of Con-
solidated Financial Statements that are free of material misstatements, whether due to fraud or 
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates 
that are reasonable under the circumstances.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s capacity to continue as a going concern, and for disclosing, if applicable, any matters rela-
ted to its continuity and the use of the going concern accounting assumption, unless Management 
intends to liquidate the Group or cease its operations, or if there is not other realistic alternative 
than to do so.
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Based on the matters communicated to those charged with corporate governance, I determine 
the most significant matters for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in the current 
period, which are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in the Statutory Audi-
tor’s report, unless laws or regulations prevent public disclosure of the matter, or when, in extre-
mely exceptional circumstances, I determine that the matter should not be communicated in my 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably outweigh the benefit to 
the public interest of publishing such information.

Adriana Rocío Clavijo Cuesta 
Statutory Auditor of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Colombia S.A.
Prof. License No. 115083-T 
Member of KPMG S.A.S.

February 22, 2022

ments of the Bank at December 31, 2021, along with their explanatory notes, have been prepared 
based on the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia (NCIF, for the 
Spanish original), uniformly applied, ensuring that they reasonably present the financial position 
and the results of its operations, and that before making them available to the General Meeting of 
Shareholders and third parties we have verified that:

	♦ The figures included in the consolidated  financial statements and the explanatory notes have 
been faithfully taken from the books and have been prepared in accordance with the Accoun-
ting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia (NCIF).

	♦ All the assets and liabilities listed in the Group’s financial statements at December 31, 2021 
exist and all the transactions listed in said statements have been carried out during the year 
ended on that date.

	♦ All economic events that affect the Group and its affiliates during the year ended on December 
31, 2021, have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

	♦ All the economic events that affect the Group and its affiliates have been correctly classified, 
described and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

KPMG Advisory, Tax & Legal S.A.S.

Calle 90 No. 19C – 74

Bogotá D.C. – Colombia

Telephone No.: 

+57 (1) 6188000 

 +57 (1) 6188100

www.kpmg.com.co

Certification by the Registered Agent and General Accountant
CERTIFICATION BY THE REGISTERED AGENT AND GENERAL ACCOUNTANT

The undersigned Registered Agent and General Accountant of BBVA Colombia, in compliance 
with Article 37 of Law 222/1995 and Article 46 of Law 964/2005, certify that the financial state-
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	♦ The assets represent probable future economic benefits (rights) and the liabilities represent 
probable future economic sacrifices (obligations) obtained or on the account of the Group at 
December 31, 2021.

	♦ We have verified that the measurement, valuation and presentation procedures have been uni-
formly applied with the previous year and that they reasonably reflect the financial position at 
December 31, 2021.

	♦ All the items have been recognized at their appropriate values in accordance with the Accoun-
ting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia (NCIF).

In compliance with Article 46 of Law 964 / 2005, we hereby certify that: The consolidated financial 
statements at December 31, 2021, and other relevant reports for the public contain no defects, 
inaccuracies or errors that would prevent knowing the true financial position and operations of the 
entity and its affiliates.

GERMAN ENRIQUE RODRIGUEZ 
REGISTERED AGENT
BBVA COLOMBIA
	
OSCAR ENRIQUE RODRÍGUEZ ACOSTA
GENERAL ACCOUNTANT
Prof. License No. 179552 T

2.	Consolidated   
Financial  
Statements



22 23

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

2. Consolidated Financial  
Statements

2.1  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At December 31, 2021 and 2020

(in millions of COP)

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents ( 8 )   COP  11.029.678    COP      6.266.488  

Cash and deposits in banks 10.268.716  5.745.960  

Investment funds 24.140  36.313  

Money market transactions 736.822  484.215  

Financial investment assets ( 9 )   COP  7.272.987    COP  7.408.591  

Investments at fair value through profit or loss           2.766.217            2.894.835  

Investments at fair value through profit or loss 2.594.225  2.775.447  

Investments at fair value through profit or loss 
provided in Money Market transactions 171.992  119.388  

Investments at fair value through OCI           2.423.398            2.388.309  

Investments at fair value through OCI Debt 
Instruments 650.189  1.151.941  

Investments at fair value through OCI Equity 
Instruments 358.275  371.271  

Investments at fair value through OCI provided in 
Money Market transactions 770.469  146.761  

Investments at fair value through OCI provided as 
Collateral in transactions 644.465  718.336  

Investments at amortized cost (net)           2.083.372            2.125.447  

Investments at amortized cost 55.422  2.131.188  

Investments at amortized cost through profit or 
loss provided in money market transactions 2.030.671  -   

Impairment of investments at amortized cost (2.721) (5.741) 

Derivative Financial Instruments and Cash 
Operations ( 14 )   COP 3.290.980    COP 3.809.914  

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020
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For Trading 2.960.451  3.657.534  

For Hedging 330.529  152.380  

Loan portfolio and financial lease 
transactions (net) ( 10 )   COP 54.618.275      COP 47.908.617  

Commercial 22.216.442  18.826.188  

Consumer 21.739.393  19.518.776  

Mortgage 13.178.087  12.159.294  

Micro-credit 2  2  

Employees (mortgage and consumer) 498.298  479.043  

Impairment of loan portfolio and financial 
leases, net (3.013.947) (3.074.686) 

Interest on loan portfolio and other items (net) ( 10 )     COP 1.111.489      COP  1.244.613  

Commercial 261.032  258.481  

Consumer. 627.935  673.262  

Mortgage. 422.906  451.323  

Employees (mortgage and consumer) 3.217  3.297  

Other interest on loan portfolio 5.602  7.794  

Impairment of interest and other loan portfolio 
and financial lease items, net (209.203) (149.544) 

Others     COP 2.596.620      COP 2.250.290  

Accounts receivable (net) ( 15 ) 1.246.726  1.003.345  

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

Other advances to contracts and suppliers ( 21 ) 139.803  62.440  

Investments in joint ventures ( 19 ) 179.764  149.818  

Non-current Assets Held for Sale ( 16 ) 58.932  51.675  

Property and equipment, net ( 17 ) 671.941  702.364  

Right-of-use fixed assets ( 11 ) 109.124  136.443  

Intangible assets, net ( 18 ) 139.621  120.202  

Deferred tax assets, net ( 31 ) 1.257  306  

Current tax assets ( 31 ) 2.316  1.844  

Other tax assets ( 31 ) 735  723  

Prepaid expenses ( 21 ) 38.691  17.635  

Other Assets (Net) ( 20 ) 7.710  3.495  

Total assets   COP 79.920.029    COP  68.888.513  

LIABILITIES

Deposits and on-demand liabilities ( 22 )  COP 59.165.936 COP     51.951.600 

On-demand 41.143.827 32.757.435

Term 18.022.109 19.194.165

Money market and simultaneous transactions ( 23 ) 3.696.625 506.292

Derivative Financial Instruments and (Liability) 
Cash Transactions   COP 3.454.783    COP 4.107.191  

Trading ( 25 ) 3.454.783 4.106.964

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020
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Financial obligations

Bank credits and other financial obligations ( 24 ) 2.974.166 2.606.926

Taxes

Deferred taxes, net ( 31 ) 103.645 115.091

Current taxes ( 31 ) 152.986 21.385

Other taxes ( 31 ) 140.663 141.701

Estimated Liabilities and Provisions ( 29 ) 284.833 276.494

Accounts payable ( 26 ) 712.760 714.295

Labor liabilities ( 30 ) 250.005 240.871

Other Liabilities ( 28 ) 339.399 253.144

Outstanding Investment Securities ( 27 ) 2.388.531 2.304.263

Lease liabilities 115.796 141.036

Total liabilities   COP 73.780.128    COP 63.380.290  

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Subscribed and Paid-in Capital ( 32 ) 89.779 89.779

Reserves ( 33 ) 3.643.354 3.408.311

Share issue premium 651.950 651.950

Net income or loss for year ( 34 ) 890.240 461.405

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020
Retained earnings 111.308 114.962

Other comprehensive income (OCI) ( 35 ) 744.506 772.506

Article 6 Law 4 / 80 506 506

Total shareholders’ equity 6.131.643 5.499.419

Minority interest 8.258 8.804

Total equity 6.139.901 5.508.223

Total liabilities and equity 79.920.029 68.888.513

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

413

Informe individual Colombia 2021

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements

Adriana Rocío Clavijo Cuesta
Statutory Auditor

Prof. License No. 115083-T
Member of KPMG S.A.S

See my report of February 22, 2022

       
1The undersigned Registered Agent and Public Accountant hereby certify that we have previously verified the 
assertions contained in these Separate Financial Statements and that they have been faithfully taken from the 
Company’s ledgers.

Oscar Enrique Rodríguez 
Acosta

General Accountant1

Prof. License No. 179552-T

Germán Enrique 
Rodríguez Perdomo, 

Registered Agent1

Reserves ( 34 ) 3.643.354  3.408.311  

Share issue premium 651.950  651.950  

Current year net income 895.242  469.850  

Retained earnings 253.674  253.318  

Other comprehensive income (OCI) 152.797  122.608  

Article 6 Law 4/80 506  506  

Total shareholders’ equity  COP           5.687.302  COP           4.996.322 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  COP           6.026.701  COP           5.249.466 

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.2 Consolidated Statement of Income

For the year ended on December 31, 2021 and 2020

(in millions of COP)

For the years ended on December 31,

Note 2021 2020

INTEREST REVENUES ( 39 )

Loan portfolio COP 4.646.921  COP 5.053.726  

Consumer 2.117.570  2.280.644  

Commercial 820.478  1.061.332  

Mortgage 858.606  874.155  

Credit Card 404.305  390.838  

Factoring 32.681  35.399  

Operating leases -   1.359  

Financial leases 101.411  133.362  

Residential leases 311.870  276.637  

Interest expenses (1.382.211) (1.897.610) 

Savings accounts (277.173) (523.333) 

Term deposits and adjustment of real value units (1.019.432) (1.268.596) 

Banks and financial obligations (85.606) (105.681) 

Interest revenues, net COP 3.264.710  COP 3.156.116 

FEE REVENUES ( 40 )

Fee revenues 658.723  555.452  

Fee expenses (440.984) (349.054) 

Total Commission Income, net  COP 217.739  COP 206.398 

NON-INTEREST REVENUES ( 40 )

Securities    932.789  1.165.321  

Derivatives 20.454.645  25.508.493  

Disposals 173.625  135.637  

OPERATING EXPENSES ( 41 )

Securities (834.748) (900.553) 

Derivatives (20.595.124) (25.090.194) 

Disposals (141.362) (141.121) 

Total operating income COP (10.175)  COP 677.583 

Activities in joint operations ( 40 )  COP 880  COP 1.598 

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Impairment of loan portfolio and financial 
leases, net (977.450) (1.501.286) 

Reversion of impairment on loan portfolio 1.998.388  1.379.509  

For the years ended on December 31,

Note 2021 2020
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Impairment of loan portfolio and leasing 
translations (2.976.038) (2.880.950) 

Impairment of investments 200  155  

Impairment of non-current assets held for sale (21.823) (17.292) 

Impairment of property and equipment (83) (1.397) 

Reversion of other impairment 19.849  18.645  

Total impairment of assets (net)  $ (979.507)  $ (1.501.330)

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating revenues ( 40 ) COP 194.072  COP 96.093 

Other operating expenses ( 41 )  COP (1.835.027)  COP (1.729.147)

Exchange differences, net ( 40 )  COP 483.266  COP (203.580)

Pretax profits  COP 1.335.958  COP 703.731 

Income tax (469.241) (390.259) 

Deferred Tax 25.082  150.118  

Current year net income COP 891.799 COP 463.590 

Net income attributable to:

Owners of the controlling company COP 890.240  COP 461.405  

For the years ended on December 31,

Note 2021 2020

Non-controlling interests 1.559  2.185  

Current year net income  COP 891.799  COP 463.590 

Earnings per ordinary share (in COP)

Basic 62  32  

For the years ended on December 31,

Note 2021 2020
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Informe individual Colombia 2021

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements

Adriana Rocío Clavijo Cuesta
Statutory Auditor

Prof. License No. 115083-T
Member of KPMG S.A.S

See my report of February 22, 2022

       
1The undersigned Registered Agent and Public Accountant hereby certify that we have previously verified the 
assertions contained in these Separate Financial Statements and that they have been faithfully taken from the 
Company’s ledgers.

Oscar Enrique Rodríguez 
Acosta

General Accountant1

Prof. License No. 179552-T

Germán Enrique 
Rodríguez Perdomo, 

Registered Agent1

Reserves ( 34 ) 3.643.354  3.408.311  

Share issue premium 651.950  651.950  

Current year net income 895.242  469.850  

Retained earnings 253.674  253.318  

Other comprehensive income (OCI) 152.797  122.608  

Article 6 Law 4/80 506  506  

Total shareholders’ equity  COP           5.687.302  COP           4.996.322 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  COP           6.026.701  COP           5.249.466 

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Por el año terminado al 31 de 
diciembre de 2021 y 2020

Capital Suscrito y Pagado

Acciones con dividendo 
preferencial sin derecho 

a voto
Acciones ordinarias

Número Valor Número Valor      Reservas

Prima en 
Colocación

de 
Acciones

Current 
year net 
income

Retained 
earnings 

Adjustment on 
first-time 

adoption of 
IFRS

Other 
comprehen
sive income 

(OCI) 

Article 6 Law 
4/1980

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 
Non-

controlling 
interest

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity

SALDOS AL 31 DE DICIEMBRE  DE 
2019   479.760 $   2.994 13.907.929  $ 86.785  $ 3.039.130  $651.950  COP 731.618  COP 95.669  COP (42.887) COP 638.888    COP             506  COP 5.204.653  COP 7.260  COP  5.211.913  

Participación no controladora (interés minoritario)

Transferencias       -                       -                - -   -   -       (731.618) 731.618  -   -   -   -   -   -   

Reservas       -                       -                - -   -   -         -   -   -   -    -   -          1.223 1.223 

Valorización       -                       -                - -   -   -         -   -   -   -    -   -             209 209 

Utilidad (perdida)       -                       -                - -   -   -         -   -   -   -    -   -   16            16 

Dividendos pagados en efectivo 
acciones preferenciales y comunes       -                       -                - -   -   -         -   -   -   -    -   -   (1.463)      (1.463)

Apropiación para reserva legal       -                       -                - -   -   -       -    (369.189) -   -   -   (369.189)    -   (369.189)

Resultado del ejercicio       -                       -                - -    369.181 -       -   (369.181) -   -   -                 -               -                       -   

Actualización Avalúos Activos Fijos       -                       -                - -   -   -   461.405    -      -   -                         -    461.405 1.559 462.964 

Impuestos diferidos (Neto)       -                       -                - -   -   -    -   -   (2.437) -                         -       (2.437)  -        (2.437)

Ganancias no realizadas por nuevas 
mediciones de instrumentos 
financieros 

      -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -      18.219 -                         -     18.219  - 18.219 

2. 3 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended on December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of COP and thousands of shares)

For the year ended on 
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Subscribed and paid-in capital

Shares with non-voting 
preferred dividend Ordinary shares

Number Value Number Value Reserves

Share 
issue 

premium
Resultado 

del Ejercicio
Utilidades 
Retenidas 

Ajustes en la 
adopción por 

primer vez 
NCIF

Otros 
Resultados 
Inregrales 

(ORI)

Artículo 6 Ley 
4 de 1980

Total 
patrimonio 

de los 
accionistas

Participación 
no 

Controladora

Total 
patrimonio de 
los accionistas

BALANCES AT December 31, 
2019

  479.760  COP 2.994    13.907.929      COP 86.785  COP  3.039.130  $   731.618 $   95.669 $   (42.887) $   638.888   $              506 $  5.204.653 $   7.260 $   5.211.913 

Non-controlling interest (minority interest)

Transfers       -                         -   -   -    -   -       (731.618) 731.618  -   -                         - -   -   -   

Reserves       -                         -   -   -    -   -         - -                  - -   -   -          1.223                1.223 

Valuation       -                         -   -   -    -   -         - -                  - -   -   -             209                     209 

Gain (loss)       -                         -   -   -    -   -         - -                  - -   -   -                      16            16

Dividends paid in cash on 
preferred and common shares       -                         -   -   -    -   -         - -                  - -   -   -   (1.463)      (1.463)

Appropriation for legal reserve       -                         -   -   -    -   -       -  (369.189)                - -                         - (369.189)    - (369.189)

Current year net income       -                         -   -   -    369.181 -       - (369.181)                - -                         -               -             -                       - 

Updated appraisal of fixed assets       -                         -   -   -    -   -   461.405    -    - -                         -  461.405 1.559 462.964 

Deferred taxes (net)       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   (2.437) -                         -     (2.437) -        (2.437)

Unrealized gains from 
remeasurement of financial 
instruments

      -                         -   -   -   -   -   -   -      18.219 -                         -   18.219  - 18.219 

COP  651.950
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Resultado 
del Ejercicio

Utilidades 
Retenidas 

Ajustes en la 
adopción por 

primer vez 
NCIF

Otros 
Resultados 
Inregrales 

(ORI)

Artículo 6 Ley 
4 de 1980

Total 
patrimonio 

de los 
accionistas

Participación 
no 

Controladora

Total 
patrimonio de 
los accionistas

Adjustment by sales force of 
retained earnings       -                         -   -   -    -   -       - -   53.150 -                         -    53.150 -         53.150 

Other comprehensive income

Hedge with cash flow derivatives       -                         -   -   -    -   -      -    -    - 7.899                       -   7.899    -         7.899 

Gains on other equity items of 
subsidiaries       -                         -   -   -    -   -                         -                     -        - (4.535)                       -       (4.535)                -         (4.535)

Gain from reversion of impairment on 
loan portfolio and finance leasing 
transactions

      -                         -   -   -    -   -                   -          -                    - 137.760                       -     137.760 -   137.760 

Actuarial calculation on employee 
benefits       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -           2.426                       -        2.426                    -               2.426 

Accumulated gains from 
remeasurement of financial assets 
available for sale

      -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -    16.038                       -      16.038                -           16.038 

Gains on non-controlling 
interests       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -   16.321                       -      16.321                   -           16.321 

Deferred taxes, net       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -   (42.291)                       -   (42.291)                        -    (42.291)

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2020  479.760  COP  2.994     13.907.929  COP 86.785  COP 3.408.311  COP 651.950  $   461.405 $   88.917 $   26.045 $  772.506   $              506 $ 5.499.419  $   8.804 $   5.508.223 

Non-controlling interest (minority 
interest)

Transfers       -                         -   -   -    -   -   (461.405) 461.405 -   -   -   -   -   -   

Reserves       -                         -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -                      81                           81 

For the year ended on 
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Subscribed and paid-in capital

Shares with non-voting 
preferred dividend Ordinary shares

Number Value Number Value Reserves

Share 
issue 

premium

Por el año terminado al 31 de 
diciembre de 2021 y 2020

Capital Suscrito y Pagado

Acciones con dividendo 
preferencial sin derecho 

a voto
Acciones ordinarias

Número Valor Número Valor      Reservas

Prima en 
Colocación

de 
Acciones

Ajuste por fuerza de ventas de 
utilidades retenidas       -                       -                - -   -   -       -   -   53.150  -                         -      53.150  -         53.150 

Otros resultados integrales:

Cobertura con derivados de flujo de 
efectivo       -                       -                - -   -   -      -      -      -   7.899 -     7.899    -           7.899 

Ganancias otras partidas patrimoniales 
de las subordinadas       -                       -                - -   -   -   -                       -          -   (4.535) -         (4.535) -           (4.535)

Ganancias por recuperación deterioro 
de cartera de créditos y Operaciones 
Leasing Financiero

      -                       -                - -   -   -   -            -   -   137.760 -       137.760 -   137.760 

Calculo actuarial beneficios empleados       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -           2.426 -          2.426 -                 2.426 

Ganancias acumuladas por nuevas 
medicones de activos financieros 
disponibles para la venta

      -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -    16.038 -        16.038 -             16.038 

Ganancias de participaciones no 
controladas       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -   16.321 -        16.321 -             16.321 

Impuesto diferidos netos       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -   (42.291) -     (42.291) -      (42.291)

SALDOS AL 31 DE DICIEMBRE DE 2020 479.760  $   2.994 13.907.929  $ 86.785  $  3.408.311 $  651.950 COP 461.405  COP 88.917  COP 26.045  COP 772.506 COP             506  COP 5.499.419  COP 8.804  COP 5.508.223  

Participación no controladora (interés 
minoritario)

Transferencias       -                       -                - -   -   -   (461.405) 461.405 -   -   -   -   -   -   

Reservas       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   81 81 

Current 
year net 
income

Retained 
earnings 

Adjustment on 
first-time 

adoption of 
IFRS

Other 
comprehen
sive income 

(OCI) 

Article 6 Law 
4/1980

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 
Non-

controlling 
interest

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity
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Resultado 
del Ejercicio

Utilidades 
Retenidas 

Ajustes en la 
adopción por 

primer vez 
NCIF

Otros 
Resultados 
Inregrales 

(ORI)

Artículo 6 Ley 
4 de 1980

Total 
patrimonio 

de los 
accionistas

Participación 
no 

Controladora

Total 
patrimonio de 
los accionistas

Valuation       -                         -   -   -    -   -         -          -                - -                         -                  -              (68)                (68)

Gain (loss)       -                         -   -   -    -   -         -                -                - -                         -             -    (2.118)         (2.118)

Dividends paid in cash on 
preferred and common shares       -                         -   -   -    -   -         - (234.807)       - -                         - (234.807)                  - (234.807)

Appropriation for legal reserve       -                         -   -   -   235.043 -         - (235.043)       - -                         -                       -                     -                          - 

Current year net income       -                         -   -   -    -   -   890.240       - -                         -                       - 890.240   1.559    891.799 

Updated appraisal of fixed assets       -                         -   -   -    -   -             -     -        296 -                         -              296                       -                  296 

Sale of non-current assets held 
for sale       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -                   -     (521) -                         -         (521)                       -              (521)

Deferred taxes (net)       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -               -        581 -                         -           581                       -                  581 

Adjustment by sales force of 
retained earnings       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -          -  4.434 -                         -  4.434                       -   4.434 

Other comprehensive income

Gain on cash flow hedging       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -   31.243                       -    31.243                       -     31.243 

Gains on remeasurement of defined 
benefit plans       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -   15.268                       -     15.268                       -    15.268 

Gains on other equity items of 
subsidiaries       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -           142 -       142                       -            142 

Loss on non-controlling interests       -                         -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    (52.214)                       -    (52.214)                       - (52.214)

For the year ended on 
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Subscribed and paid-in capital

Shares with non-voting 
preferred dividend Ordinary shares

Number Value Number Value Reserves

Share 
issue 

premium

Por el año terminado al 31 de 
diciembre de 2021 y 2020

Capital Suscrito y Pagado

Acciones con dividendo 
preferencial sin derecho 

a voto
Acciones ordinarias

Número Valor Número Valor      Reservas

Prima en 
Colocación

de 
Acciones

Valorización       -                       -                - -   -   -         -            -   -   -   -                    -                (68) (68)

Utilidad (perdida)       -                       -                - -   -   -         -                  -   -   -   -               -      (2.118)         (2.118)

Dividendos pagados en efectivo 
acciones preferenciales y comunes       -                       -                - -   -   -         -   (234.807)       -   -   -   (234.807) -   (234.807)

Apropiación para reserva legal       -                       -                - -   235.043                  -       -   (235.043)       -   -   -                         -   -                            -   

Resultado del ejercicio       -                       -                - -   -   -   890.240       -   -   -                         -   890.240   1.559    891.799 

Actualización Avalúos Activos Fijos       -                       -                - -   -   -             -       -          296 -                         -                296 -   296 

Venta activos no corrientes mantenidos 
para la venta       -                       -                - -   -   -   -                   -       (521) -                         -           (521) -                (521)

Impuestos diferidos (Neto)       -                       -                - -   -   -   -               -          581 -                         -             581 -   581 

Ajuste por fuerza de ventas de 
utilidades retenidas       -                       -                - -   -   -   -          -    4.434 -                         -    4.434 -     4.434 

Otros resultados integrales:

Ganancias por coberturas de flujos de 
efectivo       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -   31.243 -      31.243 -       31.243 

Ganancias por nuevas mediciones de 
planes de beneficios definidos       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -   15.268 -       15.268 -      15.268 

Ganancias otras partidas patrimoniales 
de las subordinadas       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -           142  -       142 -              142 

Pérdida de participaciones no 
controladas       -                       -                - -   -   -   -   -   -    (52.214) -      (52.214) -   (52.214)

Current 
year net 
income

Retained 
earnings 

Adjustment on 
first-time 

adoption of 
IFRS

Other 
comprehen
sive income 

(OCI) 

Article 6 Law 
4/1980

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 
Non-

controlling 
interest

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity
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Resultado 
del Ejercicio

Utilidades 
Retenidas 

Ajustes en la 
adopción por 

primer vez 
NCIF

Otros 
Resultados 
Inregrales 

(ORI)

Artículo 6 Ley 
4 de 1980

Total 
patrimonio 

de los 
accionistas

Participación 
no 

Controladora

Total 
patrimonio de 
los accionistas

Loss on remeasurement of financial 
assets available for sale       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -   (51.244)                       -  (51.244)                -  (51.244)

Gain from reversion of impairment on 
loan portfolio and finance leasing 
transactions

      -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -   12.468                       -     12.468 -           12.468 

Deferred taxes, net       -                         -   -   -    -   -   -   -   -     16.337                       -        16.337                     -            16.337 

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2021   479.760 COP 2.994    13.907.929  COP 86.785   COP 3.643.354  COP 651.950  $   890.240 $   80.473 $   30.835 $   744.506   $              506 $   6.131.643 $   8.258 $   6.139.901 

For the year ended on 
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Subscribed and paid-in capital

Shares with non-voting 
preferred dividend Ordinary shares

Number Value Number Value Reserves

Share 
issue 

premium

413

Informe individual Colombia 2021

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements

Adriana Rocío Clavijo Cuesta
Statutory Auditor

Prof. License No. 115083-T
Member of KPMG S.A.S

See my report of February 22, 2022

       
1The undersigned Registered Agent and Public Accountant hereby certify that we have previously verified the 
assertions contained in these Separate Financial Statements and that they have been faithfully taken from the 
Company’s ledgers.

Oscar Enrique Rodríguez 
Acosta

General Accountant1

Prof. License No. 179552-T

Germán Enrique 
Rodríguez Perdomo, 

Registered Agent1

Reserves ( 34 ) 3.643.354  3.408.311  

Share issue premium 651.950  651.950  

Current year net income 895.242  469.850  

Retained earnings 253.674  253.318  

Other comprehensive income (OCI) 152.797  122.608  

Article 6 Law 4/80 506  506  

Total shareholders’ equity  COP           5.687.302  COP           4.996.322 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  COP           6.026.701  COP           5.249.466 

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Por el año terminado al 31 de 
diciembre de 2021 y 2020

Capital Suscrito y Pagado

Acciones con dividendo 
preferencial sin derecho 

a voto
Acciones ordinarias

Número Valor Número Valor      Reservas

Prima en 
Colocación

de 
Acciones

Pérdida por nuevas mediciones de 
activos financieros disponibles para la 
venta  

      -                       -                - -   -   -    -   -   -   (51.244) -    (51.244) -    (51.244)

Ganancias por recuperación deterioro 
de cartera de créditos y Operaciones 
Leasing Financiero

      -                       -                - -   -   -    -   -   -   12.468 -       12.468 -           12.468 

Impuesto diferidos netos       -                       -                - -   -   -    -   -   -     16.337 -          16.337 -              16.337 

SALDOS AL 31 DE DICIEMBRE DE 2021   479.760 $   2.994 13.907.929  $ 86.785  $  3.643.354 $  651.950 COP 890.240  COP 80.473  COP 30.835  COP 744.506  COP            506  COP 6.131.643  COP  8.258  COP 6.139.901  

Current 
year net 
income

Retained 
earnings 

Adjustment on 
first-time 

adoption of 
IFRS

Other 
comprehen
sive income 

(OCI) 

Article 6 Law 
4/1980

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 
Non-

controlling 
interest

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity
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2. 4 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended on December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of COP )

For the years ended on December 31,

2021 2020

Balance at the beginning of period COP 6.266.488  COP 5.642.226  

CASH FLOWS IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Disbursements and payments received from loan 
portfolio and leasing customers        (4.811.075) 18.220  

Payments and reception of on-demand deposits         8.045.366           4.785.128  

Payments and reception of term deposits         (1.172.354)           (388.062) 

Payments and reception of other deposits and 
on-demand liabilities 988.639       (1.351.488) 

Payments and redemptions received on financial debt and 
derivative instruments 418.799          1.362.128  

Payments to suppliers and employees     (4.191.408)     (3.230.221) 

Interest received from loan portfolio and leasing 
customers and others            4.288.152         4.113.405  

Interest paid on deposits and on-demand liabilities        (1.297.187)     (1.793.225) 

Income tax              (434.727)           (504.720) 

Cash advances and loans granted to third parties             (703.293)        (489.539) 

Collections on the reimbursement of advances and loans 
granted to third parties 625.930  489.100  

Net cash flow provided by operating activities 1.756.842              3.010.726  

CASH FLOWS IN INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

Payments on investments held to maturity (233.284.106) (198.529.625) 

Collections on investments held to maturity  235.352.358   196.503.761  

Dividends received 19.900  12.325  

Acquisition of property and equipment (50.723) (50.948) 

Sale price of property and equipment 39.346  2.907  

Cash inflows from investment activities 190.030  190.077  

Net cash flow provided by (used in) 
investment activities             2.266.805          (1.871.503) 

CASH FLOW IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Payment of loans and other financial liabilities      (4.569.924)     (3.816.004) 

Collection of loans and other financial liabilities            4.656.562           3.567.380  

Dividends paid to owners               (266.267)            (393.745) 

Cash inflows from financing activities 98.485  448.932  

For the years ended on December 31,

2021 2020
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For the years ended on December 31,

2021 2020

Net cash flow used in financing activities (81.144) (193.437) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held in 
foreign currency 820.687   (321.524) 

BALANCES AT THE END OF PERIOD COP 11.029.678  COP 6.266.488  

413

Informe individual Colombia 2021

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements

Adriana Rocío Clavijo Cuesta
Statutory Auditor

Prof. License No. 115083-T
Member of KPMG S.A.S

See my report of February 22, 2022

       
1The undersigned Registered Agent and Public Accountant hereby certify that we have previously verified the 
assertions contained in these Separate Financial Statements and that they have been faithfully taken from the 
Company’s ledgers.

Oscar Enrique Rodríguez 
Acosta

General Accountant1

Prof. License No. 179552-T

Germán Enrique 
Rodríguez Perdomo, 

Registered Agent1

Reserves ( 34 ) 3.643.354  3.408.311  

Share issue premium 651.950  651.950  

Current year net income 895.242  469.850  

Retained earnings 253.674  253.318  

Other comprehensive income (OCI) 152.797  122.608  

Article 6 Law 4/80 506  506  

Total shareholders’ equity  COP           5.687.302  COP           4.996.322 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  COP           6.026.701  COP           5.249.466 

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2021 2020

CURRENT YEAR NET INCOME COP 893.719  COP 461.405  

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that are not reclassified to the Statement of Income for the period:

Gains (losses) of other equity items of subsidiaries              142       (4.535) 

Gains on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 15.268    2.426  

Gain from reversion of impairment on loan portfolio and 
finance leasing transactions 12.468  137.760  

Loss (gain) on non-controlling interests   (52.214)           16.321  

�ota� �art�das ��e no se r� � � � ������������������������������ (24.336) 151.972  

Items that can be reclassified following the Statement of Income for the period:

Loss (gain) on remeasurement of financial assets 
available for sale    (51.244)       16.038  

Gain on cash flow hedging 31.243  7.899  

Total items that may subsequently be reclassified to 
profit or loss for the period.      (20.001)      23.937  

Total Other Comprehensive Income               (44.337)   175.909  

For the years ended on December 31,

2. 5 o	Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended on December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of COP )
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413

Informe individual Colombia 2021

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements

Adriana Rocío Clavijo Cuesta
Statutory Auditor

Prof. License No. 115083-T
Member of KPMG S.A.S

See my report of February 22, 2022

       
1The undersigned Registered Agent and Public Accountant hereby certify that we have previously verified the 
assertions contained in these Separate Financial Statements and that they have been faithfully taken from the 
Company’s ledgers.

Oscar Enrique Rodríguez 
Acosta

General Accountant1

Prof. License No. 179552-T

Germán Enrique 
Rodríguez Perdomo, 

Registered Agent1

Reserves ( 34 ) 3.643.354  3.408.311  

Share issue premium 651.950  651.950  

Current year net income 895.242  469.850  

Retained earnings 253.674  253.318  

Other comprehensive income (OCI) 152.797  122.608  

Article 6 Law 4/80 506  506  

Total shareholders’ equity  COP           5.687.302  COP           4.996.322 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  COP           6.026.701  COP           5.249.466 

ITEM Note
At December 31,

2021 2020

See the notes attached hereto, which are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax:

On investments in equity instruments of other 
comprehensive income 34.754  (1.586) 

On remeasurement of financial assets   16.024  (4.300) 

On application of IFRS 9            (24.023) (32.834) 

On cash flow hedges        (10.418) (3.571) 

Total deferred tax     16.337        (42.291) 

Total other comprehensive income, net from taxes ( 37 )             (28.000)          133.618  

Total statement of comprehensive income for the period COP 865.719  COP 595.023  

Note 2021 2020

For the years ended on December 31,

3.	Notes to the  
Consolidated   
Financial  
Statements
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sued by the Third Notary of Bogotá. Its period 
of duration ends on December 31, 2099; this 
term may be extended according to the law. 
The Financial Superintendence of Colombia 
(hereinafter, “the Superintendence” or “SFC”) 
through Resolution No. 3140/September 24, 
1993, renewed the operating permit definiti-
vely. The main activity of the Bank is to provide 
loans to public and private sector companies 
and to individuals. It also carries out interna-
tional banking activities, privatizations, finan-

3. Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA COLOMBIA S.A.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in millions of COP, except for the exchange rate and net 
earnings per share)

cial projects and other banking activities in 
general, and provides leasing services.

The Bank conducts its activities at its main re-
gistered office in the city of Bogotá located at 
Carrera 9 # 72-21, through its 511 and 534 offi-
ces for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively, which include branch offices, 
in-house services at customer facilities, service 
centers, agencies and cash extensions located in 
123 cities of Colombia, distributed as follows:

2021 2020

Branch offices 360 380

In house 85 88

Service centers 7 13

Agencies 31 24

Remote banking 28 29

Total offices 511 534

1. Reporting Entity

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Colombia S.A. BBVA Colombia (he-
reinafter, “the Bank” or “BBVA Colombia S.A.”), acting as the Parent Com-
pany of Grupo Empresarial BBVA Colombia, registered in the business 
register, hereinafter “the Group,” formed by the subsidiaries of BBVA As-
set Management S.A. with a 94.51% share and BBVA Valores Colombia 
S.A. Comisionista de Bolsa with the Parent Company’s 94.44% share, 
reports Consolidated Financial Statements for the following companies: 

BBVA Colombia S.A. is a private banking institution, incorporated under 
Colombian laws on April 17, 1956 through Public Instrument No. 1160 is-
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The Bank is a subsidiary of Banco Bilbao Viz-
caya Argentaria S.A. España (76% share), 
which is part of the BBVA Group.

The Bank and its subsidiaries have a national 
work force that, at the end of December 2021 
and 2020, amounted to 5,434 and 5,282 em-
ployees, respectively.

BBVA Asset Management S.A., hereinafter, 
“the Trust Company”, is a private commercial 
entity of financial services, legally incorpora-
ted by Public Instrument 679 issued by the 
13th Notary of Bogotá / April 5, 1976. 

Through Public Instrument 3742 dated April 
29, 2010 issued by the 72nd Notary of Bogotá, 
the name change to BBVA Asset Management 
S.A. Sociedad Fiduciaria was made official, 
and for all legal purposes it may use the name 
BBVA Asset Management.

The Trust Company is a subsidiary of Banco 
Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Colombia S.A. It 
has its registered office in the city of Bogotá, 
with a duration up to May 27, 2098, and a per-
manent operating license from the Financial 
Superintendence of Colombia (hereinafter 
“the Superintendence”), according to Reso-
lution 223/January 12, 1979. At December 31, 

2021 and 2020, it had 119 and 121 employees, 
respectively.

The main objective of the Trust Company con-
sists of entering into commercial trust agree-
ments, entering into state trust agreements 
as provided by Law 80/1993 and, in general, 
doing any business that implies a trust mana-
gement and all the business that trust com-
panies are legally authorized to do. In fulfilling 
its purpose, the Trust Company may essen-
tially acquire, dispose of, tax, manage real es-
tate and personal property, legally represent 
bondholders, intervene as a debtor or creditor 
in all types of credit transactions, and issue, 
accept, endorse, collect and negotiate, in ge-
neral, all types of securities.

BBVA Valores Colombia S.A. Comisionista 
de Bolsa (hereinafter “the Brokerage Firm”) 
was incorporated on April 11, 1990 following 
authorization by the Financial Superinten-
dence of Colombia. Its corporate purpose is 
the development of the commission contract 
for the purchase and sale of securities listed 
in the National Securities Registry, the deve-
lopment of security funds management con-
tracts for its domestic and foreign customers, 
and the performance of transactions on its 

own behalf. It is also authorized by the Super-
intendence to carry out the activities related 
to the securities market and give advice on 
capital-market related activities.

The Brokerage Firm is a subsidiary of Banco 
Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Colombia S.A.; its 
registered office is the city of Bogotá D.C., 

where its conducts its commercial activity. At 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, it had 31 and 24 
employees, respectively, and its term of dura-
tion expires on April 11, 2091. 

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the break-
down of the balance sheet for the consolida-
ted entities was as follows:

Entity
2021 2020

ASSET LIABILITIES EQUITY INCOME

BBVA
COLOMBIA

$ 79,516,659 $ ( 73,829,357) $ (4,792,060) $ 895,242 $ 68,413,201.00 $ (63,416,880.00) $ (4,996,322.00) $ 469,850.00

BBVA ASSET 
MANAGEMENT 
S.AS

117,116 (8,602) (108,514) 26,898 131,062.00 (11,648.00) (119,414.00) 38,801.00

BBVA VALORES
S.A

43,777 (2,345) (41,432) 1,483 42,175.00 (1,684.00) (40,491.00) 1,010.00

Total 79,677,552 (73,840,304) (4,942,006) 923,623 68,586,438 (63,430,212) (5,156,227) 509,661 

ASSET LIABILITIES EQUITY INCOME
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Description 
2021 2020

 BBVA   BBVA Fiduciaria  BBVA 
Valores  BBVA   BBVA 

Fiduciaria 
 BBVA 

Valores 

Eliminations in 
consolidation 

(COP 31,904)  COP 16,252 COP 15,652  COP  31,050  COP 26,820 COP 4,230

Elimination in 
equity

(117,991) 82,635) 35,356 (115,283) 80,937 34,345 

 Minority interest 
(equity)        (-) (5,955) (2,303)        (-) (4,424) (2,263)

Minority interest 
(income) (-) (1,476) (82)           (-) (2,120) (12)

Eliminations in consolidation:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries have been adjusted with 
respect to the separate and/or individual financial statements of BBVA Colombia, due to the inclu-
sion of the accounting policies applicable to the Group under the technical regulatory framework 
in force in Colombia for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. Bases for the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

2.1. Statement of Compliance

In accordance with the current provisions is-
sued by Law 1314/2009, regulated by Decree 
2420/2015 amended by Decrees 2496/2015,  
2131/2016, 2170/2017, 2483/2018 and 
2270/2019 and Decree 1432/2020 and De-

cree 938/2021, the Group has prepared its 
Consolidated Financial Statements in accor-
dance with the Accounting and Financial Re-
porting Standards accepted in Colombia (he-
reinafter NCIF, for the Spanish original), which 
are based on the International Financial Re-
porting Standards (hereinafter IFRS), along 
with their interpretations issued by the Inter-

national Accounting Standards Board (IASB); 
the base standards are those officially trans-
lated into Spanish and issued by the IASB in 
the second half of 2018 and the inclusion of 
the amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-related 
rent concessions in 2020; except for the pro-
visions of the technical regulations issued by 
the Financial Superintendence of Colombia. 

The Group applies the following accounting 
criteria that differ from the IFRS issued by the 
IASB in compliance with the Laws, Decrees 
and other current standards: 

Public Notice No. 037 /2015 of the Finan-
cial Superintendence of Colombia – The 
parent company must adjust the Consolida-
ted Financial Statements, prepared using the 
full NCIF, to include the difference between 
the value of allowances on the loan portfolio 
recognized in the Consolidated Financial Sta-
tements by the methodology of expected loss 
and in the Group's individual and/or separa-
te financial statements by the generated loss 
methodology, under the same terms as the 
instructions established in Section 1.5 of Pu-
blic Notice 036/2014.

Therefore, the adjustment to the consolidated 
loan portfolio and its impact recognized in the 
OCI of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
must be made and recorded on a permanent 
basis.

Public Notice No. 36/2014 of the Financial 
Superintendence of Colombia – Establishes 
how to apply IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of the 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), and includes the following, among 
others:

Decree 2496/December 23, 2015 - 
Through this decree, it is also determined 
that the parameters to establish at De-
cember 31, 2015 the post-employment 
benefits for the treatment of IAS 19 must 
correspond to Decree 2783/2001, as the 
best market estimate. This decree esta-
blishes the actuarial assumptions for cal-
culating future increases of salaries and 
pensions, establishes the actual technical 
interest rate applicable and the form of 
considering the expected increase in in-
come for active and retired personnel. 



52 53

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Decree 2131/2016 – Whereby the calcu-
lation of pension liabilities must be disclo-
sed in accordance with the parameters 
established in Decree 1625/2016 and, in 
the case of partial pension switching pur-
suant to Decree 1833/2016, informing the 
variables used and the differences with 
the calculation in accordance with IAS 19 
- Employee Benefits, which represents a 
change in the accounting estimate. 

Regulatory Notice DODM 139 / May 
25, 2018 -  This notice establishes the 
calculation of proprietary position, spot 
proprietary position and gross leverage 
position of foreign exchange market inter-
mediaries. (See Notes 7 and 14). 

Decree 1311/2021 regulates Social In-
vestment Law 2155/2021, which seeks, 
through a series of fiscal measures, to 
contribute to the reactivation of the eco-
nomy, to job creation, to the protection of 
the business social fabric and to support 
the most vulnerable populations, in a fra-
mework of macroeconomic stability.

Approval of Consolidated Financial Sta-
tements - The Group’s Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements at and for the year ended 
December 31, 2020, prepared in accordance 
with the Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards accepted in Colombia (NCIF), have 
been approved by the Bank’s Board of Direc-
tors for issuance on February 22, 2022. These 
statements will be subject to approval by the 
General Meeting of Shareholders to be held 
within the terms established by Law. The Con-
solidated Financial Statements at and for the 
year ended December 31, 2020 will be appro-
ved by the General Meeting of Shareholders 
held on March 16, 2022.

2.2.	 Consolidation Criteria

For consolidation purposes, and following the 
criteria established by the NCIF, the scope of 
consolidation is defined using the guidelines 
established by IFRS 10, which basically con-
cern control (power/returns) as a guide to de-
termine which companies are susceptible to 
consolidation and the information to be dis-
closed regarding shareholdings in other enti-
ties. The consolidation method to be applied 
depends on total control and/or significant in-

fluence over the controlled entity.  The Group 
applies the global integration method, recog-
nizing shares in non-controlled entities as 
equity and income.

The Group is made up, in addition to the Bank, 
of two subsidiary entities controlled by the 
Group, a control obtained when the Bank is 
exposed to, or entitled to, variable returns ba-
sed on its involvement in the controlled entity 
and it has the ability to influence these returns 
through its power over the controlled entity, 
providing it with the present ability to direct 
its relevant activities that significantly affect 
its income.

In all cases, the consolidation of income ge-
nerated by the companies that make up the 
Group in any given fiscal year is carried out 
considering only the income corresponding 
to the period between the date of acquisition 

and the close of that fiscal year. Similarly, the 
consolidation of income generated by com-
panies disposed of in any given fiscal year is 
carried out considering only the income for 
the period between the beginning of the fiscal 
year and the date of disposal.

In the consolidation process, the Group 
combines the assets, liabilities and income 
of the entities over which it has control, af-
ter standardizing their accounting policies. 
During this process, it eliminates reciprocal 
transactions and realized earnings between 
them. The share of non-controlling interests 
in the controlled entities is presented in equi-
ty, separate from shareholders equity of the 
Group’s controlling company.

To prepare the Consolidated Financial State-
ments, the financial statements of subsidiaries 
are included at the dates of their presentation.
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Minority interest:

in derivative financial instruments measu-
red at fair value.

•	 Non-current assets held for sale measu-
red at fair value less cost of sale. 

•	 Employee benefits, in relation to pension 
obligations and other long-term obliga-

tions through actuarial discounting tech-
niques.

•	 Deferred tax measured at current rates 
according to their recovery.

•	 Financial Instruments measured at fair va-
lue through other comprehensive income 
and through profit or loss.

The Group has applied the accounting poli-
cies described in Note 3, and the judgments 
and estimates and described in Note 2.5. 

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency
The BBVA Group prepares and presents its 
Consolidated Financial Statements in Colom-
bian pesos, which is its functional currency 
and the presentation or reporting currency for 
all purposes. The functional currency is the 
currency of the main economic environment 
in which an entity operates, which influences 
the transactions it carries out and the servi-
ces it provides, among other factors.

The figures of the Consolidated Financial Sta-
tements and the disclosures detailed in the 
notes are expressed in COP millions and have 
been rounded to the nearest full figure, unless 
otherwise specified.

2.5.   Judgments and Estimates   
The information contained in these Consolida-
ted Financial Statements is the responsibility 
of the Group’s Management. In their prepa-
ration, certain estimates are used to quantify 
some of the assets, liabilities, income, expen-
ses and commitments that are recorded the-
rein, based on experience and other relevant 
factors. The final results may vary from said 
estimates.

These estimates are continually reviewed. 
Modifications to the accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively, accounting for the 
effects of changes made to corresponding ac-
counts of the Consolidated Statement of In-
come for the fiscal year, as applicable, starting 
from the fiscal year in which such revisions 
are made.

The estimates and their most important sour-
ces of uncertainty for preparing the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements refer to the im-
pairment of financial assets: determination 
of the inputs within the expected loss model, 
including the main assumptions used for the 
estimate and incorporation of forward-loo-
king information (Note 10).

2.3.  Measurement Basis
The Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been prepared based on historical cost, ex-
cept for the following items that are measu-
red using a different basis at each reporting 
period:

•	 Financial investment assets measured at 
fair value through profit or loss or changes 

Entity 2021 2020

BBVA Asset Management S.A. COP        (5.955)  COP (6,553)       

BBVA Valores S.A. (2.303)               (2,251)         

Total COP (8.258) COP (8,804) 

Location Subsidiary Share percentage

Colombia BBVA Valores Colombia S.A. Comisionista de 
Bolsa 94,44%

Colombia BBVA Asset Management S.A. Sociedad Fiduciaria 94,51%

The Bank consolidated the subsidiaries in which it held the following shareholdings at December 
31, 2021 and 2020:
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3.	 Main accounting policies for the preparation and presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

transactions and overnight investments) as cash 
equivalents, validating the following criteria:

•	 They are short-term highly liquid invest-
ments (less than 90 days).

•	 Easily convertible into determined 
amounts of cash

•	 They are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, all the posi-
tions held as money market transactions met 
the conditions to be classified as cash equiva-
lents (Note 8).

3.2. Money market and related transactions
Swap and simultaneous transactions, tem-
porary security transfers, interbank funds 
and demand deposits are recognized at the 
amount of the transaction and measured at 
present value during the term of the transac-
tion, using the reference short-term interest 
rate “IBR” (market indicator developed by the 
private sector, backed by the Central Bank of 

The significant accounting policies used by 
the Group in the preparation and presenta-
tion of its Consolidated Financial Statements 
at December 31, 2021 are the same as those 
applied by the Group in the Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements audited at December 31, 
2020. 

3.1.	 Cash and cash equivalents
The Group classifies cash, immediately avai-
lable deposits in Banks (including the Central 
Bank), checks in clearing process and remit-
tances in transit as cash, regarding which the 
following criteria were validated:

•	 They must meet the definition of assets

•	 It is probable that any economic benefit 
associated with the item will be received 
by the entity

•	 The amount can be reliably measured.

The Group classifies investments of money 
market transactions (interbank funds, swap 

Colombia and other entities, in order to reflect 
the liquidity of the Colombian money market), 
which reflects the price at which banks are 
willing to offer or collect funds on the money 
market.

The agreed returns are calculated exponen-
tially during the term of the transaction and 
recognized in the income statements in accor-
dance with the accrual accounting principle.

3.3.	 Transactions in Foreign Currency
Transactions in foreign currency are recogni-
zed, at the time of initial recognition, using the 
functional currency, which is also the presen-
tation currency.  To this effect, the amounts in 
foreign currency are translated into the func-
tional currency applying the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction, which is the date 
on which said transaction meets the condi-
tions for recognition.

The guidelines below are followed at the close 
of each reporting period:

(a)	 Monetary assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in foreign currency are converted 

using the accounting exchange rate at the 
closing date of the reporting period.

(b)	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities, not 
valued at fair value, are translated using 
the exchange rate at the date of the tran-
saction.

(c)	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities va-
lued at fair value are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date on which fair va-
lue was determined.

Any resulting negative and positive exchange 
difference is recognized in the exchange diffe-
rence item of the Consolidated Statement of 
Income. The exchange rate used for adjusting 
the resulting balances in US Dollars at De-
cember 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 was 
COP 3,981.16 and COP 3,432.50 per USD 1, 
respectively.

3.4.	 Financial Collateral
The financial collateral provided is recognized 
initially by recording a liability at fair value, 
which is usually the current value of the fees 
and returns to be received for said contracts 
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throughout their useful life, with the amount 
of assimilated fees and returns collected at 
the beginning of the operations and the ac-
counts receivable for the current value of the 
future cash flows pending receipt as an offse-
tting entry in assets.

The financial collateral, regardless of the hol-
der, instrumentation or other circumstances, 
are later analyzed on a periodic basis to de-
termine the credit risk to which they are expo-
sed and, if necessary, to estimate the need to 
create a provision.

The value of the collateral will subsequently 
be valued in accordance with the contractual 
terms for this transaction. Depending on the 
variation of the threshold, the income or ex-
pense is adjusted in the statement of income.

If customers default on obligations with third 
parties derived from an endorsement or bank 
guarantee issued by the Bank, an asset va-
lued by credit risk is recognized, which is de-
termined by applying criteria similar to those 
established to quantify impairment losses for 
financial assets, along with a provision based 
on the parameters established by IAS 37 - Pro-

visions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets, by applying the decision tree.

3.5.	 Financial investment assets, de-
rivative financial instruments and cash 
transactions
Financial instruments are classified as assets, 
liabilities or capital, based on the text of the 
contractual agreement that gave rise thereto 
and in accordance with the criteria of the bu-
siness model. Interest, dividends, gains and 
losses generated by a financial instrument 
classified as an asset or liability are recogni-
zed as income or expenses in the consolida-
ted statement of income.

Classification and measurement of finan-
cial instruments - The Group classifies finan-
cial assets according to their subsequent me-
asurement in line with the new classification 
criteria set forth in IFRS 9 within the following 
categories:

•	 Amortized cost

•	 Fair value through other comprehensive 
income (OCI)

•	 Fair value through profit or loss

This classification is carried out in accordan-
ce with the Group’s business model for mana-
ging financial assets and assessing the cha-
racteristics of the contractual cash flows of 
the financial asset.

Financial assets are measured at amortized 
cost if they meet the following conditions:

•	 The financial asset is within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the fi-
nancial assets to obtain the contractual 
cash flows, and

•	 The contractual conditions of the finan-
cial asset on the stipulated dates meet 
the cash flow conditions that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the 
outstanding principal,  i.e., it meets the cri-
terion of “solely payments of principal and 
interest” (SPPI).

Principal is the fair value of the financial as-
sets at the time of initial recognition.

Interest comprises the consideration for the 
temporary value of money, for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outs-

tanding over a specific period of time and for 
other risks and costs of basic loans, as well as 
a profit margin.

Financial assets are measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive Income if 
they meet the following conditions:

•	 The financial asset is within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by ob-
taining the contractual cash flows and se-
lling the financial assets, and

•	 the contractual conditions of the financial 
asset on the stipulated dates meet the cash 
flow conditions that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the outstanding 
principal (meets the SPPI criterion).

Unrealized profits or losses are recognized in 
other comprehensive income and are subse-
quently transferred to the consolidated state-
ment of income at the time of their realization. 

Any other financial assets not measured at 
amortized cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss.
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As for equity instruments, at the time of initial 
recognition, it is decided irrevocably to mea-
sure subsequent changes in fair value in other 
comprehensive Income (OCI).

Financial liabilities are measured subsequent-
ly at amortized cost, except for financial liabi-
lities measured at fair value, such as derivati-
ve liabilities.

Effective Interest Rate Method - The effec-
tive interest rate method is a method used 
to calculate the amortized cost of a financial 
instrument and to allocate financial income 
throughout the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the discount rate that exact-
ly matches estimated receivable or paya-
ble cash flows (including fees, basic interest 
points paid or received, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts included when 
calculating the effective interest rate) over 
the expected life of the financial instrument 
or, when applicable, over a shorter period, to 
the net carrying amount at the time of initial 
recognition.

Income is recognized based on the effective 
interest rate for debt instruments other than 

the financial assets classified at fair value 
through profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments - Fi-
nancial assets and liabilities may be offset, 
i.e., presented as a net amount in the Conso-
lidated Statement of Financial Position, only 
when dependent items specify both a legally 
enforceable right to offset the amounts recog-
nized in said instruments, as well as the inten-
tion to settle the net amount, or realize the as-
set and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair va-
lue through profit or loss - The assets and 
liabilities are recognized at fair value, and the 
amount of any change in fair value is recog-
nized as income or expense depending on its 
nature.  However, variations arising from ex-
change rate differences are recorded in the 
“exchange differences, net” line item of the 
statement of income.

Impairment of financial assets – The im-
pairment model applies to financial assets 
measured at amortized cost, contractual as-
sets and debt investments at fair value throu-
gh other comprehensive income, but not to 
investments in equity instruments.

For assets, impairment losses are expec-
ted to increase and become more volatile.

On each reporting date, whenever the credit 
risk of a financial asset has increased signifi-
cantly since its initial recognition, the Group 
recognizes a loan loss adjustment on the fi-
nancial instrument, which is measured as 
the amount of the expected credit loss over 
the lifetime of the asset. The assessment is 
carried out on a collective or individual basis, 
considering all the reasonable and adequately 
supported information, including information 
referring to the future.

Expected credit losses are an estimate of the 
weighted probability of credit losses (i.e., the 
present value of all the cash shortfalls) throu-
ghout the expected life of the financial instru-
ment, adjusted by forward-looking factors. A 
cash shortfall is the difference between the 
cash flows owed to an entity in accordance 
with the contract and the cash flows that the 
entity expects to receive.

When the increase in the credit risk is insigni-
ficant, the adjustment in value due to losses of 
the financial asset is measured at an amount 

equal to the expected credit losses over the 
next 12 months.

On each reporting date, the Group evaluates 
whether the credit risk of the loan portfolio 
has increased significantly since initial re-
cognition, and recognizes the amount of the 
expected credit losses (or reversals, if appro-
priate) under Other Comprehensive Income 
as an impairment gain or loss.

Definition of default: Default is the key as-
pect for estimating the risk parameters and 
for allowance calculations. A default occurs in 
any of the following circumstances:

•	 There is objective and substantial eviden-
ce of impairment, i.e., payment is more 
than 90 days past due, with a minimum 
amount of materiality.

•	 Subjective arrears: all the transactions 
rated at the local regulatory level of “CC” 
are considered to be loans in subjective 
arrears.

In addition to the past due criterion, all the ca-
ses in which it is highly unlikely that a debtor 
will pay its obligations are included as default. 
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The following cases are taken as indicators of 
unlikely payment:

•	 Sale of credit obligations: if the Bank sells 
a credit obligation of a customer, all other 
credit obligations related to the customer 
are deemed to be an economic loss, and 
therefore, the transaction can be classi-
fied as in default.

•	 Rating of carry-over: Transactions affec-
ted by the local carry-over criterion are 
deemed to be in default.

•	 Refinancing in difficulties or during the 
cure period.

•	 Debtor bankruptcy, preventing or delaying the 
payment of its credit obligations to the Bank.

The expected loss model is applied to loans or 
debt instruments measured at amortized cost 
and items recorded outside the balance sheet, 
including undisbursed credit commitments, le-
tters of credit and financial collateral.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments - 
Financial assets are derecognized from the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
of the financial asset have expired or when 
the implicit risks and rewards of the asset are 
transferred to third parties and the transfer 
meets the requirements for derecognition.

In the latter case, the transferred financial 
asset is derecognized from the Consolida-
ted Statement of Financial Position, simulta-
neously recognizing any right or obligation 
retained or created as a result of the transfer. 
It is considered that the Group substantially 
transfers the risks and rewards, if the risks 
and rewards that are transferred represent 
the majority of the total risks and rewards of 
the transferred assets. 

When the risks and/or rewards associated 
with the transferred financial asset are subs-
tantially retained:

•	 The transferred financial asset is not de-
recognized from the Consolidated State-
ment of Financial Position and it continues 
to be measured with the same criteria 
used before the transfer.

•	 An associated financial liability is recogni-
zed for an amount equal to the considera-

tion received, which is subsequently mea-
sured at amortized cost.

•	 Both the income associated with the 
transferred financial asset (not derecog-
nized) and the expenses associated with 
the new financial liability continue to be 
recognized.

In the cases where the derecognition of as-
sets refers to recognition criteria within the 
Conceptual Framework, they will be written 
off only following authorization by the Board 
of Directors and/or in accordance with the le-
vels of authorization established in the Inter-
nal Standardization Process (PNI, for its Spa-
nish original).

Asset write-offs applied based on forgiveness 
shall be made following the due approval pro-
cess stipulated in the Internal Rules and Pro-
cedures (PNI).

Financial liabilities are only derecognized from 
balance sheet accounts when the Group’s 
obligations have been fulfilled.

Financial Assets in Investment Debt Securities 
For the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
the classification and measurement criteria 

of investment debt securities established in 
IFRS 9 are applied, taking into account the 
business model for managing assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the fi-
nancial asset in three groups:

Debt Securities at Fair Value through Pro-
fit or Loss: They are managed by the Group 
using the business model whose main purpo-
se is to earn profits as a result of variations in 
the market value of different instruments and 
in activities involving securities trading. These 
assets are classified at fair value through pro-
fit or loss and the portfolio consists of debt se-
curities, which the Group measures using the 
price determined by the valuation price ven-
dor. In the exceptional cases where a determi-
ned fair value does not exist on the valuation 
date, such securities are exponentially valued 
on a daily basis based on the internal rate of 
return.

The Global Markets department is an internal 
department of the Group that manages, clas-
sifies and defines the business model for tra-
deable investments.

Debt Securities at Fair Value through Pro-
fit or Loss: They are held by the Group in a 
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separate portfolio to yield interest revenue 
and can be sold to meet the liquidity require-
ments that arise during the normal course of 
business. The Group manages these securi-
ties under a business model whose objective 
is fulfilled through the collection of contrac-
tual cash flows and the sale of securities.  The 
securities classified as available for sale in ac-
cordance with the contractual terms give rise 
to cash flows on specified dates that are so-
lely payments of principal and interest on the 
outstanding principal. Therefore, these assets 
have been classified as financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive income 
according to IFRS 9. 

Securities at Amortized Cost - The invest-
ment debt securities that were formerly clas-
sified as held to maturity are now classified as 
at amortized cost. The Group has the intent and 
legal, contractual, financial and operating capa-
city to hold them until the date of their maturity 
or redemption, considering that the structure 
of financial instruments eligible for this portfo-
lio only gives rise to payments of principal and 
interest. They are measured on a daily basis, ex-
ponentially, based on the internal rate of return 
calculated at the time they were acquired.

Investments classified in this category are 
measured at amortized cost using the effec-
tive interest rate method and interest and im-
pairment charges are recognized in the Con-
solidated Financial Statements.

Impairment of Investments at Amortized 
Cost: At the end of each period, the Group as-
sesses whether there are signs of impairment 
of the investments at amortized cost. The 
amount of the loss is determined by calcula-
ting the difference between the carrying value 
of the investment and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted using 
the effective interest rate at the date of initial 
recognition of the investment. The carrying 
amount of the investment is reduced through 
an allowance account in the Statement of In-
come. Subsequently, if there is evidence of re-
covery, the impairment loss recognized in the 
Statement of Income is adjusted.

The area of COAP Financial Management is an 
internal department of the Bank that mana-
ges, classifies and defines the business model 
for investments classified as available for sale 
and at amortized cost.

Initial Recognition of Investments in Debt 
Securities: At the time of initial recognition, 
investments in debt securities are measured 
at fair value.

Subsequent Measurement of Investments 
in Debt Securities: Subsequent measure-
ments of investment in debt securities de-
pends on the assigned classification, in three 
categories: fair value through profit or loss, 
fair value through OCI and at amortized cost, 
according to the definition of the Group’s bu-
siness model required in IFRS 9.

Investment valuation – The main objective 
of valuating investments is determining (me-
asuring), recognizing and disclosing to the 
market the fair value at which a security can 
be traded on a certain date, according to its 
particular characteristics and in the prevalent 
market conditions on that date.

Debt securities are valued based on the clas-
sification prescribed and the criteria establi-
shed in IFRS 9, at fair value, taking the prices 
published by price vendors according to the 
fair value hierarchy and at amortized cost.

Investment valuation criteria - Determi-
ning the fair value of a security considers all 
criteria necessary to ensure fulfillment of the 
objective of investment valuation established 
in IFRS 13, and in all cases: objectivity, trans-
parency and representativeness, permanent 
assessment and analysis.

Frequency of measurement and recogni-
tion thereof - The valuation of investments 
in debt securities must be carried out on a 
daily basis, unless other provisions indicate a 
different frequency. Likewise, the accounting 
records necessary for the recognition of the 
investment valuation must be made with the 
same frequency used for the valuation.

Investments in Equity Instruments at Fair 
Value through OCI:

For equity instruments, the measurement te-
chniques established in IFRS 9 are applied, 
using the fair value hierarchy criteria, based 
on the internal model of discounted revenue 
streams, since these shares are not listed on 
any secondary market and there is no market 
price available.
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The Group estimates the Consolidated Sta-
tement of Financial Position, Consolidated 
Statement of Income and the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity of each con-
trolled entity in order to obtain a flow of future 
dividends. 

This flow of dividends is discounted at present 
value, as for a perpetuity, assuming an indefi-
nite interest in the controlled entity, in order to 
estimate the fair value thereof.

As for all the figures of the Financial State-
ments under analysis, the real closing data 
for three years prior to the analysis date are 
taken, and based on the current year, the figu-
res are estimated with an outlook of five ad-
ditional years, in accordance with the criteria 
presented below.

This valuation is adjusted on a quarterly ba-
sis, in accordance with the periodic Financial 
Statements published by the entity, to com-
pare the estimate made for the following year 
with the amount executed on each line of the 
Balance Sheet and Statement of Income, in 
order to ensure the accuracy of the valuation.  
The results of the valuation of these invest-

ments are recorded under other comprehen-
sive income.

At the end of each period, the Group evalua-
tes whether there is objective evidence of im-
pairment of its investments in non-controlled 
entities, by applying the internal model des-
cribed above.

Investments in Joint Arrangements:

A joint arrangement is that in which two or 
more parties have joint control over the arran-
gement, i.e., when decisions regarding rele-
vant activities require the unanimous consent 
of the parties that share control. Joint arran-
gements, in turn, are divided into joint opera-
tions, in which the parties have joint control 
and have rights to the assets and obligations 
regarding related liabilities; and joint ventu-
res, in which the parties that have control are 
entitled to the net assets and liabilities.

Investments in joint arrangements are mea-
sured using the equity method in accordance 
with the criteria of IAS 28. The investment is 
initially recognized at cost and is later upda-
ted for the changes in the Group’s interest in 
the net assets (equity) of the controlled entity.

The Group has a joint operation with Compa-
ñía de Financiamiento Comercial RCI Colom-
bia, which is part of the Renault Group, with 
a 49% share, where the adjustments for the 
controlled entity’s income for the fiscal year 
are recorded in the Statement of Income and 
the adjustments of all other net asset items 
using the equity method are recorded in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Derivative financial instruments

The Group subscribes a variety of financial 
instruments to manage its exposure to inte-
rest rate and foreign currency exchange rate 
risks, including exchange risk hedging, inte-
rest rate and currency swap contracts. Note 
14 includes a more detailed explanation of de-
rivative financial instruments. The Group con-
tinues to apply IAS 39 for derivative hedging 
transactions.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair va-
lue on the date that the derivative contract is 
signed, and subsequent changes are adjusted 
through debits or credits in the Statement of 
Income, as applicable. The resulting profit or 
loss is recognized in the Consolidated State-

ment of Income immediately, unless the de-
rivative is designated as an effective hedging 
instrument, in which case the timing of recog-
nition in profits or losses will depend on the 
nature of the hedging relationship and on its 
effectiveness.

Financial derivative contracts are reported as 
assets when their fair value is positive, and as 
liabilities when it is negative.

For the effects of valuation, presentation in the 
Financial Statements, disclosure and financial 
reporting, the Group must include the credit 
risk adjustment on a daily basis with the res-
pective counterparty or CVA (Credit Valuation 
Adjustment) or the own credit risk adjust-
ment or DVA (Debit Valuation Adjustment) in 
the fair value calculation (“risk-free”) of tran-
sactions with OTC (“Over-the-Counter’) or 
unstandardized derivatives in their portfolios.

CVA and DVA adjustments do not apply when 
a counterparty clearing house is involved as 
a counterparty for monitored entities in tran-
sactions with derivatives. 

The methodologies used to measure a CVA 
and DVA adjustment for transactions with 
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Over-the-Counter derivatives or unstandar-
dized derivatives should at least consider the 
following seven (7) criteria:

•	 Deadline for fulfillment and settlement of 
the transaction;

•	 Financial strength: of the counterparty for 
the CVA, as well as the DVA itself;

•	 Netting or offsetting agreements with 
counterparties for transactions with deri-
vative financial instruments. In this case, 
a CVA and DVA adjustment should be cal-
culated for the entire portfolio of transac-
tions with derivatives that are open with 
the respective counterparty and not indi-
vidually by transaction;

•	 Collateral associated with the transaction;

•	 Risk rating, if any, granted by at least one 
internationally-recognized or authorized 
credit rating agency in Colombia, as appli-
cable;

•	 Exogenous circumstances or events that 
may affect payment capacity and fulfill-

ment of obligations: of the counterparty 
for the CVA and of the DVA itself; and

•	 Any others that the Bank deems relevant.

Implicit Derivatives
Implicit derivatives in main contracts are trea-
ted as separate derivatives when they meet 
the definition of a derivative and when their 
risks and characteristics are not closely rela-
ted to said main contracts and the contracts 
are not measured at fair value through profit 
or loss.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank did 
not hold any implicit derivatives balances.

Hedge Accounting 
A derivative intended to achieve the financial 
hedging of a certain risk is treated as hedge 
accounting if, when trading, the changes in 
its fair value or cash flows are expected to be 
highly effective in offsetting changes in the 
fair value or cash flows of the hedged item, 
directly attributable to the hedged risk from 
the start, which should be documented in the 
trading of the derivative and during the hed-
ging period. The Bank continues to apply IAS 
39 for hedge accounting.

The Group designates certain hedging ins-
truments, which include implicit derivatives 
and non-derivatives with respect to foreign 
currency risk, as fair value hedging or cash 
flow hedging. Foreign currency risk hedging of 
a firm commitment may be recorded as cash 
flow hedging.

At the start of the hedging, the entity docu-
ments the relationship between the hedging 
instrument and the hedged item, along with 
its risk management objectives and its stra-
tegy for undertaking several hedging transac-
tions. 

At the start of the hedge and on a continuous 
basis, said documentation shall include the 
manner in which the entity will measure the 
effectiveness of the hedging instrument to 
offset exposure to changes in the fair value of 
the hedged item or to changes in cash flow at-
tributable to the hedged risk.

Note 15 includes details on the fair value of 
derivatives used for hedging purposes.

Fair value hedging - Changes in the fair value 
of derivatives that are designated and rated 
as fair value hedges are recognized from the 

time that the effective hedge is designated 
through profit or loss, along with any other 
change in the fair value of the hedged asset 
or liability attributed to the hedged risk. Varia-
tions in the fair value of a hedged risk of the 
hedged item are recognized in the Consolida-
ted Statement of Financial Position under the 
item related to the hedged item against the 
Consolidated Statement of Income. 

Hedge accounting is suspended when the 
Bank revokes the hedging relationship, the 
hedging instrument matures, or is sold, termi-
nated or completed, or it no longer meets the 
criteria for hedge accounting.

Cash flow hedging - The portion of changes 
in the fair value of derivatives determined as 
an effective cash flow hedge will be recogni-
zed in other comprehensive income and ac-
cumulated under the item “cash flow hedging 
reserve.” The ineffective part will be immedia-
tely recognized through profit or loss for the 
period, under the line item “other operating 
profits and losses”.

•	 The amounts previously recognized as 
Other Comprehensive Income and accu-
mulated in equity are reclassified to the 
income statement in the periods when 
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the hedge item affects income, under 
the same line item as the recognized he-
dged item. However, if hedging a planned 
transaction later results in recognizing a 
non-financial asset or non-financial liabili-
ty, the profits or losses previously recog-
nized in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity are transferred and 
included in the initial measurement of the 
cost of the non-financial asset or liability.

•	 Hedge accounting will be suspended 
when the Bank revokes the hedging rela-
tionship, the hedging instrument expires, 
or is sold, resolved or completed, or it no 
longer meets the criteria for hedge ac-
counting. The profit or loss that has been 
recognized as other comprehensive inco-
me and accumulated as equity will conti-
nue as equity and be recognized when the 
planned transaction is recognized in the 
statement of income. When the planned 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, 
any profit or loss accumulated in equity is 
recognized immediately as profit or loss.

Loan portfolio:

Considering that the Group’s main objective 
is the placement and collection of customer 
loans in accordance with the contractual ter-

ms, it has decided to classify the loan portfo-
lio as “at amortized cost”, since they fulfill the 
contractual conditions that they give rise, on 
specified dates, to cash flows that are sole-
ly payments of principal and interest on the 
outstanding balance.

Loans are non-derivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments that are not 
listed on an active market. Loans are initially 
recognized at fair value (value of the transac-
tion), plus the transaction costs that are di-
rectly attributable.

Costs directly attributable to the credit invest-
ment portfolio are made up of the Bank’s sales 
force item. The contract on which the amount 
is paid for this item is specifically identified 
and is deferred over the average life of each 
line of business (mortgage, commercial, con-
sumer and micro-credit). 

There is the option to pay all or part of a loan 
at any time in advance without any penalty. In 
the case of partial payments in advance, the 
debtor has the right to choose whether the 
amount paid will reduce the value of the insta-
llment or the term of the obligation.

Types of Loan Portfolio:
Mortgage portfolio - It recognizes, regard-
less of the amount, the credits granted to in-
dividuals for the acquisition of new or used 
housing, or for the construction of individual 
housing. 

Consumer loan portfolio - It recognizes 
all credits granted to natural persons (indi-
viduals) the purpose of which is to finance 
the acquisition of consumer goods or the 
payment of services for non-commercial or 
non-entrepreneurial purposes, regardless of 
their amount and are different to those classi-
fied as micro-credits.

Commercial loan portfolio - Credits granted 
to natural or legal persons to carry out orga-
nized economic activities, other than those 
granted under the type of micro-credit.

Micro-credit portfolio –  Credits consisting of 
the asset credit transactions referred to in Ar-
ticle 39 of Law 590/2000, or the regulations 
that amend, replace or add to it, as well as tho-
se provided to micro-businesses, in which the 
main source of payment of the obligations is 
the revenue derived from its business activity. 

The balance of the debtor’s indebtedness can-
not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) mi-
nimum monthly salaries at the time of appro-
val of the respective asset credit transaction. 
The balance of indebtedness is understood as 
the amount of the current obligations payable 
by the corresponding micro-business with the 
financial sector and other sectors, that are lis-
ted in the records of the database operators 
checked by the respective creditor, excluding 
mortgage loans for financing home loans and 
including the value of the new obligation.

Impairment:
The objective of the model is to recognize the 
credit losses expected from all the financial 
instruments for which significant increases 
in credit risk have occurred, from the time of 
initial recognition, either assessed on an indivi-
dual or collective basis, and considering all the 
reasonable and adequate supporting informa-
tion, including forward-looking information.

Expected losses are measured according 
to default risk on one of the two timeframes 
taken into account, depending on whether the 
customer’s credit risk has increased signifi-
cantly since origination.
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If credit risk quality has not been significant-
ly impaired from the time of initial recogni-
tion, or the asset has a low credit risk on the 
reporting date, it will be established at stage 1 
(‘Performing’) and provisions will be based on 
an expected loss calculated over 12 months.

If credit risk quality has been significantly 
impaired from the time of initial recognition, 
but there is no objective evidence of a cre-
dit event, the asset will be classified at stage 
2 (‘Underperforming’); however, if there is 
objective evidence of impairment on the re-
porting date, the asset will be left at stage 3 
(‘Nonperforming’); in both cases, expected 
losses will be calculated for the time remai-
ning until the end of the transaction.

Transfer Logic
As initially established, expected credit losses 
are calculated as a loss over 12 months or a li-
fetime credit loss, upon occurrence of a signi-
ficant increase in the credit risk from the time 
of initial recognition of the transaction to the 
assessment date.

To assess the level of exposure, the portfolio 
must be segmented in accordance with the 
possible risk margin of the customer or con-

tract, at the corresponding stage. The assess-
ment of transfer logic at Stage 2 is defined by 
quantitative and qualitative factors:

IFRS 9 indicates that “a given change, in ab-
solute terms, in the risk of default will be more 
significant for a financial instrument with a 
lower initial risk than a financial instrument 
with a higher initial risk of occurrence.”

Although IFRS 9 does not require the use of 
an explicit likelihood of default to carry out 
this assessment, the quantitative analysis is 
based on the comparison of the lifetime Pro-
bability of Default (PD) and the origination PD, 
adjusted to make a significant comparison 
possible. The adjustment must ensure that 
the period is not the same on the reporting 
date and on the origination date. The origina-
tion PD must be adjusted to consider the re-
maining life of the loan at the reference date. 
For the initial stock, given that there is no ori-
gination PD with the IFRS 9 methodology, an 
alternative approach is suggested.

In some cases, the modification of a financial 
asset results in the recognition of a new and 
modified financial asset. When this occurs, 
the modification date is considered to be the 
initial recognition date of that financial asset. 

This date is considered to be the origination 
date of the transaction.

Transactions that show a significant increase 
in the value of the current PD compared to the 
value of the origination PD will be transferred 
to stage 2. Two conditions have been defined 
to carry out this transfer:

•	 Relative increase in PD greater than X%

•	 Absolute increase in PD greater than Y%

The two increases must be lower than certain va-
lues (X, Y), which are defined using a sensitivity 
analysis based on a threshold variation process.

According to IFRS 9, the transfer depends on cer-
tain indicators, which are included in the quanti-
tative analysis. However, other indicators are not 
included in this process, so they must be inclu-
ded through the qualitative criteria.

According to this criterion, if certain condi-
tions are met, the contract must be transfe-
rred to stage 2, as described below:

•	 Delinquency of more than 30 days and 
less than 91 days.

•	 Classify at Watch List levels 1 and 2 

•	 Refinanced and restructured transactions 
that have complied with a one-year cure 
rate following the restructuring, of regular 
and effective payment.

Stage 3 includes all items classified as in default.

Segmentation

To assess the staging of the exposures and 
measure loss provisions collectively, it is im-
portant to group exposures in segments / risk 
drivers based on the shared characteristics of 
credit risk. Selecting the risk drivers for estima-
ting PD is fundamental. For staging purposes, 
the more granular the segmentation, the bet-
ter it is to avoid the transfer of enormous ex-
posures from stage 1 to stage 2. To assess the 
provisions, the different segmentations and 
risk drivers will reflect the differences in PDs, 
better discrimination and thus, lead to a better 
calculation of the amount of the expected loss.

There are certain minimum risk drivers that 
are taken into account, showing that the de-
fault behavior is clearly different between 
them:

•	 Days past due
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•	 Watchlist level (for wholesale portfolio)

•	 Restructured

The final selection of the risk drivers requires 
additional analysis to determine whether they 
are relevant, assessing whether there is suffi-
cient discrimination, and they are supported 
with sufficient data. A joint analysis of the risk 
drivers is necessary to take the joint discri-
mination into account. The final combination 
must lead to different homogeneous groups, 

each of which will have a different temporary 
PD and Loss Given Default (LGD) structure. 

Families have also been established, based on 
the procedures defined for each of the Bank’s 
portfolios, whose objective is to create groups of 
transactions that share similar characteristics.

The following families have been defined, 
including the Repos and Fixed Income seg-
ments, in addition to credit information:

Consumer Mortgage Institutional

Revolving-Individuals SME Territorial Entities

Card-Individuals Enterprise Financial Entities

Payroll Loan Representative Fixed-Income

Vehicle Corporate Repos

Parameters (PD, LGD, CCF)

PD: PD refers to the probability that a loan 
will be in default within a specific time frame, 
which is usually set at 12 months, given cer-
tain characteristics. PD is a very important 
component to calculate expected loss and 
assess whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk.

To calculate expected loss, two different PDs 
are required:

•	 The PD at 12 months: is the estimated pro-
bability of default that is calculated within 
the next 12 months (or the remaining life 
of the financial instrument, if it is less than 
12 months).

•	 The Lifetime PD (LT PD): is the estimated 
probability of default that is calculated du-
ring the remaining life of the financial ins-
trument.

The main requirements of IFRS 9 for measu-
ring PD are as follows:

•	 Lifetime requirement: means that a tem-
porary PD structure must be created.

•	 The PD must be "Point in time" (PIT).

•	 The PD must be conditioned to the ex-
pectation of future macroeconomic con-
ditions, i.e., incorporating forward-looking 
information.

In the process of estimating the PD, it is im-
portant to define the concept of marginal PD 
(the frequency of default observed in the in-
terval between t and t+1, which refers to the 
initial number of contracts at t=0), which 
allows the calculation of the probability of de-
fault at each specific point in time. The time 
sequence of PDs is known as the term struc-
ture of PD. 

In accordance with the scope of IFRS 9, the 
provisions for contracts at stage 1 will be 
calculated by using the first year of the term 
structure of the marginal PD, while for con-

tracts at stage 2 the term structure of total 
PD will be used. 

The term structure will also be used in the 
"Transfer Logic" process. The significant in-
crease in credit risk (SICR) can be assessed 
by comparing the term structure of PD at ori-
gination with the term structure of PD on the 
reporting date.

LGD: is the loss if the financial instrument is 
in default (loss given default). It captures the 
proportion of the exposure to loss, and it is 
determined using the expected cash flows for 
a financial instrument with such characteris-
tics. It is the complement of the amount re-
covered.

The severity assessment is based on the cal-
culation of LGD, using the historical data that 
best reflect current conditions, by segmenting 
each portfolio with the risk drivers considered 
relevant and including a projection in the fu-
ture to take the forward-looking information 
into account.

The LGD summarizes all the cash flows char-
ged to the customer following the default. It 
includes the costs and recoveries during the 
recovery cycle, including those derived from 
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collateral. It also includes the time value of mo-
ney, calculated as the present value of the net 
recoveries of the cost and additional losses. 

It uses a historical period that is long enough 
to cover at least one expansion and recession 
period, in order to develop a relational model 
between the LGD and the economic cycle with 
the readjustment carried out in 2020 (in this 
case, from January 2011 to December 2018, 
seen at the end of 2020).

The databases include: 

•	 Information on recovery cycles in that 
period: default date, default type (actual - 
+90 days past due-, subjective, carry-over 
effect) cash flows, cure date, foreclosure 
date, among others.

•	 Forward-looking information: IFRS 9 re-
quires an expected loss assessment ba-
sed on historical and current information. 
Therefore, it is necessary to predict how 
the economy will evolve in the future. To 
make this prediction, economic indicators 
such as the Gross Domestic Product, the 
Unemployment Rate or the Consumer Pri-
ce Index are used, among others.

Due to the time value of money, the cash flows 
observed (from recoveries, as well as costs) 
must be discounted at the default date and, 
in accordance with IFRS 9, the discount rate 
must be the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) of 
each financial instrument. 

To obtain an estimated LGD, the direct costs of 
the recovery process (such as customer con-
tact costs or legal expenses, among others), 
must be included as a cash flow that reduces 
the final recovery. The costs to be included are 
the direct costs of the process.

As regards the LGD parameter, for assets at 
stage 1 just one LGD PIT is needed (inclu-
ding relevant forward-looking information) 
to record attributable losses for the next 12 
months. At stage 3, the LGD for loans in de-
fault already includes all expected future los-
ses (adjusted to current and future economic 
conditions). On the contrary, for assets at 
stage 2, where lifetime losses must be calcu-
lated, a term structure of LGD will be required, 
which means one parameter for each possi-
ble future default date. 

In the case of collateralized assets, IFRS 9 es-
tablishes that, in order to estimate expected 

credit losses, the estimation of expected cash 
deficits will reflect the expected cash flows of 
the collateral and other credit improvements 
that are part of the contractual terms and are 
not separately recognized by the entity. The 
estimation of expected cash deficits in a co-
llateralized financial instrument reflects the 
amount and time frame of the cash flows ex-
pected from the foreclosure on the collateral, 
less the costs of obtaining and selling the co-
llateral, regardless of whether the foreclosure 
is probable. 

The indirect costs of the process do not have 
to be included. Only the incremental costs 
directly attributable to the disposal of an as-
set (or disposal of a group of assets) must be 
considered, excluding the financial costs and 
income tax.

CCF: The estimation of the CCF captures the 
potential increase in exposure between the 
current date and the default date; i.e., the CCF 
is the percentage of the balance off the balan-
ce sheet that will be used before the default 
date.

EAD = Dispuesto t + (CCF*Disponible t)

The estimated EAD is the amount expected 

from the contract of a customer that is not 
currently in default and could be so in the next 
12 months.

So, the empirical CCF of a financial instru-
ment is:

CCF=(Dispuesto_(t+k)-Dispuesto_t)
Disponible_t 

The factors are estimated based on the en-
tity’s historical experience. The final CCF is 
calculated using the contract or debtor CCFs 
(depending on the approach) through the sta-
tistics considered. If the average statistical 
method is chosen, it is weighted according to 
the number of contracts.

Based on a customer approach, the databa-
se contains customers in default who have 
a contract (whether in default or not) on the 
customer default date. They are grouped in 
one-year intervals called cohorts. Each cus-
tomer in default must be included in each co-
hort that contains the customers default date. 

Within each cohort, the same reference date 
is defined for all customers in default, as well 
as for all the contracts of each customer in 
default. 
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The required database contains all the custo-
mers in default and records the information 
necessary in the 12 months preceding the 
customer’s default of all the contracts (whe-
ther in default or not).

This way, monthly cohorts will be created, 
with a duration of one year or less, which con-
tain customer defaults and whose dates of 
reference belong to the end of each month, 
where the first cohort is the oldest and the 
last cohort is the most recent. For the cohorts 
in which there is a default, in the beginning, all 
the necessary information (balance available, 
balance drawn, limit, etc.) of all the contracts 
must be available to calculate the CCF in each 
cohort.

Forward-Looking and Macroeconomic Models

According to IFRS 9, the expected loss must 
be forward-looking, i.e., the credit risk para-
meters must include future projections. The 
relevant macroeconomic factors, such as 
GDP, stock index, interest rate, unemploy-
ment rates, etc. are used to forecast PD and 
LGD parameters.

The forecasts and the IFRS 9 models must be 
consistent with those used in capital planning 

(stress testing / budget processes). Therefo-
re, to incorporate forward-looking informa-
tion, the macro-scenarios provided by the Re-
search Area are used, which are updated on 
a quarterly basis. The ones already in use for 
these purposes, and the models must be in 
line with those used for stress testing.

The approach to include the forward-looking 
information in PDs consists of developing ma-
croeconomic models that reflect the histori-
cal correlation observed between the defaults 
and the state of the economy. In the case of 
the LGD, it consists of developing macro-mo-
dels that reflect the historical correlation ob-
served between the recovery cycles or cure 
rates, and the state of the economy. The ma-
cro-variables chosen must be the ones that 
best explain the behavior of the portfolio and 
make economic sense. In this sense, the eco-
nometric model must comply with the good-
ness of fit and statistical significance of the 
variables, and it must be easily understanda-
ble and explainable.

Other accounts receivable – Accounts re-
ceivable are non-derivative financial assets 
with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not listed on an active market.

These assets are initially recognized at fair va-
lue plus the transaction costs directly attribu-
table to their acquisition or issuance. 

In subsequent measurement, the fair value 
of the accounts receivable is deemed to be 
equal to their carrying value, where this is the 
best estimate.

The Group has defined that, to calculate the 
provision of the accounts receivable, taking 
into account the type of accounts it holds, 
their volume and the risk involved in recove-
ring said accounts, it must make a provision 
equivalent to 100% of the account receivable 
when it is overdue by more than 180 days.

Restructured financial assets with collec-
tion issues - Restructured financial assets are 
those that have collection issues and whose 
debtor has been granted a concession by the 
Group, which would not have been considered 
in a different situation. These concessions are 
usually reductions in the interest rate, exten-
sion of terms for payment or reductions in the 
balances due. Restructured financial assets 
are recognized at the present value of expec-
ted future cash flows, discounted at the origi-
nal rate of the asset before restructuring.

The Group can eliminate the restructured 
condition when the debtor makes regular and 
effective payments to principal and interest 
for an uninterrupted period of 18 months for 
micro-credit, 2 years for consumer loans and 
4 years for commercial and mortgage loans.

To allow debtors to properly service their 
debt in the event of real or potential impair-
ment in their payment capacity, the Group 
may amend the originally agreed conditions 
for the loans, without the adjustments being 
considered a restructuring, provided that du-
ring the last 6 months, the loan has not been 
past due consecutively for more than 60 days 
for micro-credit and consumer loans, and 90 
days for commercial and mortgage loans. 
These changes can be made at the request of 
the debtor or by initiative of the entity, subject 
to agreement with the debtor.

Agreements with creditors – Loans to cus-
tomers that are admitted to a bankruptcy 
proceeding are immediately rated “E” (Un-
collectible) and are subject to the provisions 
defined for this category. Once the payment 
agreement is made within the proceedings, 
the loans may be reclassified as “D” (Signi-
ficant). Subsequently, reclassifications to 
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lower-risk categories can be made provided 
that all requirements established by the Su-
perintendence in that respect are met.

Loan portfolio and accounts receivable 
write-offs - A loan or account receivable is 
subject to write-off by debiting impairment 
for loan portfolio or accounts receivable, res-
pectively, when all possible collection mecha-
nisms have been exhausted and it is deemed 
uncollectible. Write-offs are approved by the 
Board of Directors.

Financial assets are derecognized from the 
balance sheet by debiting the impairment 
provision when they are deemed uncollecti-
ble. The recoveries of previously derecogni-
zed financial assets are recognized as reco-
very income.

3.6. Non-current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets and groups of assets for 
disposal are classified as held-for-sale if their 
carrying value is recoverable through a sales 
transaction, rather than through continuous 
use. This condition is considered to be met 

only when the sale is highly probable and the 
asset (or disposal group) is immediately avai-
lable for sale in its current state, subject only 
to the terms that are usual and adapted to 
the sale of these assets (or disposal groups). 
Management must commit to the sale, which 
must be recognized as a final sale within one 
year of the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) 
classified as held for sale are calculated at 
the lowest value between the carrying value 
and the fair value of the assets less estima-
ted costs of sale. The difference between both 
amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

If the assets are not sold within the establi-
shed term, they are reclassified to the cate-
gories from which they originated.  The Group 
does not depreciate (or amortize) the asset 
while it is classified as held for sale.

Derecognition due to sale of the asset - A 
sale is considered complete when the signifi-
cant risks and rewards derived from owners-
hip of the assets have been transferred to the 
buyer, the seller does not retain any involve-
ment in management associated with ow-

nership, and does not retain effective control 
over the asset. The amount of revenue from 
ordinary activities can be measured reliably, 
and it is probable that the economic rewards 
associated with the transaction will be recei-
ved, and the costs incurred, or to be incurred, 
related to the sale can be measured reliably. 

The Group recognizes profits or losses not 
previously recognized at the date of sale of a 
non-current asset on the date that the dere-
cognition occurs.

3.7.	 Properties taken under lease

The Group applied IFRS 16 Leases as of 
January 1, 2019. Using the modified retrospec-
tive approach, based on which the cumulative 
effect of the initial application is recognized in 
retained earnings at January 1, 2019. Accor-
dingly, the comparative information provided 
for 2018 is not restated, i.e., it is provided, as 
previously reported, under IAS 17 and related 
interpretations. 

At the beginning of a contract, the Group as-
sesses whether a contract is, or contains, a 

lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset for a period of time in ex-
change for consideration. 

This policy applies to contracts entered 
into on or after January 1, 2019.

As a lessee.  At the beginning or upon amend-
ment of a contract containing a lease compo-
nent, the Group assigns the consideration in 
the contract to each lease component on the 
basis of a separate relative price. However, for 
property leases, the Group has chosen not to 
separate the non-lease components and to 
account for the lease and non-lease compo-
nents as a single lease component.

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset 
and a lease liability at the start date of the lea-
se. The right-of-use asset is initially measured 
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of 
the lease liability adjusted for any lease pay-
ments made on or before the start date, plus 
the initial direct costs incurred and an estima-
te of the costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site where it is located, less any 
lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depre-
ciated using the straight-line method from the 
start date to the end of the lease term, unless 
the lease transfers ownership of the underl-
ying asset to the Bank at the end of the lease 
term or the cost of the right-of-use asset re-
flects that the Bank will exercise a purchase 
option. In that case, the right-of-use asset is 
depreciated over the useful life of the under-
lying asset, which is determined on the same 
basis as property and equipment. In addition, 
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced 
for impairment losses, if applicable, and ad-
justed for certain new measurements of the 
lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the 
present value of the lease payments not paid 
at the start date, discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the incremental bo-
rrowing rate. The Bank defined the funding 
rate of similar liabilities as the discount rate.

The lease payments included in the measu-
rement of the lease liability comprise the fo-
llowing:

•	 fixed payments, including in-substance 
fixed payments;

•	 variable lease payments that depend on 
an index or rate, initially measured using 
the index or rate on the start date;

•	 amounts expected to be paid as a residual 
value guarantee; and

•	 the exercise price of a call option that the 
Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lea-
se payments in an optional renewal period 
if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise 
an extension option and penalties for early 
termination of a lease unless the Bank is re-
asonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future 
lease payments arising from a change in an in-
dex or rate, if there is a change in the estimate 
of the amount expected to be paid under a re-
sidual value guarantee, if the Bank changes its 
assessment of whether it will exercise a call, 
extension or termination option, or if there is a 
revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this 
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to 
the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, 
or it is recognized in the statement of income 
if the carrying value of the right-to-use asset 
has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that 
do not meet the definition of investment pro-
perty in “property, plant and equipment” and 
lease liabilities in “loans and obligations” in the 
consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low value 
assets

The Group has decided not to recognize right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value 
assets and short-term leases, including tech-
nological equipment and common areas.  The 
Group recognizes the lease payments asso-
ciated with these leases as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

As a lessor. At the beginning or upon amend-
ment of a contract containing a lease compo-
nent, the Group assigns the consideration in 

the contract to each lease component on the 
basis of their separate relative prices.

When the Bank acts as lessor, it determines at 
the beginning of the lease whether each lease 
is a finance or operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes a ge-
neral assessment of whether the lease trans-
fers substantially all the risks and rewards in-
cidental to ownership of the underlying asset. 
If this is the case, then the lease is a finance 
lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As 
part of this assessment, the Group considers 
certain indicators such as whether the lease is 
for most of the economic life of the asset.

If a contract contains both lease and non-lea-
se components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to 
allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Group applies the derecognition and im-
pairment requirements of IFRS 9 to the net 
investment in the lease. In addition, the Group 
periodically reviews the estimated unguaran-
teed residual values used in the calculation of 
the gross investment in the lease.

The Group recognizes lease payments recei-
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ved under operating leases as income on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease 
as part of “other income.”

In general, the accounting policies applicable 
to the Group as a lessor in the comparative 
period did not differ from IFRS 16, except for 
the classification of the sublease made during 
the current reporting period, which resulted in 
a classification as a finance lease.

Policy applicable before January 1, 2019

For contracts entered into prior to January 
1, 2019, the Group determined whether they 
were or contained a lease based on the as-
sessment of whether:

•	 fulfillment of the contract depended on 
the use of a specific asset or assets; and

•	 the contract had entailed a right to use 
the asset. the contract involved the right 
to use the asset if one of the following con-
ditions was met:

•	 the buyer had the ability or right to operate 
the asset by obtaining or controlling more 
than a negligible amount of the output;

•	 the buyer had the ability or right to con-
trol physical access to the asset by obtai-
ning or controlling more than a negligible 
amount of the output; or

•	 the facts and circumstances indicated 
that it was a remote possibility that other 
parties would obtain more than a negligi-
ble amount of the output, and the unit pri-
ce was neither fixed per unit of output nor 
equal to the current market price per unit 
of output.

As a lessee.  In the comparative period, as a 
lessee, the Group classified as finance leases 
the leases that transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership. When this 
was the case, the leased assets were initially 
measured at the lower of fair value and pre-
sent value of the minimum lease payments. 
The minimum lease payments were the pay-
ments during the lease term to be made by 
the lessee, excluding any contingent pay-
ments. After initial recognition, assets were 
recognized in accordance with the accounting 
policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases were classified 
as operating leases and were not recognized 
in the Bank’s consolidated statement of finan-

cial position. Payments made under operating 
leases were recognized through income on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
Lease incentives received were recognized as 
an integral part of the total lease expense over 
the term of the lease.

As a lessor. When the Bank acted as lessor, it 
determined at the beginning of the lease whe-
ther each lease was a finance or operating 
lease.

To classify each lease, the Group made a ge-
neral assessment of whether the lease trans-
ferred substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the underlying as-
set. If this was the case, then the lease was a 
finance lease; if not, then it was an operating 
lease. As part of this assessment, the Group 
considered certain indicators such as whe-
ther the lease covered most of the economic 
life of the asset.

Given under leases - Assets given under lea-
se by the Bank are classified when the con-
tract is signed as finance or operating leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease when all 
the risks and rewards inherent to ownership 
are substantially transferred; otherwise, it is 

classified as an operating lease.

Leases classified as finance leases are inclu-
ded in the balance sheet in the “loan portfolio 
and finance lease transactions” line item and 
recognized in accordance with the regulatory 
criteria issued by the Financial Superinten-
dence of Colombia for Loan Portfolios.

Leases classified as operating leases are in-
cluded in the property and equipment ac-
count and recognized and depreciated in the 
same way as this type of assets.

3.8.	 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets 
held by an entity for use in the production or 
supply of goods and services, to lease them to 
third parties or for administrative purposes, 
and they are expected to be used for more 
than one term.

Initial recognition– Property and equipment 
are initially recognized at cost, which includes 
the purchase price (import duties and indi-
rect, non-recoverable taxes that make up part 
of the acquisition, after deducting any com-
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mercial discount or price rebate), the costs 
directly attributable to the startup of the as-
set in situ and in the conditions necessary for 
it to function in the manner expected by the 
Group and the initial estimated disassembly 
costs, notwithstanding the amount.

New acquisitions are recognized in the finan-
cial statements in accordance with the Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
applicable in Colombia.

Initially attributable costs – The cost of pro-
perty and equipment elements includes:

a)	 Their acquisition price, including import 
duties and indirect and non-recoverable 
indirect taxes accrued in the acquisition, 

after deducting any discounts or rebates. 

b)	 All costs directly attributable to the pla-
cement of the asset at the location and in 
the conditions necessary for it to operate 
in the manner intended by Management. 

c)	 The initial estimate of disassembly and 
disposal costs of the element, as well as 
the restoration of the space where it is lo-
cated.

Useful life – The Group determines the useful 
life of an asset in terms of the profit it is ex-
pected to provide to the entity. IAS 16 establi-
shes that the useful life of an asset is a matter 
of judgment, based on the entity’s experien-
ce with similar assets, and consequently the 

Assets Useful Life

Buildings Economic life established by the appraiser (50 to 100 years)

Computer equipment Between 2 and 6 years, according to the obsolescence management policy

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Machinery and equipment 10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Group, based on the historical behavior of the 
assets, has established the use of its assets 
as follows:

Subsequent recognition – Subsequent me-
asurement of property and equipment is va-
lued using the cost model, which equals the 
cost of acquisition less accumulated depre-
ciation and, if applicable, the accumulated 
amount of losses due to value impairment.

Interest costs that are directly attributed to 
the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualified asset will form part of the asset’s 
cost under the terms of IAS 23. At December 
31, 2021 and 2020, there is no balance recor-
ded for these transactions.

Costs following initial recognition– Costs 
following initial recognition, such as additions 
and improvements that increase efficiency, 
will be capitalized and included as a greater 
cost of the asset only if it is probable that such 
costs will result in future economic rewards in 
addition to those originally assessed and they 
can be reliably measured; regarding certain 
maintenance costs in which the elements 
significantly affect the proper operation of 
the asset, this amount will be included in the 
value of the asset. Capitalization as a greater 

value of the asset for refurbishment must be 
supported by the preparation of a technical 
document (business case) demonstrating the 
importance and relevance of said refurbish-
ment for the asset.

Preservation and maintenance expenses of 
material assets for the entity’s own use are re-
cognized as an expense during the fiscal year 
in which they are incurred.

The Group will not recognize the daily mainte-
nance costs of the elements that are conside-
red necessary for repair and preservation as a 
greater value of the property and equipment, 
unless they significantly influence the asset’s 
operation. Routine maintenance costs are 
mainly labor and consumables, which may in-
clude the costs of small parts.

Replacement of parts or repairs that extend 
future economic rewards are capitalized, and 
in turn, the cost of existing items is removed. 

Depreciation- The Group uses the strai-
ght line method to depreciate its property 
and equipment. In addition, the depreciable 
amount is determined after deducting its re-
sidual value. An impairment test will be per-
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formed on an annual basis for long-lived as-
sets in order to indicate possible evidence of 
impairment, in which case the Property and 
Equipment (PE) will be appraised, which will 
include the new useful life and the residual va-
lue.

Residual Value - This is the estimated amount 
that an entity may obtain at present for the 
disposal of an asset, after deducting the esti-
mated disposal costs, if the asset has already 
aged and the other conditions expected at the 
end of its useful life have been met.

The factors listed below, among others, may 
indicate that the residual value or useful life of 
an asset has changed from the most recent 
annual reporting date, namely:

•	 A change in the use of the asset, 

•	 Unexpected, significant wear and tear,

•	 Changes in market prices.

If these indicators are present, the Group re-
views its previous estimates and, if the current 
expectations are different, it modifies the resi-
dual value and records the change in residual 
value, the impairment method or the useful 
life as a change in the accounting estimate.

Impairment - At the close of each reporting 
period, the Group analyzes whether there 
are internal or external signs that a material 
asset can be impaired. If there is evidence of 
impairment, the Group requests an update of 
the appraisal so the asset can generate the 
respective alert, if necessary. Based on the re-
sult of the appraisal, the Group compares said 
amount with the net carrying value of the as-
set and when the carrying value exceeds the 
appraised value, a loss for value impairment 
of the asset is recognized and the charges for 
the asset’s depreciation will be adjusted in 
future periods systematically throughout the 
remaining useful life thereof.

The Group determines the recoverable value 
of its buildings by taking the greater value 
between the sale price less sales costs and 
the value in use. The sale price is established 
through independent appraisals by authori-
zed suppliers and, particularly, in the case of 
the buildings for its own use, based on inde-
pendent appraisals, in such a way that they 
are no more than 3-5 years old, except when 
there are signs of impairment.  

The revaluation surplus recognized in first-ti-
me adoption adjustments in the process of 

transition to IFRS, due to the application of the 
attributed cost exemption included in equity, 
will be affected by the recognition of the im-
pairment of these assets as a result of the up-
date of their respective commercial appraisals 
until depleted and then debited to income.

Improvements to Third-party Properties – 
The Group recognizes improvements to pro-
perties under lease in this category, as well as 
the estimated disassembly costs, amortizing 
the amounts in the lesser period between the 
useful life and the term of the lease contract 
for the property.

Derecognition due to sale of the asset – A 
sale is considered complete when the signifi-
cant risks and rewards derived from owners-
hip of the assets have been transferred to the 
buyer, the seller does not retain any involve-
ment in the management associated with the 
ownership or any effective control over the 
asset, the amount of revenue from ordinary 
activities can be measured reliably, and it is 
probable that economic rewards associated 
with the transaction will be received, and the 
costs incurred, or to be incurred, related to 
the transaction can be measured reliably. 

The Group recognizes profits or losses not 
previously recognized at the date of sale for a 

non-current asset, on the date that the dere-
cognition occurs.

3.9.	 Prepaid expenses

Transactions are recognized in prepaid expen-
ses provided that they meet the criteria for 
recognizing assets, such as the software and 
hardware maintenance insurance policies 
that represent an enforceable right due to 
non-compliance of the supplier for the Group, 
and contributions.

Contributions that are recognized in this ca-
tegory include payments made for contribu-
tions or memberships with entities as long as 
their amortization does not exceed the fiscal 
period. Therefore, they are amortized during 
the accounting period, and they must have a 
balance of zero at the end of the period.

Prepaid expenses on account of insurance 
policies are amortized during the term of such 
expenses.  

3.10.	 Intangible Assets

These are non-monetary identifiable assets 
without physical substance, which are held to 
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be used for the production or supply of goods 
and services.

Initial recognition– Intangible assets are re-
cognized, if and only if, it is probable that the 
expected future economic rewards attributa-
ble to the asset will flow to the entity and their 
cost can be reliably measured. 

Probability criteria are applied to intangible 
assets that are acquired independently or in 
a business combination. In addition, their fair 
value can be measured with sufficient reliabi-
lity to be recognized separately from goodwill.

Subsequent disbursements– Subsequent 
disbursements are recognized as an expense 
when they are incurred, in the case of research 
and development disbursements that do not 
meet the requirements for being recognized 
as an intangible assets.

Subsequent disbursements are recognized as 
intangible assets in the case of development 
disbursements that meet the requirements 
for being recognized as intangible assets.

All IT software that is strategic for the Group 
is classified under this category, in addition to 

projects that have a long estimated useful life. 
These projects generally involve substantial 
amounts, and the Group includes software li-
censes in this category.

Substantial local IT developments are also in-
cluded.

Useful life- An intangible asset is considered 
to have an indefinite useful life when, based 
on the analysis of all relevant factors, there is 
no foreseeable limit to the period in which the 
asset is expected to generate net cash inflows 
for the Group.

The Group, in line with the policies adopted by 
its parent company, has established a period 
of five (5) years for amortization of intangi-
ble assets (software, licenses and substantial 
applications), except when, after an analysis 
of the expected future economic rewards, this 
term could be extended.

Subsequent measurement – The Group 
measures its intangible assets using the cost 
model. Based on the criteria established in 
IAS 38 for its own software, useful life is de-
fined as finite and the amortization period is 
dependent upon the time during which the 

future economic rewards are expected to be 
obtained, which is five years according to the 
Group’s accounting policies (see above para-
graph).

The subsequent measurement of intangible 
assets is its cost less, when applicable, the ac-
cumulated amortization and any impairment 
loss.

Intangible assets with a defined useful life are 
amortized based on the benefit generation 
pattern during their useful life. When this pat-
tern cannot be reliably determined, the asset 
is amortized using the straight line method. 

Amortization begins when the asset is in the 
conditions expected for its use and will end 
when the asset is classified as a non-current 
asset for sale or when it is derecognized from 
the balance sheet. 

Subsequent disbursements of an intangible 
item are recognized as an expense unless 
they are part of the intangible asset meeting 
the recognition criteria for this category.

Impairment of intangible assets - At the 
end of each period, the Group evaluates the 
end date of the amortization to validate whe-

ther there is any sign of impairment in value 
of the intangible assets, by analyzing varia-
bles such as the right to use, term of use of 
the asset, condition of the asset and time of 
amortization.

3.11.	  Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets include property and 
equipment, and intangible assets are recogni-
zed at cost. 

The Group has a periodic review scheme that 
includes a measurement of optimal recovery in 
order to detect and alert of asset impairment, 
through impairment testing based on internal 
and external sources. If, as a result of applying 
the test, signs or evidence of impairment are 
obtained for a type of asset, its recoverable 
amount will be calculated, i.e., the greater be-
tween its fair value and its value in use.

The value of an asset is impaired when its 
carrying value exceeds its recoverable value. 
This, in turn, is the greater between its fair va-
lue less the costs of disposal and its value in 
use, and the value in use is the present value 
of the future cash flows estimated to be ob-
tained from an asset or cash-generating unit.
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The recoverable value of an intangible asset is 
the greater between the value in use and its 
fair value less costs of disposal. The fair value 
of this type of asset will be calculated by the 
entity whenever there is evidence of impair-
ment.

After recognizing a loss for impairment, the 
charges for the asset’s depreciation will be 
adjusted in future periods, in order to distri-
bute the revised carrying amount of the asset, 
minus its potential residual value, systemati-
cally over the remaining useful life.

3.12.	  Deposits and current liabilities

Deposits and other demand liabilities: This 
category includes all on-demand liabilities, ex-
cept for term deposit savings accounts, which 
are not considered to be demand liabilities 
because of their special features. Demand lia-
bilities are those whose payment could have 
been required in the period, i.e., those tran-
sactions that become payable on the day fo-
llowing the end of the period are not conside-
red to be demand liabilities. Demand deposits 
are initially recognized at the amount of the 
transaction less the inherent costs thereof.

Term deposits and other funding: This ca-
tegory presents the balances for funding tran-
sactions, in which there has been a period 
established with the customer through a se-
curity, at the end of which they are considered 
payable. Term deposits are initially recognized 
at the amount of the transaction less the inhe-
rent costs thereof.

Term deposits and other term liabilities are 
financial liabilities measured at amortized 
cost, which is determined using the effective 
interest rate method, given that the entity’s 
intention is to hold these instruments until 
maturity. 

For term liability transactions, the Group 
offers the CD Gift product, in which it provides 
a gift according to the amount and term of the 
security; the cost of this item is linked to the 
CD and is amortized during the period the-
reof, simulating amortized cost for accoun-
ting purposes. 

Attributable costs - Transaction costs are 
treated as a lesser amount of the liability me-
asured at amortized cost.

3.13.	 Financial obligations

Includes liabilities with other banks in the 
country and banks abroad, measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. 

Banker’s acceptances, which are bills accep-
ted by financial entities to be paid to the be-
neficiaries within a term not to exceed six (6) 
months, are included in financial obligations. 
They may only be originated in import and ex-
port transactions or transactions for the pur-
chase-sale of chattel assets in the country. 
When said bills are accepted, the net value 
of the right and the obligation of the banker’s 
acceptance are recognized in liabilities. Sub-
sequently, the value of the rights is assessed 
for credit risk.

3.14. Outstanding investment securities

These instruments include liabilities with su-
bordinated bonds or ordinary bonds placed 
on the local market or abroad. 

Regarding bonds issued in foreign currency, the 
Group, for initial recognition, records them at the 
price of the transaction, including the costs of 
the transaction, deferred over the life of the se-
curity and its subsequent measurement of the 
initially recorded amount, less principal reimbur-
sements, plus or less the accumulated amortiza-

tion of any difference between the initial amount 
and reimbursement value upon maturity. The 
effective interest rate in the amortized cost me-
thod is the IRR (Internal Rate of Return). 

3.15.	 Labor liabilities

Labor liabilities are recognized on a monthly 
basis and adjusted at the end of each year ba-
sed on legal provisions and labor agreements 
currently in force. The payroll system calculates 
the liability amount for each active employee.

Benefits are recorded when the Group has 
consumed the economic rewards derived 
from the provision of service by employees.  In 
order to recognize it as a personnel or general 
expense, the entity differentiates between be-
nefits and work tools.

Cumulative short-term benefits – Short-
term employee benefits are those that the 
Group expects to fully settle within 12 months 
from the reporting date, such as wages and 
salaries, vacation and severance pay, among 
others.  These benefits accrue as they are in-
curred by debiting income.

Long-term benefits – The Group has cho-
sen to apply financial discounting techniques 
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(accounting method and actuarial discount 
techniques) where it is required to use the ac-
tuarial hypotheses, directly affecting actuarial 
gains and losses in the income statement for 
benefits given to employees per five years of 
employment (seniority bonus). 

Post-retirement and termination benefits 
- Post-retirement and termination benefits 
other than defined benefit contributions are 
recorded based on the report generated by 
the independent actuary by applying the Pro-
jected Credit Unit method and affecting the 
other comprehensive income account. 

Retirement pensions – Current values for 
these commitments are calculated on an in-
dividual basis, having applied, in the case of 
active employees, the valuation method of 
the “projected credit unit”; this includes each 
year of service as generating an additional 
unit of entitlement to benefits, and values 
each of these units separately.

Post-employment liabilities are calculated 
following the criteria of IAS 19 - Employee 
Benefits of Annex 1.1 of the Technical Regula-
tory Framework (Decree 2420/2015 and its 
amendments), and the calculation of pension 
liabilities to be paid by the Group are disclo-

sed in the notes to the financial statements in 
accordance with the parameters established 
in Decree 1625/2016 (Articles 1.2.1.18.46 and 
following), reporting the variables used and 
the difference with the calculation made un-
der IAS 19.

Actuarial methods - Liabilities and the cost 
of services for the current period are calcula-
ted using the Projected Credit Unit method.  
This method quantifies the benefits of each 
participant in the plan as long as they are en-
titled to them, taking into account future sa-
lary increases and the formula for the plan to 
assign benefits.  Therefore, the total estima-
ted benefit that each participant is expected 
to be entitled to after departure from the en-
tity is divided into units, each associated with 
one year of proven service, whether it is in the 
past or future.

The valuation will be carried out individua-
lly for each employee.  By applying actuarial 
hypotheses, the amount of the projected be-
nefit that depends on the estimated date of 
termination, the proven service and the salary 
at the time of the act is calculated.

The estimated benefit to which an individual 
is entitled, for purposes of a valuation asso-

ciated with a termination date, corresponds 
to the benefit described in the plan calculated 
with the projected salary for the benefit at the 
expected date of termination.

The benefit attributed to service provided du-
ring a period is the difference between the lia-
bility from the valuation at the end of the pe-
riod less the liability at the start of the period, 
i.e., at the valuation date.

Therefore, the liability for defined benefits at 
the end of the period is calculated by appl-
ying the proportion between proven servi-
ce at the date of measurement and the total 
service that each participant will provide until 
the expected date of termination to the total 
amount of estimated benefits.

The liability for benefits defined under the plan 
is the sum of the liability for each individual at 
the date of measurement, and the cost of ser-
vices for the current plan period is calculated 
as the sum of costs of individual services for 
the current period.

The Group establishes its pension liability ba-
sed upon the actuarial valuation that covers 
all personnel, who according to legal stan-
dards are entitled to, or have the expectation 

of, a retirement pension at the expense of the 
company, and covers the benefits established 
in the current pension system. 

For commitments for post-employment com-
pensation, the Group applies the defined con-
tribution plan and the defined benefits plan.

Defined contribution plan - In these plans, 
the Group’s liability is limited to the contribu-
tion that it has agreed to deliver to a pension 
fund or insurance company. As a result, the 
actuarial and investment risk is assumed by 
the employee.

Defined benefits plans: The liability of the 
Group is to provide the agreed benefits to 
current and former employees. The actuarial 
risk (in the event that people have a greater 
cost than expected) and the investment risk 
are assumed by the Group. 

Currently, Colpensiones (formerly, Instituto 
de Seguros Sociales “ISS”) and other entities 
authorized by law (private AFPs since 1994), 
receive contributions from the Group and its 
employees to the General Pension System, 
so those entities are responsible for covering 
the disability, old age and death risks defined 
by the System in favor of the employees. The 
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pension liability directly under the Group’s 
responsibility essentially corresponds to 
personnel hired during or before 1960, and/
or those hired up to 1984 who worked in cer-
tain regions of the country where the Group 
had offices but where the ISS did not cover 
disability, old age and death risks. The liability 
amount is determined based on actuarial stu-
dies adjusted in accordance with the applica-
ble provisions and regulations on the matter.

The total amount of the reserve, as well as the 
actuarial gains or losses generated were as-
sumed by the Group and were accounted for 
based on the IAS 19 guidelines, where the pre-
sent cost of the service and the net interest 
of the liability are recognized in the statement 
of income for the period, while new measu-
rements of the liability for defined benefits 
(actuarial gains and losses) are recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income.

3.16. Estimated Liabilities and  
Provisions

They include the amounts recognized to co-
ver the Group’s current liabilities derived from 
past events that are clearly identified accor-
ding to their nature, but have an undetermi-

ned amount or payment date, settlement of 
which will probably require an outflow of re-
sources embodying economic benefits from 
the Group.

These liabilities may arise from legal or con-
tractual provisions, valid expectations crea-
ted by the Group regarding third parties in 
connection with taking on certain types of lia-
bilities or through the expected development 
of the regulatory standards of the entities’ 
operations, and specifically, draft regulations 
from which the Group cannot be released. 

Provisions are liabilities in which there is un-
certainty as to their amount or due date. The-
se provisions are recognized in the balance 
sheet when there is a current liability (legal or 
implicit) as a result of past actions or events 
and an outflow of resources from the Group to 
settle the liability is probable, and the amount 
of these resources can be reliably measured.

When the effect of the time value of money is 
significant, the amount of the provision is the 
present value of the expenses expected to be 
incurred in settlement.

Among other things, these allowances include 
commitments made with employees, as well 

as provisions for tax and legal disputes.

The provisions are recalculated at each repor-
ting date and are used to cover the specific 
liabilities for which they were originally recog-
nized; they may be subsequently reversed, in 
full or in part, when such liabilities cease to 
exist or decrease. 

The provisions are classified based on the lia-
bilities covered, as follows: 

•	 Provisions for tax and legal disputes.

•	 Provisions for contingent credit risk. 

•	 Provisions for other contingencies.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the 
balance sheet or in profit and loss, but they 
are reported in the financial statements pro-
vided the increase in resources that embody 
economic rewards for this reason is probable.

Contingent liabilities are the Group’s possible 
liabilities, arising as are a result of past events, 
whose existence is conditional on the occu-
rrence or non-occurrence of future events 
that are beyond the Group’s control. They also 
include the entity’s current liabilities whose 
settlement is not probable to produce an out-

flow of resources embodying economic bene-
fits or whose amount, in extremely rare cases, 
cannot be quantified with sufficient reliability.

3.17.	 Income tax

The income tax expense represents the 
amount of the current income tax payable 
and the deferred income tax.

•	 Current income tax - The current tax pa-
yable is based on the taxable income re-
corded during the year. Taxable income is 
different from the income recorded in the 
profit and loss statement and other com-
prehensive income, due to the taxable or 
deductible income or expense items in 
other years and items that are never taxa-
ble or deductible. The Bank’s liabilities for 
current income tax are calculated using 
the tax rates enacted or substantially enac-
ted at the end of the reporting period. The 
Bank determines the provision for income 
tax based on the taxable profit or presump-
tive income, whichever is higher, estimated 
at the rates specified by the tax law.

•	 Deferred income tax - The deferred in-
come tax is recognized on temporary di-
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fferences between the carrying value of 
the assets and liabilities included in the 
financial statements and the correspon-
ding tax bases used to determine taxable 
income. The deferred income tax liability 
is generally recognized for all temporary 
tax differences. A deferred income tax as-
set will be recognized for all the deductible 
temporary differences, to the extent that it 
is probable that the entity will have future 
taxable income against which it can offset 
the deductible temporary differences. The-
se assets and liabilities are not recognized 
if the temporary differences arise from the 
initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities 
in a transaction that does not affect taxable 
income or accounting income. 

The deferred tax from taxable temporary 
differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, and interests 
in joint ventures, must be recognized, ex-
cept those in which the Bank can control 
the underlying temporary difference and 
when there is the possibility that it may 
not be reversed in the near future. 

The carrying value of a deferred income 
tax asset must be subject to review at the 
end of each reporting period and it must 
be reduced, inasmuch as there will not be 
sufficient taxable income in the future to 
recover all or part of the asset.

The deferred income tax assets and liabili-
ties must be measured using the tax rates 
expected to be applicable in the period in 
which the assets are realized or the liabili-
ties are canceled, based on the rates (and 
tax laws) enacted or substantially enacted 
at the end of the reporting period following 
the approval process.

•	 Accounting recognition - Current and 
deferred income taxes shall be recognized 
in the profit and loss statement, except 
when they are related to items recorded 
in other comprehensive income or direct-
ly in equity, in which case the current or 
deferred income tax is also recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, respectively. In the case of a bu-
siness combination, when the current or 
deferred income tax arises from the initial 
recognition of the business combination, 

the tax effect is considered as part of the 
recognition of the business combination.

3.18.	 Real value unit – RVU

The Real Value Unit (UVR, for the Spanish 
original) is certified by the Central Bank and 
reflects purchasing power based on the varia-
tion of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) during 
the calendar month immediately prior to the 
month when the calculation period starts. 

The UVR is a unit of measure used for calcu-
lating the cost of mortgage loans that allows 
financial entities to maintain the purchasing 
power of the money lent. The methodology 
used for calculating such indicator was esta-
blished by the Board of Directors of the Cen-
tral Bank, in strict compliance with the order 
issued by the Constitutional Court in Ruling 
C-955/2000. 

The Group carries out transactions to ob-
tain savings deposits, and grant short- and 
long-term loans and investments in real value 
units (RVU) translated into local currency in 

conformity with the provisions of Law 546 / 
December 23, 1999, which created the legal 
framework for housing financing. 

This law established the general objectives 
and criteria the National Government should 
be subject to in order to regulate the system, 
further creating savings instruments devoted 
to such financing; the financing system is sta-
ted in Real Value Units (UVR) and shall reflect 
the purchasing power of money, which implies 
that it is linked to the consumer price index. 

3.19. Adequate equity

According to the provisions of Section 2.1 of 
Chapter XIII-16 of the Basic Accounting and 
Financial Notice (Public Notice 100/1995 of 
the Financial Superintendence of Colombia 
(SFC)), the Bank’s adequate equity must com-
ply with the following two minimum levels of 
solvency:
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•	 Leverage Ratio: It is defined as the sum 
of the values of PBO and PBA divided by 
the leverage value. This ratio must not be 
lower than 3%.

•	 Total Solvency Ratio: It is defined as the 
value of Technical Equity (PT, for the Spa-
nish original) divided by the value of the 
APNR and market and operational risks. 
This ratio may not be lower than 9%.

Where:

PT= Value of Technical Equity calculated as 
per the instructions given in Subsection 2.3 of 
this Chapter.

APNR= Credit Risk Weighted Assets calcula-
ted according to the instructions provided in 
Subsection 2.4. of this Chapter and in Form 
239 (Proforma F.1000-141 “Report on the Sol-
vency Margin and Other Equity Requirements 
and Solvency Margin Control Statement.”

VeRRM= Value of market risk exposure calcu-
lated as per the instructions given in Chapter 
XXI “Rules concerning the market risk mana-
gement system” of the Basic Accounting and 
Financial Notice (CBCF, for the Spanish origi-
nal).

•	 Basic Solvency Ratio: The value of Ordi-
nary Basic Equity Net of Deductions (he-
reinafter PBO, for the Spanish original) di-
vided by the value of credit risk weighted 

assets (APNR, for the Spanish original) 
and market and operational risks. This ra-
tio may not be lower than 4.5%.

•	 Additional Basic Solvency Ratio: It is de-
fined as the sum of the value of the PBO 

VeRRO= Value of operational risk exposure cal-
culated as per the instructions given in Chap-
ter XXIII “Rules concerning the operational 
risk management system” of Basic Accoun-
ting and Financial Notice of the CBCF.

Leverage value = The sum of the value of all 
assets net of provisions; net exposures in all 
repurchase and repo, simultaneous and tem-
porary security transfer transactions; credit 
exposures in all derivative financial instru-
ments; and the exposure value of all contin-
gencies. To determine the exposure value of 
the contingencies, the nominal amount of the 
exposure, net of allowances, must be multi-
plied by the applicable credit conversion fac-
tor as established in items a) to c) of Article 
2.1.1.3.5 of Decree 2555/2010.

The value of the assets deducted to calcula-
te the PBO, pursuant to Article 2.1.1.1.11 of De-
cree 2555/2010, or deducted to calculate the 
PT, pursuant to Article 2.1.1.3.2 (10) of Decree 
2555/2010, must be computed at a value of zero 
for purposes of determining the leverage value.

The calculation of each of the items that make 
up the minimum solvency ratios and buffers 
must be made considering the monthly and 
quarterly information of the Exclusive Finan-

and the Additional Basic Equity (PBA, for 
the Spanish original) divided by the value 
of the APNR and market and operational 
risks. This ratio must not be lower than 6%.

cial Reporting Catalog for Monitoring Purpo-
ses and Form 239 (Proforma F.1000-141 “Re-
port on the Solvency Margin and Other Equity 
Requirements and Solvency Margin Control 
Statement”), as indicated in each of the com-
ponents of the solvency ratios and buffers, as 
well as the current instructions established 
for the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3.20. Share issue premium

The share issue premium is the additional va-
lue to the nominal value of the shares that is 
charged when transferring them and arises 
when the shares are placed in the market at 
a price that is higher than the nominal value.

It is originated in a share subscription agree-
ment and is a legally valid option; however, 
while the shares obtained as a result of the 
aforementioned contract are part of the share 
capital, the premium, as an additional value to 
the nominal value of the share, constitutes an 
equity item crediting the legal reserve.

3.21 Recognition of revenue and  
expenses

Interest revenue and expenses and service 
fees are recognized in the statement of income 
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for the fiscal year as they accrue, based on the 
time of the transactions that give rise thereto. 
Revenues are measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or to be received, and 
represent amounts receivable for the services 
provided, net of discounts and value added 
tax. The Group recognizes revenue when its 
amount can be reliably measured, it is proba-
ble that the future economic rewards will flow 
to the entity and when specific criteria have 
been met for each of the Group’s activities.

In the recognition of general revenues and 
expenses, the Group uses the general prin-
ciples of the conceptual framework, such as: 
Accrual Basis, Recognition, Certainty, Reliable 
Measurement, Correlation of Revenue and Ex-
penses, Cost-Benefit Consideration, Measu-
rement and Materiality.

The Group recognizes revenue on the sale of 
property when the risks and rewards of owner-
ship are transferred to the buyer, it does not 
retain ownership or control of the properties 
sold, the amount of revenue can be reliably 
measured, it is probable to receive the econo-
mic rewards associated with the transaction 
and the costs incurred in the transaction can 
be reliably measured.  

Revenue and expenses arising from transactions 
or services that extend over time are recognized 
over the life of said transactions or services.  

Dividends received by non-controlled entities 
and joint ventures are recognized when the ri-
ght to receive them has been established.

The recognition of interest revenue is applied 
using the effective interest method, which is 
a method to calculate the amortized cost of 
an asset and allocate the interest revenue 
over the relevant period. The effective inte-
rest rate exactly equals estimated future cash 
payments or collections during the expected 
life of the financial instrument, or whenever 
appropriate, for a shorter period, at the initial 
net carrying value of the asset.  To calculate 
the effective interest rate, cash flows are es-
timated considering all the contractual terms 
of the financial instrument, without conside-
ring future credit losses and considering the 
initial balance of the transaction or loan gran-
ted, transaction costs and premiums granted, 
less the fees and discounts received, which 
are an integral part of the effective rate.

From the legal standpoint, default interests 
are contractually agreed and can be equated 
with variable interests incurred on account of 
debtor default.  These interests are incurred 
when the contractual obligation to do so ari-
ses, regardless of future credit losses, as esta-
blished by the definition of the effective inte-
rest rate; therefore, said balance is part of the 
total debt with the customer, which is asses-
sed to determine impairment by following the 
procedures in place to do so, either through 
individual or collective assessment.

Customer Loyalty: The Group classifies the 
system of points awarded to its customers for 
the use of electronic means of payment under 

this item; these points can be redeemed in di-
fferent forms.

On account of customer loyalty, the Bank re-
cognizes a deferred liability that is amortized 
as customers redeem their points, based on 
the model designed for points awarded for 
customer loyalty.

The Group runs a loyalty program, in which 
customers accumulate points for purcha-
ses, entitling them to redeem the points for 
rewards in accordance with the policies and 
the reward scheme at the time of redemption. 

Fee revenues

In general, revenues are recorded at the time 
of accrual of the service, as required in the 
new standard; no variable components rela-
ted to the revenues are observed, nor are any 
remunerations other than cash received.

3.22 Statement of cash flow
Supervised preparers of financial reports can 
report the Statement of Cash Flow-Direct Me-
thod, or the Statement of Cash Flow-Indirect 
Method, or both. The Group presents the ac-
companying statements of cash flow using 
the direct method, according to which the 
main categories of inflows and outflows are 
presented separately in gross terms in accor-
dance with the criteria of IAS 7.

3.23. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by di-
viding the earnings or losses attributable to 
the holders of ordinary equity instruments of 
the controlling company (numerator) by the 
weighted average of ordinary subscribed and 
paid-in shares, both common and preferred, 
outstanding (denominator), during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by 
adjusting the year’s earnings attributable to 
the owners of the controlling company and 
the weighted average ordinary shares outs-
tanding for all the dilutive effects inherent to 
potential ordinary shares.

This information is intended to provide a me-
asure of the interest of each ordinary share of 
the controlling company in the entity’s perfor-
mance during the reporting period.

Since the Group has no financial instruments 
with a dilutive effect, basic and diluted ear-
nings per share are the same.

3.24 Standards issued by the IASB that 
are not yet effective
The amendments issued by the IASB in 2021 
and 2020 are listed below. Some of them be-
came effective internationally as of January 1, 
2020 and 2021 and others will become effecti-
ve as of January 1, 2022 and 2023. These stan-
dards have not yet been adopted in Colombia.
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Financial Reporting 
Standard

Topic of the standard or 
amendment Details

IFRS 9 – Financial 
Instruments
IAS 39 - Financial 
Instruments: 
Recognition and 
Measurement
IFRS 7 - Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures

Benchmark Interest Rate 
Reform (amendments to 
IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) 

Paragraphs 102A to 102N and 108G are included in IAS 
39 regarding temporary exceptions to the application of 
specific hedge accounting requirements.

Paragraphs 24H, on uncertainty arising from the reform 
of the benchmark interest rate, and 44DE and 44DF 
(effective date and transition) are added.

Official publication of the standard for its application is 
pending.

IFRS 9 – Financial 
Instruments
IAS 39 - Financial 
Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement 
IFRS 7 - Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 4 - Insurance 
Contracts
IFRS 16 - Leases

Benchmark Interest 
Rate Reform – Phase 2

Paragraphs 5.4.5 to 5.4.9 are added, changing the base for 
determining contractual cash flows as a result of the 
Benchmark Interest Rate Reform (measurement at 
amortized cost), 6.8.13 on the end of application of the 
temporary exception for hedge accounting, 6.9.1 to 6.9.13 
with additional temporary exceptions arising from the 
Benchmark Interest Rate Reform, 7.1.10 on effective date, 
and 7.2.43 to 7.2.46 on the transition for the Benchmark 
Interest Rate Reform Phase 2 of IFRS 9. 

Amendments are made to Paragraph 102M on the end of 
application of the temporary exceptions for hedge 
accounting, Paragraphs 102O to 102Z3 are added with 
additional temporary exceptions arising from the Benchmark 
Interest Rate Reform, and 108H to 108K on effective and 
transition dates, and new headers are added to IAS 39. 

Paragraphs 24I, 24J are added on additional disclosures 
related to the Benchmark Interest Rate Reform, 44GG and 
44HH with effective and transition dates, and new headers 
are added to IFRS 7. 

Paragraphs 20R and 20S are added with changes in the base 
for determining contractual cash flows as a result of the 
Benchmark Interest Rate Reform, and Paragraphs 50 and 51 
with the effective and transition dates, and new headers are 
added to IFRS 4. 

Financial Reporting 
Standard 

Topic of the standard 
or amendment Details

IFRS 9 – Financial 
Instruments
IAS 39 - Financial 
Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement 
IFRS 7 - Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 4 - Insurance 
Contracts
IFRS 16 - Leases

Benchmark Interest 
Rate Reform – Phase 2

Amendments are made to Paragraphs 104 to 106 on 
temporary exceptions arising from the Benchmark 
Interest Rate Reform, and Paragraphs C20C and C20D 
are added on Benchmark Interest Rate Reform Phase 2 of 
IFRS 16. 

Official publication of the standard for its application is 
pending.

IAS 16 - Property, 
Plant and Equipment

Amendment related to 
proceeds obtained 
before intended use

The amendment discusses costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the asset (which are part of the PP&E 
item) and refer to "the costs of verifying that the asset is 
functioning properly (i.e., whether the technical and 
physical performance of the asset is such that it can be 
used in the production or supply of goods or services, for 
leasing to third parties or for administrative purposes)."

Paragraph 20A states that the production of inventories, 
while the PP&E item is brought to the conditions expected 
by management, at the time of sale, will affect the income 
of the period, together with its corresponding cost.

The amendment applies as of January 1, 2022 and early 
application is permitted.

Any effect on its application will be made retrospectively, 
but only to those PP&E items that are brought to the 
location and conditions necessary for them to operate in 
the manner intended by management as of the beginning 
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements 
in which the entity first applies the amendments. The 
cumulative effect of the initial application of the 
amendments will be recognized as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings (or another 
appropriate equity component) at the beginning of the 
earliest period presented.
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IAS 37 - Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets

Onerous Contracts - 
Cost of Fulfilling a 
Contract

It is clarified that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises 
costs directly related to the contract (the costs of direct 
labor and materials, and the allocation of costs directly 
related to the contract).

The amendment applies as of January 1, 2022 and early 
application is permitted.

The effect of applying the amendment will not restate 
comparative information. Instead, the cumulative effect of 
the initial application of the amendments will be 
recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of 
retained earnings or another appropriate equity 
component, at the date of initial application.

IAS 1 - Presentation of 
Financial Statements 

Amendments were made 
related to classification 
as current or non-current 
liabilities.

The amendment was issued in January 2020 and was 
subsequently amended in July 2020.

It modifies the requirement to classify a liability as current 
by stating that a liability is classified as current when "it 
does not have the right at the end of the reporting period 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months following the reporting date."

It added text to Paragraph 72A to clarify that "an entity's 
right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve 
months following the reporting period must be 
substantive and, as illustrated in Paragraphs 73-75, must 
exist at the end of the reporting period."

The amendment applies as of January 1, 2023 and early 
application is permitted. The effect of the application on 
comparative information will be carried out 
retrospectively.

Financial Reporting 
Standard 

Topic of the standard 
or amendment Details

The Bank shall quantify the impact on the financial statements once the Decree that incorporates 
them in the Colombian Technical Regulatory Framework has been issued.

Banco BBVA

Given the persistence of the Covid-19 pheno-
menon and its effects of debtors’ credit be-
havior, in line with the regulations issued by 
the Financial Superintendence of Colombia 
to address the health emergency situation, 
the Bank has granted relief based on Public 
Notices 007, 014, 022 and 39 issued in 2020. 
At December 2021, the following is the break-
down of active loans that received relief me-
asures in each modality: In mortgage loans, 
54,514 transactions for COP 5,005,255 in 
principal; in consumer loans 238,852 tran-
sactions for COP 2,826,419 in principal; in 
commercial loans 9,157 transactions for COP 
2,121,926 in principal, for a total of 302,523 
transactions for COP 9,953,600. At Decem-
ber 2021, 0.08% of the transactions still had 
the benefit of the relief measures provided.

The Bank has assigned to the transactions 
that benefited with relief measures due to 

the health emergency at December 2021 a 
total of COP 1,232,809 in individual loan por-
tfolio allowances and COP 34,142 in general 
allowance for interest, in compliance with the 
provisions of Public Notice 022/2020 issued 
by the Financial Superintendence of Colom-
bia and Chapter II of Public Notice 100/1995.

Additionally, the following transactions were 
carried out with the National Guarantee Fund 
of the Unidos por Colombia Program, at De-
cember 2021: In Commercial loans, 7,795 
transactions for COP 1,038,928 in principal; 
in Consumer loans 105 transactions for COP 
1,058 in principal, for a total of 7,795 tran-
sactions and principal of COP 1,038,986, on 
which allowances have been made on princi-
pal for COP 22,315.

Trust Management

The General Meeting of Shareholders held in 
March 2021, as documented in Minutes No. 

4.	 Relevant Evens
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89, declared dividends in the amount of COP 
37,105 from the financial results at December 
31, 2020. 

BBVA Asset Management S.A. Sociedad Fi-
duciaria managed its transactions through 
checking and savings accounts opened at 
Banco BBVA Colombia S.A. 

The Trust Company maintained a contract for 
use of the office network with Banco BBVA 
Colombia S.A. 

At December 31, 2021, Banco BBVA Colom-
bia S.A. continued to monitor the Trust Com-
pany’s expense control programs and its 
acquisitions of equipment, software, offices 
supplies and service and professional service 
contracts. 

In March 2021, the collective investment fund 
FIC Balanceado BBVA Gaia began operations. 

The Board of Directors meeting held on July 
29, 2021, approved a change to the proprie-
tary position policy, which establishes that 
new fixed-Income debt investments are re-
cognized as available-for-sale. 

Securities

BBVA Valores, jointly with BBVA Colombia, 
continuously monitors the conditions created 
since the COVID-19 pandemic began in the 
country and its effects throughout society. 

During 2021, substantial progress was made 
in containing the COVID-19 virus in the coun-
try and the world. The progress made by the 
vaccination plans, in combination with the 
other measures adopted by the national go-
vernment, enabled a significant reduction in 
contagion rates in the country, a reduction 
in hospital and intensive care unit occupancy 
rates, and consequently enabling loosening 
the restrictive health emergency measures 
adopted the by the national government since 
March 2020. In view of this situation, during 
this period BBVA Group joined the efforts of 
private companies and the government in ca-
rrying out vaccination plans for all its emplo-
yees, with widespread acceptance and partici-
pation, achieving a milestone in the process of 
overcoming the limitations brought about by 
the pandemic. Slowly but progressively con-
ditions are returning to normal in the country, 
in a very responsible manner, with activities 

voluntarily returning to physical presence in 
almost all aspects of society. 

During 2021, BBVA Valores maintained its 
operating capabilities through remote work, 
abiding by the biosafety priorities establi-
shed by BBVA Group, which look out for the 
safety of all its employees while at the same 
time adequately servicing all customer requi-
rements. Remote work was combined with al-
ternating physical presence at the offices for 
several critical business positions, enabling 
fluid operations without interruptions throu-
ghout the period. 

Based on the improved health conditions re-
garding the COVID-19 virus, BBVA Valores has 
achieved favorable results including net in-
come of COP 1,483 during the year ended in 
December, driven by a more dynamic securi-
ties brokerage business, as well as the strong 
dynamics of the Investment Banking team in 
its work of assisting corporate clients in their 
strategic processes. 

The BBVA team will continue to carefully 
monitor the effects of the pandemic in order 
to anticipate any adverse effects and take 
appropriate measures to maintain the stable 
conditions that have been achieved to date.

5.  Business Segments

5.1 Description of the segments

The Group directs and assessed the perfor-
mance of its operations by business seg-
ments and the transactions between these 
segments are carried out based on regulatory 
commercial terms and conditions. This dis-
closure reports how the Group has managed 
the business segments at December 31, 2021 
compared to same period in 2020. 

To carry out the commercial activity, BBVA 
Colombia has established a specialized ban-

king structure to serve different business seg-
ments, as follows:

Commercial Banking: responsible for mana-
ging the retail business and the segment of in-
dividuals. Commercial banking manages the 
entire segment of individuals, which is made 
up of consumer and mortgage loans, means 
of payment and consumer finance. 
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Enterprise and Institutional Banking (EIB): 
Responsible for managing corporate custo-
mers from the public and private sector.

Corporate and Investment Banking (CIB): 
the banking segment responsible for corpo-
rate customers, in addition to treasury tran-
sactions and investment banking. Corporate 
and Investment Banking Colombia: Is the area 
within the Bank responsible for serving major 
corporate customers and financial institu-
tions, by offering, in addition to the traditional 
financial products, services and products with 
high value added in order for them to fulfill 
their objectives in the different local and inter-
national markets.

Assets and Liabilities Committee (COAP, 
for the Spanish original): It is the unit that 
manages the Bank's liquidity and sets the 
transfer prices for resources and portfolios that 
flow from and to all other banking segments.

In addition, several business sub-segments 
have been defined within these banking seg-
ments in order to direct commercial actions 
effectively, in accordance with customer pro-
files, framed within the Group's strategic ob-
jectives for the growth of the franchise in Co-
lombia.

Other Segments: The banking segments 
other than those mentioned above are grou-
ped in the “other” segment, including the Core 
and Complementary Areas.

Allocation of operating expenses: In rela-
tion to the accounting of BBVA Colombia's di-
rect and indirect expenses, they are recorded 
in each of the cost centers generating said ex-
penses; however, if there are any items affec-
ting the cost centers of core areas after this 
distribution, they are distributed to the ban-
king segments using the apportionment line, 
in accordance with the distribution criteria es-
tablished by the business areas of the Bank's 
general management.

Cross-selling: When two business areas are 
involved in the sale or placement of the bank's 
products, the actual accounting record of the 
profit from the transaction is made in just one 
area in order to avoid duplication. However, 
the Bank has cross-selling agreements throu-
gh which the return generated by said sales 
is analyzed and the percentage to be paid to 
the banking segment or business area that 
arranged the transaction is established, de-
creasing by the same value the return of the 
other banking segment in which the profit 

was initially recorded, using the Bank's offse-
tting accounts.

5.2 Income by segments at December 31, 
2021 and 2020 

The information below contains the distribu-
tion by the Group’s segments, which is carried 
out based on corporate guidelines that allow 
the monitoring and management areas to 
maintain efficient control of customer beha-
vior for capture and placement products.

To this effect, the Group has created a strate-
gic structure of categories that groups the ac-
tivity into each segment based on accounting 
information. This allows the business and fi-
nancial areas to establish suitable market and 
monitoring strategies based on the behavior 
of each assessed segment.

The comparative analysis of balance sheet fi-
gures for the fourth quarter of «B» and «C», 
allows the assessment of business perfor-
mance in comparable and similar periods.
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December 31 2021

COP Mill. Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other

Cash and central 
banks

COP 4,911,194 COP        2,049,526 COP         3,198 COP         28,347 COP 2,551,151 COP 278,972 

Financial 
intermediaries

       6,489,259           951,515 9,756,540        5,996,963 (10,270,423)   54,664 

Securities portfolio      10,424,999 -                       -        5,923,950 4,447,610  53,440 

Inversión Crediticia 
Neta  55,863,275 36,856,405 12,316,726        5,585,678 (4,952) (25,823)

Consumer      19,142,020      19,170,755 793 -                        - (29,528)

Cards         2,158,665        2,158,394      230 -                        -   41 

Mortgage      13,010,478      13,009,605 1,054 -                        -               (181)

Enterprise      22,062,225 3,738,061 12,655,548        5,668,633 - (16)

Other          (510,113)       (1,220,409) (340,900) (82,955) (4,952)             3,861 

Net fixed assets        1,005,712           171,044               1,798             13,681 - 819,189 

Other assets        1,225,589           454,407 25,870           616,101 (118,322)         247,533 

Total assets      79,920,029 40,482,897 22,104,131      18,164,719 (3,394,936)      1,427,974 

Financial 
intermediaries

       2,742,044      18,066,601 2,931,019        7,048,999 (25,482,714)         179,088 

Customer resources      60,266,678      20,719,273      17,744,462        4,980,859       16,807,227           14,856 

On-demand        9,517,648        3,472,091        4,927,072        1,110,368 (58) 8,175 

Savings      30,358,923      14,396,776      12,123,020        3,864,077             (31,628)             6,677 

CDs      18,021,672        2,850,406           694,371               6,414       14,470,477 4 

Bonds        2,368,436 -                       - - 2,368,436 - 

Other liabilities      10,771,405        1,552,175        1,147,757        5,799,214            615,290      1,547,274 

Total liabilities COP 73,780,128 COP  40,338,049 COP 21,823,238 COP 17,829,072 COP (8,060,197) COP  1,741,219 

Cash and central 
banks

COP  4,918,782 COP 1,857,172 COP 5,463 COP 13,874 COP 2,723,403 COP 318,869 

Financial 
intermediaries

1,712,476 285,905 8,530,007 1,854,627 (9,331,339) 373,266 

Securities portfolio 11,038,576 -                          -   6,656,844 4,300,605 81,126 

Net credit 
investment 48,720,267 39,902,207 10,423,978 4,354,659 (2,986) 42,410 

Consumer 17,566,183 17,491,895 552 -                       -   73,736 

Cards 1,899,374 1,897,797 138 -                       -   1,439 

Mortgage 120,972,064 11,992,088 673 -                       -   104,443 

COP Mill. Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other

COP Mill. Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other

Note: Grouping according to Financial Planning and Management, Exact Balance at «A» «B».
Note: The income of BBVA Valores was included in the CIB segment.
Note: The income of the BBVA Trust Company was included in the Other segment.
Note: The eliminations were included in the COAP segment.
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Enterprise 18,527,598 3,437,418 10,672,330 4,416,813 1,036 -   

Other (1,370,091) (916,992) (249,715) (62,155) (4,022) (137,207)

Net fixed assets 1,036,227 188,060 2,220 9,815 -   836,132 

Other assets 1,462,185 545,730 95,689 422,536 150,337 247,893 

Total assets 68,888,513 36,779,075 19,057,358 13,312,354 (2,159,970) 1,899,696 

Financial 
intermediaries

268,274 16,576,849 3,419,203 3,584,325 (24,238,021) 925,917 

Customer resources 53,379,435 17,879,672 14,172,179 4,190,650 17,134,475 2,458 

On-demand 8,822,326 3,086,655 4,878,753 854,998 -   1,920 

Savings 23,072,572 11,617,068 8,253,564 3,236,640 (35,238) 538 

CDs 19,196,095 3,175,949 1,039,862 99,012 14,881,272 -   

Bonds 2,288,442 -                          -   -   2,288,442 -   

Other liabilities 9,732,583 1,409,051 819,030 3,455,436 3,200,078 848,987 

Total liabilities COP 63,380,292 COP 35,865,572 COP 18,410,412 COP 11,230,411 COP (3,903,468) COP 1,777,362 

COP Mill. Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other

The disaggregated balance sheet at «A» «B», 
it indicates that the banking segments that 
concentrate most of the Group's assets are 
«E» at «F», «G» at «H» and «I» at «J».

Regarding liabilities, the banking segments with 
the highest share of customer funds are «K» at 
«L», «M» at «N», «O» at «P» and «Q» at«R».

When analyzing by account, the BBVA Group’s 
Cash and Central Banks line recorded an an-
nual variation of «S». The securities portfolio 
«T» by «U», which is explained by the reduc-
tion of CIB (-COP 4,311,060 «Y»). Net Credit 
Investment «Z» by «AA», mainly driven by the 
changes in «AB» («AC» «AD»)  and «AE» («AF» 
«AG»), which were offset by reductions in CIB 
(-COP 645,582) and EIB (-COP 620,227). In 
Commercial Banking, the growth of Credit In-
vestment is mainly due to the «AK» increase 
in «AL», of «AM» in «AN» and «AO» in «AP». In 
EIB, the decrease in credit is mainly due to the 
«AQ» «AR» in Corporate loans.

Total Assets «AS» by «AT», where CIB (-COP 
2,735.33«AW») and EIB (-COP 3,960,339«AZ») 
posted the largest decreases, due to a smaller 
securities portfolio in the case of CIB and lower 
credit investment at EIB.

In turn, liability financial intermediaries «BA» 
by «BB». Funds deposited by customers in 
on-demand and savings products were raised 
by «BC» («BD» «BE»), «BF» («BG» «BH») and 
COAP (+COP 17,462«BK»).

In turn, the COAP, which is the area responsible 
for raising corporate customer funds through 
CDs, concentrates «BL» of the Group's to-
tal CDs CDs decreased by «BM» compared 
to «C» while Bonds increased by «BO» «BP» 
compared to the preceding year.

The COAP showed negative assets and liabi-
lities driven by the Financial Intermediaries 
lines of assets and liabilities. Each banking 
segment has its primary function, acting as 
either attractors (bringing funds to the 	
Group) or placement agents (generating cre-
dit investment). Therefore, the COAP is the 
area responsible for collecting the excess 
funds from an attractor banking segment and 
"transferring" them to a placement banking 
segment. However, in order not to affect the 
financial statements of the attractor banking 
segment, the COAP "transfers" the invest-
ment generated to the attractor banking seg-
ment. This is done to reconcile the balance 
sheets of the banking segments and to show 

Note: Grouping according to Financial Planning and Management, Exact Balance at «A» «B».
Note: The income of BBVA Valores was included in the CIB segment
Note: The income of the BBVA Trust Company was included in the Other segment.
Note: The eliminations were included in the COAP segment.
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how the Bank functions as a whole, without pu-
nishing and recognizing the function of each 
banking segment. Asset financial intermedia-
ries showed a «BQ» «BR» inter-annual varia-
tion, while the liability financial intermediaries 
showed a «BS» «BT» inter-annual variation, 
behaving in line with the Group's activity.

The “other” areas segment includes the cen-
tral, means and financial complementary 
areas. They are all areas that provide support 
for the other banking segments. The Means 
area includes the Formalization Center, which 
mainly manages credit investments that are 
not segmented. The Core areas includes the 
central account, which reconciles the Bank's 
balance sheet and is where the investment 
assets for holdings in subsidiaries are inclu-
ded. The assets of the “Other” segment are 
mostly made up of net fixed assets. The total 
assets of this segment showed a variation of 
«BU» «BV». The “other” area is also respon-
sible for eliminating duplicates caused by 
transactions between banking segments or in 
which more than one banking segment parti-
cipates. It also includes all the components of 

the central areas and the adjustments of the 
Financial Statements of the Business Areas 
(EFAN, for the Spanish original). Adjustments 
through the EFAN include the standardization 
of local vs. international regulations and reci-
procal activities between different countries/
banking segments.

In this note, it is important to mention the in-
come of BBVA Valores and Fiduciaria BBVA. In 
the case of BBVA Valores, the income is inclu-
ded in the CIB area.

The total assets of BBVA Valores showed a va-
riation of «DL» «DM», thus closing with a total 
of «DN» «DO» in «A» «B».

The income of the BBVA Trust Company was 
included in the Other segment. The Trust 
Company's total assets showed a variation of 
«DP» «DQ» thus ending the year with a total 
of «DR» «DS».

Below are the details of the annual income 
statement for the periods ended on «A» «B» 
and «C» by business segment 

Interest margin COP 3,184,925 COP 1,951,555 COP  574,441 COP  242,859 COP  484,764 COP (68,694)

Net fees      500,714      408,838        56,825        94,880        (1,530)      (58,300)

Trading results      283,295        41,697        27,283      227,116             685      (13,487)

Other net 
ordinary income     (167,183)      (20,638)        (4,360)        (3,377)    (129,092)        (9,715)

Gross margin   3,801,751   2,381,453      654,189      561,478      354,827    (150,196)

General 
administrative 
expenses

 (1,062,268)    (777,535)      (62,767)      (66,627)      173,915    (329,254)

- Personnel expenses       (622,411)    (303,555)       (39,352)       (38,433) (0) (241,070)

- Overhead      (371,589)    (422,784)       (17,076)       (20,666)       174,204       (85,267)

- Taxation 
(Contributions 
and Taxes)

       (68,267)      (51,195)         (6,339)         (7,528) (289) (2,916)

Amortization and 
depreciation     (114,060)      (44,740) (536) (2,847) (0) (65,937)

Accumulated 
COP Mill.

Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other

December 31, 2021
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Apportionment of 
expenses -    (271,767)      (65,702)      (38,171)      (10,844)      386,485 

Net margin   2,625,423   1,287,411      525,184      453,833      517,897    (158,903)

Asset 
impairment loss  (1,022,592)    (812,784)    (111,093)      (15,211)               91      (83,594)

Credit to provisions     (226,962)        (3,387)           (730)           (956)    (204,600)      (17,289)

Other non-ordinary 
income       (16,388)             122               56        (3,432) -      (13,133)

PBT   1,359,481      471,361      413,416      434,234      313,389    (272,919)

Corporate tax     (469,241)    (151,767)    (133,110)    (140,569)    (125,083)        81,289 

PAT      890,240      319,594      280,306      293,666      188,305    (191,630)

Non-controlling 
interest          1,559 -                 - -                 -          1,559 

Total PAT    COP  891,799    COP  319,594    COP 280,306    COP 293,666    COP 188,305  COP (190,071)

Accumulated 
COP Mill.

Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other

Note: Grouping according to Financial Planning and Management, Exact Balance at «A» «B».
Note: The income of BBVA Valores was included in the CIB segment
Note: The income of the BBVA Trust Company was included in the Other segment.
Note: The eliminations were included in the COAP segment.

Interest margin COP 3,094,737 COP 2,235,390 COP 643,880 COP 217,492 COP 289,506 COP (291,531)

Net fees 384,303 273,111 58,555 84,592 (7,426) (24,529)

Other financial 
transactions 306,348 29,694 23,271 240,856 6,058 6,469

Other net 
ordinary income (191,273) (22,343) (5,742) (4,331) (140,196) (18,662)

Gross margin 3,594,114 2,515,853 719,964 538,609 147,941 (328,253)

General 
administrative 
expenses

(1,182,034) (736,877) (59,366) (61,829) (1,524) (322,438)

- Personnel expenses  (603,115) (297,699) (35,166) (33,752) (1) (236,499)

- Overhead (509,107) (388,822) (17,050) (20,969) (1,312) (80,954)

- Taxes (69,812) (50,356) (7,150) (7,109) (211) (4,985)

Amortization and 
depreciation (112,220) (48,745) (647) (2,924) (2) (59,901)

Apportionment 
of expenses - (259,345) (61,343) (30,519) (10,080) 361,286

Net margin 2,299,860 1,470,886 598,609 443,336 136,335 (349,306

Asset 
impairment loss (1,539,672) (1,197,874) (268,097) (14,846) 37 (58,892)

Credit to provisions (47,673) (1,004) (8) (428) 865 (47,098)

Accumulated 
COP Mill.

Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other
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Other non-
ordinary income (10,826) (1,267) (72) (12) - (9,475)

PBT 701,689 270,741 330,431 428,050 137,237 (464,771)

Corporate tax (240,283) (87,902) (108,193) (137,918) (53,135) 146,864

PAT 461,405 182,839 222,238 290,132 84,102 (317,906)

Non-controlling 
interest 2,185 - - - - 2,185

Total PAT COP 463,590 COP 182,839 COP 222,238 COP 290,132 COP 84,102 COP (315,721)

Accumulated 
COP Mill.

Total Bank  Commercial
Banking

EIB CIB COAP Other

Where PBT= Profit before tax and PAT= Profit after tax
Note: Grouping according to Financial Planning and Management, Exact Balance at «A» «B».
Note: The income of BBVA Valores was included in the CIB segment.
Note: The income of the BBVA Trust Company was included in the Other segment.
Note: The eliminations were included in the COAP segment.

When analyzing the statement of income for 
the year «B», , the most profitable segment for 
the Group was «BW», followed by «BX», «BY» 
and «BZ». In turn, the performance of the 
“other” areas was negative, because they are 
areas responsible for overseeing the Bank's 
correct internal operation.

COAP is the unit that manages the Group's 
liquidity and sets the transfer prices for the 

resources and portfolios flowing to an from all 
other banking segments. The interest margin 
showed a variation of  «CA» «CB». The gross 
margin stood at «CC» «CD».

The other areas are responsible for elimina-
ting duplicates caused by transactions be-
tween banking segments or in which more 
than one banking segment participates. Also, 
the latter includes all the expenses of the core 

areas and the adjustments to the Financial 
Statements of the Business Areas (EFAN, for 
the Spanish original). The central and means 
areas perform activities related to investment 
assets and central account, and the activi-
ties of the formalization center (credit invest-
ment). Finally, the central area is the segment 
with highest expenses (including the salaries 
of all the individuals from areas that are not 
in the business areas and administrative over-
head).

The BBVA Trust Company reported «DT» 
in PAT of «DU», ending the year with PAT of 
«DW» «DX» at «A»  «B». On its part, BBVA Va-
lores reported PAT of «DY»«DZ».

The Group’s interest margin «CE» by «CF» 
compared to «C», explained by the increase in 
interest revenue. «CG» stands out with a va-
riation of «CI».

The Group’s gross margin «CO» by «CP» com-
pared to the same period in «C», with COAP 
displaying the best performance with an in-
crease of +COP 166,786«CS».

The Group's general administrative expenses 
recorded «CY» of «CZ», and the Commercial 
and CIB lines displayed the greatest increase.

Finally, the Group's profit after taxes «DC» by 
«DD» compared to the same period in «C».
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6.  Maturity of assets and expiration of liabilities 

rities held-to-maturity is classified in the time 
periods defined by the Superintendence, taking 
into account the financial conditions of each 
security. The portfolio of investment financial 
assets includes securities issued by the Nation 
and, to a lesser extent, private debt securities, 
with an average maturities of more than twelve 
months. The securities consist mainly of Tre-
asury Securities (TES), Short-term Treasury 
Securities (TCO) and Certificates of Deposit 
(CDTs).

Deposits and current liabilities - The maturi-
ty of savings deposits and checking accounts is 
carried out statistically by combining the histo-
rical behavior of the specific balances and the 
cancellation of accounts, in a system of condi-
tioned probabilities, thus generating a logarith-
mic behavior in the aging of the deposits. Fixed 
term certificates of deposit are aged according 
to the conditions agreed with the customer.

Below is a list of the maturities of discounted 
and non-discounted financial assets and liabi-
lities:

The Group has analyzed the maturities of de-
rivative and non-derivative financial assets and 
liabilities, showing the following contractual 
maturities that have not been discounted for: 

Loan portfolio and financial lease transac-
tions – The Bank has performed an age analysis 
of the loan portfolio based on an assessment of 
the maturities of financial assets and liabilities, 
which takes into consideration the periodic 
amortization of principal and interest of each 
obligation, as contractually agreed with the 
customer. The aging process is carried out by 
considering the balance sheet asset positions 
of the credit investments and segmented in ac-
cordance with the final maturity date of each 
contract, classified by commercial, consumer, 
mortgage and micro-credit loan portfolios, as-
sessing them separately for local currency and 
total currency.

Investment Financial Assets– The maturity of 
the principal and interest of investment finan-
cial assets in tradeable fixed-yield debt secu-

Maturity of assets at December 31, 2021

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5

Cash and deposits in banks  COP  10,268,716  COP -    COP - COP -   COP  10,268,716 

Cash equivalent investment 
funds 24,140 -                          - - 24,140 

Money market transactions 736,822 -                         - - 736,822 

Investments at fair value 
through profit or loss              2,094,804 367,923 126,426 177,064 2,766,217 

Investments at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income (OCI)

 280,849 206,635 1,798,967 136,947 2,423,398 

Investments at amortized cost 
through profit or loss  1,956,470 7,800 - 66,401 2,030,671 

Investments at amortized cost -                               - - 55,422 55,422 

Hedging swaps -                               - 330,529 - 330,529 

Derivatives  2,331,741 144,368 30,304 454,038 2,960,451 

Commercial loan portfolio 10,016,710 5,118,642 4,061,861 3,019,229 22,216,442 

Consumer loan portfolio   8,775,540              7,167,594 3,737,464 2,058,795 21,739,393 

Mortgage loan portfolio and 
finance lease transactions              3,909,007 2,713,896 2,318,980 4,236,204 13,178,087 
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Employee loan and micro-credit 
portfolio 142,027   170,231 93,157 92,885 498,300 

Accounts receivable for loans  1,315,090 - -    - 1,315,090 

Other accounts receivable 
for loans  5,602  -         - -       5,602 

Other non-maturing assets               -                               - - 2,075,728 2,075,728

Total maturity of assets COP 41,857,518 COP 15,897,089 COP 12,497,688 COP 12,372,713 COP 82,625,008 

Checking accounts  COP         9,299,295 COP -    COP - COP -   COP 9,299,295 

Certificates of deposit              8,397,044              6,721,794 2,316,570 586,700 18,022,108 

Savings deposits, single 
deposits, special savings 
accounts and real value 
savings certificates

          13,767,673 9,845,062 3,631,476 3,216,320 30,460,531 

Current liabilities for services 546,516 -               - - 546,516 

Money market transactions              3,696,625    -                          -              - 3,696,625 

Special deposits 837,485 -                         - - 837,485 

Hedging swaps - 185,640 3,269,143 - 3,454,783 

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5

Maturity of liabilities at December 31, 2021

Bank credits and other 
financial obligations 288,414 597,710 977,684 1,110,358 2,974,166 

Accounts payable - 
financial expenses 2,907   833 - - 3,739 

Outstanding 
investment securities - 529,956 458,710 1,399,864 2,388,531 

Labor liabilities 2,434             -             - -         2,434 

Estimated liabilities 2,347 -           - -   2,347 

Dividends payable 1 2   -       -             3 

Taxes (does not include 
deferred tax)  293,649    -        -  - 293,649 

Other non-maturing financial 
liabilities 383  -   - 1,794,054 1,794,437 

Total maturity of liabilities COP  37,134,772 COP  17,880,997 COP 10,653,583 COP  8,107,296 COP 73,776,649 

Cash and deposits in banks  COP 5,745,960  COP -   COP - COP -   COP 5,745,960 

Money market transactions 484,215 -                              - - 484,215 

Investments at fair value 
through profit or loss             2,192,848 379,404 166,436 156,147 2,894,835 

Investments at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income (OCI)

298,982 1,552,438  37,489 499,400 2,388,309

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5

Maturity of assets at December 31, 2021



126 127

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Investments at amortized cost 
through profit or loss             2,112,003 7,969  -  11,216 2,131,188

Derivatives -                              - 152,380 - 152,380

Hedging swaps             2,807,634 251,512 110,590 487,798 3,657,534

Commercial loan portfolio             8,143,281             5,148,867 3,218,869   2,315,171 18,826,188

Consumer loan portfolio             3,272,106 6,349,900 4,986,560 4,910,210 19,518,776

Mortgage loan portfolio and 
finance lease transactions   756,183             1,608,016 1,683,925             8,111,170 12,159,294

Employee loan and micro-
credit portfolio 63,154 128,693 116,907 170,290 479,044

Accounts receivable for loans             1,142,873 -                              - - 1,142,873

Other accounts receivable 
for loans 7,794 -                              -          - 7,794

Other non-maturing assets -                              - - 1,522,559 1,522,559

Total maturity of assets COP 27,027,033 COP 15,426,799 COP 10,473,156 COP 18,183,961 COP 71,110,949

Checking accounts  COP         4,595,775  COP -    COP - COP -   COP 4,595,775 

Certificates of deposit             7,954,834 4,722,458       2,870,511 3,646,362 19,194,165 

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5

Maturity of liabilities at December 31, 2021

Savings deposits, single 
deposits, special savings 
accounts and real value 
savings certificates

          27,150,995   -     - - 27,150,995 

Current liabilities for services  532,730  -   - - 532,730 

Money market transactions 506,292   -  -            - 506,292 

Special deposits 513,296 -   -    - 513,296 

Derivatives             2,873,739 393,224 194,493 645,508 4,106,964 

Hedging swaps -                              - - 227 227 

Bank credits and other 
financial obligations 467,753 443,022 309,716 1,386,435 2,606,926 

Accounts payable - financial 
expenses             3,819,090 832,691 -                         - 4,651,781 

Outstanding investment 
securities 153,163 104,744 1,848,727 197,629 2,304,263 

Labor liabilities             1,663,748 -                              - - 1,663,748 

Estimated liabilities 1,694 -                              - -         1,694 

Dividends payable - 2,921 -                         -        2,921 

Other liabilities (other than 
interest) -        -   -          -             -   

Taxes (does not 
include deferred tax)             3,842,164      -        - - 3,842,164 

Other non-maturing 
financial liabilities 430,849    -   - 1,723,918 2,154,767 

Total maturity of liabilities COP 54,506,122 COP 6,499,060 COP 5,223,447   COP  7,600,079 COP 73,828,708

Item
Years

Total
0-1 1-3 3-5 More than 5
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Item 2021 2020

Spot proprietary position USD 1,531 USD 339

Proprietary position 46 40

Gross leverage position USD 25,614 USD 17,837

The aging and maturities are different in In-
vestments at fair value through OCI because 
the aging is based on the maturity of the se-
curity, and these maturities are realized ba-
sed on the expectation of the term of the se-
curity. Also, in bank credits and other financial 

These values are within the legal limits in force and effect established by the Central Bank of Co-
lombia.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the breakdown of foreign-currency assets and liabilities, equiva-
lent in thousands of US dollars, is as follows:

obligations, aging is carried out in accordance 
with the installment plans of the agreements 
according to the contractual maturities and 
the maturity is realized considering the actual 
maturity of the obligations.

7. Foreign currency transactions

The Group carried out transactions in the year 
2021 in Euro (EUR), British pound (GBP), Ca-
nadian dollar (CAD), Swiss franc (CHF), Japa-
nese yen (JPY), Swedish krona (SEK), Chine-
se yuan (CNY), Mexican peso (MXN) and US 
dollar (USD), the latter currency being the 

most representative currency of operation for 
the Bank.

Therefore, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
the balances in foreign currency were resta-
ted in terms of US dollars (USD):

Assets Nota 2021 2020

Cash and deposits in banks ( 8 ) USD 1,349 241

Financial Investment Assets ( 9 ) 2 16

Loan portfolio and financial lease transactions (net) ( 10 ) 373 190

Interest on loan portfolio and other items (net) ( 10 ) 209 176

  Total assets in foreign currency            1,933 623 

Liabilities Nota 2021 2020

Deposits and on-demand liabilities ( 22 ) USD 108 72

Bank credits and other financial obligations ( 24 ) 152 106

Outstanding investment securities ( 27 ) 403 403

Accounts Payable ( 26 ) 14 12

Other Liabilities ( 28 ) 1 -   

  Total liabilities in foreign currency               678 593 

Net assets in foreign currency            1,255 30 
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Item 2021 2020

Spot exchange rate (TRM) COP 3,981.16 COP 3,432.50

Item 2021 2020

Operating revenue - exchange gain  COP 630,430   COP 384,799 

Operating expenses - exchange loss (147,164) (588,652)

Gain (Loss)   COP 483,266 COP        (203,853)

Item 2021 2020

Operating revenue - gain on sales  COP 120,539  COP -   

Operating expenses - loss on sales -   (316,249)

Net gain (loss)         120,539            (316,249)

Operating revenue -gain due to exchange adjustment 509,891 384,799

Operating revenue -loss due to exchange adjustment (147,164) (272,403)

Net gain         362,727              112,396 

Gain (loss)  COP 483,266 COP (203,853)

* Figures provided in USD and COP

The exchange difference reflected in the statement of income, in revenue and expenses, is a result 
of the restatement of assets and liabilities, asset realization of transactions in currencies other 
than the functional currency and the translation at the exchange rates in force.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the details of the exchange difference in income are as follows: 

and balances are translated at the official ex-
change rate regulated by the Central Bank of Co-
lombia and supervised by the Financial Superinten-
dence of Colombia (SFC, for the Spanish original).

Exchange differences - The functional and 
presentation currency of BBVA Colombia's 
financial statements is the Colombian peso, 
known as COP; foreign currency transactions 

Net rights (liabilities) in foreign currency (55) (21)

Exclusions according to the standards of 
DODM-139/05-25-2015 issued by the Central Bank 
of Colombia

330 330

Spot proprietary position USD            1,531 339 

Rights 2021 2020

Spot transactions in USD 29 -   

Foreign currency spot transactions 1 -   

Forex 1 5

  Total rights 31 5 

Obligations

Spot transactions in USD 82 21

Cash transactions in securities 2 -   

Forex 1 5

  Total liabilities 85 26 

The official exchange rates for the 2021 and 2020 periods were:
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Adjusted proprietary position 339 1,163,703 3,432.50 

Profit (loss) due to exchange adjustment 112,396 

Net gain  COP (203,852)

Item 2021 2020

Local currency in Colombian pesos:

Cash COP 2,439,201 COP 2,261,590 

Deposits in the Central Bank 2,455,669 2,656,172

Item Value in USD
Figures in Millions 

of Colombian 
Pesos

Average 
Exchange Rate

Below is the calculation of the gain from the exchange difference in 2020

Item Value in USD
Figures in Millions 

of Colombian 
Pesos

Average 
Exchange Rate

Spot proprietary position in Dec 2021 339 COP  1,163,704 COP 3,432.50

Purchases 43,166 161,785,799 3,747.50

Position before sales 43,506 162,949,502 3,745.49

Sales 41,974 157,337,291 3,748.41

Profit (loss) on sales 120,539

Adjusted proprietary position 1,531 6,095,472 3,981.16

Profit (loss) due to exchange adjustment 362,727

Net gain COP 483,266 

* Figures provided in USD and COP

Spot proprietary position in Dec 2019 514 COP  1,686,983         COP        3,277.14 

Purchases 38,613             142,506,279 3,690.57 

Position before sales 39,128             144,193,262 3,685.13 

Sales 38,789             142,798,366 3,681.38 

Profit (loss) on sales            (316,248)

Item Value in USD
Figures in Millions 

of Colombian 
Pesos

Average 
Exchange Rate

At December 31, 2020, the exchange rate 
increased by 15.98% (COP 548.66 - pesos) 
compared to December 31, 2020.

At year-end 2021, the net gain totaled COP 
483,261. At December 2021, assets displayed 
a substantial 210.407% increase, equivalent 
to USD 1,310,927. Similarly, liabilities increa-
sed by 32.13%, equivalent to USD 84,594.

In turn, the volume of both purchases and sa-
les for 2021 increased by USD 241 million and 
USD 438 million, respectively. The increase in 
the net gain is basically due to the increase in 
assets, as well as rate fluctuations, especially 
in November (COP 4,004.54), as well as at the 
end of the fourth quarter of 2021.

8.  Cash and cash equivalents

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:
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Cash and/or cash equivalents include cash, 
bank deposits, remittances, funds in clea-
rance and money market asset transactions. 
During 2021 and 2020, most foreign currency 
transactions were made through Correspon-
dent Banks Abroad, due to the increase in 
balances denominated in USD. The change is 

the result of the established strategy for the 
FWD curve, due to irregularities in the market, 
which have created opportunities for prices on 
the curve, leading to the establishment of ag-
gressive positions in the FWD curve, in which 
FWD sales and spot purchases are made. This 
produced a substantial increase in the use of 
cash in dollars compared to the previous year.

Item 2021 2020

Deposits in other banks 1,953 1,745

Remittances in transit of negotiated checks 242 101

Subtotal cash and deposits in banks in local currency 4,897,065 4,919,608

Foreign currency

Cash 715 1,031

Foreign correspondents (1) 5,370,936 825,321

Subtotal cash and deposits in banks in foreign 
currency 5,371,651 826,352

Total cash and deposits in banks 10,268,716 5,745,960

Investment funds 24,140 36,313

Money market transactions 736,822 484,215

Total cash and cash equivalents COP 11,029,678 COP 6,266,488 

At December 31, the balance of money market and related operations was broken down as follows:

Public sector entities

Descripction Days Rate 2021 Days Rate 2020

Ordinary interbank funds sold

Financial corporations - - - 4 a 8 días 1.71% 30,006

Banks 4 a 8 días 2.92% 30,010  -  - -  

Total ordinary interbank 
funds sold

30,010 30,006

Asset simultaneous transactions

Central Bank of Colombia 4 a 8 días 0.28% 226,102 4 a 8 días 0.78% 183,132

Insurance and reinsurance 
companies

- 3.05% 71,088 Mayor a 15 días 1.71% 28,967

Counterparty Clearing 
House 4 a 8 días 2.44% 400,783 Mayor a 15 días 1.75% 228,272

Nation 4 a 8 días -0.01% 8,839 4 a 8 días -0.03% 13,838

Total asset simultaneous 
transactions

706,812 454,209

Total money market and related 
transactions COP 736,822 COP 484,215 

The COP 252,607 increase in 2021 compared 
to 2020 of money market transaction balan-
ces is mainly due to transactions through the 
counterparty clearing house.

Legal reserve in Colombia: At December 31, 
2021 and 2020, the legal reserve required 

and maintained in the Central Bank of Co-
lombia amounted to COP 3,451,692 and COP 
3,684,121, to comply with the liquidity require-
ments in deposits and on-demand liabilities, 
respectively. The restriction is determined 
according to the cash reserve standards set 
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International Rating Agency Moody's Fitch Ratings

BBVA Colombia rating Baa2 BBB-

Rating of foreign entities:

Credit Quality

Bank Name  Currency     Internal External  

 S&P  FITCH  Moody´s 

Jp Morgan Chase USD A A- AA- A2

Citibank N.Y. USD A- BBB+ A A3

Wachovia USD A BBB+ A+ A2

Toronto Dominion CAD AA- AA- AA- Aa1

U.B.S. CHF A- A- A+ -

Barclays GBP BBB BBB A Baa2

Bank Of Tokyo JPY A A A- A1

Bbva N.Y. USA USD A+ A A+ Aa3

Bbva Madrid EUR A A BBB+ A2

by the Central Bank of Colombia’s Board of 
Directors and is based on percentages of the 
average deposits held in the Bank by its cus-
tomers.

At December 31, 2021 there are no restric-
tions on cash and cash equivalents to meet 

the liquidity requirements in deposits and fi-
nancial claims.

The quality indicators of the Central Bank of 
Colombia, as the sovereign entity where BB-
VA's funds are located, have the following in-
ternational credit rating.

Bank Of America N.Y. USD A A- AA- A2

Bbva Bancomer México MXN BBB BBB BBB Baa1

China Citic Bank CNY BBB - BBB Baa2

Bbva Madrid SEK A A BBB+ A2

Item 2021 2020

Tradeable investments

At fair value through profit or loss

Treasury securities - TES  COP  1,935,221  COP       2,123,496 

Other securities issued by the National Government 13,013 27,287 

Other domestic issuers 645,991 624,664 

Total investments at fair value through profit or loss       2,594,225       2,775,447 

Credit Quality

Bank Name  Currency     Internal External  

 S&P  FITCH  Moody´s 

*In external, the S&P rating is used

The reduction in the allowance on cash between 2021 and 2020 arises from the efforts made to 
regularize pending items, such as an item for USD 24,000 that was pending at year-end in the 
reconciliation in current differences, the largest amount of which is for EUR 13,877.15.

9.  Financial investment assets 

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized by rating and issuer as follows:
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Item 2021 2020

Treasury securities - TES              171,918              119,382 

Other domestic issuers 74 6 

Total investments at fair value through profit or loss provided in money 
market transactions  171,992          119,388 

Treasury securities - TES              624,123           1,122,614 

Other domestic issuers 26,066 29,327 

Total at fair value through OCI - Debt securities          650,189       1,151,941 

Domestic issuers 358,275 371,271 

Total at fair value through OCI          358,275          371,271 

At fair value through OCI - provided in money market transactions

Treasury securities - TES 770,469 146,761 

Total investments at fair value through OCI provided in money 
market transactions

         770,469          146,761 

Treasury securities - TES 644,465              718,336 

Total investments at fair value through OCI provided as collateral in 
transactions with financial instruments          644,465          718,336 

Treasury securities - TES -   48,062 

Other securities issued by the National Government 40,254           2,063,941 

Other domestic issuers 15,168 19,185 

Total investments at amortized cost            55,422       2,131,188 

Other securities issued by the National Government           2,030,671 -

Item 2021 2020

Total investments at amortized cost through profit or loss provided in 
money market transactions

      2,030,671 -   

Total investments       7,275,708       7,414,332 

Impairment of investments in TIPS (2,721) (5,741)

Total impairment of investments             (2,721)             (5,741)

Total net investments  COP 7,272,987  COP 7,408,591 

•	 Between December 2021 and 2020, there 
was a reduction in the portfolio measured 
at fair value through profit or loss, basica-
lly in “Treasury Securities” (TES) due to 
the sale of tradeable securities for specu-
lative purposes, which due to the nature of 
the business, are carried out as part of the 
Bank's liquidity management activities. In 
turn, government and other domestic is-
suers' securities were sold to a lesser ex-
tent. On the other hand, securities at fair 
value through profit or loss provided in 
money market transactions displayed a 
slight increase, both in Treasury Securities 
and Other Domestic Issuers.

•	 Between December 2021 and 2020, the-
re was a significant reduction in the por-
tfolio measured at fair value through OCI, 
basically in the purchase of Treasury TES 
securities, and to a lesser extent of Other 
Domestic Issuers.  However, in invest-
ments measured at fair value through OCI 
delivered in money market transactions, 
there was a slight increase in Treasury Se-
curities - TES.

•	 In 2021, the portfolio measured at amorti-
zed cost displayed a significant decrease 
in other securities issued by the gover-
nment, unlike the portfolio measured at 
amortized cost through profit or loss de-
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Entity

2021 2020

In Shares In Cash Total Total

Fondo para el Financiamiento del 
sector pecuario "FINAGRO"

COP 1,303 COP 5,213 COP 6,516 COP 1,451 COP 5,804 COP 7,255 

Bolsa de Valores de Colombia -   6,037 6,037 -   2,179 2,179

ACH Colombia S.A. -   4,891 4,891 -   3,157 3,157

Cámara de Compensación de 
Divisas de Colombia S.A.

-                        -              -                        -   120 120

Cámara de Riesgo Central de 
Contraparte de Colombia S.A

-   89 89 -   54 54

Credibanco S.A. -   510 510 -   2,072 2,072

Total COP 1,303 COP 16,740 COP 18,043 COP 1,451 COP 13,386 COP 14,837 

In Shares In Cash

livered in money market transactions, in 

which securities of this type given as colla-

teral increased considerably, represented 

in TDA´s and Solidarity Securities issued 

by the National Government.

•	 On their part, at December 31, 2021, Cor-

porate Bonds in US dollars measured at 

fair value through profit or loss decreased 

significantly by COP 20,244 compared to 

December 2020; at December 31, 2021, 

such investments totaled COP 8,598.

The Group measures equity instruments at 

fair value based on a methodology that es-

timates the companies’ income statement, 

balance sheet and statement of changes in 

equity, in order to estimate the future flow of 

dividends. This flow of dividends is discounted 

at present value, as for a perpetuity, assuming 

an interest in the company for an indefinite 

term, in order to estimate the fair value the-

reof, and the values of the companies’ balance 

sheet and income statement line items were 

forecast using rates projected by the Econo-

mic Studies area. Each line item is estimated 

exclusively for each company, depending on 

its business approach and growth perspecti-

ves.

For the investment held by the Bank in Cre-

dibanco S.A., the valuation is carried out by 

"Precia" (price vendor for valuation) which 

is applicable to the entire Colombian Finan-

cial sector; at the end of December 2021 and 

2020, the price was COP 97.11 and COP 98.32, 

respectively. 

In the case of the equity interest held in Bolsa 

de Valores de Colombia, the price of the share 

published on the last day of the year is consi-

dered. These shares were valued at a market 

price of COP 9,875 and COP 11,880 at the end 

of December 2021 and 2020, respectively.

As for investments in ACH de Colombia S.A 

and Redeban S.A., they are presented herein 

with the valuation of the price vendor Precia, 

due to the change in the valuation method. Ac-

cording to the reports submitted based on the 

Cash Flow method, they reflect that the share 

valuation was COP 136,471.01 for ACH Colom-

bia S.A. and COP 19,179.85 for Redeban S.A.

The valuation of investments held in Crediban-

co S.A., ACH Colombia S.A. and Redeban S.A. 

is recorded in Other Comprehensive Income.

For the years 2021 and 2020, the entities with 
non-controlled interests declared dividends 
as follows:
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Item Domicile Capital
Equity 
Capital

Share 
Percentage %

Carrying 
Value

Solvency 
and market 
risk rating 

Assets Liabilities
Profits 
and/or 
Losses

Investments in non-controlled entities:

Bolsa de 
Valores de 
Colombia S.A.

Bogotá D.C. COP 30,257 COP 2,218 7.33% 51,703 A COP 618,874 COP 20,307  COP 35,699 

Credibanco 
S.A.

Bogotá D.C.        9,031         1,142 12.65% 110,983 A 357,829 153,552 13,845 

Fondo para el 
Financiamiento 
del Sector 
pecuario  
“FINAGRO”

Bogotá D.C. 400,162       36,375 9,09% 65,904 A 13,873,562 12,805,165   43,658 

A.C.H. 
Colombia S.A.

Bogotá D.C.        6,595            707 10.72% 96,480 A 172,286 77,996 70,405 

Redeban S.A. Bogotá D.C.      15,792         1,628 10.31% 30,993 A 1,656,658 1,521,056   16,444 

Cámara 
de Riesgo 
Central de 
Contraparte 
de  Colombia 
S.A.

Bogotá D.C.      51,270         1,365 2.66% 2,212 A 109,822,755 109,723,410  5,729 

Total investments in non-controlled 
entities $ 358,275 

Investments in non-controlled entities:

Bolsa de 
Valores de 
Colombia S.A.

Bogotá D.C. COP 30,257 COP  2,218 7.33% 61,951 A COP  591,689 COP  43,845 COP 63,184

Credibanco 
S.A.

Bogotá D.C. 9,031 1,142 12.65% 112,366 A 335,930 149,391 2,156

Fondo para el 
Financiamiento 
del Sector 
pecuario  
“FINAGRO”

Bogotá D.C. 400,162 36,375 9,09% 112,113 A 12,581,342 11,493,368 86,291

A.C.H. 
Colombia S.A.

Bogotá D.C. 6,595 707 10.72% 50,277 A 122,560 59,133 39,542

Redeban S.A. Bogotá D.C. 15,792 1,628 10.31% 31,173 A 554,328 444,735 5,835

Cámara 
de Riesgo 
Central de 
Contraparte 
de  Colombia 
S.A.

Bogotá D.C. 43,148 1,148 2.66% 2,511 A 78,938,987 78,876,712 5,768

Total investments in non-controlled 
entities $ 370,391

Item Domicile Capital
Equity 
Capital

Share 
Percentage %

Carrying 
Value

Solvency 
and market 
risk rating 

Assets Liabilities
Profits 
and/or 
Losses

Investments in non-controlled interests: These are investments in equity instruments in non-con-
trolled entities, consisting of the following at December 31, 2021 and 2020: 

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020
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Maturity of the securities portfolio 2021

Range  Inv. at Fair Value 
through Profit or Loss 

 Inv. At 
Amortized Cost

 Inv. at Fair Value 
through OCI 

 Overall 
Total 

 Less than 1 year  COP 1,872,134   COP 2,074,878  COP 34,476  COP 3,981,488 

 From 1 to 5 years 424,711 - 1,923,611 2,348,322 

 More than 5 years 469,372 11,215 465,311 945,898 

 Overall Total  COP 2,766,217  COP 2,086,093   COP 2,423,398  COP 7,275,708 

 COP 2,172,962 COP        2,112,004  COP 298,102  COP 4,583,067 

557,295 7,969               1,589,927 COP 2,155,191 

164,578 11,215 499,400  COP 675,194 

 Overall Total  COP 2,894,835  COP  2,131,188  COP  2,387,429  COP 7,413,452 

 Less than 1 year 

 From 1 to 5 years 

 More than 5 years 

Maturity of the securities portfolio 2021

Range  Inv. at Fair Value 
through Profit or Loss 

 Inv. At 
Amortized Cost

 Inv. at Fair Value 
through OCI 

 Overall 
Total 

Series Nominal Value Issue Date Maturity Date Term 2021 2020

TIPS Colombian Pesos 
N-16 B 2032 

 COP             16,604 7/12/2017 7/12/2032 15  COP 16,112  COP 16,736 

TIPS Colombian Pesos 
N-16 MZ 2032

3,180 7/12/2017 7/12/2032 15 3,207 3,207

TIPS Colombian Pesos 
N-16 C 2032

830 7/12/2017 7/12/2032 15 839 839

Subtotal 20,614 20,158 20,782

These investments are not impaired 

The maturity of debt security investments at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows: Investments at amortized cost

These investments are not impaired 

Mortgage securities received in securiti-
zation processes - TIPs

Securities issued by Titulizadora Colombia 
TIPS, derived from Mortgage Portfolio Secu-
ritization processes in Colombian pesos, were 
issued in 10 and 15-year terms.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, allowan-
ces were made on securities (TITIP0B0097/
INSC15061232/INSZ15061232) for a total 
of COP 4,020 and COP 4,022, respectively, 
in accordance with the guidelines establi-
shed by Chapter I-1 of the Basic Accounting 

and Financial Notice (CBCF) (Public Notice 
100/95) of the Financial Superintendence of 
Colombia, according to the instruction of Sec-
tion 2.4 of Chapter XV of the CBCF.

In the years 2020 and 2021, the Bank did not 
participate in securitization processes.

There are currently eight series on the mar-
ket, of which the Bank holds series B, MZ and 
C of the N-6 Colombian Pesos issuance, and 
the N-16 Colombian Pesos issuance for a to-
tal balance at December 31, 2021 and 2020 of 
COP 31,280 and COP 35,920, respectively.

The details and balance of the securities from 
securitization processes (TIPS) are shown in 
the table below:
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TIPS Colombian Pesos 
N-6 B 2027

26,641 23/8/2012 23/8/2027 15 3,952 7,968

TIPS Colombian Pesos 
N-6 MZ 2027

6,104 23/8/2012 23/8/2027 15 6,104 6,104

TIPS Colombian Pesos 
N-6 C 2027

1,066 23/8/2012 23/8/2027 15 1,066 1,066

Subtotal 33,811 11,122 15,138

Total COP 54,425 COP 31,280 COP 35,920

Debt Securities Available for Sale Debt Securities Held to Maturity

S&P Global 
Rating ISSUE

Carrying Value 
Sovereign 

Debt

Carrying Value - 
Other Debt % %

A 282,266 12% AA -                          - 0%

BB+ 2,004,922 9,954 87% BB+ 2,070,925 99%

Unclassified 16,112 1% Unclassified   15,168 1%

TOTAL 2,004,922 308,332 100% TOTAL 2,070,925 15,168 100%

Series Nominal Value Issue Date Maturity Date Term 2021 2020

S&P Global 
Rating ISSUE

Carrying Value 
Sovereign 

Debt

Carrying 
Value - Other 

Debt

A - 370,391 16% AA 19,185 - 0%

AA -              29,327 1% AAA    962,751 - 93%

-                         - 83%         -                       - %

Unclassified - 1,987,711 1% Unclassified - 1,149,252 7%

TOTAL - 2,387,429 100% TOTAL 981,936 1,149,252 100%

ISSUER CDT TDA TES TIPS

Bancolombia S.A. AAA

DTN Gobierno Nacional (TES) BBB

FINAGRO AAA

Titularizadora Colombiana

TITIP0CD0099-142732 CC

Debt Securities Available for Sale Debt Securities Held to Maturity

S&P Global 
Rating ISSUE

Carrying Value 
Sovereign 

Debt

Carrying Value - 
Other Debt % %S&P Global 

Rating ISSUE

Carrying Value 
Sovereign 

Debt

Carrying 
Value - Other 

Debt

At December 31, 2021, the distribution by rating of debt securities of investments at fair value 
through other comprehensive income and investments at amortized cost through profit or loss, 
was as follows:

December 2021

December 2020

At December 31, 2020, there is a restriction corresponding to the lien on Certificates of Deposit – 
CDs for a nominal value of COP 5,700.

Global Rating Agency
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ISSUER CDT TDA TES TIPS

TITIPMZD0098-142733 CC

TITIP0BD0097-142730 BBB+

INSC15061232-229718              BB-

INSZ15061232-229722 BB+

TIPN16B32-229723 BBB

Modalities  Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3 Total

Commercial Loan Portfolio              19,555,524              1,927,923 76,294              21,559,741 

Consumer Loan Portfolio              18,180,156              2,234,527 393,153              20,807,836 

Mortgage portfolio              10,930,802              2,008,671 422,714              13,362,187 

Total Loan Portfolio and Finance 
Lease Transactions (Net) and 
Interest on Loan Portfolio and 
Other Items (Net)

 COP  48,666,482  COP  6,171,121  COP 892,161  COP  55,729,764 

Modalities   Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3 Total

Commercial Loan Portfolio           15,966,268           1,855,023 40,328           17,861,619 

Consumer Loan Portfolio           14,741,457           3,496,785              589,524           18,827,766 

Mortgage portfolio           10,457,348           1,627,986              378,511           12,463,845 

Total Loan Portfolio and Finance 
Lease Transactions (Net) and 
Interest on Loan Portfolio and 
Other Items (Net)

 COP  41,165,073  COP  6,979,794  COP 1,008,363  COP 49,153,230 

10.	 Loan portfolio and finance lease transactions (net) and interest on 
loan portfolio and other items (net)

Loan portfolio financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the consolidated statement of 
financial position in accordance with the classification adopted by the Financial Superintendence 
in the Exclusive Financial Reporting Catalog (CUIF, for the Spanish original). Below is the loan por-
tfolio and finance lease transactions, net including interest and other items at December 31, 2021 
and 2020 by type of currency:

December  31, 2021

The tables below provide details by portfolio 

type and sector of the past due amounts of 

the risks that were not considered to be im-

paired at December 31, 2021, classified ac-

cording to age of the oldest past due date, as 

well as the breakdown of the debt securities 

and the loans and advances considered to be 

impaired, determined on an individual and co-

llective basis.

The Group's portfolio is highly concentrated 

in commercial loans, with an increase of COP 

3,698,122. This category consists of corpora-

te loans and loans to territorial entities, with 

a variation of 20.7% compared to December 

2020. In addition, there are increases in the 

consumer portfolio for COP 1,980,070, a va-

riation of 10.52% and the mortgage portfolio 

for COP 898, a variation of 7.21%, compared 

to December 2020.

The portfolios of BBVA Group show satisfac-

tory recovery: the Mortgage portfolio is re-

versing the downward trend it experienced 

during the course of the pandemic as a result 

of the multiple shutdowns and the difficulties 

experienced a year ago for the disbursement 

of a significant number of transactions.

The largest increase of the Group’s loan por-

tfolios was that of commercial loans, which 

increased by 20.7%, thanks to adequate ma-

nagement by the risk teams and the greater 

resilience of the economy in overcoming the 



150 151

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the next 

12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

Commercial

Enterprise 8,286,535 863,244 512,749 9,662,528 

Institutional 1,545,025 48,887 4,525 1,598,437 

Corporate 4,243,730 207,617 -   4,451,347 

Financial Entities 1,375,076 2,263 2,869 1,380,208 

Territorial Entities 2,420,347 439,541 -   2,859,888 

Representative 473,311 142,673 39,720 655,704 

Small Enterprises 1,280,036 340,807 249,346 1,870,189 

              19,624,060 2,045,032 809,209               22,478,301 

Impairment (68,536) (117,109) (732,915) (918,560)

Net commercial loan portfolio               19,555,524 1,927,923 76,294               21,559,741 

Consumer

Vehicle 1,059,379 206,809 153,543 1,419,731 

Payroll Loan               12,684,761 965,594 386,275               14,036,630 

Hedge 2,709,476 922,430 768,729 4,400,635 

Overdraft 621 478 849 1,948 

Cards 1,732,468 404,309 171,526 2,308,303 

Revolving 199,823 64,995 48,113 312,931 

              18,386,528 2,564,615 1,529,035               22,480,178 

Impairment (206,372) (330,088)               (1,135,882)               (1,672,342)

Net consumer loan portfolio               18,180,156 2,234,527 393,153               20,807,836 

Mortgage

              10,994,086 2,190,167 810,182               13,994,435 

              10,994,086 2,190,167 810,182               13,994,435 

Impairment (63,284) (181,496) (387,468) (632,248)

Net mortgage portfolio               10,930,802 2,008,671 422,714               13,362,187 

Total Loan Portfolio and 
Finance Lease 
Transactions and Interest 
on Loan Portfolio and 
Other Items

 COP 49,004,674             6,799,814             3,148,426           58,952,914 

Impairment              (338,192)              (628,693)           (2,256,265)           (3,223,150)

Total Loan Portfolio and 
Finance Lease Transactions 
(Net) and Interest on Loan 
Portfolio and Other Items 
(Net)

 COP 48,666,482             6,171,121               892,161           55,729,764 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the next 

12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

obstacles of the pandemic, which has helped 

maintain impairment at controllable levels.

Below are the Loan Portfolio and Lease Tran-
sactions by modality, stage and line:

December  31, 2021
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Commercial

Enterprise             6,642,796             1,085,548 489,516 8,217,860 

Institutional             1,342,978 37,087 861 1,380,926 

Corporate             3,451,786 62,020 -   3,513,806 

Financial Entities 984,189 1,550 2,168 987,907 

Territorial Entities             2,074,998 159,364 -   2,234,362 

Representative 677,691 168,546 68,667 914,904 

Small Enterprises 953,906 604,635 277,640 1,836,181 

          16,128,344             2,118,750 838,852 19,085,946 

Impairment               (162,076)               (263,727) (798,524) (1,224,327)
Net commercial loan 
portfolio           15,966,268             1,855,023 40,328 17,861,619 

Consumer

Vehicle 980,636 342,012 132,805 1,455,453 

Payroll Loan           10,059,787             1,740,123 288,409 12,088,319 

Hedge             2,228,419             1,440,208 706,476 4,375,103 

Overdraft 517 494 1,027 2,038 

Cards             1,439,173 420,279 157,321 2,016,773 

Revolving 221,492 94,748 48,986 365,226 

          14,930,024             4,037,864 1,335,024 20,302,912 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

Impairment               (188,567)               (541,079) (745,500) (1,475,146)
Net consumer loan 
portfolio           14,741,457             3,496,785 589,524 18,827,766 

Mortgage

          10,521,277             1,797,575 669,750 12,988,602 

Impairment (63,929)               (169,589) (291,239) (524,757)

Net mortgage portfolio           10,457,348             1,627,986 378,511 12,463,845 

Total Loan Portfolio and 
Finance Lease 
Transactions and 
Interest on Loan 
Portfolio and Other Items

     COP 41,579,645        7,954,189           2,843,626            52,377,460 

Impairment         (414,572)         (974,395)         (1,835,263)            (3,224,230)

Total Loan Portfolio and 
Finance Lease 
Transactions (Net) and 
Interest on Loan 
Portfolio and Other Items 
(Net)

     COP 41,165,073        6,979,794           1,008,363            49,153,230 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

December  31, 2020

Below is the reconciliation of the allowance of the loan portfolio and lease transactions by modality
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Commercial

Opening balance at January 
1, 2021 162,076 263,727 798,524 1,224,327

Transfers to credit losses 
expected in the next 12 
months

(157,586) 18,049 14,275 (125,262)

Transfers to credit losses 
expected during the lifetime 
of the asset (not impaired)

3,403 (186,046) 99,122 (83,521)

Transfers to credit losses 
expected during the lifetime 
of the asset (impaired)

15 276 (30,995) (30,704)

Impairment 60,628 32,994 64,924 158,546

Loans written off - (11,891) (212,935) (224,826)

Net reconciliation of the 
commercial loan portfolio 
allowance

68,536 117,109 732,915 918,560

Consumer

Opening balance at January 
1, 2021 188,567 541,079 745,500 1,475,146

Transfers to credit losses 
expected in the next 12 
months

(158,770) 73,915 179,811 94,956

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment Transfers to credit losses 

expected during the 
lifetime of the asset (not 
impaired)

2,923 (254,439) 335,841 84,325

Transfers to credit losses 
expected during the 
lifetime of the asset 
(impaired)

481 1,634 63,712 65,827

Impairment 175,257 20,856 79,338 275,451

Loans written off (2,086) (52,957) (268,320) (323,363)

Net reconciliation of the 
consumer loan portfolio 
allowance 

206,372 330,088 1,135,882 1,672,342

Mortgage

Opening balance at January 
1, 2021 63,929 169,589 291,239 524,757

Transfers to credit losses 
expected in the next 12 
months

(14,807) 68,128 33,744 87,065

Transfers to credit losses 
expected during the 
lifetime of the asset (not 
impaired)

975 (60,483) 97,755 38,247

Transfers to credit losses 
expected during the 
lifetime of the asset 
(impaired)

164 1,444 (14,581) (12,973)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

December  31, 2021
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Impairment 13,023 2,828 13,349 29,200

Loans written off - (10) (34,038) (34,048)

Net reconciliation of the 
mortgage portfolio allowance 63,284 181,496 387,468 632,248

Amount without deducting from portfolio originated with credit 
impairment upon initial recognition -   

Balance at December 31, 
2021 COP  3,223,150 

Commercial

Opening balance at  January 1, 2020 293,862 210,350 674,424 1,178,636

Transfers to credit losses expected 
in the next 12 months (138,519) 132,232 35,073 28,786

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

Transfers to credit losses expected 
during the lifetime of the asset (not 
impaired)

525 (86,785) 134,940 48,680

Transfers to credit losses expected 
during the lifetime of the asset 
(impaired)

15 833 49,660 50,508

Impairment 6,193 7,097 1,714 15,004

Loans written off - - (97,287) (97,287)

Net reconciliation of the commercial 
loan portfolio allowance 162,076 263,727 798,524 1,224,327

Consumer

Opening balance at  January 1, 2020 96,683 241,410 810,621 1,148,714

Transfers to credit losses expected 
in the next 12 months (124,434) 286,775 213,694 376,035

Transfers to credit losses expected 
during the lifetime of the asset (not 
impaired)

1,698 (107,141) 93,400 (12,043)

Transfers to credit losses expected 
during the lifetime of the asset 
(impaired)

342 852 (117,286) (116,092)

Impairment 217,256 141,823 120,391 479,470

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

December  31, 2020
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Loans written off (2,978) (22,640) (375,320) (400,938)

Net reconciliation of the consumer 
loan portfolio allowance 188,567 541,079 745,500 1,475,146

Mortgage

Opening balance at  January 1, 2020 27,500 60,427 231,180 319,107

Transfers to credit losses expected 
in the next 12 months (9,095) 110,260 14,339 115,504

Transfers to credit losses expected 
during the lifetime of the asset (not 
impaired)

1,695 (33,668) 31,970 (3)

Transfers to credit losses expected 
during the lifetime of the asset 
(impaired)

231 1,740 (5,417) (3,446)

Impairment 43,598 30,833 32,272 106,703

Loans written off - (3) (13,105) (13,108)

Net reconciliation of the mortgage 
portfolio allowance 63,929 169,589 291,239 524,757

Amount without deducting from portfolio originated with credit impairment upon 
initial recognition -   

Balance at December 31, 2020 COP  3,224,230 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalExpected credit 
losses in the 

next 12 months

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset

Expected credit 
losses over the 
lifetime of the 

asset with 
impairment

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Modality
Risk not 

past 
due

Risk past 
due < 30 

days

Risk not 
past due

Risk past 
due < 30 

days 

Risk 
past-due 
30 -90 

days

Risk not 
past due

Risk past 
due < 30 

days

Risk 
past-due 
30 -90 

days

Risk past-
due> 90 

days 

Loan portfolio by type of customer

Government 
agencies

COP 2,819  COP              50 COP  4,733 COP                  4 COP   982 COP                -   COP                    - COP                   -   COP -   

Credit 
institutions

1,907 -              - -              - -              - -              - 

Other financial 
institutions 203                     1    9 22   17 151     516 87   101 

Non-financial 
corporations

43,341 6,079 156,774  13,643       2,672 162,963 40,947 12,625 346,773 

Individuals 263,617            20,175 303,454 78,022   68,361 448,691 205,748 138,245 899,418 

Total loan 
portfolio by 
segment

COP 311,887 COP  26,305 COP  464,970 COP  91,691 COP  72,032 COP  611,805 $   247,211 COP  150,957 COP 1,246,292 

Loan portfolio by products
Loan portfolio by 
products COP                -  COP                 6 COP  30,655 COP  5,703 COP  2,208 COP  28,953 COP   9,711 COP   5,744 COP  30,345 

Demand accounts 
and current 
accounts

244,865 20,546                 -                  -                 - 2,534                    -   -                - 

Credit card debts 47,728 2,297                -                     -                  - 36,195   6,488  8,345 88,310 

Other credits 19,280              3,470 434,313 85,988 69,826 544,123 231,012 136,868 1,127,637 

Total loan 
portfolio by 
product

COP  311,873 COP  26,319 COP  464,968 COP  91,691 COP  72,034 COP  611,805 COP  247,211 COP 150,957 COP 1,246,292 

The following is a breakdown of loan portfolio impairment by type of client:

December 31, 2021
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Loan portfolio by type of customer

Government 
agencies COP 8,083 COP 57 COP 8,019 COP 1,228 COP -   COP -   COP -   COP -   COP 1 

Credit institutions       3,295   -    -  -      -   -       -  -    - 

Other financial 
institutions  1,175   -   20    -   10  92       -  -    - 

Non-financial 
corporations

153,305       9,520 289,187 32,543 6,624 106,902   37,308 37,045   321,355 

Individuals  219,480      19,657 473,118 81,531        82,115 374,040 99,633   98,286 760,601 

Total loan portfolio 
by segment COP 385,338 COP 29,234 COP 770,344 COP 115,302 COP 88,749 COP 481,034 COP 136,941 COP  135,331  COP  1,081,957 

Loan portfolio by products

Commercial loan 
portfolio COP 36,492 COP 3,543 COP 66,763 COP 2,794 COP 4,777 COP 25,631 COP 6,393 COP 3,636 COP 37,284 

Demand accounts 
and current 
accounts

  -    69   -    -      -    -    63   32 4,381 

Credit card debts   28,306    998 26,347 2,292       12,550    30,367 3,756        7,169    57,325 

Other credits 321,186   23,978 677,995  109,623       71,253 425,949 128,845    86,414 1,018,018 

Total loan portfolio 
by product COP 385,984 COP  28,588 COP  771,105 COP  114,709 COP   88,580 COP   481,947 COP  139,057 COP   97,252 COP   1,117,008 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Modality
Risk not 

past 
due

Risk past 
due < 30 

days

Risk not 
past due

Risk past 
due < 30 

days 

Risk 
past-due 
30 -90 

days

Risk not 
past due

Risk past 
due < 30 

days

Risk 
past-due 
30 -90 

days

Risk past-
due> 90 

days 

Modality Total Gross Risk Total 
Allowance

Net Carrying Value %

Government agencies  COP 4,690,540 COP 8,588 COP 4,681,952 0%

Credit institutions 896,219      1,907       894,312 0%

Other financial institutions 164,274        1,107           163,167 1%

Non-financial corporations 16,061,406 785,817 15,275,589 

Agriculture, forestry and fishing 482,167    29,344        452,823 6%

Extractive industries 193,071    54,410            138,661 28%

Manufacturing industry 4,571,158 121,220   4,449,938 3%

Supply of electricity, gas, steam and air 
conditioning 1,744,610        1,857     1,742,753 0%

Water supply 31,062       2,069             28,993 7%

Wholesale and retail trade 3,669,898 110,538  3,559,360 3%

Transport and storage 861,097    59,471      801,626 7%

Catering 163,081   33,018          130,063 20%

Information and communications 175,979         8,343           167,636 5%

Professional, scientific and technical activities 257,750       17,126           240,624 7%

December 31, 2020 In compliance with the regulatory criteria and conditions, risks that are not past due are listed in 
stages 2 and 3, based on the financial instrument and restructuring policy, in the loan portfolio im-
pairment item.

The following is a breakdown of the loans by sector:

December 31, 2021
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Administrative activities and back-office 346,642     18,500            328,142 5%

Education 338,862         3,730            335,132 1%

Health activities and social work activities 548,179 17,115            531,064 3%

Artistic, recreational and entertainment 
activities 143,282     19,672         123,610 14%

Other services 259,238          5,367           253,871 2%

Construction 991,445 189,991         801,454 19%

Real estate activities 289,286   26,928           262,358 9%

Financial and insurance-related activities 994,599      67,118         927,481 7%

Individuals 37,140,475 2,425,731 34,714,744 7%

Total loan portfolio  COP 58,952,914 COP      3,223,150  COP             55,729,764 5%

Government agencies  COP 4,020,124  COP 17,389  COP 4,002,735 0%

Credit institutions 272,376 4,963 267,412 2%

Other financial institutions 786,464 1,297 785,167 0%

Non-financial corporations            13,308,780          1,016,305              12,292,475 

Agriculture, forestry and fishing 451,832 38,476 413,356 9%

Extractive industries 192,758 38,050 154,708 20%

Modality Total Gross Risk Total 
Allowance

Net Carrying Value %

Modality Total Gross Risk Total 
Allowance

Net Carrying Value %

Manufacturing industry               3,356,062              143,788 3,212,274 4%

Supply of electricity, gas, steam and air 
conditioning               1,070,806 3,114 1,067,692 0%

Water supply 35,249 3,675 31,574 10%

Wholesale and retail trade               3,058,306              173,919 2,884,387 6%

Transport and storage 932,941 82,954 849,987 9%

Catering 213,670 39,450 174,220 18%

Information and communications 156,874 13,363 143,511 9%

Professional, scientific and technical activities 241,170 25,272 215,898 10%

Administrative activities and back-office 300,273 43,115 257,158 14%

Education 367,426 6,777 360,649 2%

Health activities and social work activities 481,999 23,894 458,105 5%

Artistic, recreational and 
entertainment activities 168,356 23,227 145,129 14%

Other services 84,741 12,289 72,452 15%

Public service and compulsory social 
security 95,152 784 94,368 1%

Construction               1,021,987              210,005 811,982 21%

Real estate activities 259,872 29,589 230,283 11%

Financial and insurance-related activities 819,306              104,564 714,742 13%

Individuals            33,989,716          2,184,276              31,805,440 6%

Total loan portfolio COP  52,377,460 COP  3,224,230 COP  49,153,230 6%

Modality Total Gross Risk Total 
Allowance

Net Carrying Value %

December 31, 2020
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Month
Total Debt by Portfolio Type

Consumer Mortgage Commercial Total Debt

January  COP 185  COP - COP              2,335  COP 2,520 

February              522,282 1,284              130,131 653,697 

March 107 392 8,701 9,200 

April 2 152 14,839 14,993 

May 301 1,691 1,125 3,117 

June 1,410 2,922 26,518 30,850 

July              315,043              15,085 53,830 383,958 

August 170 288 -   458 

October 406 787 1,350 2,543 

December 300 536 17,762 18,598 

Total COP 840,206 COP 23,137 COP 256,591 COP 1,119,934

% of portfolio share sold 75.00% 2.00% 23.00% 100.00%

January 210 265               272 747 

February 98 298 -   396 

March          358,580 - 1,805 360,385 

April -                       -   -                               -   

May -                       -                 580 580 

June 45 198 -   243 

July 236 56 -   292 

August 45 215 -   260 

September 312 191            3,937 4,440 

October 5 210            1,045 1,260 

November 708 892          20,357 21,957 

December 230              1,195 88 1,513 

Total  COP  360,469 COP  3,520  COP  28,084  COP  392,073 

% of portfolio share sold 91.94% 0.90% 7.16% 100.00%

Amount includes principal, interest and accounts receivable balances.

Month
Total Debt by Portfolio Type

Consumer Mortgage Commercial Total Debt

Portfolio sales

Year 2021
During 2021, the Bank conducted portfolio 
sale transactions for a total of COP 1,119,934, 
where 97% of said assets had been writ-
ten-off. 

The breakdown of the portfolio transferred 
by modality was: Mortgage, 2%; Commercial, 
23%; and Consumer, 75%; these transactions 
were conducted in the months listed below:

(*) Amount includes principal, interest and accounts receivable balances.

Year 2020
During 2020, the Bank conducted portfolio 
sale transactions for a total of COP 392,072, 
where 93% of said assets had been writ-
ten-off. 

The breakdown of the portfolio transferred by 
modality was represented as follows: Mortga-
ge, 0.90%; Commercial, 7.16%; and Consumer, 
91.94%; these transactions were conducted in 
the months listed in the attached table:
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Term of the lease

The term of the lease is defined as the 
non-cancellable period of a lease, where the 
Lessee has the option to use an underlying as-
set together with: periods covered by the op-
tion to extend the lease or periods covered by 
the option to terminate the lease, if the lessee 
is reasonably certain of exercising that option, 
respectively.

The Entity shall take into account all relevant 
facts and circumstances that create an eco-
nomic incentive for the lessee to exercise the 
option or not.

If only the lessor has the right to terminate the 
lease, the non-cancellable period of the lease 
includes the period covered up to the option 
to terminate the lease.

The lessee shall review the term of the lease 
if there is a significant change or event in the 
circumstances under its control.

Discount rate

The interest rate implicit in a lease is defined 
as the rate at which the present value of (a) 

Item 2021 2020

Right-of-use Fixed Assets

Buildings (Premises and ATMs)             187,909             195,396 

Accumulated depreciation             (78,785)              (58,953)

Total right-of-use fixed assets  COP  109,124  COP  136,443 

The Group chose to apply the modified retros-
pective method, which consists of recogni-
zing lease liabilities for an amount equivalent 
to the present value of the committed future 
payments. This determination is mainly de-
rived from the standards that contain the 
necessary guidelines for the definition of a 
series of criteria that enable the negotiation, 
classification of the contract, and estimation 
of the IFRS 16 parameters.

These criteria are defined by the IFRS 16 Go-
vernance Bodies, which are responsible for 
providing the Lease Management areas with 
the global criteria defined in accordance with 
the Group's needs.

The following criteria are applied to identify 
the leases that are in line with the standard:

The keys to determining whether a contract 
contains a lease are:

•	 The asset subject to the lease must be 
identified either implicitly or explicitly; and 

•	 The lessee has the right to obtain all eco-
nomic benefits from the right to use that 
identified asset; and the right to direct the 
use of that identified asset. 

At this point, it is important to take the fo-
llowing concepts into account:

11. Right-of-use fixed assets

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:

the lease payments and (b) the unguaranteed 
residual value equals the sum of (i) the fair 
value of the underlying asset and (ii) any initial 
direct costs of the lessor (IFRS 16 Appendix A).

Lease payments are discounted using (IFRS 
16.26):

•	 The interest rate implicit in the lease; or

•	 If the interest rate implicit in the lease can-
not be easily determined, the lessee shall 
use the incremental interest rate on the 
lessee's debt.

The incremental interest rate on the lessee's 
debt is defined as the interest rate that the 
lessee would have to pay to borrow, for a si-
milar term and with a similar guarantee, the 
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar 
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar eco-
nomic environment. (IFRS 16 Appendix A).

If a lease contract involves a payment made 
in a currency other than that of the lessee, the 
incremental interest rate must be determined 
on the basis of a similar loan taken in the fo-
reign currency.
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The Group has decided to apply the fund 
transfer price (FTP) as a discount rate.

Once a lease is identified under IFRS 16, the 
lessee shall recognize in its assets the right to 
use the asset and in its liabilities the obliga-
tion to make the future lease payments com-
mitted. 

Item 2021 Movement in 
2021 2020

Right-of-use premises             129,592              (16,958)             146,550 

Right-of-use ATMs               58,317 9,471               48,846 

Depreciation right-of-use premises              (70,725)              (20,695)              (50,030)

Depreciation right-of-use premises terminated leases 7,929 6,654 1,275 

Depreciation right-of-use ATMs              (16,057) (5,808)              (10,249)

Depreciation right-of-use ATMs terminated leases 68 17 51 

Total  COP 109,124   COP (27,319)   COP 136,443 

Item 2021 Movement in 
2021 2020

Lease liabilities premises               69,933              (29,954)               99,887 

Lease liabilities ATMs               45,863 4,714               41,149 

Disassembly provision 8,607 195 8,412 

Total  COP  124,403  COP (25,045)  COP 149,448 

Item 2021 2020

Interest on lease liabilities  COP 8,320 COP 11,908 

Real estate rental expenses 2,294 1,964 

Depreciation right-of-use ATMs               20,695 25,393 

Depreciation right-of-use premises 5,808 5,389 

At year-end in 2021, the balance of right-of-
use was COP 109,124, and lease liabilities to-
taled COP 124,403, which includes the disas-
sembly provision.

At December 31, 2021, the following are the 
details of the right-of-use fixed assets.

There are differences between the value of the 
accumulated depreciation against the expen-
se for this item. This is due to leases that were 
terminated during the year, an ATM lease and 

thirteen leases for commercial properties du-
ring 2021.

Maturity analysis - non-discounted contrac-
tual cash flows at December 31:

Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of income at December 31:

Assets

Liabilities
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Lease Liabilities for Premises 2021 2020

No more than one year  COP 23,416  COP 27,115 

More than one year and less than three years 39,642 53,368 

More than three years and less than five years 12,917 27,661 

More than five years 2,643 6,866 

TOTAL UNDISCOUNTED LEASE LIABILITIES COP 78,618 COP 115,010 

Lease liabilities for ATMs 2021 2020

No more than one year COP             8,396 COP             7,428 

More than one year and less than three years               16,261               13,788 

More than three years and less than five years               14,860               12,596 

More than five years               22,570               22,236 

TOTAL UNDISCOUNTED LEASE LIABILITIES COP          62,087 COP         56,048 

Range 2021 2020

One year or less COP 4,549 COP  5,614 

From one to five years 64,667 72,036 

More than five years 15,423 32,284 

Total  COP   84,639  COP  109,934 

The Group as a lessee 

Lease commitments: The Group, for its functioning and according to its expansion process, leases 
offices at the national level by entering into agreements with the terms listed in the table below: 

The lease rates are adjusted as agreed in the 
lease contract and/or as legally required. The 
expense recognized for the years ended De-

In this sense, it is the Bank's policy to select 
customers that will allow the efficient perfor-
mance of the transaction, for which it chooses 
sound portfolios.  

Productive portfolio securitization: During 
2021, the Bank did not participate in securiti-
zation processes.

cember 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 was 
COP 84,639 and COP 109,934, respectively.

12. Securitization and buyback of securitized portfolio

In the processes of securitization, the Bank 
aims to eliminate the market risk of loans in 
Colombian pesos, turn the current portfolio 
into liquid assets by favorably improving the 
LRI ratio, reduce the regulatory capital con-
sumption of the balance sheet, optimize the 
solvency ratio and create opportunities for 
growth in the placement of a new portfolio at 
better rates on the market.
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2021 2020

Issuance Managed portfolio – 
total principal

Balances in 
BBVA TIPS 
securities

Managed portfolio 
– total principal

Balances in BBVA 
TIPS securities

TIPS E-9 COP -  COP - COP 720  COP -  

TIPS E-10 -                  -     1.035 -     

TIPS E-11 -                  -     638 -     

TIPS E-12 -                  -     199 -     

TIPS N-6 7.681 11.122 10.753 15.138

TIPS N-16 59.764 20.158              79.315               20.781     

Total COP 67.445  COP 31.280 COP 92.660 COP 35.919 

Item Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

No. of credits - 6 3 5 3 1 - - 1 3 104 4 130

Total balance of 
principal

COP  -   COP  586 COP   67 COP 304 COP  45 COP 103 COP  -   COP -   COP  16 COP  128    COP  1,901 COP 233 3,383

Total balance 
of debt

COP   -   COP 616 COP 72 COP 373 COP  49 COP 103 COP -   COP  -   COP  16 COP  129    COP 3,026 COP 235 4,619

     - 2 2        -        - 1 1 3 1 2 7 1 20

 COP    -   COP  62 COP   280 COP     -   COP     -   COP   2 COP   38 COP   203 COP   50 COP   420 COP   606 COP   18 1,679

COP    -   $ 63 $ 281 COP     -   COP     -   COP   2 COP   38 COP   228 COP   51 COP   424 COP   611 COP   18 1,716

Item Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

No. of credits

Total balance of 
principal

Total balance 
of debt

The balances of the current issuances and portfolio in which the Bank has participated at Decem-
ber 31 are as follows:

Portfolio buyback: In 2021, 130 credits were 
bought back from Titularizadora Colombiana 
S.A. of Issuances TIPS E9 PESOS, TIPS E10 
PESOS, TIPS E11 PESOS, E12 PESOS, N6 PE-
SOS and N16 PESOS, for a total of COP 3,383, 

Portfolio buyback: In 2020, 20 credits were bought back from Titularizadora Colombiana S.A. 
of Issuances TIPS E9 PESOS, TIPS E10 PESOS, TIPS E11 PESOS, E12 PESOS, N6 PESOS and N16 
PESOS, for a total of COP 1,716, which included buybacks due to the request to decrease rates, 
refurbishment and write-offs as follows:

History of productive portfolio 
securitization

TIPS E-9 Pesos – In December 2008, TIPS 
E-9 were issued for a total of COP 401,000, of 
which BBVA had a share of COP 140,000. The 
Class A TIPS for COP 369,000, Class B TIPS 
for COP 30,000 and Class MZ TIPS for COP 
2,000 have ratings of AAA, AA- and BBB, res-
pectively, and their maturity is between 2010 
and 2023.

In March 2016, the securities of the TIPS E-9 
issuance were paid.

TIPS E-10 Pesos – In March 2009, TIPS E-10 
were issued for a total of COP 498,593, of 
which BBVA had a share of COP 74,233. The 
Class A TIPS for COP 458,000, Class B TIPS 

for COP 37,000 and Class MZ TIPS for COP 
10,000 issued have ratings of AAA, AA-, and 
BBB, respectively, and their maturity is be-
tween 2019 and 2024.

In May 2015, the securities of the TIPS E-10 is-
suance were paid.

TIPS E-11 Pesos – In May 2009, TIPS E-11 
were issued for a total of COP 431,857, of 
which BBVA had a share of COP 48,650. The 
TIPS E-11 in Class A for COP 399,000, Class B 
for COP 32,000 and Class MZ for COP 11,000 
issued have ratings of AAA, AA, and BBB-, res-
pectively, and their maturity is between 2019 
and 2024.

In November 2014, the securities of the TIPS 
E-11 issuance were paid.

which include buybacks due to the request to 
decrease rates, refurbishment and write-offs, 
as well as the settlement of the E9, E10, E11 
and E12 issues, with payment in kind, of a total 
of 103 obligations:
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Universality Value

Tips Pesos E9  COP              727 

Tips Pesos E10               503 

Tips Pesos E11               310 

Tips Pesos E12               435 

Total  COP           1,975 

TIPS N-6 Pesos - In August 2012, portfolio re-
presentative TIPS N6 Pesos Non-LIH were is-
sued; they were originated by BBVA Colombia 
S.A. for a total of COP 213,130 represented in 
2,847 credits and Davivienda S.A. amounting 
to COP 155,867, represented in 1,661 credits. 

On August 23, 2012, Non-LIH TIPS N6 Pesos 
were issued, for a total of COP 381,882 distri-

buted in the following classes and amounts: 
Series A2022, for COP 322,872; series B2027 
for COP 46,125; series MZ for COP 11,040; 
and Series C for COP 1,845.

The first lot: Total TIPS purchased by the mar-
ket (87.5%) corresponded to Series A2022 
for COP 322,872; of this first lot, the TIPS sold 
according to share percentage of the BBVA 
portfolio were Series A2022 for COP 186,489.

The second lot: TIPS purchased by the origi-
nators (12.5%) from their portfolio + excess 
NPV cash flow (MZ-C) distributed as follows: 
B2027 for COP 46,125, MZ 2027 for COP 
11,040; and C2027 for COP 1,845.

Of the second lot: TIPS purchased by BBVA 
according to the share percentage of its por-
tfolio (12.5%) + excess NPV cash flow distri-
buted as follows: TIPS B2027 for COP 26,641; 
TIPS MZ 2027 for COP 6,104; and C2027 for 
COP 1,066, for a total of COP 33,811.

Class B, MZ and C TIPS issued are rated 
BBB+, CCC and CC, respectively.

TIPS N-16 Pesos - In November 2017, TIPS 
N16 Pesos was issued, representing social-in-
terest and non-social interest mortgage 
loans originated by BBVA Colombia S.A. for 
a total of COP 167,252, by Bancolombia for 
COP 105,599 and by Davivienda S.A. for COP 
106,359.

On December 6, LIH and Non-LIH TIPS N16 
Pesos were issued, for a total of COP 385,473 
distributed in the following classes and 

amounts: Series A2027 for COP 339,124, Se-
ries B2032 for COP 37,680, Series MZ for COP 
6,785 and Series C for COP 1,884.

The first lot: Total TIPS purchased by the 
market (90%) corresponded to Series A2027 
for COP 339,124; of this first lot, the TIPS 
sold according to the share percentage of the 
BBVA portfolio were Series A2027 for COP 
149,443.

The second lot: TIPS purchased by the origi-
nators (12.5%) from their portfolio + excess 
NPV cash flow (MZ-C) distributed as follows: 
B2027 for COP 46,125, MZ 2027 for COP 
11,040; and C2027 for COP 1,845.

Of the second lot: TIPS purchased by BBVA 
according to the share percentage of its por-
tfolio (12.5%) + excess NPV cash flow distri-
buted as follows: TIPS B2027 for COP 16,604, 
TIPS MZ 2032 for COP 3,180 and C2032 for 
COP 830, for a total of COP 20,614.

The Class B, MZ and C TIPS issued are rated 
BBB, BB+ and BB, respectively.

TIPS E-12 Pesos – In August 2009, TIPS E-12 
were issued  for a total of COP 376,820, of which 
BBVA had a share of COP 78,745. The TIPS E-12 
in Class A for COP 349,000, Class B for COP 
28,000 and MZ for COP 9,000 issued have ra-
tings of AAA, AA, and BBB-, respectively, and 
their maturity is between 2019 and 2024.

In June 2015, the securities of the TIPS E-12 
issue were paid.

As of November 2021, prior to settlement, the 
income from residual rights of the E9, E10, E11 
and E12 issuances was:



176 177

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Fair Value Measurement 

According to IFRS 13, fair value is the price 
that would be received when selling an asset 
or paid when transferring a liability in an or-
derly transaction between participants of the 
main market on the measurement date, or in 
the absence thereof, the most advantageous 
market to which the entity has access at the 
time.

Financial instruments are initially recogni-
zed at fair value, which is equivalent to the 
transaction price, unless there is evidence 
otherwise on an active market; after that, and 
depending on the nature of the financial ins-
trument, it can continue to be recorded at fair 
value through adjustments in the income sta-
tements or in equity or at amortized cost.

Whenever applicable, the Company measu-
res the fair value of an instrument by using a 
listed price on an active market for said ins-
trument. A market is considered to be active 
if listed prices can be obtained easily and re-
gularly either from a stock market, operator, 
broker, industry group and/or pricing servi-

ce, and these prices represent actual market 
transactions occurring regularly between in-
dependent parties in arm's length conditions.

The Group uses widely recognized valuation 
models to determine the fair value of com-
mon, simpler financial instruments, such as 
currency swap and interest rates that only 
use observable market data and require few 
judgments and calculations by management. 

Accordingly, the Group uses market prices 
and methodologies as a basis to establish the 
fair values of its financial instruments, which 
are provided by the valuation price vendor 
"Precia S.A.", selected by the Group and au-
thorized by the Financial Superintendence of 
Colombia to do so.

When there is no listed price on an active mar-
ket, the Group uses valuation techniques that 
maximize the use of observable input and 
minimize the use of non-observable input. 
The objective of the valuation techniques is 
to reach a determination regarding fair value 
that will reflect the price of the financial ins-
trument on the reporting date, that would 

have been determined by market participants 
separately.

In the case of financial instruments that are 
traded infrequently, fair value is less objecti-
ve and requires several degrees of judgment 
depending on liquidity, concentration, uncer-
tainty of market factors, valuation assump-
tions and other risks that affect the specific 
instruments, which requires additional work 
during the valuation process.

The Group discloses transfers between the 
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
period during which the change occurred. At 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no 
transfers of financial instruments measured 
at fair value between the levels of hierarchy.

Valuation techniques 

The Group shall use the valuation techniques 
that are appropriate for the circumstances 
and on which there is information available 
to determine the fair value of financial instru-
ments, always maximizing the use of observa-
ble input and minimizing the use of non-ob-
servable input.

Accordingly, the Group shall use, as the case 
may be, the following approaches according 
to IFRS 13 to measure the fair value of finan-
cial instruments:

Market approach - Listed prices, and in the 
absence thereof, other relevant information 
generated by market transactions involving 
identical or comparable financial instruments, 
will be used to determine the fair value of fi-
nancial instruments, when applicable.

Input approach - Present value techniques 
and options valuation models (Black & Scho-
les model) will be used to measure the fair va-
lue of financial instruments, as the case may 
be. The observable input will be maximized 
always using discount curves, volatilities and 
other market variables that are observable 
and reflect the assumptions that the market 
participants would use for pricing the finan-
cial instrument.

Valuation of financial Instruments – The 
Group measures fair values using the following 
hierarchy, according to the importance of the 
input variables used for measurement: 

•	 Level 1: The market price listed (unadjus-
ted) on an active market for an identical 
instrument.

13.	 FAIR VALUE 
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•	 Level 2: Valuation techniques based on 
observable factors, whether directly (such 
as prices) or indirectly (such as price de-
rivatives). This category includes instru-
ments valued using: market prices listed 
on active markets for similar instruments; 
listed prices for similar instruments on 
markets that are not considered very ac-
tive; or other valuation techniques where 
all significant input is directly or indirectly 
observable based on market data.

•	 Level 3: Fixed income: Input for assets or liabi-
lities that is not based on observable market 
data. This category includes all the instru-
ments where the valuation technique inclu-
des factors that are not based on observable 
data and the non-observable factors can have 
a significant effect on the valuation of the ins-
trument. This category includes instruments 
that are valued based on prices listed for si-
milar instruments where significant non-ob-
servable assumptions or adjustments are 
required to reflect the differences between 
instruments. If a fair value measurement uses 
observable market data that require signifi-
cant adjustments based on non-observable 
data, the measurement is classified as level 3.

•	 Equities that belong to other references 
and that are assets with low liquidity be-

cause they are low marketability shares 
and are not valued by an Official Price Ven-
dor are conditioned by the internal valua-
tion assumptions and thus, are classified 
at levels 2 and 3.

Determining what falls under the term "obser-
vable" requires significant use of judgment by 
the Group. Therefore, observable data are un-
derstood as the market data that can be easily 
obtained, are distributed or updated on a regu-
lar basis, are reliable and verifiable, are not priva-
te (exclusive) and are provided by independent 
sources that play an active role on the relevant 
market.

The assumptions and factors used in valuation 
techniques include risk-free interest rates, refe-
rence interest rates, credit spreads and other 
premiums used to determine discount rates, 
foreign exchange rates and expected price vo-
latilities. 

The availability of observable market prices 
and factors reduce the need for judgments and 
calculations by management, along with the 
uncertainty associated with determining fair 
values. The availability of observable market pri-
ces and input varies depending on the products 
and markets and is prone to changes based on 

specific events and general conditions on finan-
cial markets.

The fair value of these products also corres-
ponds to product compliance assumptions; in 
this case, the portfolio has implicit prepayment 
assumptions, while demand and term resour-
ces have assumptions regarding their maturity. 
Additionally, when discounted by a market cur-
ve, they include effects such as credit spread 
that applies to portfolio and deposits.

Valuation sensitivity at hierarchy level 
3 - Investments at fair value through OCI 
Equity instruments

Investments classified at Level 3 have signifi-
cant non-observable input. Level 3 instruments 

mainly include investments in equity instru-
ments, which are not traded on the stock mar-
ket. Since observable prices are not available for 
these securities, the Group has used valuation 
techniques, such as discounted cash flow from 
dividends, to obtain the fair value thereof. The 
Group has equity investments in various enti-
ties holding less than a 20% share of the entity's 
equity. These investments are acquired becau-
se they are mandatory for the development of 
the operations, such as BVC (Bolsa de Valores 
de Colombia), the Counterparty Clearing Hou-
se, Cámara de Compensación de Divisas, ACH, 
Redeban and Finagro, among others. 

The discounted flow of dividends methodolo-
gy shall be applied on the following financial 
assets classified at hierarchy level 3:

BBVA valuation Long-term rate NPV dividends

Average Upper 
limit

Finagro COP  67,612,081   COP 65,904,027   COP 64,278,998 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% COP 211,687,683    COP 210,582,600 COP 209,487,135

Counterparty 
Clearing 
House 

2,720,536 2,638,420 2,560,763 4.86% 5.00% 5.14% 15,130,511 15,063,695 14,997,425

Total 70,332,617 68,542,447 66,839,762 2.49% 2.56% 2.63% 226,818,194 225,646,295 224,484,560

Average COP  35,166,308  COP  34,271,224    COP  33,419,881 0.30% 0.31% 0.32% COP      113,409,097 COP 112,823,147 COP 112,242,280

Lower 
limit 

Average Upper 
limit

Lower 
limit 

Average Upper 
limit

Lower 
limit 
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Lower limit Average Upper limit

Ke Finagro     67,612,081   9.83% 10.08% 10.33%

Ke Other       2,720,536   8.84% 9.09% 9.34%

9.79% 10.04% 10.29%

Sensitivity analysis: The Ke rate was sensitized using the criteria CPI +25 basis points/-25 
basis points. 

Sensitivity analysis: The variable to be sen-
sitized during the period was the Ke discount 
rate; the particular component to be sensiti-
zed was inflation. This process took into ac-
count the estimates of the Bank's Research 
Department and the expectations of change 
in the Central Bank's intervention rate. 

It is important to mention that the Group's 
investments include investments in finan-
cial service institutions and in Finagro. This 
means that the variables that make up the 
discount rate are different for the two types of 
investments. 

Additionally, it is important to briefly mention 
the methodology to measure the entities. On 
one hand, there are the financial service ins-
titutions, which basically reflect the upward 

trend of the latest of each of the entities, 
always adjusted using the inflation variable 
estimated by Research. On the other, the va-
luation of Finagro is not only in line with the 
evolution of the figures, but also represents 
growth in the investment portfolio, and the 
statement of income is simulated using the 
DTF provided by Research, because it is the 
variable at which Finagro issues its securities.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
recorded at amortized cost determined 
only for disclosure purposes 

Below are the details of the way in which the 
financial assets and liabilities, managed in ac-
counting at amortized cost, were measured at 
fair value solely for the purposes of this dis-
closure.

Sensitivity of loan portfolio and lease 
transactions and deposits in customer ac-
counts

Due to the unavailability of observable market 
valuation inputs, these assets and liabilities 
were classified at level 3. Fair value is estima-
ted using the present value of flows method at 
discount market rates at the time of valuation.  

In the case of the loan portfolio, the capital 
cash flows are constructed based on the con-
tractual agreement with the customer and 
the cash flows for interest payments are also 
projected. These cash flows are adjusted for 
balance reductions due to customer prepay-
ments, which are modeled based on historical 
information. Finally, the fair value is the dis-

counted value of cash flows using the Colom-
bian market risk-free curve.

In turn, deposits in customer accounts are 
segmented into term deposits and demand 
deposits. For the term deposits, the contrac-
tually agreed cash flows are deducted using 
current market rates. For the maturity of de-
mand deposits, assumptions are made on 
their maturity based on the historical mode-
ling of opening and cancellation. The flows 
discounted at market rates are also projected.

The rates used for discounting are the Spot 
Curve in Colombian pesos (CEC COP), Spot 
Curve for securities in Real Value Units (CEC 
RVU) and the interbank offered rate in US do-
llars (USD Libor).
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Balances at December 31, 2021

 December 31, 2021 

Assets  Carrying Value  Fair Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Commercial Loan 
Portfolio 21,559,741 20,693,191 -                             -          20,693,191 

Mortgage portfolio 13,362,187 14,021,552 -                         -          14,021,552 

Consumer portfolio 20,807,836 24,079,575 -                           -          24,079,575 

Total loan portfolio COP 55,729,764 COP 58,794,318  COP - COP -   COP  58,794,318 

Demand deposits 41,143,827 41,143,827 -                           - 41,143,827 

Term deposits 18,022,109 18,196,248 -        - 18,196,248 

Total customer deposits  COP 59,165,936 COP 59,340,075  COP - COP -   COP 59,340,075 

Balances at December 31, 2020

 December 31, 2020

           17,861,619             19,831,642 -                         - 19,831,642 

Mortgage portfolio           12,463,845   13,974,464 -                         - 13,974,464 

Consumer portfolio            18,827,766             22,621,387 -                         - 22,621,387 

Total loan portfolio  COP 49,153,230  COP 56,427,493 COP -    COP -  COP 56,427,493 

Demand deposits           32,757,435            28,996,494 -                         - 28,996,494 

Term deposits            19,194,165            20,338,749 -                         - 20,338,749 

Total customer deposits  COP 51,951,600  COP 49,335,243  COP -    COP -  COP 49,335,243 

Liabilities  Carrying Value  Fair Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Assets  Carrying Value  Fair Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Liabilities  Carrying Value  Fair Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Commercial Loan 
Portfolio

Balances at December 31, 2021 Determining what falls under the term "ob-
servable" requires significant criteria on be-
half of the entity. Therefore, observable data 
are understood as the market data that can 
be easily obtained, are distributed or updated 
on a regular basis, are reliable and verifiable, 
are not private (exclusive) and are provided by 
independent sources that play an active role 
on the relevant market.

The assumptions and factors used in valua-
tion techniques include risk-free interest ra-
tes, reference interest rates, credit spreads 
and other premiums used to determine dis-
count rates, foreign exchange rates and ex-
pected price volatilities. 

The availability of observable market prices 
and factors reduce the need for judgments 
and calculations by management, along with 
the uncertainty associated with determining 
fair values. The availability of observable mar-
ket prices and input varies depending on the 
products and markets and is prone to chan-
ges based on specific events and general con-
ditions on financial markets.

Financial obligations and other liabilities

As for financial obligations and other short-
term liabilities, the carrying value was con-

sidered to be the fair value, since it is mainly 
indexed by variable interest rates.

Fair value hierarchy of the Group's finan-
cial instruments

Debt Securities in Local Currency

Investments in debt securities are valued on a 
daily basis and their results are also recorded 
daily. 

The Group determines the market value of 
investments in debt securities that are mar-
ketable and available for sale by using the 
“unadjusted” prices published on a daily basis 
by Precia, the official price vendor selected by 
the entity, which have been determined using 
the market base. The securities that meet 
these conditions are classified as Level 1 of 
the fair value hierarchy. 

In the case of instruments that are not 100% 
observable on the market, whose price is de-
termined according to other inputs provided 
by the price vendor, such as market interest 
rates, the fair values are based on alternative 
discounted cash flow valuation techniques, 
and the entity will classify these instruments 
at level 2. 
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Investments in financial instruments are me-
asured exponentially based on the internal 
rate of return (IRR) calculated at the time of 
the purchase and recalculated on the cou-
pon payment dates or the indicator’s re-price 
date. These securities are classified as Level 3 
of the fair value hierarchy. 

Debt Securities in Foreign Currency

In the first place, the market value of the res-
pective security is determined in its own cu-
rrency, based on unadjusted quoted market 
prices published by the price vendor selected 
by the entity and authorized by the Superin-
tendence for this purpose, in which case the 
fair value hierarchy will be level 1.

In the absence of market prices on the part 
of the official price vendor, the prices deter-
mined by international markets, published 
by Bloomberg will be used; since they are ob-
servable on a financial information platform 
known by all market agents, they would be 
classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. 

Finally, when there are no observable inputs 
on the market, the fair value is determined ex-
ponentially based on the internal rate of return 
calculated at the time of the purchase and re-

calculated on the coupon payment dates of 
the variable indicator if applicable. Securities 
calculated based on the latter model (IRR) will 
be classified as Level 3; the Group currently 
holds securities under this TIPS model.

Derivative Financial Instruments

According to the standards of the Superinten-
dence, transactions with derivatives are defi-
ned as contracts between two or more parties 
to purchase or sell financial instruments at a 
future date, or contracts where the underlying 
asset is a spot price or index. The Group ca-
rries out transactions with commercial purpo-
ses or hedging purposes in forwards, options, 
swaps and futures contracts.

All derivatives are measured at fair value. 
Changes in fair value are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income. 

For the derivative financial instruments listed 
below, except for futures, it calculates fair va-
lue based on listed market prices of compara-
ble contracts and represents the amount that 
the entity would have received from or paid 
to a counterparty to write-off the contract at 
market rates on the date of the consolidated 

statement; therefore, they are classified in le-
vel 2 of the fair value hierarchy:

•	 Futures 

Futures are measured based on the co-
rresponding market price on the valua-
tion date. These market inputs are publi-
shed by the official price vendor, "Precia", 
and taken directly from unadjusted mar-
ket prices; therefore, they are classified in 
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

•	 FX Forward (Fwd) 

Discounted cash flow is the valuation model 
used, using curves assigned in accordance 
with the source currency of the underlying 
asset. These market inputs are published 
by Precia, the official price vendor, based on 
observable market information.

•	 Interest and Exchange Swaps

The valuation model is based on discoun-
ted cash flows, using curves assigned 
according to the underlying asset, base 
swap curves (associated exchange of pay-
ment at variable interest rates), domestic 
and foreign curves, implicit curves asso-
ciated with forward exchange contracts. 
These market inputs are taken from the 
information published by Precia, the offi-
cial price vendor.

•	 European Options - USD/COP

The valuation model is based on the Black 
Scholes methodology using the variables 
provided by the official price vendor. The-
se variables are mainly curves assigned 
according to the functionary currency of 
the underlying asset, forward exchange 
curves of the domestic currency of the 
transaction, implicit curves associated 
with forward exchange contracts, and 
matrices and curves of implicit volatilities.
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities in 2021

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2021

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets   COP 10,563,967 COP       10,541,245 COP 3,856,489 COP 4,301,422 COP 2,383,334 

Assets at fair value measured on a 
recurring basis 8,480,595 8,480,595 3,856,489   4,301,422 322,684 

Investments at fair value            5,189,615             5,189,615 3,856,489 1,010,442 322,684 

Investments at fair value through 
profit or loss            2,594,225  2,594,225 1,626,189  968,036 -   

Bonds               105,301 105,301 45,343    59,958 -   

Certificate of deposit               545,509 545,509 -    545,509 -   

Treasury securities - TES            1,935,221             1,935,221 1,572,652   362,569 -   

Other domestic issuances 8,194 8,194    8,194 -                        -   

Investments at fair value through 
profit or loss provided in Money 
Market transactions

171,992 171,992 168,975 3,017 -   

Certificate of deposit 74 74 - 74 -

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities in 2021

Treasury securities - TES               171,918 171,918 168,975     2,943 -   

Investments at fair value through OCI 
Debt Instruments

              650,189 650,189 594,688 39,389              16,112 

Treasury securities - TES               624,123 624,123 594,688 29,435     -   

Certificate of deposit 9,954 9,954 - 9,954 -   

Mortgage securities - TIPS 16,112 16,112 -                        -                16,112 

Investments at fair value 
through OCI Equity Instruments 358,275 358,275 51,703 -   306,572 

Bolsa de Valores de Colombia S.A 51,703 51,703 51,703 -                      -   

Credibanco               110,983 110,983 -                            - 110,983 

Redeban S.A. 30,993 30,993 -                            - 30,993 

ACH Colombia 96,480 96,480 -                            - 96,480 

Counterparty Clearing House 2,212 2,212 -                            - 2,212 

Fondo para el Financiamiento del 
Sector Agropecuario "Finagro"

65,904 65,904 -                            - 65,904 

Investments at fair value through 
OCI provided in Money Market 
transactions

770,469 770,469 770,469 - - 

Treasury securities - TES               770,469 770,469 770,469 -                        - 

Investments at fair value 
through OCI provided as 
Collateral in transactions

644,465 644,465 644,465 -                        -   

Treasury securities - TES               644,465 644,465 644,465 -                        -   

Investments at amortized cost        2,083,372         2,060,650 -                      - 2,060,650 

Agricultural development securities               973,360 953,111 -                          -   953,111 

Solidarity Securities            1,097,564             1,092,674 -                          -   1,092,674 

Mortgage securities - TIPS 12,448 14,865 -                          -   14,865 

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2021

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
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Derivative financial instruments and 
(asset) cash transactions            3,290,980             3,290,980 -   3,290,980 -   

Trading            2,960,451             2,960,451 - 2,960,451 - 
Forward Contracts            1,265,012             1,265,012 - 1,265,012 - 

Cash transactions 3,170 3,170 -      3,170 - 

Options 7,756 7,756 -     7,756 - 

Swaps            1,684,513             1,684,513 - 1,684,513 - 

Hedging 330,529 330,529 - 330,529 - 
Swaps               330,529 330,529 - 330,529 - 

Liabilities            3,454,784             3,454,784 - 3,454,784 - 

Liabilities at fair value measured 
on a recurring basis            3,454,784             3,454,784 - 3,454,784 - 

Derivative Financial Instruments and 
(Liability) Cash Transactions

           3,454,784             3,454,784 - 3,454,784 - 

Trading            3,454,784             3,454,784 - 3,454,784 - 
Forward Contracts            1,194,587             1,194,587 - 1,194,587 - 

Cash transactions 789 789 -           789 - 

Options 7,863 7,863 -   7,863 - 

Swaps            2,251,545             2,251,545 - 2,251,545 - 

Hierarchies  Carrying Value  Amortized Cost  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Assets           12,416,209           12,416,209          10,268,716               760,962 - 

Assets measured on a non-recurring basis          12,416,209           12,416,209          10,268,716               760,962 - 

Cash, cash balances in central banks 
and other demand deposits          11,029,678           11,029,678          10,268,716               760,962 - 

Cash and deposits in banks          10,268,716           10,268,716          10,268,716 -                        - 

Investment funds 24,140 24,140 - 24,140 -

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2021

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities in 2020:

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2020

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets  COP 8,373,842 COP 8,373,842  COP 3,629,367 COP 4,419,299  COP 325,176 

Assets at fair value 
measured on a recurring 
basis

          8,373,842            8,373,842         3,629,367 4,419,299              325,176 

Investments at fair value           4,563,928            4,563,928         3,629,367 609,385              325,176 

Investments at fair value 
through profit or loss           2,775,447             2,775,447          2,178,659              596,788 -   

Money market and related 
transactions 

              736,822 736,822 -               736,822 - 

Others             1,386,529             1,386,529 -                          - - 

Advances to contracts and suppliers               139,803 139,803 -                          - - 

Accounts receivable (net)            1,246,726             1,246,726 -                          - - 

Liabilities            6,414,856             6,414,856 - 2,388,531 2,974,166 

Investment securities            2,388,531             2,388,531 - 2,388,531 - 

Outstanding Investment Securities            2,388,531             2,388,531 - 2,388,531 - 

Financial Obligations            2,974,166             2,974,166 -                          - 2,974,166 

Bank credits and other financial 
obligations

           2,974,166             2,974,166 -                          -         2,974,166 

Others             1,052,159             1,052,159 -                          - - 

Accounts payable               712,760 712,760 -                          - - 

Other Liabilities               339,399 339,399 -                          - - 

Total assets and liabilities at 
fair value  COP 32,849,816  COP 32,827,094  COP 14,125,206 COP 10,905,700 COP 5,357,500 

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2021

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
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Bonds               133,408  133,408              86,085 47,323 -   

Certificate of deposit             529,445               529,445 - 529,445 -   

Treasury securities - TES            2,104,163              2,104,163          2,084,143 20,020 -   

Other domestic issuances 8,431 8,431 8,431 -                      -   

Investments at fair value 
through profit or loss 
provided in Money Market 
transactions

119,388 119,388             119,382 6 -   

Bonds  6 6 - 6 -   

Treasury securities - TES               119,382 119,382             119,382 -                      -   

Investments at fair value 
through OCI Debt 
Instruments

             1,151,941 1,151,941           1,122,614 12,591 16,736 

Treasury securities - TES             1,122,614              1,122,614           1,122,614 -                      -   

Certificate of deposit 12,591 12,591 - 12,591 -   

Mortgage securities - TIPS 16,736 16,736 -                       -   16,736 

Investments at fair value 
through OCI Equity 
Instruments

             371,271 371,271 61,951 - 309,320

Bolsa de Valores de Colombia S.A 61,951 61,951               61,951 -                      -   

Credibanco               112,366 112,366 -                         -              112,366 

Redeban S.A. 31,173 31,173 -                         - 31,173 

ACH Colombia 50,277 50,277 -                         -               50,277 

Counterparty Clearing House 3,391 3,391 -                         - 3,391 

Fondo para el Financiamiento del 
Sector Agropecuario "Finagro"

112,113 112,113 -                         - 112,113 

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2020

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments at fair value 
through OCI provided in 
Money Market transactions

146,761 146,761              146,761 -                        - 

Treasury securities - TES               146,761 146,761              146,761 -                        - 

Investments at fair value 
through OCI provided as 
Collateral in transactions

             718,336 718,336             718,336 -                        -   

Treasury securities - TES              718,336 718,336             718,336 -                        -   

Investments at 
amortized cost            2,125,447             2,125,832 -                         -             2,125,832 

Treasury securities - TES               48,062 48,374 -                         -                 48,374 

Agricultural development 
securities

             962,751               949,852 -                         -               949,852 

Solidarity Securities              1,101,190              1,108,359 -                         -             1,108,359 

Mortgage securities - TIPS 13,444 19,247 -                         -   19,247 

Derivative financial 
instruments and (asset) 
cash transactions

          3,809,914             3,809,914 - 3,809,914 -   

Trading           3,657,534            3,657,534 - 3,657,534 - 

Forward contracts            1,316,595              1,316,595 - 1,316,595 - 

Cash transactions 79 79 - 79 - 

Options 5,377 5,377 - 5,377 - 

Swaps           2,335,483            2,335,483 - 2,335,483 - 

Hedging              152,380 152,380 - 152,380 - 

Swaps              152,380 152,380 - 152,380 -

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2020

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
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Liabilities             4,107,191               4,107,191 - 4,107,191 - 

Liabilities at fair value 
measured on a recurring 
basis

            4,107,191               4,107,191 - 4,107,191 - 

Derivative Financial 
Instruments and (Liability) 
Cash Transactions

            4,107,191               4,107,191 - 4,107,191 - 

Trading           4,106,964             4,106,964 - 4,106,964 - 

Forward contracts            1,205,516              1,205,516 - 1,205,516 - 

Cash transactions 134 134 - 134 - 

Options 5,379 5,379 - 5,379 - 

Swaps           2,895,935            2,895,935 - 2,895,935 - 

Hedging 227 227 - 227 - 

Swaps 227 227 - 227 - 

Assets  7,332,273 7,332,273 5,745,960 520,528 -

Assets measured on a non-
recurring basis 7,332,273 7,332,273 5,745,960 520,528 -

Cash, cash balances in 
central banks and other 
demand deposits

6,266,488 6,266,488 5,745,960 520,528 -

Cash and deposits in 
banks 5,745,960 5,745,960 5,745,960 - -

Investment funds 36,313 36,313 - 36,313 -

Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2020

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market and 
related transactions 484,215 484,215 - 484,215 -

Others  1,065,785 1,065,785 - - -

Advances to contracts 
and suppliers 62,440 62,440 - - -

Accounts receivable (net) 1,003,345 1,003,345 - - -

Liabilities 5,878,628 5,878,628 - 2,304,263 2,606,926

Investment securities 2,304,263 2,304,263 - 2,304,263 -

Outstanding 
Investment Securities 2,304,263 2,304,263 - 2,304,263 -

Financial Obligations 2,606,926 2,606,926 - - 2,606,926

Bank credits and other 
financial obligations 2,606,926 2,606,926 - - 2,606,926

Others 967,439 967,439 - - -

Accounts payable 714,295 714,295 - - -

Other Liabilities 253,144 253,144 - - -

Total assets and 
liabilities at fair value COP 25,691,934 COP 25,691,934 COP  9,375,327    COP 11,351,281 COP  2,932,102

Hierarchies Carrying Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

The Group discloses transfers between the 
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
period during which the change occurred. In 

2021 and 2020, there were no transfers of fi-
nancial instruments measured at fair value be-
tween the levels of hierarchy.



194 195

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Item Notional Value Fair Value

FORWARD TRANSACTIONS 2021 2020 2021 2020

Purchase on foreign currency

Rights COP 32,647,678  COP 2,808,486  COP 32,287,858  COP 2,834,051 

Obligations -                              -            (31,119,626)          (2,796,069)

Sale on foreign currency

         12,058,014             24,396,660           11,911,192         24,207,801 

-                              -            (11,813,588)        (22,927,266)

Less credit risk -                              -   (822) (1,921)

Total forward contracts      44,705,692         27,205,146         1,265,014        1,316,596 

Rights

Obligations

Notional Value Fair Value

CASH TRANSACTIONS 2021 2020 2021 2020

Purchase on foreign currency

Rights COP 20,387 COP 302  COP 20,378  COP 302 

Obligations -                              -   (20,369) (302)

Sales on foreign currency

 Rights                333,891 -   330,788 -   

Obligations -                              -                 (327,765) -   

Purchase on securities

 Rights  11,352 -   11,229 25,442 

 Obligations -                              -   (11,212)               (25,395)

 Sales on securities

 Rights  42,670 -   41,481 13,026 

 Obligations -                              -   (41,360)               (12,994)

Less CVA credit risk -                          -   

Total cash transactions           408,300 302 3,170 79 

14. Financial instruments, hedging derivatives and cash transactions

For this class of financial instrument, the di-
fference in valuation between previous GAAP 
and the IFRS is the incorporation of the cre-
dit risk in each transaction, which is known as 
the CVA and DVA (credit or debit value adjust-
ments), as applicable. 

The financial instruments traded by BBVA are 
classified as assets or liabilities (see Note 28) 
according to their results. At December 31, 
the balance of this account classified as an 
asset is summarized as follows:
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Notional Value Fair Value

OPTIONS  2021 2020 2021 2020

Options on foreign currencies purchased - put:

 Rights  * -                              -   206,178              101,289 

 Purchase - Put               206,178 101,289 2,515 5,001 

Options on foreign currencies purchased - call:

 Rights * -                              -   179,598              329,165 

 Purchase - Call               179,598 329,165 5,349 378 

Less CVA credit risk -                              -   (108) (2)

Total fair exchange price           385,776              430,454 7,756              5,377 

Swaps 2021 2020 2021 2020

On interest rates:

Rights          75,190,549             57,647,703             6,629,390           5,958,436 

Obligations  -                              -              (5,646,979)          (4,081,194)

On currencies

Rights            8,873,792               5,520,240             8,725,019           5,947,159 

Notional Value Fair Value

Obligations -                              -              (8,012,182)          (5,468,882)

Less CVA credit risk -                              -   (10,736)               (20,037)

Total Swaps      84,064,341         63,167,943         1,684,512        2,335,482 

Notional Value Fair Value

Futures 2021 2020 2021 2020

Purchase on foreign currency

 Rights            6,134,009               6,814,249             6,134,009           6,817,515 

 Obligations -                              -              (6,134,009)          (6,817,515)

Sale on foreign currency

 Rights            6,413,140               2,306,349             6,346,629           2,306,349 

Obligations -                              -              (6,346,629) (2,306,349)

Total futures      12,547,149           9,120,598 -                     -   

Total cash transactions and derivatives COP 142,111,258 COP 99,924,443 COP 2,960,452 COP 3,657,534

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the total 
CVA (Credit Value Adjustments) and DVA (De-
bit Value Adjustments) was COP 11,657 and 

COP 17,732, respectively. The most significant 
counterparties represent 68.57%, as follows:
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Counterparty Rating 2021 2020

Sociedad Portuaria de Santa Marta  BB-  COP 801 COP            418 

GPC TUGS S.A.  B 263              1,418 

Contecar  BB+ 215 397 

Sociedad Portuaria de Cartagena  B+ 142 466 

Sura Asset Management S.A.  BBB+ -                      - 

Seguros de Vida Alfa  BB- - 62 

FPO Porvenir Moderado  BBB 544 646 

Bbva Madrid Tesorería              5,980            15,464 

Constructora Urbana San Rafael S.A  B 55 737 

Total  COP  8,000  COP 19,608 

Counterparty 2021 2020

BBVA Madrid Tesorería (1)   COP 10,914 COP 7,807 

GPC TUGS S.A.
 -              1,418 

Bbva Madrid Tesorería  -  COP 1,514 

Total COP 10,914 COP 10,738

Product 2021 2020

          DVA 

FW FOREIGN CURRENCIES COP 46 COP 12 

FW US DOLLARS 776 322 

OPTIONS 108  -   

SWAP 10,736 17,398 

TOTAL  COP 11,666 COP 17,732 

 CVA 

FW FOREIGN CURRENCIES  COP 29 COP 32 

FW US DOLLARS  386 1,889 

OPTIONS  2 2 

SWAP 11,102 20,037 

TOTAL  COP 11,519 COP 21,960 

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the total DVA (Debit Value Adjustments) was COP 11,519 and COP 
21,960 respectively; in addition, the most significant counterparties, which represent 94.75% and 
48.90%, respectively, are comprised as follows:

Below is the information on the value of CVA 
and DVA broken down by product, showing 
the product with the greatest impact for 2021 
and 2020, respectively. Swaps represent 

94.20% of the total CVA and DVA, also due to 
the higher volume and volatility in the rate and 
macroeconomic changes of transactions con-
tracted up to 2021:
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Type of 
Instrument

Type of 
Transaction

Currency

Maturity in Days

Value Obligation Net Result 
Minimum Maximum Value Right

Currency 
forward 

Purchase USD/COP 3 2975 COP  50,949,703 COP (49,841,601) COP 1,108,102

Purchase EUR/COP 21 223  12,370 (12,248) 122 

Purchase EUR/USD 13 1109 392,404 (402,486)            (10,082)

Purchase GBP/USD 41 41      1,152 (1,145) 7 

Purchase JPY/USD 11 161   15,779 (16,154) (375)

Purchase MXN/
USD 49 409       6,284 (6,137) 147 

Purchase SEK/USD 7 7   10,863 (10,819) 44 

Purchase CNH/
USD 117 332 259,482 (256,775)               2,707 

Purchase GBP/COP 41 41       1,694 (1,673) 21 

Purchase CAD/COP 56 56        4,492  (4,404) 88 

Sale USD/COP 3 2035 56,141,734 (57,170,845)       (1,029,111)

Sale COP/EUR 3 362 97,388 (95,989)               1,399 

Sale COP/GBP 41 41       1,130 (1,152) (22)

Sale COP/SEK 7 7   10,937 (10,863) 74 

Sale COP/CNH 117 332 251,206 (259,477)              (8,271)

Sale USD/EUR 13 1109   81,746 (76,186)               5,560 

Sale USD/GBP 41 41      1,663        (1,694) (31)

Sale COP/JPY 3 161   15,694 (15,779) (85)

The CVA reported in the BBVA derivatives por-
tfolio is sensitive to USD/COP exchange rate 
movements, which had a positive effect on the 
market value of the portfolio, after going from 
COP 3,4532.50 per USD 1 to COP 3,981.16 in 
2021, and netting out is allowed between tran-
sactions of the same counterparty, because 
calculations are carried out at the aggregate 
level. The data reported in the DVA is exclusi-
vely due to the model to calculate credit risk 
value adjustments.

Derivative transactions are basically cove-
red with cross forwards.

The Group has carried out forward transac-
tions on foreign currencies and securities, 
showing on the latter an increase by the end 
of 2021 in relation to the previous year. This 
is due to the increase in the trading transac-
tions of said portfolio, going from 32 transac-
tions in the previous year to 38 contracts for 
the year 2021. In addition to the foregoing, it 
signed contracts for transactions with futures 
derivatives on national bonds at the official 
exchange rate and standardized forwards, 

options on currencies, swaps on currencies 
and swaps on interest rates which are valued 
in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 
XVIII of the Basic Accounting and Financial 
Notice (CBCF, for the Spanish original).

As a general policy for derivative transactions, 
the Bank is ruled by the standards issued by 
the Financial Superintendence of Colombia 
and it takes into account the restrictions and 
limits of proprietary position, the spot proprie-
tary position, the leveraging position, and the 
interest rates established by the BBVA Group.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, derivative 
transactions showed no charges, restrictions 
or levies of a legal or financial nature, or pled-
ges, seizures, litigation or any other limitation 
on the rights inherent to these transactions. 

The increase in both rights and obligations 
of the foreign currency forwards and futures 
contracts is a result of the fluctuations of the 
exchange rate throughout the year 2021.

At December 31, 2021, the breakdown of tran-
sactions with derivative financial instruments 
was as follows:  

At December 31, 2021
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Currency 
forward 

Sale USD/CAD 56 56       4,639    (4,492) 148 

Sale USD/
MXN 49 409      6,133 (6,148) (15)

Total currency forward 108,266,493      (108,196,067)          70,427 

Spot on 
currency

Purchase USD/COP 3 4 114,085 (114,807) (722)

Purchase EUR/COP 3 3      2,816 (2,817) (1)

Sale USD/COP 3 3 330,788 (327,766)               3,022 

Total spot on currency            447,689            (445,390)            2,299 

Spot on 
securities

Purchase COP -361 3     48,718 (48,723) (5)

Sale COP -44561 3   68,379 (68,291) 88 

Total spot on securities            117,097            (117,014) 83 

Total spot            564,786            (562,404)            2,382 

Financial 
options

Purchase - 
PUT USD/COP 5 1092       2,515 -                 2,515 

Purchase - 
CALL USD/COP 5 1092       5,241 -                 5,241 

Sale - PUT USD/COP 5 1092 -   (2,514)              (2,514)

Sale - CALL USD/COP 5 1092 -   (5,348)              (5,348)

Total financial options 7,756 (7,862) (106)

Type of 
Instrument

Type of 
Transaction

Currency

Maturity in Days

Value Obligation Net Result 
Minimum Maximum Value Right

Interest 
rate swap

IRS COP 3 5450 18,887,693 (20,108,967)       (1,221,274)

IRS USD 4 3391 7,801,996             (7,147,756)           654,240 

Total swap on interest rates 26,689,689        (27,256,723)       (567,034)

Swap on 
currencies 
hedging

CCS COP 1207 1207 1,482,378 (1,151,849)           330,529 

Total swap on currencies hedging         1,482,378         (1,151,849)        330,529 

Total swap       28,172,067        (28,408,572)       (236,505)

Sale COP 168,912 -168,912 -   

Total futures            168,912            (168,912) -   

TOTAL COP 137,180,014  COP  (137,343,817)   COP (163,802)

At December 31, 2020

Currency 
forward

Purchase USD/COP 4 3340 COP 31,615,751 COP (32,773,521) COP (1,157,770)

Purchase EUR/COP 20 74 112 (102) 10 

Purchase EUR/
USD 13 1474 299,605 (295,400)               4,205 

Purchase GBP/COP 287 287 1,122 (1,118) 4 

Purchase CAD/COP 250 250 150 (146) 4

Type of 
Instrument

Type of 
Transaction

Currency

Maturity in Days

Value Obligation Net Result 
Minimum Maximum Value Right

Type of 
Instrument

Type of 
Transaction

Currency

Maturity in Days

Value Obligation Net Result 
Minimum Maximum Value Right
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Currency 
forward

Sale COP/USD 4 2400 32,478,469          (31,214,077)       1,264,392 

Sale COP/EUR 8 138 60,758 (60,308) 450 

Sale USD/EUR 13 1474 74,844 (75,054) (210)

Sale USD/CAD 33 33 144              (150) (6)

Total currency forward     64,530,955     (64,419,876)      111,079 

Spot on 
currency

Purchase USD/COP 4 4 256            (256) -   

Purchase EUR/COP 4 4 93 (92) 1 

Total spot on currency 349 (348) 1 

Spot on 
securities

Purchase COP 4 5  25,442 (25,395) 47 

Sale COP 4 6  32,400 (32,409) (9)

Total spot on securities            57,842            (57,804)               38 

Total spot            58,191            (58,152)               39 

Financial 
options 

Purchase - 
PUT USD/COP 6 340 4,999 -                 4,999 

Purchase - 
CALL USD/COP 7 340 378 -   378 

USD/COP 6 340 -        (5,001)              (5,001)

Sale - CALL USD/COP 7 340 -             (378) (378)

Total financial options              5,377              (5,379) (2)

Interest rate 
swap

IRS COP 4 5471            8,474,931 (8,927,852)         (452,921)

IRS USD 13 3609 290,429 (314,024)           (23,595)

OIS COP 4 3603 370,124 (389,367)           (19,243)

Type of 
Instrument

Type of 
Transaction

Currency

Maturity in Days

Value Obligation Net Result 
Minimum Maximum Value Right

Sale - PUT

Total swap on interest rates       9,135,484       (9,631,243)     (495,759)

Swap currencies CCS USD 4 3616      10,624,477 (10,689,170)           (64,693)

Total swap on currencies     10,624,477     (10,689,170)       (64,693)

Swap on 
currencies 
hedging

CCS COP 1572 1572            1,393,625 (1,241,473)           152,152 

Total swap on currencies hedging       1,393,625       (1,241,473)      152,152 

Total swap     21,153,586     (21,561,886)     (408,300)

TOTAL COP 85,748,109 COP (86,045,293) COP (297,184)

The collateral received and delivered in derivative transactions at December 31, were:

Counterparty DIV 2021 2020

Assets

Banco Santander Central Hispano EUR            212,415          212,415 

Banco Bancomer México USD         2,820,000          150,000 

BBVA Madrid (1) USD     160,702,891   134,273,819 

Liabilities

Morgan Stanley and Co Internacional USD      (86,338,850)    (47,498,850)

BBVA Bancomer México USD  -  - 

Type of 
Instrument

Type of 
Transaction

Currency

Maturity in Days

Value Obligation Net Result 
Minimum Maximum Value Right
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Year December-Amount Mill. Max Mill. Min Mill. Avg Mill.

CVA
2020 21,920 28,153 6,099 16,211

2021 11,667 22,199 10,077 13,544

DVA
2020 17,732 20,122 581 12,955

2021 11,518 24,088 11,006 13,211

(1) The amount under BBVA Madrid corres-
ponds to the collateral agreement on all the 
Bank’s derivative transactions with this coun-
terparty.

The financial collateral, regardless of the hol-
der, instrumentation or other circumstances, 
is analyzed on a periodic basis to determine 
the credit risk to which they are exposed and, 
if necessary, to estimate the need to create a 
provision therefor.

Credit Value Adjustment (CVA)

The purpose of the CVA is to calculate the 
amount of expected losses during the life of 
the transactions stated at present value in 
the Treasury derivatives portfolio. At a certain 
point in the future, credit risk losses depend 
on three components: the counterparties' li-
kelihood of default at that time, severity in the 
case of default and exposure at the time of 
default. 

As of June 2016, the DVA (Debit Value Ad-
justment) calculation was introduced at the 
request of the Financial Superintendence of 
Colombia in the credit risk valuation adjust-
ments. The nature of this adjustment is con-
trary to that of the CVA, such that it considers 

the likelihood that the BBVA will default on a 
positive value transaction for a counterparty 
due to a credit event. This adjustment will re-
port CVA of the counterparties whose portfo-
lio value is positive for BBVA and DVA of port-
folios with a negative value for the Group.   

The CVA and DVA report is made at the tran-
saction level; therefore, the adjustment is dis-
tributed between counterparty transactions 
with the same market value nature as that of 
the portfolio aggregate; otherwise, a value of 
zero is allocated to the credit risk adjustment.

The change in measurement between 2020 
and 2021 is shown below. The change in re-
ported CVA is mainly due to a change in the 
calculation methodology specified in PN 
031/2020 issued by the Financial Superinten-
dence of Colombia.  

The change in DVA is mainly due to a change 
in the calculation methodology specified in 
PN 031/2020 of the Financial Superintenden-
ce of Colombia. It additionally includes all the 
clauses with counterparties that have signed 
netting out agreements for transactions with 
the same item, because the calculations are 
made at the aggregate level. 

Bond issuance in foreign currency - The 
Bank issued subordinated notes abroad in 
the amount of USD 400 million on April 21, 
2015, maturing on February 19, 2025.  These 
bonds mature in 10 years with a coupon rate 
of 4.875% and will earn interest on a semi-an-
nual basis.

The Subordinated Notes have been issued 
pursuant to Rule 144A/Regulation S of the US 
Securities Act of 1933.

BBVA Securities Inc. and Morgan Stanley & 
Co. LLC., acted as the placement agents.

Hedge Accounting – The Bank constituted 
cash flow and fair value hedges to hedge the 
exchange risk and interest rate risk in US do-
llars, as follows:

Cash flows

These financial instruments were designated 
as cash flow hedges because both their right 
and obligation are at a fixed rate and the pur-
pose is to hedge future cash flows for the pay-
ment of interest and principal in accordance 
with the nominal value agreed.

14.1	 Hedging derivatives
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Transaction
Nominal 

Value of Right
EA Right 

Rate 

Nominal 
Value of 

Obligation

EA 
Obligation 

Rate 

Right Value 
2020 

Obligation 
Value 2020

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 2021

9217724 USD 40 9,98% COP 129,200 4,88%  COP 179,682  COP 146,982  COP 32,701 

9315701 USD 40 10,64%         124,000 4,88%         179,682         143,688           35,994 

9346154 USD 40 10,71%         117,600 4,88%         179,682         136,536           43,146 

Total  COP 111,841 

9217724 USD 40 9,98% COP 129,200 4,88%  COP 168,924  COP 169,151 COP (227)

9315701 USD 40 10,64%          124,000 4,88%          168,924        165,870 3,054 

9346154 USD 40 10,71%          117,600 4,88%          168,924         157,664 11,260 

Total  COP 14,087 

Transaction
Nominal 

Value of Right
EA Right 

Rate 

Nominal 
Value of 

Obligation

EA 
Obligation 

Rate 

Right Value 
2020 

Obligation 
Value 2020

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 2020

9217722 USD 70 4,87% COP 226,100 IBR+3.19%  COP 314,444  COP 250,284  COP  64,160 

9315699 USD 70 4,87%         217,000 IBR+3.57%         314,444         242,853           71,591 

9346145 USD 70 4,87%         205,800 IBR+3.75%         314,444         231,506           82,938 

Total  COP 218,689 

9217722 USD 70 4,88% COP 226,100 IBR+3,19% COP        295,618  COP 257,936 COP 37,682 

9315699 USD 70 4,88%          217,000 IBR+3,57%          295,618 251,108            44,510 

9346145 USD 70 4,88%          205,800 IBR+3,75%          295,618 239,744            55,874 

Total  COP       138,066 

Transaction
Nominal 

Value of Right
EA Right 

Rate 

Nominal 
Value of 

Obligation

EA 
Obligation 

Rate 

Right Value 
2020 

Obligation 
Value 2020

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 2021

Transaction
Nominal 

Value of Right
EA Right 

Rate 

Nominal 
Value of 

Obligation

EA 
Obligation 

Rate 

Right Value 
2020 

Obligation 
Value 2020

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 2020

Fair value hedge accounting

It was designated at fair value because the 
obligation is indexed at the IBR (Reference 
Bank Indicator), which was developed by the 
private sector, with the backing of the Central 

Bank of Colombia and other entities, in order 
to reflect the liquidity of the Colombian money 
market, that is to say when a debt is acquired 
on the market today, it will be estimated at a 
rate similar to the reference rate.

Contractual cash flows:

The hedged risk is the exchange rate and the 
interest rate in USD on the fair value of the 
bonds and to hedge the uncertainty of futu-
re cash flows and their implications regarding 
the entity's hedge activities; a payment sche-
dule for each flow and period of the hedge is 
included in the structure of the instrument.

Measurement of Hedge Effectiveness

IFRS 9, Paragraph B6.4.14 indicates that 
“when the fundamental conditions (such as 
nominal amount, maturity and underlying) of 
the hedging instrument and the hedged item 
match or are closely aligned, an entity can 
conclude, based on a qualitative assessment 
of said fundamental conditions, that the he-
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dging instrument and the hedged item have 
values that will generally move in the opposite 
direction due to the same risk and, therefore, 
there is an economic link between the hedged 
item and the hedging instrument.”

IFRS 9 Paragraph B6.5.5 indicates that “To 
calculate the change in the value of the hed-
ged item for the purposes of measuring the 
hedge ineffectiveness, an entity can use a 
derivative with the conditions that match the 

fundamental conditions of the hedged item 
(which is commonly known as a hypothetical 
derivative)”.

The hypothetical derivative is defined as the 
perfect mirror in which a leg is fully in line with 
the economic characteristics of the hedged 
item, therefore, it is the method used by the 
Bank to measure the effectiveness of its he-
dging instruments, concluding that it will be 
100% effective over time.

Hedge Type Currency
Statement of 

Financial 
Position

Statement of 
Comprehensive 

Income

Statement of 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Fair Value USD  COP (943,331)  COP  724,643  COP 218,688  COP -   COP -   

Cash flow       (539,046)         427,206 -                       -       111,840 

Total  COP 218,688 COP -    COP 111,840 

Total asset hedging  COP 330,529 

Value of
Right

Value of 
Obligation

Based on the above the effective part of the 
profit or loss of the cash flow hedging instru-
ment was recognized in equity (OCI) and the 
ineffective part will be recognized in the sta-
tement of income. Since the conditions of the 
CCS (cross currency swap) of the payment 
received by the Bank in US dollars match tho-
se of the hedged item (coupon date, coupon 
rate, settlement basis of the coupon and final 
exchange of flows), its effect on the Bank’s in-
come statement is expected to be neutral. 

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the items of 
valuation and items of the cash flow hedging 
swap were recorded in Other Comprehen-

sive Income (OCI) for COP 111,840 and COP 
14,087, respectively. On the same dates, no 
reclassifications of equity were made to the 
statement of income for the year. 

The accounting of hedging derivatives at De-
cember 31 2021 and 2020, is as follows:

Asset hedging - CCS swap 

The hedging transaction negotiated at the 
lowest rate recorded a positive valuation (In-
come); therefore, for this period there was 
recognition in the asset part for COP 36,085 
compared to the previous year. 

At December 31, 2021

625

La NIIF 9 párrafo B6.5.5 indica que “Para cal-
cular el cambio en el valor de la partida cu-
bierta a efectos de medir la ineficacia de la 
cobertura, una entidad puede utilizar un de-
rivado que tenga condiciones que coincidan 
con las condiciones fundamentales de la par-
tida cubierta (esto se conoce habitualmente 
como un derivado hipotético).”

El derivado hipotético se define como el per-
fecto espejo en el que una pata se ajusta com-
pletamente a las características económicas 
del elemento cubierto, por lo cual es el méto-
do usado por el Banco para medir la eficacia 
de sus instrumentos de cobertura concluyen-
do que a lo largo del tiempo será 100% eficaz.

Debido a lo anterior, la parte efectiva de la pér-
dida o ganancia del instrumento de cobertura 
de flujo de efectivo se reconoció en patrimo-
nio (ORI) y la parte ineficaz será reconocida 
con efecto en resultados. Teniendo en cuenta 
que las condiciones del CCS (cross currency 
swap) del pago que recibe el Banco en dóla-
res coinciden con las del elemento cubierto 

(fecha del cupón, tasa del cupón, base de li-
quidación del cupón e intercambio de flujos 
final) se anticipa que el efecto sobre la cuenta 
de resultados del Banco es neutra. 

A 31 de diciembre 2021 y 2020 se registra 
en el Otro Resultado Integral los conceptos 
de valoración del swap de cobertura de flujo 

Derivado hipótetico

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

4.875 4.875 4.875 4.875 4.875

COP

104.875

Fijo/
IBR+X% + 100*FX

USD

USD

104.875

Derivado

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

Fijo/
IBR+X%

4.875 4.875 4.875 4.875 4.875

COP

Fijo/
IBR+X% + 100*FX
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At December 31, 2020

Fair Value USD COP         (886,853)  COP 748,787 COP 138,066 COP -    COP -   

Cash flow      (337,849)          323,534 -                         - 14,315 

Total COP 138,066 COP -    COP 14,315 

Total asset hedging  COP 152,381 

Cash flow COP - COP -    COP - 3,021 (3,021)

Total  COP - COP 3,021  COP (3,021)

Total active hedging COP -   

Cash flow      (168,924)          169,151 -                       -             277

Total  COP -    COP - 277

Total asset hedging   COP 277

Passive hedging - CCS swap 2021

Passive hedging - CCS swap 2020

Hedge Type Currency
Statement of 

Financial 
Position

Statement of 
Comprehensive 

Income

Statement of 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Value of
Right

Value of 
Obligation

Hedge Type Currency
Statement of 

Financial 
Position

Statement of 
Comprehensive 

Income

Statement of 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Value of
Right

Value of 
Obligation

Hedge Type Currency
Statement of 

Financial 
Position

Statement of 
Comprehensive 

Income

Statement of 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Value of
Right

Value of 
Obligation

Item 2021 2020

Deposits for executive proceedings, collateral and others (1) COP 820,771  COP 638,607 

Accounts transferred to ICETEX (2)             145,697             145,365 

Inactive National Treasury Department accounts (3)               28,987               28,123 

Fees 9,843 9,806 

Securities depositories -   3,937 

Securitization process (4) 7 2,821 

Dividends and shares (5) -   1,036 

To employees (6) 267 246 

To parent company, subsidiaries, related parties and associates (7) -   52 

Other (8)             261,811             192,954 

Subtotal  COP 1,267,383  COP 1,022,948 

Impairment of other accounts receivable              (20,657)              (19,603)

Total other accounts receivable, net  COP 1,246,726  COP 1,003,345 

In 2021, the value equivalent to the restate-
ment of the cash flow hedge was COP 119,986 
over USD 120 million.
Due to fluctuations in the exchange rate du-
ring 2021, there is an 121.59% increase in OCI 

compared to 2020, which means a decrease 
in our interest obligation balance for the cash 
flow hedge transactions. 

15.	 Accounts receivable, net

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:
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(1)	 The increase refers to Margin Calls of de-
rivatives in foreign currency, where the-
re is a significant variation in the closing 
rate for December 2020 of COP 3,432.50, 
and for December 2021 of COP 3,981.16, 
representing an increase of COP 548.66 
per US dollar, generating an increase in 
operations of COP 182,164 for the year 
2021. This item also includes deposits on 
residential leases, placement of which de-
creased by COP 30,478 in 2021. 

(2)	 These are abandoned accounts transfe-
rred to ICETEX, whose balance is greater 
than 322 RVU and have been inactive for 
more than 36 months, in accordance with 
Law 1777/2016, regulated by Decree 953/
June 15, 2016. Their increase in 2021 is 
especially reflected in the transfer of Sa-
vings Accounts with an increase of 84% 
and checking accounts with a variation of 
16% in 2021.

(3)	 Increase due to the transfer of inactive 
accounts to the National Treasury Depart-
ment (DTN, for the Spanish original), who-
se balance is less than 322 RVU and have 
been inactive for less than 36 months, in 
accordance with Decree 2331/1998.

(4)	 The variation in the Securitization Pro-
cess item is due to the full settlement of 
the residual rights of issues E9, E10, E11 
and E12, with payment in kind in the mon-
th of November 2021 for COP 2,821.

(5)	 These are Credibanco dividends and sha-
res paid during the year COP 1,036.

(6)	 Accounts receivable in Corporate Cards 
increased and advances to employees de-
creased.

(7)	 The variation is due to the payment of lea-
ses by the subsidiaries BBVA Seguros de 
Vida y Generales and Comercializadora 
Servicios Financieros and the payment of 
accounts receivable for corporate social 
responsibility of BBVA Seguros Genera-
les.

(8)	 The change arises mainly from the com-
mission of Fondo Nacional de Garantías 
COVID-19 in the amount of COP 21,059, 
as well a 55% increase in the amounts 
contracted in contract settlement tran-
sactions with the Counterparty Clearing 
House carried out in December 2021 for 
COP 75,990 and 23% in the account re-
ceivable for the settlement of derivative 

transactions at the end of 2021 for COP 
155,793.

2021 2020

Balance at the beginning of year COP 19,603  COP 2,436 

Provision charged to expenses in the year            2,491          43,740 

Transfer other items               105 48 

Provision recovery          (1,542)       (26,621)

Balance at year end  COP 20,657  COP 19,603 

The overall variation totaled COP 1,054. The provision expense decreased by COP 41,249 in con-
nection with fees, while the recovery of provisions totaled COP 25,079 related to other accounts 
receivable. 

16. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale are mainly 
realizable assets received from the loan por-
tfolio debtors, which the Group intends to sell 
in the short term; there are departments, pro-
cesses and programs in place for their sale, 

The movement of the accounts receivable 
protection provision account in the year en-
ded December 31, 2021 was as follows:

either in cash or by granting financing to po-
tential buyers.

At December 31, the balance of this account is 
summarized as follows: 
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At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows: 

Item December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Realizable assets

Real estate 40,022 41,340 

Subtotal realizable assets 40,022 41,340 

Assets restituted in lease agreements

Real estate 14,697 12,636 

Vehicles 725 234 

Machinery and equipment 259 15 

Real estate given under residential leasing 28,956 24,249 

Subtotal assets restituted in Lease Agreements 44,637 37,134 

Assets not used for the corporate purpose

Lands 3,641 58 

Buildings 13,523 551 

Furniture and fixtures 1,541 209 

Subtotal assets not used for the corporate purpose 18,705 818 

Trusts 7,175 7,175 

Subtotal trusts 7,175 7,175 

Item December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Subtotal realizable and restituted assets             110,539 86,467 

Impairment of non-current assets held for sale

Realizable assets (24,057) (17,733)

Assets restituted in lease agreements (19,608) (11,434)

Trusts (6,401) (5,416)

Furniture and fixtures (1,541) (209)

Subtotal impairment             (51,607)             (34,792)

Total realizable assets, assets received as 
payment and restituted assets, net               COP 58,932 COP 51,675 

At December 31, 2021, the Group had 282 
Non-Current Assets Held for Sale amounting 
to COP 110,539 and an impairment of COP 
51,607. At December 31, 2020, the Group had 
247 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale amoun-
ting to COP 86,467 and an impairment of COP 
34,792.

Non-current assets held for sale over two 
years for the year 2021 and 2020 amounted 
to COP 44,015 and COP 16,229 respectively.

The change in the provision for protection of 
non-current assets held for sale during the 
years ended at December 31 was as follows:
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Item 2021 2020

Balance at the beginning of year COP 34,792  COP 26,694 

Provision charged to expenses in the year 21,823 17,292 

Transfers (209) (88)

Presentation adjustment 1,541 -   

Less – Withdrawal for sales and recoveries (6,340) (9,106)

Balance at year end COP           51,607  COP 34,792 

The amounts, permanence time and provision level of non-current assets held-for-sale in the 
periods compared were:

Type of 
Asset

2021 2020 Permanence 
Time (1) Provision Permanence 

Time (1) Provision

Real estate COP 110.539     86,467 20 COP 51,607 15 COP  34,792 

TOTAL COP 110,539 COP 86,467 COP 51,607 COP 34,792 

(1)    Stated as average permanence time in months.

At December 31, 2021, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:

Item Lands Vehicles Fixtures and 
Accessories (2) Computers

Cost

Balance at December 31, 2020 COP 152,181 COP 647,261 COP 2,942 COP 278,613  COP 306,674 

Acquisitions  -    696.00          198.00 17,615 20,985

Additions  -   2,012 -                           -   2,066

Additions for joint operations 1,377 880

Sales (5,281) (23,554) (1,976) (88) -   

Removals     -                     -   -   (52,402) (30,143)

Accounting adjustments  -                         -   -                           -   -   

Cost balance at December 31, 
2021 146,900 627,792 1,164 243,738 300,462

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at December 31, 2020 COP - COP 224,939 COP  2,610  COP 194,870  COP 236,720 

Depreciation for the fiscal year    -   6,066          198.00 19,097 29,356 

Derecognition of obsolete real estate    -      -   -   (52,192) (21,934)

Sale of real estate    -   (7,008) (1,976) (86) (8,209)

Depreciation balance at 
December 31, 2021 - 223,997 832 161,689 235,933

Impairment 5,862 36,840 -                           -   -   

Carrying value at December 31, 
2021 COP 141,038 COP 366,955 COP 332  COP 82,049 COP         64,529 

Buildings 
(1)

17.	 Property and equipment

At December 31, 2021, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:
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Item
Machinery, Plant 
and Equipment in 

Assembly

Improvements to 
Assets under 

Lease

Assets under 
construction Total

Cost

Balance at December 31, 
2020  COP 397   COP 17,504  COP            2,735 COP 1,408,307 

Acquisitions -                                    -   -   39,494

Additions 5,264 764.00 2,088 12,194

Additions for joint 
operations 2,037

Sales -                                    -   -   (30,899)

Removals -                                    -   -   (82,545)

Accounting adjustments (3,585) (2,620.00) (3,474) (9,679)

Cost balance at December 31, 
2021 2,076 15,648 1,349 1,338,909

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at December 31, 
2020   COP -   COP -   COP -  COP          659,139 

Depreciation for the fiscal year -                                    -   -   56,532

Derecognition of obsolete real estate -                                    -   -   (74,126)

Sale of real estate -                                    -   -   (17,279)

Depreciation balance at 
December 31, 2021 -                              - - 624,266

Impairment -                                    -   -   42,702

 Carrying value at 
December 31, 2021   COP 2,076   COP 15,648   COP 1,349   COP 671,941 

Cost

Balance at December 31, 2019 COP 152,193 COP 640,148 COP 2,942  COP         278,032 COP 283,258 

Acquisitions -                        -   -   12,995 29,338

Additions -   7,228 -                           -   1,387

Additions for joint operations 0 220

Sales (12) (115) -   (2,781) -   

Removals             -                       -   -   (9,633) (7,529)

Accounting adjustments         -              -   -                           -   -   

Cost balance at December 31, 
2020 152,181 647,261 2,942 278,613 306,674

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at December 31, 2019 COP - COP 218,866 COP      2,610 COP 188,174 COP 214,295 

Depreciation for the fiscal year -   6,107 -   18,027 29,949 

Item Lands Vehicles Fixtures and 
Accessories (2) Computers

Buildings 
(1)

(1)	 For the year 2021, Buildings decreased 
by COP 14,790, representing the sale the-
reof; due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
number of offices was reduced.

(2)	 There is a COP 1,694 decrease in Fixtures 
and Accessories, corresponding mainly to 

the Bank's removals to make optimal ad-
justments for the execution of the proces-
ses, considering the health emergency 
caused by COVID-19.

At December 31, 2020, the balance of this ac-
count is summarized as follows: 
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Derecognition of obsolete real estate -                      -   -   (9,502) (2,436)

Sale of real estate - (34) -   (1,829) (5,088)

Depreciation balance at 
December 31, 2020 - 224,939         2,610            194,870            236,720 

Impairment 6,227 40,577 -                           -   -   

Carrying value at December 31, 
2020 145,954 381,745            332              83,743              69,954 

Item
Machinery, Plant 
and Equipment in 

Assembly

Improvements to 
Assets under 

Lease

Constructions in 
Progress (1) Total

Cost

Balance at December 31, 2019  COP 548  COP 19,124  COP 7,563  COP 1,383,808 

Acquisitions -                                      -   -   42,333

Additions 1,361 -   3,857 13,833

0 - 0 220

Sales -                                      -   -   (2,908)

Removals -                                      -   -   (17,158)

Accounting adjustments (1,512) (1,620) (8,685) (11,817)

Cost balance at December 31, 2020 397 17,504 2,735 1,408,307

Depreciation and impairment losses

Saldo al 31 de diciembre de 2019 -                           - -         623,945 

Depreciation for the fiscal year -                                      -   -   54,083

Item Lands Vehicles Fixtures and 
Accessories (2) Computers

Buildings 
(1)

Derecognition of obsolete real estate -                                      -   -   (11,938)

Sale of real estate -                                      -   -   (6,951)

Depreciation balance at December 31, 
2020 -                            - - 659,139

Impairment -                                      -   -   46,804

Carrying value at December 31, 
2020  COP 397  COP 17,504  COP 2,735 COP 702,364 

Appraisal Date Number of Appraisals Share % 

2019 259 100%

2020 66 25%

2021 4 2%

Item
Machinery, Plant 
and Equipment in 

Assembly

Improvements to 
Assets under 

Lease

Constructions in 
Progress (1) Total

All the Group’s property and equipment are 
duly insured against fire, related hazards, da-
mage to electrical and electronic equipment, 
mechanical breakdown, HAMCCop (malicious 
acts) and theft, through insurance policies 
that are in force, and there is no restriction on 
ownership. 

For purposes of constituting provisions or in-
dividual valuations of real estate properties, 
commercial appraisals are carried out with 
independent firms registered at the Realtors 
Association (“Lonja de Propiedad Raíz”). The 
term applied to these appraisals is three (3) 
years; at December 31, 2021, appraisals were 
conducted on 2% of the Bank’s real estate.
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Item 2021 2020

Software and applications  COP 139,621  COP 120,202 

Total intangible assets COP 139,621 COP 120,202 

Item
Useful 

Life
Balance at Dec 

31, 2020
Addition Amortization/

removal
Balance at Dec 

31, 2021

Software and 
applications 5 COP 120,202 COP 49,831 COP (30,412)  COP 139,621   

Total COP 120,202  COP 49,831    COP (30,412) COP 139,621 

The change in software and applications during the years 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

At December 31, 2021

At December 31, 2020

Software and 
applications 5  $             102,617  $             44,546 $ (26,961)  $ 120,202 

Total  $            102,617  $ 44,546 $ (26,961)  $            120,202

Item
Useful 

Life
Balance at Dec 

31, 2019
Addition Amortization/

removal
Balance at Dec 

31, 2020

Depreciation - Fixed assets are deprecia-
ted using the straight line method and begin 
depreciating when they are in optimal condi-
tions of use.

The useful life and cost of the assets are de-
termined through appraisal by independent 
experts every 36 months and the basis of 
depreciation is calculated by subtracting the 

residual value of each fixed asset (buildings) 
from the cost. 

Impairment– The impairment of fixed assets 
for the years 2021 and 2020 was COP 42,702 
and COP 46,804, respectively. The decrease 
in impairment is mainly due to the reversal of 
impairment losses from the sale of buildings 
in 2021.

18.	 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets at December 31 are summarized as follows: 

The additions in 2021 correspond to pay-
ments made for Corporate Software develop-
ment contracts, Mobile Banking and licenses 
in 2021.

Amortization of intangible assets for the years 
2021 and 2020 totaled COP 30,412 and COP 
26,961, respectively.

The Group performs the Impairment Test to 
its assets where it assesses whether it is an 
intangible asset and whether it is being amor-
tized; this step, performed with certain indica-

tors, identifies whether the Software associa-
ted with the asset was rejected, released, or 
its amortization was completed. At the end of 
2021, assessment was carried out and it was 
determined which assets met the impairment 
condition; the corresponding impairments 
will be recognized in Q1 2022.

Based on this assessment, the Bank recogni-
zes the assets that are subject to impairment, 
estimates their value and makes their ac-
counting adjustment to reflect the real value 
in the inventory.
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For investments classified as controlled hol-
dings, including BBVA Fiduciaria and BBVA 
Valores, they are valued using the Equity Me-
thod according to Law 222/1995.

Item Domicile Equity Equity Capital
Share Percentage 

% Carrying Value

RCI Banque Colombia 
S.A. Medellín 234,942 115,122 49.00% 179,686

FAP Asobolsa Bogotá D.C. 1,526 115,820 5.26% 78

Total investments in joint arrangements COP 179,764

Item  Rating Assets  Liabilities  Profits and/or Losses 

RCI Banque Colombia SA A 2,841,497 2,474,791 68,562

FAP Asobolsa A 1489 - (0.2)

RCI Banque Colombia 
S.A. Medellín 234,942 115,122 49.00% 149,740

FAP Asobolsa Bogotá D.C. 1,526 90 5.26% 78

Total investments in joint arrangements COP 149,818

RCI Banque Colombia SA A 2,364,720 2,059,129 30,144

FAP Asobolsa A 1,295 - (0.)

Item Domicile Equity Equity Capital
Share Percentage 

% Carrying Value

Item Rating Assets Liabilities Profits and/or Losses 

19.	 Investments in joint ventures

The balance of the account at December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2021

A 20% increase is reported, represented by 
COP 29,946 in joint arrangements and trust 
rights, the most important of which is RCI, 
with an increase of 10% compared to 2020, 
+COP 29,946.

The Group measures investments in joint 
arrangements as follows: by changes in equi-
ty for FAP Asobolsa, and by the equity method 
for RCI Banque Colombia SA.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint arrange-
ments - These are investments in equity ins-
truments in controlled entities, consisting of 
the following at December 31, 2020:

RCI Colombia S.A. Compañía de Financia-
miento" (“RCI” or “the Company”): The pur-
pose of RCI is to enter into or carry out all 
transactions and contracts legally permitted 
for financing companies, subject to the requi-
rements and limitations of Colombian Law, 
namely:

December 31, 2020

(1) Attracting term funds for the primary purpo-
se of carrying out asset consumer credit, payro-
ll loan, factoring and remittance transactions.

(2) Providing retail financing (credit, leasing) 
for buyers of new Renault vehicles and new 
vehicles of related brands and used vehicles 
of all brands.
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OTHER ASSETS 2021 2020

Letters of credit of deferred payment (1)         COP  -  COP 536 

Activities in joint operations 3 4

Art and cultural assets 1,108 1,108

Sundries (2) 7,721 3,160

Subtotal other assets 8,832 4,804

Impairment of other assets (1,122) (1,313)

Total other assets, net  COP  7,710  COP 3,495 

Item 2021 2020

Prepaid expenses

Corporate software maintenance  COP 30,050 COP        11,718 

Insurance              5,308              2,050 

Electronics               3,009              3,460 

Others 324 407 

Total prepaid expenses         38,691         17,635 

(3) Providing wholesale financing to Renault 
dealers and distributors and related brands 
and spare part inventories.

(4) Transferring and selling accounts receiva-
ble from vehicle loans.

(5) Obtaining loans from financial institutions, 
related parties or affiliates of their sharehol-
ders in the form of loans, bonds, asset-backed 
securities, commercial papers and other ins-

(1)	 The change arises from the full settlement 
of a deferred letter of credit in foreign cu-
rrency of the client DENIM FACTORY SA, 
in the amount of USD 159,697.65, which 
was paid by the client in installments ba-
sed on payment agreements made during 
2021.

(2)	 In sundries accounts, the most represen-
tative amounts are due to: 

truments and to guarantee such obligations 
to the extent necessary.

(6) Facilitating the sale of related insurance 
and other services (including life insurance, 
payment protection insurance and all-risk ve-
hicle insurance).

(7) Remarketing the vehicles returned by lea-
sing customers and those recovered from de-
faulted customers.

20. Other assets (net)

The balance of the account at December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following: 

boarded merchants with a high num-
ber of operations and transactions of 
foreign cardholders, thus generating 
an increase in invoicing.

•	 New development in the securities 
transportation company due to the 
provisioning and collection of cash 
from customer funds pending at 
year-end. 

•	 Transaction pending in cross-refe-
rencing for payment of investment 
through cashier's check.

•	 An increase in national and inter-
national exchange representation 
transactions and electronic deposit 
transactions, since the Bank has on-

21. Prepaid expenses and advances from contracts and suppliers

Prepaid expenses are summarized as follows: 
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Concepto 2021 2020

Advances to contracts and suppliers

Advances to contracts and suppliers (1)          139,803            62,440 

Total advances to contracts and suppliers       139,803         62,440 

Total prepaid expenses and advances to contracts and 
suppliers  COP 178,494  COP 80,075 

Concepto Balance 2020 Addition Amortization/
Removal Balance 2021

Mantenimiento software  COP 11,718  COP        62,111  COP (43,779)  COP 30,050 

Seguros              2,050              9,663 (6,405)              5,308 

Electrónico              3,460              7,085 (7,536)              3,009 

Transmisión de datos -              32,075 (32,075) -   

Otros 407            19,565 (19,648) 324 

Total  COP 17,635  COP 130,499 COP (109,443) COP        38,691 

At December 31, 2020

Item Balance 2019 Addition Amortization/
Removal Balance 2020

Software maintenance  $        17,146  $        37,914  $          (43,342)  $        11,718 

Insurance              1,697              8,530 (8,176)              2,050 

Electronics              4,091              6,349 (6,980)              3,460 

Data transmission - 34,169              (34,169) -   

Others 585            18,179              (18,357) 407 

Total  $   23,519  $ 105,141  $   (111,024)  $   17,635 
At December 31, 2021 the Group had 241 ad-
vances totaling COP 139,803 and at the end of 
2020, it had 101 advances amounting to COP 
62,440; in 2021, a total of 92 contracts were 
paid in the amount of COP 53,741; 232 new 
contracts were generated for COP 129,206 
and 9 contracts remain in force for COP 

Other prepaid expenses includes major local 
and corporate software maintenance con-
tracts; the amortization period cannot be lon-
ger than the term of the legal and contractual 
rights, but it can be less than that established 
by the parties. The time indicated in useful life 
depends on the period during which the entity 
expects to use the asset.

Additions presented in 2021 in Prepaid Expen-
ses correspond to payments made as follows:

19,292. This item increased by 124%, with 
growth driven mainly by the commercial lea-
sing line, with a 72% increase, followed by the 
Agroleasing line, which grew by 20%.

The movement of prepaid expenses during 
the years 2021 and 2020 was as follows: 

December 31, 2021

•	 Payments made to acquire global, mul-
ti-risk, life and vehicle insurance policies.

•	 Payments made for renewals of software 
maintenance and support, transfer prices 
and technical data storage services.  

The removals generated in 2021 correspond 
to amortizations generated during the year in 
which the services were received or the costs 
or expenses were incurred. 
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Item 2021 2020

Savings deposits                                              COP 30,116,543 COP 22,743,982

Deposits in checking accounts                                    9,299,296 8,631,986

Current liabilities for services                                     546,516 532,730

Special deposits                                             837,485 513,293

Special savings accounts                                       333,841 327,656

Single deposits                                                2,006 2,304

Canceled accounts                                               737 743

Banks and correspondents                                          2,756 2,423

Electronic deposits                                           4,647 2,318

TOTAL DEPOSITS AND ON-DEMAND CURRENT LIABILITIES 41,143,827 32,757,435

Certificates of deposit                               18,011,495 19,183,673

Real value savings certificates 10,614 10,492

 TOTAL DEPOSITS AND TERM LIABILITIES  18,022,109 19,194,165

TOTAL DEPOSITS AND CURRENT LIABILITIES COP 59,165,936 COP 51,951,600

A summary of deposits and current liabilities as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

 Local Currency  Foreign Currency  Total Currency 

Checking account

Public sector COP 1,627,096 COP -    COP 1,627,096 

Private sector 7,668,096 4,104 7,672,200 

Total checking account         9,295,192 4,104           9,299,296 

Simple deposit

Private sector 2,006 -   2,006

Total single deposits 2,006 -   2,006

CDT - COP

Public sector 1,807,336 -   1,807,336

Private sector 16,204,159 -   16,204,159

Total CDT-COP 18,011,495 -   18,011,495

Savings deposits

Deposits:

Public sector 9,148,062 -   9,148,062 

Private sector             20,968,482 -               20,968,482 

Special savings:

Private sector 333,841 -   333,841 

Total savings deposits       30,450,385 -         30,450,385 

CDT - RVU

Private sector 10,614 -   10,614

Total CDT-RVU 10,613 -   10,613

22. Deposits and current liabilities

The Group’s liabilities portfolio as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:
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Other deposits

Banks and correspondents 2,741 15 2,756

Special deposits 498,403 343,729  842,132

Banking services 463,391                    83,125 546,516

964,535 426,869 1,391,404

Others

Canceled accounts 737 -   737

Total deposits and current liabilities  COP 58,197,297 COP 968,639  COP 59,165,936 

 Local Currency  Foreign Currency Total moneda

Checking account

Public sector COP 1,852,622  COP -    COP 1,852,622 

Private sector 6,775,209 4,155 6,779,364 

Total checking account             8,627,831 4,155             8,631,986 

Single deposit

Private sector 2,303 -   2,303 

 Local Currency  Foreign Currency Total moneda

Total single deposit 2,303 -   2,303 

CDT - COP

Public sector 1,820,644 -   1,820,644 

Private sector 17,363,029 -   17,363,029 

Total CDT-COP           19,183,673 -             19,183,673 

Savings deposits

Deposits:

Public sector 6,163,345 -   6,163,345 

Private sector 16,615,875 -   16,615,875 

Special savings:

Private sector 327,656 -   327,656 

Total savings deposits           23,071,638 -            23,071,638 

CDT– RVU

Private sector 10,492 -   10,492 

Total CDT-RVU 10,492 -   10,492 

Other deposits

Banks and correspondents 2,424 -   2,424 

Special deposits 163,026 163,040 326,066 

Tax collection 189,546 -   189,546 

Banking services 453,366 79,363 532,729 

Total other deposits 808,362 242,403             1,050,765 

Others

Canceled accounts                                               743 -   743 

Total deposits and current liabilities  COP 51,705,042  COP 246,558  COP  51,951,600 

 Local Currency  Foreign Currency Total moneda

•	 There was a significant increase of 32% in 
savings account deposits, corresponding 
to 13% for the public sector and 19% for 
the private sector.

•	 The increase in special deposits consists 
of Collateral with the counterparty Mor-

gan Stanley for COP 343,729 and collec-
tion with the agency and airline IATA for 
COP 83,414. 

Below is a summary of deposits and current 
liabilities as of December 31, 2020:
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Item Rate 2021 Rate 2020

Ordinary interbank funds purchased:

Banks 2.92% $ 347,120 1.70% $ 80,008 

Total interbank funds purchased 347,120 80,008

Transfer commitments in closed repo transactions:

Central Bank of Colombia 2.91% 2,167,054 1.26% 85,557

Brokerage Firms - 1.62% 38,550 

Counterparty Clearing House 2.66% 606,401 1.68% 119,461

Total closed repo transactions 2,773,455 243,568

Commitments originated in short positions for simultaneous transactions

Central Bank of Colombia 445,457 66,877

Insurance companies 19,700 - 

Brokerage Firms 40,211 -

Banks and financial corporations 4,575 - 

Trust companies - 9,984

Fund management companies - 28,927

Foreign residents 66,107 76,929

Total commitments for simultaneous transactions 576,050 182,716

Total passive positions in money market transactions COP 3,696,625 COP 506,292 

Item Rate 2021 Rate 2020

23. Money market and simultaneous transactions

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:

In December 2021, ordinary purchased inter-
bank funds of COP 347,120 were agreed at an 
average rate of 2.92% with a maturity of 1 day, 
while at December 2020, they were agreed at 
a rate of 1.70% with a maturity of 3 days. 

In turn, at December 31, 2021, repo transac-
tions were agreed with the Central Bank of 
Colombia at an average rate of 2.91%, with 
maturities between 1 and 8 calendar days, 
while at the end of December 2020, closed 
repo transactions were agreed with the Cen-
tral Bank of Colombia at an average rate of 

1.26% and a maturity between 3 and 8 calen-
dar days. 

Additionally, at December 31, 2021, there was 
a slight increase in repo transactions with the 
Counterparty Clearing House at an average 
rate of 2.66%, with maturities from 1 to 8 ca-
lendar days, while at December 31, 2020, clo-
sed repo transactions were agreed with the 
Counterparty Clearing House at an average 
rate of 1.68% and a maturity between 4 and 7 
calendar days. 
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There was a variation of 630.15%, represen-
ting COP 3,190,333. At the end of the fourth 
quarter of 2021, the liquidity level was very 
low, which had to be covered by overnight 
repos, particularly with the Central Bank of 

The increase between 2021 and 2020 of the 
funds obtained in foreign currency is due to 
financing with Bancoldex for approximately 
USD 82 million, which increased the portfolio 
by more than 50%, increasing from 5 transac-
tions in 2020 to 15 transactions at year-end 
2021.

Foreign-currency denominated financial 
obligations were contracted to maintain the 
Bank’s liquidity and were acquired without 
collateral. Rates on obligations denominated 

Item 2021 2020

Foreign Currency

Bancoldex S.A. COP 114,787 COP -   

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.              199,289 - 

The Toronto Dominion Bank 59,769 - 

Bank Of Nova Scotia  231,064              191,872 

Banco Itau Uruguay Sa - 68,658 

Banco Del Estado De Chile-Chile -              102,981 

Total foreign currency COP 604,909 COP 363,511

Item 2021 2020

Local Currency

Financiera de Desarrollo Territorial -  FINDETER 1,048,112 1,087,903

Banco de Comercio Exterior S.A.  - BANCOLDEX 387,865 296,829

Fondo para el Fomento del Sector Agropecuario - FINAGRO 527,923 453,938

International Finance Corporation IFC 405,357 404,745

Total local currency 2,369,257 2,243,415

Total Bank credits and other financial obligations  COP  2,974,166 COP 2,606,926 

Colombia. The opposite was true at year-end 
2020, when there was no need to contract re-
pos due to the Bank's adequate liquidity.

No transaction costs were earned other than 
the interest agreed.  

24. Bank loans and other financial obligations

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:

in foreign currency averaged Libor + 032% for 
short-term obligations with a maturity of up 
to 1 year as of December 31, 2021. It is impor-
tant to mention that for the year 2021, finan-
cing will not have any changes in the LIBOR fi-
nancing rate, so credits will be finalized in the 
conditions with which they were contracted.

The financial costs of the obligations are cal-
culated on a daily basis, based on 360 days 
on principal defined by their frequency and 
interest rate.
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Maturity of the loans varies according to 
the program (typically between one and ten 
years), and the funds directly provided by the 
Bank vary from 0% to 40% of the total value 
of the loan, whereas the balance is provided 

Foreign Currency Local Currency

Category Time Category Time

Less than 1 year <365 <364

From 1 to 5 years >  365 < 1825 >  365 < 1095

More than 5 years >  1825 >  1096

Capital

Interest Short-term Medium-term Long-term Total

Bancoldex S.A.  COP         229  COP 98,634 COP 15,924 COP -    COP 114,787 

Wells Fargo Bank N.A. 231 199,058               -                - 199,289

The Toronto Dominion Bank 52 59,717               -                - 59,769

Bank Of Nova Scotia 356 230,708               -                - 231,064

Total COP      868  COP 588,117 COP           15,924 COP -    COP  604,909 

Less than 1 year

From 1 to 5 years

More than 5 years

Bank Of Nova Scotia COP 308 COP       191,564  COP -    COP -    COP            191,872 

Banco Itau Uruguay Sa 8 68,650               -                - 68,658

Banco Del Estado De Chile-
Chile 6 102,975               -                - 102,981

Total COP 322  COP       363,189  COP -   COP -    COP  363,511 

December 31, 2020

Financiera de Desarrollo 
Territorial - FINDETER  COP 2,319  COP 27,790  COP 161,537  COP 856,465  COP 1,048,111 

Banco de Comercio Exterior 
S.A. – BANCOLDEX 635 31,935 236,353 118,942 387,865

Fondo para el Fomento del 
Sector  Agropecuario – 
FINAGRO

2,376 45,894 191,329 288,325 527,924

International Finance 
Corporation IFC 1,386 -                             - 403,971 405,357

Total  COP 6,716  COP 105,619  COP 589,219  COP 1,667,703  COP 2,369,257 

The breakdown by term in local currency is as follows: 

December 31, 2021

Capital

Interest Short-term Medium-term Long-term Total

Capital

Interest Short-term Medium-term Long-term Total

by Government entities. The obligations are 
guaranteed by the corresponding loans made 
to the customers.

The breakdown of these obligations by term 
was as follows:

The breakdown by term in foreign currency is as follows: 

Foreign currency obligations

December 31, 2021
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Financiera de Desarrollo 
Territorial - FINDETER COP 1,299 COP 16,308 COP 76,741  COP 993,555  COP 1,087,903 

Banco de Comercio Exterior 
S.A. – BANCOLDEX 652 28,010 184,390 83,777 296,829

Fondo para el Fomento 
del Sector Agropecuario – 
FINAGRO

3,160 53,391 181,891 215,496 453,938

International Finance 
Corporation IFC 1,422 -                             - 403,323 404,745

Total COP   6,533  COP 97,709 COP 443,022 COP 1,696,151  COP 2,243,415 

Capital

Interest Short-term Medium-term Long-term Total

December 31, 2020

Note

Bank 
Credits and 

Other 
Financial 

Obligations  

Outstanding 
Investment 
Securities

Subscrib
ed and 
Paid-in 
Capital

Premium on 
Share 

Placement

Other 
Compre-
hensive 
Income 
(OCI)

Retained 
Earnings

Reserves
Article 6 

Law 
4/80 

Total

Updated 
balance at 
January 1, 
2021 

 $   2,606,926 $2,304,263 $ 89,779  $  651,950 $  772,506 $  576,368 $  3,408,311  $   506  $   10,410,609 

Changes in financing cash flows - 

Payment of 
loans and 
other financial 
liabilities

(4,431,607) (138,317) (4,569,924)

Collection of 
loans and 
other financial 
liabilities

4,656,562 - 4,656,562 

Dividends and 
coupons paid 
on equity 
instruments

- - (266,267) (266,267)

Other cash 
inflows 
(outflows) 

- (136,493) 234,978 98,485 

Total changes 
in cash flow 
from financing

224,955 (274,810) -                - - (266,267) 234,978 - (81,144)

Effect of 
changes in 
foreign 
currency 
exchange rates

140,979 356,335 497,314 

During 2021, portfolio placement with redis-
count funds increased compared to the pre-
vious year, mainly through Bancoldex due to 
the lines offered to support those affected by 
the pandemic and the economic reactivation 
of this sector and the excellent execution of 

Local currency obligations

the planned commercial strategy by the office 
network. 

In compliance with IAS 07 Paragraphs 44a 
and 44c, the reconciliation of cash flow finan-
cing activities is disclosed.
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For this class of financial instrument, the di-

fference in valuation between previous GAAP 

and the IFRS is the incorporation of the cre-

dit risk in each transaction, which is known as 

Changes in 
fair value -     - - 

Other 
changes -         - - 

Interest 
expenses

77,287 138,317           - 215,604 

Interest 
payment (75,981) (135,574) (211,555)

Total other 
changes 
related to 
liabilities

1,306 2,743 -                         - - - - - 4,049 

Total other 
changes 
related to 
equity

- - - - (28,000) 691,447 65 - 663,512 

Balances at 
December 31, 
2021

COP 2,974,166 COP 2,388,531 COP 89,779  COP 651,950 COP 744,506 COP 1,001,548 COP 3,643,354 COP 506 COP 11,494,339 

Note

Bank 
Credits and 

Other 
Financial 

Obligations  

Outstanding 
Investment 
Securities

Subscrib
ed and 
Paid-in 
Capital

Premium on 
Share 

Placement

Other 
Compre-
hensive 
Income 
(OCI)

Retained 
Earnings

Reserves
Article 6 

Law 
4/80 

Total

At December 31, the balance of this account classified as liabilities is summarized as follows:

Notional Value Fair Value

Forward Contracts 2021 2020 2021 2020

Purchase on foreign currency

  Rights  COP 7,613,981  COP 20,604,642  COP (7,526,148)  COP (19,232,629)

  Obligations -                              -   7,592,887               20,424,225 

Sale on foreign currency

 Rights              31,091,237               3,420,303              (30,680,948) (3,409,202)

 Obligations -                              -                 31,809,210 3,423,456 

Sale on securities

Less credit risk -                              -   (415) (334)

Total forward contracts             38,705,218 24,024,945 1,194,586 1,205,516 

Notional Value Fair Value

Cash transactions 2021 2020 2021 2020

Purchase on foreign currency

 Rights  97,274 -   (96,522) -   

 Obligations -                              -   97,255 -   

Sales on foreign currency

 Rights  -                              -   -   (71,425)

 Obligations -                              -   -   71,519 

Purchase on securities

25. Derivative financial instruments and cash transactions (liabilities)

the CVA and DVA (credit or debit value adjust-
ments), as applicable. 
The financial instruments traded by the Group 
are classified as assets or liabilities (see Note 
28) according to their results. 
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  Rights  33,676 -   (37,490) -   

Obligations -                              -   37,512 -   

 Sales on securities

  Rights  29,417 17,251 (26,898) (19,374)

 Obligations -                              -   26,931 19,414 

Total cash transactions 160,367 17,251              788 134 

Options on foreign currencies issued - Put:

Obligations -                              -   206,178 101,289 

Sale - Put 206,178 101,289 2,517 5,001 

Options on foreign currencies issued - Call:

Obligations -                              -   179,598 329,165 

Sales - Call 179,598 329,165 5,348 378 

Less CVA credit risk -                              -   (2) -   

Total fair exchange 
price 385,776 430,454 7,863 5,379 

On interest rates:

Rights             63,530,898             60,739,922 (4,964,320) (3,176,646)

 Obligations -                              -   6,246,325 5,550,050 

 Rights               6,487,950               4,810,086 (6,370,594) (4,680,359)

Notional Value Carrying Value

Options 2021 2020 2021 2020

Notional Value Carrying Value

Swaps 2021 2020 2021 2020

  Obligations -                              -   7,351,237 5,220,287 

Less CVA credit risk -                              -   (11,102) (17,398)

Total swaps 70,018,848 65,550,008  2,251,546  2,895,934 

Total cash transactions and 
derivatives COP  109,270,209 COP  90,022,658 COP  3,454,783 COP  4,106,963 

Counterparty 2021 2020

BBVA Madrid Tesorería (1)          10,914            9,321 

GPC TUGS S.A. -            1,418 

Total  COP   10,914    COP   10,739 

BBVA Colombia is the second largest Bank 
in the Public Debt Market Makers Arrange-
ment and this means that it must structu-
rally have a large portfolio of treasury bonds 
(both fixed-rate TES and RVU TES). This need 
has increased over time as the Public Credit 

Office's strategy has been to increase the du-
ration of On the Run bonds. A hedge on the 
bond position can be covered with IBR swaps, 
which grew in 2021; also, several local offsho-
re customers have sought hedges which can 
be seen in the growth in the position of all the 
Bank's derivatives.

(1) The value with BBVA Madrid Tesorería includes BBVA Madrid and BBVA Madrid Clearing Broker 
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Item 2021 2020

Suppliers (1) COP 169,109  COP 175,652

Labor contributions 5,406 5,396

Fogafin deposit insurance (2) 98,842 79,769 

Dividends and surplus 89,542 83,881 

Seizure management 2,963 3,826 

National Law 546/1999 42,475 38,303 

Non-bank payroll agreement Colpensiones (3) -   12,075 

Loan transaction surplus and others 50,509 39,522 

Uncollected checks 23,749 25,613 

Intended purchasers (4) 27,150 35,228 

Costs and expenses payable  1,657 6,485

Settlement of National Treasury Department transfer 
Decree 2331/98 258 421 

Settlement and offsetting of POS Counterparty Clearing 
House (5) 65,429 90,034 

Item 2021 2020

Collection of fees and VAT payable to the Fondo Nacional de 
Garantías 4,459 2,517 

Miles for points (6) -   6,268 

Visa and MasterCard advertising campaigns 1,074 938 

Commissions and fees 1,487 857

Transfer of check disbursements from other markets (7) 10,598 10,540 

Other accounts payable (8) 118,053 96,970

Total accounts payable        COP 712,760 COP 714,295

26. Accounts payable

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:

(1)	 Vendor payments due mainly for adverti-
sing, security, leasing and technology.

(2)	 Amount to be transferred to Fogafin for 
deposit insurance, which is calculated 
monthly but paid quarterly. The balance 
at 2021 consists of the payment of the 
last two quarters. 

(3)	 The cancellation is due to the automation of 
the Colpensiones payroll payment process. 

(4)	 This item is due to an increase in the addi-
tional charges for residential leasing, pen-
ding a request for orders to proceed with 
disbursements. 

(5)	 The variation is due to the decrease in the 
values contracted in contract settlement 
transactions with the Counterparty Clea-
ring House carried out on December 30, 
2021. 
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2021 2020

Item
Subordinated 

Bonds
Ordinary 

Bonds Total Total

Capital COP 2,363,464  COP -    COP 2,363,464     COP  2,250,000  COP - COP         2,250,000 

Interest 20,095 - 20,095 15,821 - 15,821 

Costs and 
valuation

4,972 - 4,972 38,442 - 38,442 

Total  COP  2,388,531  COP -    COP  2,388,531  COP  2,304,263  COP -      COP  2,304,263 

Subordinated 
Bonds

Ordinary 
Bonds

(6)	 The cancellation is due to the termination 
of the Life Miles Agreement and the trans-
fer of points to miles.

(7)	 This entry is due to the increase in loans 
pending disbursement, which are accoun-
ted for by the formalization center so that 
the corresponding checks can be drawn 
by the Office Network. At the end of 2021, 
the balance of this item amounted to COP 
10,598. 

(8)	 Other accounts payable include withhol-
dings for VAT, municipal tax (ICA) and in-
come tax withholdings.

Financial liabilities are derecognized only 
when the legal obligations have ended, that 
is to say, when the obligation specified in the 
corresponding contract has been paid or can-
celed, or it has expired. BBVA considers three 
possible scenarios to derecognize an account 
payable: The receipt of payment, buy-back of 
the debt or the forgiveness of the payment.

The first issuance of Series G - 2009 subordi-
nated bonds amounting to COP 364,000 was 
made on September 19, 2011 with a redemp-
tion term between 10 and 15 years, at CPI + 
4.45% for 10 years, and of CPI + 4.70% for 15 
years. 

The second issuance of Series G - 2009 
subordinated bonds amounting to COP 
365,000 was made on February 19, 2013 with 
a redemption term between 10 and 15 years, 
with return of maximum variable rate of CPI 
+ 3.60% for 10 years, and of CPI + 3.89% for 
15 years.

The third issuance of Series G - 2014 subordi-
nated bonds amounting to COP 250,000 was 
made on November 26, 2014 with a redemp-
tion term between 15 and 20 years, with re-
turn of maximum variable rate of CPI + 4.38% 
for 15 years, and of CPI + 4.50% for 20 years.

The first issuance of subordinated bonds in 
USD was carried out on April 21, 2015 with a 
redemption term of 10 years and a fixed-rate 
yield of 4,875%.

The issuance prospectus contemplate the fo-
llowing characteristics:

27. Outstanding debt securities

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows:

Subordinated 2009 Bonds (issued in Septem-
ber 2011, February 2013 and November 2014)

•	 Subordination of obligations: Since they 
are subordinated bonds, in the event of 
the issuer’s liquidation, the redemption 
of the subscribed capital is subordinated 
to the prior payment of the external lia-
bilities, which constitutes an irrevocable 
obligation.

•	 Capital amortization method, prepay-
ments and buy-back events: The principal 
of the bonds will be amortized under the 
following modalities: month in arrears, 
quarter in arrears, semester in arrears, 
and/or year in arrears, and/or only one 
payment on the maturity date thereof, as 
determined in the corresponding public 
offering notice. Pre-payable bonds may be 
issued, which is determined in the respec-
tive public offering notice.  The issuance of 
subordinated bonds under this Program 
in 2011, 2013 and 2014 does not contem-
plate the prepayment thereof.

The Issuer may buy back its own subordina-
ted bonds. The buyback shall be conducted 
through the Colombian Securities Exchange, 
provided that five years have elapsed since 
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Bond Issuance
Authorized 

Amount

Term 
in 

Years 
Face Rate Coupon

Nominal 
Value 

Issuance Date Maturity Date

Subordinated 2011 COP  2,000,000 15 IPC+4.70% TV $ 156,000 19/9/2011 19/9/2026

Subordinated 2013 10 IPC+3.60% TV        200,000 19/2/2013 19/2/2023

15 IPC+3.89% TV        165,000 19/2/2013 19/2/2028

15 IPC+4.38% TV          90,000 26/11/2014 26/11/2029

Subordinated 2014 20 IPC+4.50% TV        160,000 26/11/2014 26/11/2034

Subordinated in 
USD 2015 USD        500 10 4.88% SV USD    400 21/4/2015 21/4/2025

Total bonds COP COP  2,000,000 COP 771,000 

Total bonds USD   USD      500 USD    400 

Item 2021 2020

Overdue principal and interest CD (1) COP  132,141 COP  87,790 

Loans and CC subject to collection (2) 30,461 43,424

Deferred partial payments 4,259 5,214

Balances to apply to obligations (3) 22,480 7,091

Network clearance 10,108 9,791

Unearned income (4) 24,395 5,081

Network transaction surplus (5) 73,421 61,781

the issuance of the bonds. This transaction is 
voluntary for the Bondholders.  If the issuer 
acquires its own bonds, the confusion princi-
ple shall apply without having to wait until the 
maturity of the securities.

This issuance is not covered by the deposit in-
surance of the Financial Institutions Collateral 
Fund (FOGAFIN, for the Spanish original).

Subordinated Bonds in USD 2015 

•	 Subordination of obligations: Since they 
are subordinated bonds, in the event of 
the issuer’s liquidation, the redemption 
of the subscribed capital is subordinated 
to the prior payment of the external lia-
bilities, which constitutes an irrevocable 
obligation.

•	 Capital amortization method. Prepay-
ments and reacquisition events: The prin-

cipal of the bonds will be amortized under 
the following modalities: month in arrears, 
quarter in arrears, semester in arrears, 
and/or year in arrears, and/or only one 
payment on the maturity date thereof, as 
determined in the corresponding public 
offering notice. 

The issuer cannot buy back its own subordi-
nated bonds until a term of at least 5 years 
has elapsed. The buyback can only be carried 
out with the approval and authorization of the 
Financial Superintendence of Colombia.

This issuance is not covered by the deposit in-
surance of the Financial Institutions Collateral 
Fund (FOGAFIN, for the Spanish original).

•	 A summary of the issuances and bonds is 
shown in the table below:

28. Other liabilities

At December 31, the balance of this account is summarized as follows: 
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The Group records provision liabilities based 
on the opinion of experts from the Legal, La-
bor Relations and Tax Consultancy areas, who 
rate each case in accordance with the status 
of the legal process.  In addition, decision trees 
developed in accordance with the type of con-
tingency (legal, labor and tax) are applied for 

Item 2021 2020

Letters of credit of deferred payment (6)                             - 535

Ascredibanco international purchases 9,734 7,818

Credit balances in foreign currency 1,992 1,142

Surpluses in exchange 37 37

Other Liabilities 30,371 23,440

Total other liabilities COP 339,399 COP 253,144 

Item 2021 2020

Expenses for invoices pending payment (1)  COP 63,753  COP 42,281 

Lawsuits due to breach of contracts (2)            51,890            75,627 

FOGAFIN contingencies              8,587              8,652 

Provision for fines and penalties (3)              3,533              3,133 

Labor lawsuits            14,362            14,604 

Fines and penalties other administrative authorities 922              1,207 

Commission sales force (CF, for the Spanish original)              1,152              1,552 

Other personnel expenses 6              1,809 

IFRS 16 disassembly costs (4)              8,607              8,412 

Others (5)            132,021            119,217 

Total estimated liabilities and provisions  COP 284,833  COP 276,494 

(1)	 CD securities were paid mainly throu-
gh the ALCO in the last month of the 
year to different customers in significant 
amounts. 

(2)	 The variation between 2021 and 2020 
arises from payments made by checks 
except for those subject to collection for 
transactions with cards, transactions in 
clearance and CD constitution transac-
tions for the purpose of an obligation, dis-
playing normal variation in line with the 
behavior of each customer. 

(3)	 At the end of 2021, there were balances 
pending application in lease transactions 

and additional payments for contracts 
with financing other than 100%, due to 
the increase in transactions presented for 
disbursement on the last business day.

(4)	 The increase in the last year was due to 
prepaid income with ZURICH COLOMBIA 
SEGUROS SA.

(5)	 The increase is mainly due to surpluses in 
cash, swaps and cards with a balance in 
favor.

(6)	 In December 2021, COMERCIALIZADORA 
INDUCASCOS SAS paid the last deferred 
payment letter of credit in foreign currency.

29. Accrued liabilities and provisions

classification in the following criteria to create 
the provision:

•	 Probable: they are recognized and disclosed

•	 Remote: they are not recognized or disclosed

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance 
of this account is summarized as follows:
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Item  Proceedings  Others  Total 

Opening balance at january 01, 2021 COP  91,438 COP  185,056 COP  276,494 

Increase 9,189 53,605 62,794 

Income 13,684 -   13,684 

Payment  (13,121) (21,003) (34,124)

Removal (34,015) -   (34,015)

Total provisions and contingencies COP  67,175 COP   217,658 COP  284,833 

Opening balance at january 01, 2020 COP   89,728 COP   227,648 COP  317,376

Increase 2,902 64,439 67,341

Income 1,559 - 1,559

Payment  (1,538) (107,031) (108,569)

Removal (925) - (925)

Decrease (288) - (288)

Total provisions and contingencies  COP  91,438  COP  185.056  COP  276.494 

Item  Proceedings  Others  Total 

Item  Proceedings  Others  Total 

(1)	 This is the estimated provision for supplier 
invoices received and pending payment at 
the end of each accounting period.

(2)	 Corresponds to the provisions recognized 
on civil processes that are currently un-
derway against the Group. 

(3)	 These are the provisions recognized 
for the inspection processes underway 
against the Group. In addition, it paid the 
penalty applied by Unión de Gestión de 
Pensión y Parafiscales (UGPP) for the ad-
justments of contributions with retroac-
tive application, since the UGPP's stance 
was the only one validated and it could 
not be appealed. It is important to men-
tion that the change in the interpretation 
of the standards gave rise to the issue, 
and it was not considered an error before 
that.

(4)	 In compliance with the implementation 
of IFRS 16, in accordance with the corres-
ponding regulations (Decree 2170/2017, 
amended by Exclusive Decree 2420/2015 
and Resolution 033/2018 of the Colom-
bian General Accounting Office (CGN, 
for the Spanish original)), a provision is 
made for disassembly costs, whose value 
is given by the expert opinion of the archi-
tects, for each lease contract.

(5)	 These are provisions accounted mainly 
for: Fees on electronic services for cre-
dit and debit card holders (ACH, CENIT, 
SOIN and PSE, Banking support), gift ins-
tallment on mortgage and insurance pay-
ments, insurance premium fee to BBVA 
insurance for higher value collected on 
January 30 and May 24

At December 31, 2021, the movements of esti-
mated liabilities were as follows: Legal Contingencies

The Group is involved in eight hundred ninety 
two (892) legal proceedings of a civil, crimi-
nal, administrative, tax and labor nature, deri-
ved from the normal course of its activity and 
businesses for an approximate value of COP 
411,603 million.

Provisions have been created for legal contin-
gencies in the amount of COP 67,174. In addi-
tion, for the processes guaranteed by Fogafín, 
there is a coverage between 85% and 95% of 
the net economic effect,  in accordance with 
the contingencies contract terms granted by 
the Fund as part of the privatization process 
of Banco Granahorrar.
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as a simple agent, and not in the capacity 
of a debtor and, therefore, is claiming the 
refund of the amount paid with damages 
for COP 155,000 million against all defen-
dants, including BBVA at 3%. The demu-
rrer proposed by the Group was accepted 
regarding the lack of jurisdiction and or-
dered the dismissal of the lawsuit and the 
referral of the file to the Superintendence 
of Corporations. To resolve the conflict of 
jurisdiction that had arisen, the Superior 
Court of Bogotá declared that this action 
was to be heard by the 50th Civil Court 
of the Bogotá Circuit. The contingency is 
classified as remote.

d. 	 Declaratory action of Sandra Patricia Gal-
vis and others. A lawsuit was filed due to 
defective properties in the project of "Ciu-
dadela Paseo Real de Soacha," built by 
the Provisoc construction company and 
financed by Granahorrar. The contingen-
cy is valued at COP 6,000 and is classified 
as remote, without provision, and guaran-
teed by Fogafín. Pending ruling in the first 
instance.

e.  	 Class Actions: There are several lawsuits 
filed by BBVA or Granahorrar customers 

In the opinion of Management, after consul-
ting with its internal and external legal ad-
visors, these proceedings would not reaso-
nably have an adverse material effect on the 
Group's financial condition or on the results of 
its operations and they are adequately rated 
and provisioned.

The main proceedings currently underway 
against the Entity are as follows:

Civil Proceedings:

a. 	 Declaratory action of Servientrega: The 
conviction of BBVA Colombia, BBVA Fi-
duciaria, BBVA Valores, BAC International 
Bank INC and Fenalco is being claimed 
due to facts related to Banco de Cal-
das (BNC). The claims amount to COP 
74,940. On February 3, 2020, the Bogotá 
Court ruled in favor of the Group in con-
nection with the claims filed by Servien-
trega. The proceedings continue due to 
the counterclaim filed by the Bank against 
Servientrega and the claims filed by Ser-
vientrega against Fenalco which called in 
the Group as an impleader. The appeal 
for annulment filed before the Supreme 
Court resulted in the second-instance ru-

ling in favor of the Group. The contingency 
is classified as remote.

b. 	 Executive enforcement proceedings of 
IFI vs. Corfigan. This claim is for the co-
llection of the settlement of a contract in 
which Corfigan was involved in a joint ven-
ture. Executive enforcement proceedings 
are underway against the Group that or-
dered payment of COP 6,409  million with 
interest since 1999, in which an adverse 
first-instance ruling was issued and an-
nulment proceedings were brought by the 
Group in the Bolivar Court in which the 
annulment of the contract was declared 
by the appeals court, which was later re-
voked by the Council of State. The Group 
filed a lawsuit with claims for direct repa-
ration for judicial error against the Nation 
- Judicial Branch - and Fiducoldex. There 
is a provision of COP 42,513 for this con-
tingency. The contingency is classified as 
probable.  

c. 	 Declaratory action of Protección Agrícola 
S.A. (PROTAG S.A.). A request was made 
to declare that the plaintiff, as the integra-
tor for several banks to grant association 
loans to small-scale producers, was acting 

or users regarding mortgage and other 
types of loans, termination of executory 
proceedings, revision of rates, fees, im-
pairment of property provided as collate-
ral, interest on mortgage loans and credit 
cards. These undetermined-amount pro-
ceedings have been classified as a “remo-
te” contingency, with no rulings against 
the Entity.

Labor Proceedings

At the end of December 2021, BBVA Group 
had a total of 156 labor proceedings totaling 
COP 19,697, for which there are provisions 
for 108 proceedings in the amount of COP 
14,362. The main reasons for the lawsuits are 
payments of pension-related contributions, 
reinstatements, salaried employment, da-
mages for alleged unfair dismissals, disputes 
regarding the legal nature of the conventional 
vacation and seniority bonuses. These pro-
cesses are adequately provisioned as per le-
gal standards, the procedures set forth by the 
Group and the guidelines of the Colombian 
Financial Superintendence. According to the 
Group's legal advisors, it is considered that 
the result will be in favor of the Group and that 
there will be no significant losses. 
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Item  2021 2020

  Severance pay   COP   14,821  COP  14,812 

 Interest on severance pay              1,728              1,767 

  Vacations             36,879            35,516

 Current provisions for employee benefits              94,450            56,110 

 Other benefits            3,959            17,102

 Total short-term benefits      151,837     125,307

 Non-current provisions for employee benefits                                                                                      2021 2020

 Seniority bonus            49,917            55,484 

 Seniority-based vacation Bonus              2,750              2,931 

 Retirement pension actuarial calculation            43,547            54,776 

 Retirement plan premium              1,953              2,373 

 Total long-term benefits        98,168     115,564 

 Total labor liabilities   COP 250,005  COP 240,871 

Tax Proceedings 

The Group is currently engaged in eighteen 
(18) tax proceedings through administrative 
channels and in the administrative jurisdic-
tion with estimated claims amounting to COP 
1,019. The provisions amount to COP 922, 
which correspond to the class action proce-
edings for withholding tax on financial tran-
sactions and proceedings regarding regional 
taxes - basically for property, public lighting, 
untimely provision of information and tax co-
llection proceedings. The probability of exe-
cution of these proceedings is high, so the 
corresponding provisions have been made 

considering their classification and characte-
ristics.

Others

BBVA Group has provisions in the amount of 
COP 217,658 for items such as: Auditing pro-
cesses, provision in accordance with IFRS 16, 
provision for supplier payments, provision for 
personnel expenses; and others such as: fees 
for electronic services for credit and debit 
card holders (ACH, CENITH, SOIN and PSE, 
banking support), gift mortgage and insuran-
ce payments, insurance premium fee.

30. Labor liabilities

The details of the component of short-term labor liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are 
as follows:

Actuarial calculation- As part of the long-
term benefits, the Bank pays its employees a 
seniority bonus for every five years they work 
with the Bank. This benefit is calculated in 
days of salary for each five-year period and, if 
contract termination is not for cause, the bo-
nus is paid in proportion to the time worked. 
The Bank also grants an additional vacation 
period (15 days) to those employed at the 
Bank for 30, 35 or 40 years, in recognition of 
their stability. The additional vacation period 

created herein may be paid in cash at 100%. 

Likewise, the Bank shall pay employees who 

complete the aforementioned years of service 

a vacation bonus equal to and in addition to 

that agreed upon, in relation to the extralegal 

vacations recognized. The vacation bonus is 

equivalent to twenty-three (23) days of basic 

salary without exceeding a fixed amount for 

each year. For the year 2021, the fixed amount 

is equivalent to COP 2,040,858.
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Item 2021 2020

Liabilities for benefits at the beginning of the 2021 and 2020 period  COP  55,484  COP 57,890 

1- Cost of services              6,192              6,275 

2- Cost of interest              3,304              3,418 

3- Cash flow            (9,299)          (10,514)

Adjustment for experience (413) (252)

Adjustment for change in financial assumptions            (5,351)            (1,333)

Liabilities at the end of the 2021 and 2020 period  COP  49,917  COP  55,484 

Item 2021 2020

Balance at December 31, 2021 and 2020  COP   55,484  COP 57,890 

Payment of seniority bonus            (9,299)          (10,992)

Expense for seniority bonus benefit              6,192              6,275 

Financial cost of seniority bonus              3,304              3,418 

Other transfer of funds -   478 

Change in demographic variables            (5,764)            (1,585)

Liabilities at the end of the 2021 and 2020 period  COP  49,917  COP  55,484 

Item 2021 2020

Liabilities for benefits at the beginning of the 2021 and 2020 period  COP 2,373 COP          2,464 

1- Cost of services 128 133 

2- Cost of interest 148 154 

3- Cash flow (28) (327)

Adjustment for experience (331) 59 

Adjustment for change in financial assumptions (336) (109)

Transfer -   (1)

Liabilities at the end of the 2021 and 2020 period  COP   1,954  COP   2,373 

Item 2021 2020

Balance at December 31, 2021 and 2020  COP 2,373  COP 2,464 

Actuarial calculation adjustment by hypothesis (667) (50)

Actuarial calculation adjustment debited to expenses 276 287 

Transfer (1) (28) (328)

Liabilities at the end of the 2021 and 2020 period  COP   1,954  COP    2,373 

Actuarial calculation of retirement plan 
premium:

The Bank has carried out the actuarial valua-
tion at December 31, 2021 and 2020 for the 
retirement plan premium commitment made 

by BBVA with its pensioned and active parti-
cipants.

The following are the details of the actuarial 
calculation and the results of the study at De-
cember 31, 2021: 

(1)	 Pension transfer due to individual retirement plan premium entry.
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nal benefit established via a collective agree-
ment, and monthly payment number 14, for 
retirees granted 13 monthly payments by the 
ISS, is considered in the pension reserve (co-
lumns 31 and 32).

Additional benefits: according to Notice 039 
/ October 21, 2009, the reserves are calcula-
ted for extralegal benefits offered by the Com-
pany to its retirees and beneficiaries.

In the case of BBVA, these benefits are as fo-
llows:

•	 One extralegal monthly payment. This 
is the payment of 15 days in June and 15 
days in December.

•	 One funeral benefit for a total of COP 
3,041,428 upon the death of the retiree 
and COP 714,007 upon the death of the 
retiree's spouse.

•	 One life insurance policy for all retirees 
and survivors entitled to a survivor's pen-
sion at a cost of COP 144,788 (pesos) per 
year in the case of natural death and COP 
27,495 (pesos) per year in the case of ac-
cidental death.

Bases of the actuarial hypothesis - Over 
time, the total cost of the plan will depend on 
a number of factors, including the amount of 
the benefits paid, the number of individuals 
receiving benefits, the administrative expen-
ses of the plan and the returns obtained on 
the assets used to pay the benefits. These 
amounts and other variables are uncertain 
and unknown at the time of the calculation 
and are only predicted within a reasonable 
range of possibility.

Since it is not possible or practical to measu-
re all the variables, summarized information, 
estimates or simplified information were used 
to facilitate the efficient measurement of futu-
re events. Also, the figures stated in the actua-
rial calculation are based on the accounting 
policies of the Bank. 

Pensions (Prior to Law 100/1993)

Monthly pension payment: To determine 
the number of monthly pension payments 
for each pension, the legal and constitutional 
regulatory framework applicable at the time 
that the pension entitlement is accrued is 
taken into account.

The number of monthly pension payments re-
cognized by the ISS in this valuation was de-
termined as follows:

•	 All pensions accrued before July 29, 2005 
are calculated based on 14 monthly pen-
sion payments per year.

•	 All pensions accrued after July 29, 2005 
are calculated based on 13 monthly pen-
sion payments per year.

•	 All pensions accrued before July 31, 2011 
and whose amount is less than three mini-
mum monthly salaries are calculated ba-
sed on 14 monthly pension payments per 
year.

BBVA, in turn, recognizing for all its retirees 
15 monthly payments per year, thus providing 
them with one additional monthly payment in 
some cases, and two additional monthly pay-
ments in others. As for retirees with pension 
Shares of whom the BBVA is not responsible 
for their final pension, only the quota-part co-
rresponding to 14 monthly payments per year 
is granted.

For the purposes of the proforma, monthly 
payment number 15 is valued as an additio-

•	 The Company pays the value of a Hospi-
talization and Surgery policy for some of 
its retirees (according to family group). 
The value paid depends on the number of 
beneficiaries and, for the current year, for 
participants in the valuation, this premium 
is COP 144,788.

Types of pensions and/or contingencies to 
be assessed

Retirees to be paid by the Bank: These pen-
sions are calculated based on the provisions 
established in Article 260 of the Labor Code, 
which applies to all individuals in the transi-
tional system who have provided services for 
companies that recognize and pay pensions.  
The amount of the pension is 75% of the ave-
rage salaries earned in the last year of service, 
provided the person has worked 20 or more 
years for the pension paying company. This 
pension is granted for life.

Survivors' pensions: Survivors' pensions or 
substitutions payable by the Bank are paid to 
surviving beneficiaries of retirees to be paid by 
the Bank, in accordance with the regulations 
established in Law 12/1975, Law 113/1985 
and Law 71/1988 and all other related regula-
tions, as follows:
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•	 To the surviving spouse for life in the 

amount of 100% if there are no children 

named as beneficiaries.

•	 If there are children named as beneficia-

ries, it will be shared in equal parts with 

the surviving spouse. The beneficiaries 

must be within the required ages and/or 

certify their status as students as required 

by the aforementioned regulations.

According to the provisions set forth in De-

cree 1889/1994, the funeral benefit is not cal-

culated.

Dismissals without just cause between 10 
and 15 years of service: It was determined 

in accordance with Article 8 of Law 171/1961, 

which establishes that a person that is dismis-

sed without just cause and has accrued more 

than ten (10) and less than fifteen (15) years 

of services, shall be entitled to a pension for 

life payable by the entity, once he/she reaches 

the age of 60 years. The amount of the pen-

sion is proportional to the amount that would 

have been applicable if he/she had completed 

the time of service established in Article 260 

of the Labor Code (20 years).

Dismissals without just cause after 15 
years of service: determined in accordance 

with Article 8 of Law 171 / 1961 which establi-

shes that a person that is dismissed without 

just cause and has accrued more than fifteen 

(15) years of services, shall be entitled to a 

pension for life payable by the entity once he/

she reaches the age of 50 years. The amount 

of the pension is proportional to the amount 

that would have been applicable if he/she had 

completed the time of service established in 

Article 260 of the Labor Code (20 years).

Voluntarily retirement after 15 years of 
service: Paid in accordance with the provi-

sions of Article 8 of Law 171/1961, which sta-

tes that any employee with 15 or more years of 

services who retires from the company volun-

tarily shall be entitled to a retirement pension 

for life to be paid by the company, once he/

she reaches the age of 60 years. The amount 

of the pension is proportional to the amount 

that would have been applicable if he/she had 

completed the time of service established in 

Article 260 of the Labor Code (20 years).

Active employees entitled to a pension 
from the Bank with expectations of a pen-

sion from the ISS: The actuarial reserve is 

recognized to cover a retirement pension for 

life in accordance with Article 260 of the La-

bor Code, which is applicable because they 

were working at the service of the Bank for 

more than ten years at the time of enrollment 

in the General Pension System. The Bank sha-

ll pay this pension on a permanent basis until 

said employee, on whose behalf it continues 

to make contributions to the ISS, meets the 

minimum requirements established by the 

General Pension System. This is based on the 

date on which the weeks of contribution re-

quirement (increasing annually up to a limit of 

1,300 weeks in the year 2015) and the age of 

retirement (men 60 and women 55, and as of 

January 1, 2014, men 62 and women 57) will 

be met. Once the old-age pension is accrued 

in the ISS, an actuarial reserve is calculated to 

cover a monthly payment for life in an amount 

equal to the difference resulting between the 

pension that was being paid by the company 

and the pension that will be paid by the ISS.

Retirees to be paid by the Bank with a quo-
ta-part: An actuarial reserve is recognized on 

these individuals to cover a retirement pen-

sion for life in accordance with Article 260 of 

the Labor Code. These retirees include those 

whose final pension is the responsibility of 

BBVA as well as those to whom the BBVA only 

grants the corresponding proportion without 

responsibility for the final pension. As for the 

retirees for whom the BBVA is not responsible 

for their final pension, the actuarial reserve is 

calculated proportional to the quota-part de-

termined by the time of service that said em-

ployee worked for the Bank. At the request of 

the BBVA, the actuarial reserve of the retirees 

for whom the BBVA is responsible for their fi-

nal pension, it is calculated as 100% payable 

by the Company and not proportional to the 

corresponding quota-part, except for the indi-

viduals mentioned in innovations.

Survivors’ pensions payable by the Bank with 

a quota-part: These pensions are paid to sur-

viving beneficiaries of retirees to be paid by 

the Bank, in accordance with the regulations 

established in Law 12/1975, Law 113/1985 

and Law 71/1988 and all other related regula-

tions, as follows:
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Item 2021 2020

Balance at December 31, 2021 and 2020  COP   54,776  COP 58,193 

Pension payments            (4,260)            (4,314)

Pension expenses              3,421              3,631 

Adjustment against equity          (10,391)            (2,734)

Liabilities at the end of the 2021 and 2020 period  COP   43,546  COP    54,776 

•	 To the surviving spouse for life in the 

amount of 100% if there are no children 

named as beneficiaries.

•	 If there are children named as beneficia-

ries, it will be shared in equal parts with 

the surviving spouse, The beneficiaries 

must be within the required ages and/or 

certify their status as students as required 

by the aforementioned regulations. 

As for beneficiaries whose final pension is the 
responsibility of the BBVA, the actuarial reser-
ve is calculated as 100% payable by the BBVA 
and not in proportion to the corresponding 
quota-part, as requested by the BBVA. As for 
beneficiaries whose final pension is not the 
responsibility of the BBVA, the actuarial reser-
ve is calculated in accordance with the value 
of the pension quota-part corresponding to 
the Bank. According to the provisions set for-
th in Decree 1889/1994, the funeral benefit is 
not calculated.

Shared pensions and pensions to be paid 
by the Bank with expectation of pension 
by the ISS:

•	 Pension sharing: As a result of the transi-

tion to the Pension System of the Colom-

bian Social Security Institute (ISS, for the 

Spanish original), the legislation establi-

shed the possibility of pension sharing, in 

order for any individual who can eventua-

lly become entitled to a pension to main-

tain the right to be paid by their employer, 

but with the possibility for the company to 

transfer this pension obligation to the So-

cial Security Institute, provided the com-

pany continues to make the contributions 

to enable the individual to eventually meet 

the pension requirements established by 

the system.  The regulatory framework 

of this possibility has been established in 

Article 16 of Agreement 049/1990, which 

sets out the conditions for the application 

of pension sharing.

•	 Retirees to be paid by the company 
with the expectation of a pension from 
the ISS: A monthly retirement pension is 

paid in accordance with the requirements 

set out in Article 260 of the Labor Code, 

that the Bank shall pay on a permanent 

basis until the employee, on whose behalf 

it continues to make contributions to the 

ISS, meets the minimum requirements 

established by the General Pension Sys-

tem. This is based on the date on which 

the weeks of contribution requirement 

(increasing annually up to a limit of 1,300 

weeks in the year 2015) and the age of re-

tirement (men 60 and women 55, and as 

of January 1, 2014, men 62 and women 

57) will be met. Once the old-age pension 

is accrued in the ISS, an actuarial reserve 

is calculated to cover a monthly payment 

for life in an amount equal to the differen-

ce resulting between the pension that was 

being paid by the company and the pen-

sion that will be paid by the ISS.

•	 Shared pensions: These pensions recog-

nize only the difference between the va-

lue of the pension that the company was 

paying and that paid by the ISS. They are 

calculated as a life annuity.

The following methodologies and actuarial 

bases were used for the evaluation of the 

mathematical reserve of retirement, pension 

bonds and securities.  They are adjusted to 

the current regulations for the preparation 

of actuarial calculations (Decrees 1625/2016 

and 2420/2015).

Bases of the actuarial hypothesis- Over 

time, the total cost of the plan will depend on 

a number of factors, including the amount of 

the benefits paid, the number of individuals 

receiving benefits, the administrative expen-

ses of the plan and the returns obtained on 
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Economic and Demographic Hypotheses For the financing situation at December 31, 2021 and 
the determination of cost for the 2022 fiscal year

Discount rate 8.75%

Inflation 3.00%

Salary increase rate 5.00%

Pension increase rate Equal to inflation

Minimum salary increase rate 4.0%

Increase rate for the benefits granted by the Bank Equal to inflation

Growth rate of the retirement and disability bonus Equal to inflation

Medical expense increase rate 5.00%

Economic and Demographic Hypotheses For the financing situation at December 31, 2021 and 
the determination of cost for the 2022 fiscal year

Mortality Colombian Mortality Table of Life Annuities 2008 
(RV08)

Disability Active employee disability table - Banking 
Superintendence Resolution 0585/1994 

Turnover BBVA turnover table based on age, adjusted to 90%

Technical bases and hypothesis for the actuarial calculation based on the application of 
Decree 1625/2016:

Mortality table
Mortality Table of Valid Male and Female Annuitants “2005 – 2008 
Experience”, as per Resolution 1555/2010 issued by the Financial 
Superintendence of Colombia.

Salary and pension adjustment:        

The formulation employed explicitly includes the future increases in 
salaries and pensions using a rate equal to the average resulting from 
adding three (3) times the inflation of the year k-1, plus two (2) times the 
inflation of year k-2, plus one (1) time the inflation of the year k-3 according 
to Article 1 of Decree 2984/2009 and Article 1 of Decree 2783/2001. This 
is a nominal annual rate of 3.91%.

Technical interest rate:
The real technical interest rate of 4.80% was used in accordance with 
Article 1 of Decree 2984/2009 and Article 1 of Decree 2783/2001.

the assets used to pay the benefits. These 

amounts and other variables are uncertain 

and unknown at the time of the calculation 

and are only predicted within a reasonable 

range of possibility.

Since it is not possible or practical to measu-

re all the variables, summarized information, 

estimates or simplified information were used 

to facilitate the efficient measurement of fu-

ture events.

Also, the figures stated in the actuarial cal-
culation are based on the Bank’s accounting 
policies.

The actuarial technical bases and hypo-
theses used in the calculation according 

to IAS 19, are:
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COMPARISON

Decree 1625/2016 IAS 19

COP 46,180 COP 43,547 

Item 2021 2020

Current income tax        COP 463,394        COP 401,422 

Deferred tax           (25,082)         (156,163)

Income tax of previous years              5,847             (5,118)

Total income tax     COP 444,159    COP  240,141 

Actuarial methodology - The prospective method of calculation was used, valuing future bene-
fits segmented from the expired period (segmented income).

financial entities; for 2020 it was 32% plus 
4 additional points for surtax applicable to 
financial entities. 

•	 According to the Economic Growth Law 
(Law 2010/2019), the income tax rate 
for the years 2020 and 2021 is 32% and 
31%, respectively. The financial institu-
tions with a taxable income greater than 

or equal to 120,000 Tax Value Units (UVT, 

for the Spanish original) during the period 

will apply an additional 4% of income tax 

for the year 2020 and 3% for 2021.

•	 According to Social Investment Law 

2155/2021, the income tax rate for legal 

entities from 2020 to 2025 will be 35%. 

Additionally, financial institutions are re-

quired to add 3 additional percentage 

points, for an overall income tax rate of 

38%.

•	 In 2020, the minimum presumed income 

for determining income tax was 0.5% of 

net worth on the last day of the preceding 

tax year. Starting in 2021, the Economic 

Growth Law of 2019 reduced the rate to 

0%.

•	 Starting in 2017, tax losses can be offset 

against ordinary taxable income obtained 

in the following 12 tax years.

•	 Economic Growth Law 2010/2019 main-

tains the possibility of taking an income 

tax credit on 50% of the industry and tra-

31.2 Reconciliation of the tax rate in ac-
cordance with the tax provisions and the 
effective rate:

The current tax provisions applicable to the 
Bank and its subsidiaries stipulate that in Co-
lombia: 

•	 The income tax rate for 2021 is 31% plus 
3 additional points for surtax applicable to 

31. Income tax and deferred tax 

31.1	 Components of the income  tax expense
The income tax expense for the years 2021 and 2020 is made up of the following:

de tax (municipal tax) effectively paid in 

the tax year or period. The Social Invest-

ment Law maintains this credit at 50%.

•	 Excess presumptive income can be offset 

in the following 5 tax years. 

•	 Through the Economic Growth Law (Law 

2010/2019), the income tax and comple-

mentary tax returns of taxpayers who de-

termine or offset tax losses or are subject 

to the transfer pricing regime, will become 

final in 5 years. 

•	 The capital gains tax rate is 10%.

•	 For the 2020 and 2021 tax years, the bene-

fit of audit has been created for taxpayers 

that increase their net income tax in the 

current tax year in relation to the net in-

come tax of the preceding year by at least 

30% or 20%, through which the income 

tax return is considered final within 6 or 12 

months from the filing date, respectively.

•	 Social Investment Law 2155/2021 establi-

shes a new audit benefit. In tax years 2022 
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2021 2020

Profit before taxes from continuing operations Relación % COP 1,335,958    Relación % COP 703,732 

Income tax expense calculated at 34% for the year 2021 
and 36% for the year 2020 34,00% 454,226 36,00% 253,344 

Dividends received that are not taxable income (0,46%) (6,146) (0,68%) (4,810)

2021 2020

Exempt income (1,68%) (22,435) (3,49%) (24,583)

Gain from valuation using the equity method 0,94% (12,596) (0,46%) (3,212)

Other non-taxable income (1,22%) (16,357) (1,18%) (8,300)

Other non-deductible expenses 2,53% 33,910 (1,18%) - 

Non-deductible taxes 1,89% 25,257 2,95% 20,758 

Rate difference effect of deferred tax vs. 
nominal rate (1,43%) (19,066) 1,91% 13,457 

Fines, penalties and other non-deductible expenses 0,43% 5,767 3,05% 21,439 

Retirement pensions and social security expenses 0,00% - 0,28% 1,997 

Income tax of previous years 0,44% 5,847 (0,73%) (5,118)

Tax credits (1,31%) (17,588) (3,07%) (21,606)

Amortization of tax credits (0,08%) (1,007) (0,03%) (227)

Others (1,07%) 14,347 (0,43%) (2,998)

Income tax expense recognized in the income 
statement (related to continuing operations) 33,25% COP 444,159 34,12% COP 240,141 

and 2023, taxpayers whose net income 
tax for the current tax year increases by 
35% compared to the preceding year, the 
tax return will become final in 6 months, 
and when the increase is 25%, the return 

will become final in 12 months.

Given that in the 2020 tax year BBVA reported 

profits that allowed offsetting tax losses up to 

the amount of ordinary net income, the basis 

for determining income tax was presumpti-

ve income, which was 0.5% of the net worth 

of the preceding year. The applicable rate is 

32%. In 2021, the reported taxable income 

was sufficient to offset all remaining tax los-

ses, as a result of which the income tax is cal-

culated over the difference at the rate of 31%.

Below are the details of the reconciliation be-

tween the total income tax expense calcula-

ted at the tax rates in force for 2021 and 2020, 

respectively and the tax expense actually re-

cognized in the Statement of Income.
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2021 2020

Current tax assets

Current tax credit balance COP  2,316 COP  1,844

Total COP  2,316 COP  1,844

Current tax liabilities

Income tax payable 152,986 21,385

Total COP 152,986 COP 21,385

Item 2021 2020

Deferred tax asset COP 1,257 COP 140,284

Deferred tax liability (103,645) (255,069)

Total COP 102,388  COP (114,785) 

Year ended December 31, 2021

2021 Opening 
Balance

Recognized in 
the Income 
Statement

Recognized in 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Recognized 
Directly in 

Equity 

Closing 
Balance

Deferred tax asset related to:

Cash flow hedges  COP 12,365  - COP (10,418)  -  COP 1,947 

Net investment hedges 151,368 40,855  -  -            192,223 

Property, plant and equipment 36,604 19  - 582              37,205 

Intangible Assets 1,296 (1,296) -                         - - 

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss and 
amortized cost

 - 3,918  -  - 3,918 

Deferred income  - 7,566  -  - 7,566 

Provisions 9,606 (9,606) -                         - - 

Defined benefit liabilities 15,547 13,773  -  -              29,320 

Restatement of assets and 
liabilities in FC 52,206 (10,488)  -  -              41,718 

Leases 4,422 1,384  -  - 5,806 

Industry and 
commerce tax 8,040 309  -  - 8,349 

Total deferred tax asset 291,454 46,434 (10,418) 582 328,052 

Deferred tax liability related to:

Net investment hedges - (4,376) -                         - (4,376)

Associates (26,128) (2,522)               34,754              (38,414) (32,310)

31.4	 Deferred taxes by type of tempo-
rary difference:

The differences between the asset and liabili-
ty bases for IFRS purposes and the tax bases 
of the same assets and liabilities for tax pur-
poses give rise to temporary differences that 
generate deferred taxes that were measured 

31.3	 Current tax assets and liabilities

and recognized at December 31, 2021 and 
2020 based on the tax rates currently in force 
for the years in which said temporary differen-
ces will be reversed.

The following is the net result of the deferred 
tax assets and liabilities presented in the Sta-
tements of Financial Position at December 31, 
2021 and 2020:
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Property, plant and equipment               (118,722) (13,598) -                         - (132,320)

Repos, simultaneous 
transactions and temporary 
security transfers 

- (50) - (40)   (90)

Intangible Assets - (2,609) -                         - (2,609)

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss and 
amortized cost

(29,759) 2,386               16,024 -  (11,349)

Portfolio (82,783)               82,783 -    - - 

Portfolio provisions               (141,164) (82,450)             (24,023) 8,850 (238,787)

Provisions (6,029)               (1,149) -                         -     (7,178)

Unclaimed issuance and 
buyback costs  (1,654) 233 -                         - (1,421)

Total deferred tax liability (406,239) (21,352) 26,755 (29,604) (430,440)

Net deferred tax  COP (114,785)  COP 25,082  COP 16,337 COP      (29,022) COP (102,388)

Year ended December 31, 2020

Deferred tax asset related to:

Cash flow hedges 15,935 - (3,570) - 12,365

Derivative financial instruments - 151,368 - - 151,368

2021 Opening 
Balance

Recognized in 
the Income 
Statement

Recognized in 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Recognized 
Directly in 

Equity 

Closing 
Balance

2020 Opening 
Balance

Recognized in 
the Income 
Statement

Recognized in 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Recognized 
Directly in 

Equity 

Closing 
Balance

Repos, simultaneous transactions 
and temporary security transfers 560 (560) - - -

Property, plant and equipment 39,731 (3,514) - 387 36,604

Intangible Assets 1,015 281 - - 1,296

Estimated Liabilities and Provisions 2,546 7,060 - - 9,606

Defined benefit liabilities 24,094 (8,547) - - 15,547

Restatement of assets and liabilities in FC 54,667 (2,461) - - 52,206

Leases 2,715 1,707 - - 4,422

Industry and commerce tax - 8,040 - - 8,040

Total deferred tax asset 141,263 153,374 (3,570) 387 291,454

Deferred tax liability related to:

Derivative financial instruments (1,493) 1,493 - - -

Associates (23,184) (1,358) (1,586) - (26,128)

Property, plant and equipment (121,686) 2,964 - - (118,722)

Repos, simultaneous transactions 
and temporary security transfers (280) - - 280 -

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss and amortized cost (23,766) (1,689) (4,304) - (29,759)

Portfolio (51,118) 5,209 - (36,874) (82,783)

Portfolio provisions (99,875) - (32,831) (8,458) (141,164)

2020 Opening 
Balance

Recognized in the 
Income 

Statement

Recognized in 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Recognized 
Directly in 

Equity 

Closing 
Balance
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Unclaimed issuance and 
buyback costs  (2,157) 503 - - (1,654)

Others (1,695) (4,334) - - (6,029)

Total deferred tax liability (325,254) 2,788 (38,721) (45,052) (406,239)

Net deferred tax (183,991) 156,162 (42,291) (44,665) (114,785)

2020 Opening 
Balance

Recognized in the 
Income 

Statement

Recognized in 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Recognized 
Directly in 

Equity 

Closing 
Balance

December 31, 2021

Tax losses expiring on: 

December 31, 2031 COP 795 

No expiration date -   

 Subtotal tax losses 795 

Excess presumptive income expiring on:

December 31, 2024 212 

Subtotal excess presumptive income 212 

Total tax credits COP  1,007 

Component
Amount 

Before Taxes
Deferred 

Tax
Net Amount 

Before Taxes
Deferred  

Tax 
Net

Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of income for the period

Surplus from the equity 
method COP             142 COP -   COP 142 COP (4,535)  COP -   COP (4,535)

Share in other comprehensive 
income of non-controlled 
entities

(52,214) (34,754) (17,460) 16,321 (1,586) 14,735

 Movement at December 31, 2021 Movement at December 31, 2020

For the purposes of disclosure in the conso-

lidated statement of financial position, the 

Bank and its subsidiaries offset the deferred 

tax assets and liabilities pursuant to the pro-

visions of Paragraph 74 of IAS 12, considering 

the application of the tax provisions in force in 

Colombia on the legal right to offset current 

tax assets and liabilities.

31.4.1	 Deferred taxes for subsidiaries and 

joint operations  

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank 

has not recognized deferred tax liabilities re-

garding temporary differences of the invest-

ment in its Subsidiaries, as it has the autho-

rity to control the reversal of these temporary 

differences, and it is not planning on reversing 

them in the near future (exception of IAS 12). 

If this deferred tax liability had been recog-

nized, the difference would amount to COP 

26,830 and COP 40,481 at December 31, 2021 

and 2020, respectively.

At December 31, 2020, the details of tax 

losses and excess presumptive income that 

have not been utilized and on which the Com-

pany has not recognized deferred tax assets 

due to the uncertainty of their recovery are 

as follows:

31.4.2	Effect of current and deferred taxes on each component of other comprehensive 
income in equity

The effects of current and deferred taxes on each component of other comprehensive income are 
detailed below:
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Loan portfolio 12,469 (24,023) (11,555) 137,760 (32,834) 104,926

Defined benefit liabilities 15,268 - 15,268              2,426 - 2,426

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the statement of income for the period

Financial assets available-for-
sale (51,244)           16,024 (35,220) 16,038 (4,300) 11,738

Cash flow hedges 31,243 (10,418) 20,825 7,899 (3,571) 4,328

TOTAL COP  (44,337) COP (16,337) COP (28,000) COP 175,909 COP (42,291) COP  133,618 

Component
Amount 

Before Taxes
Deferred 

Tax
Net Amount 

Before Taxes
Deferred 

Tax 
Net

 Movement at December 31, 2021 Movement at December 31, 2020

Item 2021 2020

Legal reserve COP  3,642,821 COP  3,407,778 

Occasional reserves:

Available to the Board of Directors 1 1

To protect investments 532 532

Total reserves COP  3,643,354 COP  3,408,311 

31.5 Transfer prices

In compliance with the provisions of Laws 

788/2002, 863/2003, 1607/2012 and 

1819/2016, regulated by Decree 2120/2017, 

the Bank and its subsidiary BBVA Valores con-

ducted a transfer price study on the transac-

tions carried out with related parties abroad 

during the 2020 tax year. The study did not 

give rise to any adjustments that would affect 

the Bank's tax costs, expenses and revenue.

Although the transfer price study for the year 

2021 is currently in progress, no significant 

changes are expected in relation to the prece-

ding year.

31.6 Uncertainty in tax positions

As of January 1, 2020 and through Decree 

2270/2019, which was adopted for the purpo-

ses of the local financial statements of Group 

1, the interpretation IFRIC 23- Uncertainties 

in Income Tax Treatments, in the application 

of this standard, the Bank and its subsidia-

ries have analyzed the tax positions adopted 

in the returns still subject to review by the tax 

authority, in order to identify uncertainties 

associated with a difference between such 
positions and those of the tax administration. 
According to the evaluation, no facts were 
identified that would imply recognition of ad-
ditional provisions on this account.

32. Subscribed and paid-in capital

The Bank's subscribed and paid-in capital 
is divided into ordinary shares and non-vo-
ting preferential dividend shares. The latter 
may not represent more than 50% of subs-
cribed capital. At December 31, 2021 and 

2020, 13,907,929,071 ordinary shares and 
479,760,000 preferred shares were subs-
cribed and paid-in, at a nominal value of COP 
6.24, for total subscribed and paid-in capital 
of COP 89,779.

33. Reserves

At December 31, the balance of this account was broken down as follows:



284 285

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

Item 2021 2020

Net income from previous year, 2020 and 2019 COP  461,405 COP  549,312

Outstanding preferred shares (units) 479,760,000 479,760,000

Dividends per preferred share (Colombian pesos)  16,32 per share  25,66 per share

Total dividends declared for preferred shares 7,830     12,310 

Ordinary shares outstanding (units)         13,907,929,071         13,907,929,071 

Dividends per ordinary share (Colombian pesos)  16,32 per share   25,66 per share

Total dividends declared for ordinary shares 226,977 356,877

Dividends declared at December 31, 2020 and 2019 234,807 369,188

Dividends payable at December 31, 2020 and 2019 COP  89,536 COP  83,878

Item 2021 2020

Basic earnings per ordinary and preferred share: 

Net earnings attributable to shareholders COP  890,240 COP  461,405

Average number of shares outstanding 14,387,689,071 14,387,689,071

Basic earnings per share (*) 62 33

Diluted earnings per share (*) 62 33

Item 2021 2020

Basic earnings per ordinary and preferred share: 

Net earnings attributable to shareholders COP  890,240 COP  461,405 

Average number of shares outstanding 14,387,689,071 14,387,689,071

Basic earnings per share (*) 62 32

Diluted earnings per share (*) 62 32

Legal reserve – In accordance with the statu-
tory provisions, 10% of Bank’s net profit each 
year must be credited to a “reserve fund” 
until its balance reaches at least 50.01% of 
the subscribed capital.  As a result, the legal 
reserve may not be reduced below this per-
centage, except to cover losses in excess of 
undistributed profits. Share issue premiums 
are also credited to the legal reserve.

Available to the Board of Directors and 
others – These reserves may be used for fu-
ture distributions, and include: 

•	 Non-taxed profits available to the Board of 

Directors, with a balance of COP 1 million.

•	 For investment protection, with a balance 

equivalent to COP 532 million. 

Declared dividends- During the years ended 

on December 31, the following dividends were 

declared payable: 34. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated in accordance with the criteria set forth in IAS 33.

 (*) Values in Colombian pesos

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no other financial instruments 
or commitments to employees based on shares that may affect the calculation of the diluted ear-
nings per share for those years. Therefore, the basic and diluted earnings per share are the same.
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Other Comprehensive Income December 31, 
2021

Movements 
During the 
Fiscal Year

December 31,
 2020

Gains from other equity items in joint ventures and 
trust rights   COP 991    COP 142    COP 849  

Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, 
before taxes 11,058  15,268  (4,210) 

Gain from non-controlling interest, before taxes 110,578  (52,214) 162,792  

Impairment adjustment on loan portfolio and 
financial leasing transactions by application of IFRS 
9 to consolidated financial statements

486,182  12,468  473,714  

Total other comprehensive income that will not be 
reclassified to the statement of income, before taxes  COP 608,809 COP  (24,336) COP  633,145 

Losses from remeasurement of financial assets 
available-for-sale, before taxes 41,573  (52,852) 94,425  

Reclassification adjustments, financial 
assets available-for-sale, before taxes (13,542) 1,608  (15,150) 

Ganancias por coberturas de flujos de efectivo (5,124) 31,243  (36,367) 

Gain on cash flow hedging COP         470,856 COP (20,001) COP 490,857 

Total OCI that is not reclassified to the Statement of 
Income, before taxes

COP      1,079,665 COP (44,337)  COP 1,124,002 

Income tax related to investments in equity 
instruments in Other Comprehensive Income (17,122) 34,754  (51,876) 

Cumulative income tax related to components of 
other comprehensive income that will not be 
reclassified to the statement of income

COP (17,122)  COP 34,754 COP (51,876)

Income tax on loan portfolio and finance leasing 
impairment measurements according to IFRS 9 (308,943) (24,023) (284,920) 

Income tax on remeasurement of financial assets (11,041) 16,024  (27,065) 

Income tax related to cash flow hedges of other 
comprehensive income 1,947  (10,418) 12,365  

Cumulative income tax related to components 
of other comprehensive income that will be 
reclassified to the statement of income

COP (318,037) COP (18,417)  COP (299,620)

Total deferred tax  COP (335,159) COP 16,337  COP (351,496)

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  COP 744,506  COP (28,000)  COP 772,506 

Entity December 31, 2021 December 31,  2020 Variation  

BBVA Fiduciaria (valoración ORI) 1,288  1,182  106  

BBVA Valores (valoración ORI) (1,034) (1,070) 36  

RCI Banque Colombia 737  737    -  

Total  COP 991  COP 849  COP 142 

Other Comprehensive Income December 31, 
2021

Movements 
During the
Fiscal Year

December 31,
 2020

35. Other comprehensive income - oci

The details on the movements in other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 
2021 and 2020, respectively, are as follows:

The following were the changes in investments in equity securities before taxes at December 31, 
2021.
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36. Legal controls 

Item 2021 2020 Variation  

Credibanco  COP 110,983  COP 112,366  COP (1,383)

Bolsa de Valores de Colombia 44,517  54,266  (9,749) 

FINAGRO 53,814  95,310  (41,496)

Redeban 30,993  31,173  (180) 

ACH Colombia 49,757  50,276  (519) 

Cámara de Riesgo Central 2,449  1,336  1,113 

Total COP 292,513  COP 344,727  COP (52,214)

Date Valuation Accrued Interest Exchange 
Difference

Variations

December -2021 111,840 3,021 (119,985)

December -2020 14,087 3,692 (54,146)

Total  COP  97,753  COP (671)                  COP (65,839)  COP  31,243 

The variation of -COP 52,852 from the remea-
surement of financial assets available-for-sa-
le before taxes is mainly due to the maturity of 
fixed rate and UVR treasury securities (TES) 
and TIPs recognized in 2021. 

The movement of COP 1,608 for adjustment 
from reclassifications of financial assets avai-

Movement of valuation of equity instruments carried under OCI:

lable-for-sale, the most noteworthy of which 
is the sale of the security TUVT10100321 in 
the amount of COP 760 and TCO364090321 
for COP 779, of the National Treasury Depart-
ment, which were held at December 2020.

The following were the movements of cash 
flow hedges:

In the years 2021 and 2020, the Bank com-
plied with all the standards on legal controls 
set forth by the Financial Superintendence of 
Colombia, as follows:

•	 As regards the limit on proprietary position 
in foreign currency, minimum legal reser-
ve required on deposits in local currency, 
standard liquidity risk indicator (IRL, for the 
Spanish original) and mandatory invest-
ments in Agricultural Investment Securi-
ties (TDAs, for the Spanish original).

The Bank's portfolio policy is compliant with 
the current mortgage law, according to which 
mortgage loans can be granted as follows:

•	 Social Interest housing: Up to 80% finan-
cing on the value of the housing unit.

•	 Non-Social Interest housing: Up to 70% 
financing on the value of the housing unit.

After having obtained internal approvals and 
approval from the Financial Superintenden-
ce of Colombia, BBVA Colombia opted for the 
early application of decrees 1477/2018 and 
1421/2019, which became effective in January 
2021. This process was completed with sub-
mission as of June 2020 to the Financial Super-
intendence of Colombia of the Solvency Ratio 
indicator in accordance with the above decrees.

In this manner, starting in June 2020, BBVA 
Colombia abides by the regulatory limits 
contained in said decrees regarding the Sol-
vency Ratio, which at December 2021 stood 
at 10.25%, and at year-end 2020 at 9.265%, 
within the adjustment period provided for in 
the regulations.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank's 
technical reserve represented 13.75% and 
11.54%, of its assets and credit-risk-related 
contingencies calculated based on the Con-
solidated Financial Statements.
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Item 2021 2020

Contingent debit accounts

Loan portfolio interest COP  355,163 COP  360,939

Finance lease interest 8,948 12,548

Monetary adjustment loan portfolio 4,142 3,504

Installments receivable 1,861,112 1,868,661

Purchase options receivable 64,264 73,692

Others 385,776 430,453

Total contingent debit accounts            2,679,405 2,749,797

Memorandum debit accounts

Assets and securities delivered in escrow 3,478,761 4,514,210

Assets and securities delivered in escrow 2,979,455 245,900

Written-off assets 2,178,062 2,133,638

Provision for individuals in bankruptcy proceedings 1,905 1,905

Others              516,507,049 440,344,278

Total contingent debit accounts        525,145,232 447,239,931

Item 2021 2020

Contingent credit accounts

Loans approved but not disbursed 1,131,063 784,486

Opening of credits 5,072,602 4,578,901

Others 5,980,657 4,917,969

Contingent credit accounts          12,184,322 10,281,356

Memorandum credit accounts

Assets and securities received in escrow 15,864 14,578

Assets and securities received as collateral 52,949,865 48,822,338

Consumer loan rating 72,979,548 70,273,060

Commercial loan rating 22,367,344 18,869,372

Micro-credit rating 606,352 395,443

Lease transaction rating 1,615,689 1,665,178

Mortgage rating 13,813,555 13,009,935

Others              102,486,171 76,368,186

Securities received in simultaneous transactions 633,407 684,137

Total memorandum credit accounts      COP 267,467,795 COP 230,102,227

37. Financial reporting disclosure and control accounts

As part of its ordinary course of business, the Group had the following contingent liabilities and 
commitments at December 31, 2021 and 2020, recorded in memorandum accounts:
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Item 2021 2020

Endorsements COP 878 COP 21,029

Bank guarantees 2,015,166 2,080,051

Total endorsements and bank guarantees LC COP 2,016,044 COP 2,101,080

Item USD EUR

Bank guarantees 451 31

Letters of Credit (LC) 46 4

Total in foreign currency 497 35

Exchange rates (applied on cutoff date) 3,981 4,511

Total in Colombian pesos 1,978,755 155,782

Item USD EUR

Bank guarantees 265 33 

Letters of Credit (LC) (32) (7) 

Total in foreign currency 233 26 

Exchange rates (applied on cutoff date) 3,432 4,222 

Total in Colombian pesos 799,733 109,776 

DECISION TREE - ITEMS TO BE ASSESSED

CONTINGENT 
LIABILITIES - 
ENDORSEMENTS, 
LETTERS OF CREDIT 
AND BANK 
GUARANTEES

Is a possible obligation generated by past events and whose existence has yet to 
be confirmed only because uncertain future events that are not controlled by the 
entity occur?

Is it not likely that, in order to be fulfill the obligation, an outflow of resources 
incorporating future economic benefits will be required?

Can the amount be measured with sufficient reliability?

38. Commitments and contingencies

During the normal course of business, the 
Group issues financial instruments, which are 
recorded in contingent accounts. The Group’s 
management does not expect any material 
losses as a result of these transactions. 

The Group issues endorsements and guaran-
tees to guarantee contracts and obligations 

of special customers. These guarantees expi-
re in 1 to 15 years, and Bank correspondents 
are charged for this service, whether or not 
they belong to the Group.

At December 31, the Group reported the fo-
llowing balances:

December 31, 2021
In foreign currency
(Stated in millions of foreign currency)

December 31, 2020
In foreign currency
(Stated in millions of foreign currency)

Historically, there has been no default on 
Bank Guarantees in local or foreign currency 
at BBVA Group.

In the event of a default by any of our custo-
mers on the obligations incurred with third 

parties derived from an endorsement or Bank 
Guarantee issued by BBVA Group, a provision 
would be recognized based on the parameters 
established by IAS 37-Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, by applying 
the following decision tree:
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2021

Rating COP Percentage

A 878 100%

Total in Colombian pesos COP   878 100%

blished in models, which are analyzed by the 

Group’s Tools Department; these variables 

assign a final weight to each customer in or-

der to establish and define the overall rating. 

This rating is standardized by a computer pro-

cess according to the parameters of Section 

8017 of UGDT37 at the 8 risk levels handled 

for credit investments; this rating, in turn, is 

associated with equivalents with the five le-

vels established by Notice 100.

The rating of the information at December 31, 

2021 is as follows:

Bank guarantees in local currency (stated 

in COP millions)

The Risk Department was requested the ra-
ting of customers who, at December 30, 2021, 
had balances outstanding in local and foreign 
currency, with the following result:

Since Bank Guarantees are not part of the 
rating processes established for asset credit 
transactions, the Risk Department carried out 
the following activities:

a) Perform a search on the identification sub-
mitted by the Bank Guarantee, and assign it 
a credit rating if the identification has active 
credit transactions at December 2021.

b) The rating information was taken for iden-
tifications that do not have active credit tran-
sactions.

The rating is assigned by the analysis of a set 
of qualitative and quantitative variables esta-

2021

Rating COP Percentage

A 2,015,166 100%

Total in Colombian pesos COP  2,015,166 100%

Bank guarantees in foreign currency (stated in millions of foreign currency)

2021

Rating USD EUR Percentage

A 263 33 99.47%

C -                                    - 0.07%

E 1 - 0.29%

NR 1 - 0.17%

Total in foreign currency 265 33 

Exchange rates (applied on cutoff date) 3,432 4,222 28.00%

Total in COP COP  910,029 COP  139,604 100%

Letters of credit in foreign currency (stated in millions of foreign currency)

2021

Rating USD EUR Percentage

A 46 4 98.28%

B 1 - 1.72%

Total in foreign currency 47 4

Exchange rates (applied on cutoff date) 3,981 4,511

Total in COP COP  184,474 COP  16,863 100%
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INTEREST REVENUES 2021 2020

Commercial loan portfolio (1)

Commercial loans COP  722,486  COP   956,404

Overdrafts commercial loans 4,557 6,993

Commercial loan portfolio discount operations 3,010 4,051

Commercial loan portfolio rediscount operations 73,513 76,342

Commercial portfolio late payment interest 16,912 17,542

Total commercial loan portfolio 820,478 1,061,332

Consumer loan portfolio (2)

Consumer loans 2,085,173 2,249,185

Overdrafts consumer loans 358 592

Consumer loan portfolio late charge interest 32,040 30,867

Total consumer loan portfolio 2,117,571 2,280,644

Credit card loan portfolio

Commercial credit card loan portfolio 4,451 4,658

Consumer credit card portfolio 399,854 386,180

Total credit card loan portfolio 404,305 390,838

Mortgage loan portfolio (3)

Mortgage loans and residential leases 816,633 851,473

Default interest on mortgage and residential leasing loans 16,744 9,703

Readjustment of the real value unit (UVR) 25,228 12,979

Total mortgage loan portfolio 858,605 874,155

Bank guarantees in foreign currency (stated 
in millions of foreign currency)

Letters of credit in foreign currency (stated in 
millions of foreign currency)

As a result of the work carried out to assess 
the current status of the Endorsements, Bank 
Guarantees and Letters of Credit in force at 
the end of the year 2021, under the criteria of 
IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets, the facts that caught our 
attention are highlighted below:

100% of the customers with transactions 
(Bank Guarantees) in local currency do not 
pose any level of risk, as their economic 
Group rating is "A".

98.28% of the foreign currency letters of cre-
dit issued during the quarter in question have 
the highest rating, which is an A rating.

Of all the Guarantees issued in foreign curren-
cy, more than 99.87% are provided by custo-
mers with an A rating, and 0.05% of custo-
mers have a B rating, as follows:  

Velnec S.A., as was the case in the second 
quarter, has a B rating. Currently, its most 
important lines of business are: consulting, 
project structuring and oversight or audit of 
infrastructure projects. This company has 
several projects such as MetroCali, Ositran 
and others awarded by INVIAS, with potential 
customers such as Aeronáutica Civil, and pro-
jection in the market through contracts such 
as the administration of the Puerta de Hierro 
road in Magangué.

In accordance with the reviewed bases, at the 
end of 2021, it is considered that BBVA Group 
does not need to make any allowances for the 
products of Endorsements, Bank Guarantees 
and Letters of Credit in Local and Foreign Cu-
rrencies, in accordance with the criteria of 
IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets.

The guarantees made in the name of Velnec 
SA., despite having a B rating, only account 
for a total of USD 223,600, which when com-
pared to the account total (0.05%) is not sig-
nificant, and therefore, no impairment is re-
cognized.

39. Interest revenues

Revenues from ordinary activities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 consist of the 
following:
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INTEREST REVENUES 2021 2020

Factoring transactions loan portfolio (4)

Factoring transactions 32,681 35,399

Total factoring transactions portfolio 32,681 35,399

Operating lease loan portfolio

Operating lease rates - 676

Profit on sale of assets in operating leases - 683

Total operating lease loan portfolio - 1,359

Finance leasing loan portfolio (5)

Penalties for breach of financial lease agreements 2,711 3,247

Financial component of financial leases - consumer 224 214

Financial component of financial leases - commercial 98,476 129,901

Total finance leasing loan portfolio 101,411 133,362

Residential leasing loan portfolio (6)

Financial component of residential lease 311,870 276,637

Total residential lease portfolio 311,870 276,637

TOTAL INTEREST REVENUES 4,646,921 5,053,726

INTEREST EXPENSES

Savings deposits (7) 277,173 523,333

Certificates of deposit (8) 1,018,915 1,268,426

Readjustment of the real value unit (UVR) 517 170

Bank credits and financial obligations (9) 85,606 105,681

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSES 1,382,211 1,897,610

TOTAL INTEREST REVENUES, NET COP  3,264,710       COP  3,156,116

(1)	 Interest income from the commercial por-
tfolio decreased by COP 240,854, mainly 
due to lower interest on commercial loans 
by -COP 98,973; agro-industrial loans by 
-COP 42,995; Leases by -COP 32,793 and 
external consumer by -COP 18,774.

(2)	 Consumer loan revenues decreased by 
COP 163,073; of this total, -COP 230,293 
is due to a rate reduction of 153 Bp, off-
set by an increase in balances for COP 
963,311, which produced a positive im-
pact of COP 67,221.

(3)	  Mortgage loans decreased by COP 
15,550, due to a rate reduction of 60 Bp.

(4)	 Revenues from Discounting and Facto-
ring/Confirming operations decreased by 
COP 2,718, mainly due to a rate reduction 
of 189 Bp.

(5)	 Finance leases decreased by COP 31,951 
due to a 183 Bp rate reduction and a COP 
41,613 decrease in average balances.

(6)	 Residential leases generated higher re-

venue of COP 35,233 due to a volume in-

crease of COP 563,190 in average balan-

ces.

(7)	 Interest expenses on savings accounts 

decreased by COP 246,160 due to a rate 

reduction of 99 Bp.

(8)	 Interest expenses on term certificates of 

deposit (CDs) decreased by COP 249,511, 

due to a COP 2,994,872 reduction in volu-

me, which led to a decrease in expenses 

of COP 173,980 and a rate reduction of 37 

Bp, which produced a decrease of COP 

75,531.

(9)	 The interest expenses of Banks and Fi-

nancial Obligations are directly related to 

the variation in rediscounting rates, which 

in 2021 was -94 Bp.
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Item 2021 2020

Fees

Fee revenues COP  658,723 COP  555,452

Fee expenses (440,984) (349,054)

Total fees             217,739             206,398 

Securities

Money market transactions

Financial income from money market transactions and 
other interest 44,593 71,149 

Valuation of short positions for open repo and simultaneous 
transactions and temporary security transfers (1) 147,513 180,146 

Valuation of spot transactions 3,311 324 

Investments at fair value

Valuation of debt instruments at fair value (2) 474,432 731,893 

Valuation of equity instruments at fair value 1,804 8,475 

Investments at amortized cost

Valuation of investments at amortized cost 224,089 157,230 

By equity method 37,047 16,104 

Item 2021 2020

Total securities             932,789          1,165,321 

Derivatives

Speculation derivatives (3)            20,454,645            25,508,493 

Total derivatives        20,454,645        25,508,493 

Disposals

Sale of non-current assets held for sale 2,399 1,096 

Sale of property and equipment 3 -   

Sale of investments 171,223 134,541 

Total disposals             173,625             135,637 

Total operating income        21,778,798        27,015,849 

Other operating revenues

Sale of checkbooks 8,622 8,034 

VISA financing payment 14,394 12,377 

Dividends 18,043 14,837 

Operational risk 44,121 4,488 

Reversal of allowances 3,792 3,792 

SWIFT messages 3,555 2,862 

Leases 2,077 2,424 

Payment of the regional VISA agreement 13,131 6,662 

Sale of cash 426 650 

Advertising agency discounts 11,971 7,896 

Commercial information for customers 653 682 

Other revenue 73,287 31,389 

Total other operating revenues             194,072               96,093 

Placement of consumer and commercial 
loans increased, even though interest rates 
decreased as a result of a substantial rate 
reduction by the Central Bank of Colombia 

during the COVID-19 crisis. Due to this, during 

most of 2021 we had the lowest rates in Co-

lombia’s history.

40. Non-interest revenues

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balances of these accounts are summari-
zed as follows: 
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Item 2021 2020

Exchange differences net             483,266            (203,580)

Activities in joint operations 880 1,598 

Total other revenue other than interests  COP   22,457,016  COP   26,909,960 
Item 2021 2020

Securities

Money market transactions

Financial revenue money market transactions and other interests  COP 156,440  COP 161,761 

 Valuation of short positions for open repo and simultaneous 
transactions, and temporary security transfers (1) 121,497 216,146

Valuation of spot transactions 868 136

Investments at fair value

Valuation of debt instruments at fair value 499,675 484,193

Investments at amortized cost

Valuation of investments at amortized cost 56,268 38,317

Total securities 834,748             900,553 

Derivatives

Speculation derivatives (2) 20,577,777 25,072,970

Hedging derivatives 17,347 17,224

Total derivatives 20,595,124        25,090,194 

Disposals

Sale of non-current assets held-for-sale 685 2,226

Revenues other than interest decreased by 
-COP 4,452,652, with the following breakdown:

(1)	 Short money market operations decrea-
sed compared to the previous year, and 
this increase is due to the business strate-
gy in place at the trading desk at the time 
the balance is assessed. In 2021, there 
was a reduction of -COP 32,633, equiva-
lent to 1% of the total change.

(2)	 The most significant variation was in TES 
issued and guaranteed by the Nation, with 
a -COP 257,461 reduction in 2021, equiva-
lent to 6% of the overall decrease.

(3)	 Speculation Derivatives represent the se-
ttlement of foreign currency future tran-

sactions that reflect a reduction between 

2021 and 2020 of COP 5,053,848, equi-

valent to 113%. The decrease of this item 

was mainly due to the loss of rights on 

Peso/Dollar forwards and futures.

(4)	 In December, the exchange rate increased 

substantially to COP 3,981.16 (Peso/Do-

llar), which enabled realizing financial as-

sets, leading to an increase in the Bank’s 

proprietary position by COP 686,846, 

equivalent to -15% of the overall change.

Revenues other than interest account for -4%, 

equivalent to a change of COP 190,615.

41. Non-interest expenses 

At December 31, 2021, the balance of this item is summarized as follows:
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Item 2021 2020

Sale of property and equipment 61 -

Sale of investments 131,281 126,523

Portfolio sales 9,334 12,372

Total disposals 141,361             141,121 

Other operating expenses

Employee salaries and benefits 668,157 636,326

Fees 38,571 32,047

Statutory Audit fees 3,609 3,650

Depreciation of property and equipment 80,829 85,301

Amortization of intangible assets 33,831 29,639

Taxes 109,770 110,214

Leases  6,107 5,937

Insurance 210,663 178,342

Contributions and memberships 18,566 18,722

Maintenance, improvements and repairs 112,321 108,287

Operational risk 23,973 31,243

Penalties and sanctions, lawsuits, damages 17,026 5,827

Temporary services 78,528 67,586

Advertising 20,805 18,321

Concepto 2021 2020

Public relations 921 889

Utilities 29,411 26,455

Electronic data processing 122,478 105,913

Travel expenses 2,538 3,509

Transportation 39,987 36,254

Office supplies and stationery 4,269 4,759

Miscellaneous administrative expenses                          12,168 13,735

Miscellaneous administrative expenses of products 31,163 32,793

Outsourced payroll expense 3,849 8,398

Queries with credit bureaus and repositories 9,792 8,857

Loyalty incentive and customer cost 8,988 1,630

Asset product formalization cost 1,349 1,398

Costs on MEP 9,208 7,375

Filing and custody 7,620 7,641

IT developments and support 12,152 13,151

Corporate responsibility 4,683 8,605

Customer loyalty 583 36,856

Cost of deposits - 73

TES UVR update 546 4,172 2,324

Digital sales 3,189 2,654
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Item 2021 2020

Donations 156 113

Other 93,204 69,826

Management and brokerage services and systems 1,556 1,335

Legal expenses 8 296

Activities in joint operations 2,967 2,864

Total other operating expenses 1,835,027          1,729,147 

TOTAL EXPENSES OTHER THAN INTEREST COP  23,406,261 COP  27,861,015

Expenses other than interest decreased by 
-COP 4,454,756, with the following breakdown:

(1)	 Monetary market transactions are very 
short-term operations, which means that 
the year-end balances compared to the 
prior year are the result of the strategies 
implemented by the trading desk, which 
are intended to obtain greater liquidity in 
performing trades and at the time of as-
sessing the balances of transactions such 
as repos, simultaneous transactions and 
other money market operations. In 2021, 

there was a COP 94,649 reduction, equi-
valent to 2% of the overall change.

(2) 	Speculation Derivatives represent the se-
ttlement of foreign currency future tran-
sactions that reflect a reduction between 
2020 and 2021 of COP 4,495,193, equiva-
lent to 101%. This item also has substan-
tial weight in the item, and it reflects the 
loss of rights in Peso/Dollar forward tran-
sactions and the transfer of the reversal in 
January 2021 of their valuation at the cut-
off date of December 31, 2020.

Controlling Entity and Main Controlling 
Entity

The BBVA Colombia Group's main controlling 
entity is Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, 
which holds a 95.43% equity interest, as dis-
closed below under shareholders with more 
than a 10% share of the company.

Recognition of Relationship with Related 
Parties

Individuals Related to the Entity

BBVA Colombia recognizes as related parties 
the members of the Board of Directors and the 
registered agents and/or key management 
personnel that have a significant influence 
over the organization's decision-making.

Joint ventures 

In July 2015, Compañía de Financiamien-
to RCI Colombia was incorporated under a 
joint arrangement with RCI Banque, owned 

by the Renault Group. This investment repre-
sents a holding of 48.99% for the Bank, with 
11,512,154 shares; the third capitalization was 
carried out in the month of March. This com-
pany carries out its activities at Cra 49 No. 39 
Sur 100 Envigado, Antioquia.

Other related parties in Colombia

BBVA recognizes the following companies 
as related parties: BBVA Seguros Generales, 
which is in the business of selling general or 
damage insurance products; and BBVA Segu-
ros de Vida, which only sells life insurance. Sin-
ce its shareholding structure reflects 99.95% 
of BBVA Group’s share, they are recognized 
as economically related parties. These com-
panies carry out their activities at Cra 15 No. 
95-65 on the 5th and 6th floors.

Comercializadora de Servicios Financieros is 
also considered a local related party, since it 
is a partner responsible for facilitating access 
to the products and services of BBVA Colom-
bia by presenting the offerings of some of its 

Other expenses increased by COP 125,228, equivalent to 3% of the total change. 

42. Transactions with related parties
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Details 2021 2020

Short-term employee benefits COP    9,059 COP   23,632

Post-employment benefits 67 88

Share-based payment 577 1,224

Remuneration of key management personnel 9,364 273

COP    19,067 COP    25,217

products to customers. Said company holds 
significant shareholdings in BBVA Seguros 
Colombia.

This same group includes Telefónica Facto-
ring Colombia, S.A., Opplus Operaciones y 
Servicios S.A., Fideicomiso de Administra-
ción Redetrans, Fideicomiso Horizontes Villa 
Campestre and Fideicomiso Lote 6.1 Zarago-
za.

Other related parties abroad

BBVA Colombia recognizes as economically 
related parties the companies that are part 
of the Business Group or those over which it 
has significant influence, directly or indirect-
ly. The following are recognized in this group: 
BBVA Bancomer, Banco Continental, S.A, 
Banco Provincial S.A, BBVA Banco Frances 
S.A, BBVA Suiza S.A., BBVA Securities and 
Aplica Tecnología Avanzada S.A.

Compensation received by key manage-
ment personnel and Board members

In addition to their remuneration, the Com-
pany has a system for the calculation and 
payment of the annual variable compensation 
for individuals whose professional activities 
have a significant impact on the Bank’s risk 
profile, as well as other employees who have 
oversight roles, including executive directors 
and other members of BBVA’s Senior Mana-
gement.

The deferred amounts of the annual variable 
compensation, both in cash and in shares, are 
subject to long-term indicators, so the degree 
of fulfillment of these objectives determines 
the amount of the benefit granted to each re-
lated party.

Below are the other remunerations paid to 
key management personnel:

In addition to the remunerations mentioned 
above, key management personnel and Board 
members claimed travel expenses for 2021 
in the amount of COP 220 and COP 116 for 
2020, which they paid using corporate cards.

Board members received compensation for 
fees and attendance of board meetings in the 
amount of COP 311 for 2021 and COP 611 for 
2020.

Transactions Recognized with Sharehol-
ders Who Hold a Share of More Than 10% 
in the Company

For comparative effects, at December 2021, 
BBVA Colombia had a balance of COP 
1,259,186 in correspondent banks of BBVA 

Madrid, as well as recognition of Accounts 
Receivable for COP 155,659 and accounts pa-
yable for COP 53,620, arising from the settle-
ment of derivative trades, and a Margin Call in 
the amount of COP 639,784 in favor of BBVA 
Madrid. Additionally, BBVA Colombia has re-
cognized revenues for COP 2,222 in fees, 
and expenses for COP 66,225 for technolo-
gy transfer, and lastly, in derivative trades, a 
Mark to Market (MTM) was recognized in the 
Asset portion for COP 958,365, and in the Lia-
bility portion for COP 2,015,268.

Regarding the contingent commitments re-

cognized, the Bank issues Endorsements, 

Letters of Credit and Bank Guarantees to its 

economically related parties, which are recor-

ded in contingent accounts. These guaran-
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Joint Ventures

Year 2021
Shareholders with 

share over 10% RCI COLOMBIA Board 
Members

Registered 
Agents and Key 

Management 
Personnel

Assets:

Loan portfolio and interest  COP - COP 742,003  COP 278 COP 3,737 

Investments -   198,796 -                                    -   

Derivatives and spot transactions 2,292,973  -                               -   -   

Banks and other financial entities 1,259,186  -                               -   -   

Accounts receivable 155,659 4,768 -                                    -   

Deposits as collateral 639,784  -                               -   -   

Total 4,347,602 945,567 278 3,737

Liabilities::

Deposits (savings and checking accounts) -   75,533 50 1,941

Derivatives and spot transactions 3,027,008  -   -   -   

Accounts Payable 53,620 1  -                               -   

Total 3,080,628 75,534 50 1,941

Revenue:

Details 2021 2020

Bank Guarantees in domestic currency COP     431,964 COP    427,209

Bank Guarantees in foreign currency 164,647 279,139

Letters of credit in foreign currency 8,795 896

COP    605,406 COP    707,244

tees expire in one to fifteen years, and a 0.2% 

fee is charged for this service, with a USD 

80 minimum for members of the Group, and 

0.3% of the value of the endorsement or gua-

rantee, with a USD 100 minimum quarterly in 

advance for corresponding banks that are not 

members of the BBVA Group.

Below are the details in local and foreign cu-

rrency by type of collateral generated for Ban-

co Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria:

Other Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions with related parties are a normal part of trade and business. BBVA often carries out 
part of its activities through subsidiaries, joint ventures and other related parties.

The details of transactions with related parties at December 31, 2021, was as follows:
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Dividends from the equity method -   37,047 -                                    -   

Interest and/or return on investments 405 35,769 13 255

Fees 1,817 37 2 16

Total 2,222 72,853 15 271

Expenses:

Interest 134 483 3 203

Fees 4,770      -        -   21

Employee benefits -      -      -   576,933

Other expenses -   2,531 -   220

Advisory and consultancy fees -                          -   346 121

Corporate application services 61,321 -                               -   -   

Total 66,225 3,014 349 577,498

Contingent commitments 
and obligations 555,159 -   -         -   

Total  COP 555,159 COP -   COP -    COP -

Joint Ventures

Year 2021
Shareholders with 

share over 10% RCI COLOMBIA Board 
Members

Registered 
Agents and Key 

Management 
Personnel

Other companies of the BBVA 
Group that are not 

subsidiaries of BBVA 
Colombia

Year 2021 BBVA 
Seguros

BBVA Seguros 
de Vida

Other 
domestic 

related parties 

Other Related 
Parties Abroad

Assets:

Loan portfolio and interest  COP - COP 2  COP 3  COP - 

Derivatives and spot transactions -                               -   -   6,051

Banks and other financial entities -                               -   -   228

Accounts receivable -                               -   58 -   

Deposits as collateral -                               -   -   11,227

Gastos anticipados 2,897 -                              -   -   

Non-current assets held-for-sale -                            - 13,576 - 

Total 2,897 2 13,637 17,506

Liabilities:

Deposits (savings and checking accounts) 49,606 120,170 29,924 -   

Outstanding Investment Securities -   17,089 -                              -   

Derivatives and spot transactions -                                 -   -   14,318

Accounts Payable 6 263 943 1,075 

Total 49,612 137,522 30,867 15,393
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Revenue:

Interest and/or return on investments -                         -   20 29

Fees 25,405 83,124 43 522

Leases 16 64 1,201 -   

Total 25,421 83,188 1,264 551

Expenses:

Interest 157 4,040 118 1

Fees -                              -   168,336 9,555

Insurance 9,291 -                              -   -   

Other expenses -   2 945 -   

Advisory and consultancy fees -                              -   6,830 -   

Corporate application services -              -   5,475 83,724

Total 9,448 4,042 181,704 93,280

Contingent commitments and obligations -      -   -   50,247

Call and put purchase commitments -            -   -   180,498

Total  COP -   COP -    COP -    COP 230,745 

Other companies of the BBVA 
Group that are not 

subsidiaries of BBVA 
Colombia

Year 2021 BBVA 
Seguros

BBVA Seguros 
de Vida

Other 
domestic 

related parties 

Other Related 
Parties Abroad

Assets:

Loan portfolio and interest COP - COP 552,005 COP 39  COP 4,897 

Investments -   149,740 -                                    -   

Derivatives and spot transactions 2,896,383 -                               -   -   

Banks and other financial entities 66,914 -                               -   -   

Accounts receivable 119,411 2,138 -                                    -   

Deposits as collateral 460,895 -                               -   -   

Total 3,543,603 703,883 39 4,897

Liabilities:

Deposits (savings and checking accounts) -   50,322 80 1,138

Derivatives and spot transactions 3,425,634 -                               -   -   

Accounts Payable 39,880 -                               -   -   

Total 3,465,514 50,322 80 1,138

Joint Ventures

Year 2021
Shareholders with 

share over 10% RCI COLOMBIA Board 
Members

Registered 
Agents and Key 

Management 
Personnel

The details of transactions with related parties at December 31, 2020, was as follows:
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Revenue::

Dividends from the equity method -   16,104 -                                    -   

Interest and/or return on 
investments 879 36,187 12 613

Fees 2,178 488 4 33

Total 3,057 52,779 16 646

Expenses:

Interest 9 1,574 3 466

Fees 5,136         -   5 59

Other expenses -      -   32 116

Advisory and consultancy fees -      -   702 -   

Corporate application services 41,611    -                               -   -   

Total 46,756 1,574 742 641

Contingent commitments 
and obligations 574,046 -                               -   -   

Total  COP 574,046 COP -    COP -    COP -

Joint Ventures

Year 2021
Shareholders with 

share over 10% RCI COLOMBIA Board 
Members

Registered 
Agents and Key 

Management 
Personnel

Assets:

Derivatives and spot transactions COP -            COP       -                COP -   COP 5,232

Banks and other financial entities -                                     -   -   771

Accounts receivable -                                     -   -   7

Deposits as collateral -                                     -   -   515

Prepaid expenses 1,396 -                              -   -   

Non-current assets held-for-sale -                             -             12,591 - 

Total 1,396 -   12,591 6,525

Liabilities

Deposits (savings and checking accounts) 50,117 86,271 29,170 -   

Outstanding Investment Securities -   35,188 -                              -   

Derivatives and spot transactions -                                     -   -   5,571

Other companies of the BBVA Group 
that are not subsidiaries of BBVA 

Colombia

Year 2020 BBVA 
Seguros

BBVA Seguros 
de Vida

domestic 
related parties 

Other Related 
Parties 
Abroad

Other 
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Accounts Payable -   24 -                              -   

Total 50,117 121,483 29,170 5,571

Revenue::

Interest and/or return on 
investments -                                     -   1,190 38

Fees 20,403 72,403 40 531

Leases 16 64 1,322 -   

Total 20,419 72,467 2,552 569

Expenses::

Interest 1,060 9,950 67 23

Fees -                                     -   113,832 6,153

Insurance 9,264 104 -                              -   

Other expenses -                                     -   844 -

Other companies of the BBVA Group 
that are not subsidiaries of BBVA 

Colombia

Year 2020 BBVA 
Seguros

BBVA Seguros 
de Vida

domestic 
related parties 

Other Related 
Parties 
Abroad

Other 

Corporate application services -                                     -   -   71,996

Total 10,324 10,054 114,743 78,172

Contingent commitments and 
obligations -                                     -   -   133,198

Call and put purchase 
commitments -                                     -   -   242,565

Total  COP - COP -    COP -    COP        375,763 

Other companies of the BBVA Group 
that are not subsidiaries of BBVA 

Colombia

Year 2020 BBVA 
Seguros

BBVA Seguros 
de Vida

domestic 
related parties 

Other Related 
Parties 
Abroad

Other 

43. Market, interest, structural and credit risk report 

Market Risk

Banco BBVA Colombia S.A

Market risk is defined as the possibility that 
the Group will incur in losses associated with 
the decrease in value of its portfolio due to 
changes in the prices of the financial instru-
ments on which it holds positions. Although 
the Bank, the trust company and the securi-

ties broker manage their risks separately, they 

maintain a common corporate methodology, 

which manages the market risk resulting from 

the activity of their operations with the basic 

objective of limiting possible losses, quantif-

ying the economic capital necessary to carry 

out their activity and optimizing the relations-

hip between the level of exposure assumed 

and the expected results.
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To optimize management of these exposures, 
the Bank has developed a series of organiza-
tional, identification, measurement, control 
and monitoring systems and policies of the 
risks inherent to trading, as well as balance 
sheet transactions.

(i)	 Segregation of roles - Depending on 
the role that the contracting, accounting, 
compliance or risk monitoring activities 
are related to, the responsibility was as-
signed to each of the following areas:

•	 Global Markets - Department 
responsible for managing the 
application of defined policies and 
programs to ensure the efficient 
management of the Bank's finan-
cial resources, as well as to control 
that there is the necessary liquidi-
ty for the normal course of the ins-
titution's operations, by designing 
policies on the investment portfo-
lios that contribute to the streng-
thening of the Group's financial, 
competitive and expansion posi-
tion at the national and internatio-
nal levels.

•	 Market Management - Area res-

ponsible for controlling the tra-
ding desk's daily transactions, as 
well as for confirming, settling and 
clearing Treasury transactions. In 
turn, it is responsible for the cus-
tody of the contracts and the ma-
nagement of securities deposits, 
reporting to the Media Vice-Presi-
dency.

•	 Market accounting - Area res-
ponsible for validating and ensu-
ring the appropriate incorporation 
of the treasury transactions in 
the Bank's balance sheet, as well 
as controlling, calculating and re-
porting the proprietary position of 
foreign currency, reporting to the 
Finance Vice-Presidency. 

•	 Market and structural risks - 
Area responsible for quantifying, 
assessing and promptly reporting 
the risks of Global Market ope-
rations, as well as liquidity and 
structural balance risks, reporting 
to the Risk Vice-Presidency.

•	 Legal Area - Responsible for 
analyzing and assessing the le-

gal risks that may result from the 
arrangements or contracts that 
formalize the transactions, so as 
to avoid any legal situation that 
can legally affect the instrumen-
tation or documentation thereof. 
As part of its duties, the Legal Area 
verifies that the relevant legal re-
gulations are observed and that 
the Entity's policies and standards 
are in line with them. In all cases, 
it legally structures transactions 
based on the current legal regu-
lations that the Bank is subject 
to, including participation in new 
markets or products.

•	 Internal Control and Operatio-
nal Risk Area - Responsible for 
analyzing, assessing and mana-
ging internal control (processes) 
together with the operational ris-
ks that may result from the Glo-
bal Market operations, identifying 
them and proposing mitigating 
control measures in compliance 
with the corporate model and lo-
cal regulatory guidelines required 
for adequate maintenance of the 

Internal Control System (SCI, for 
the Spanish original) and the Ope-
rational Risk Management System 
(ORMS). 

(ii)	 Nature and scope of the risks arising 
from financial instruments 

•	 Senior Management has assigned 
the following objectives to the Tre-
asury Department:

•	 Management of the Bank's short-
term liquidity; and

•	 Management of the necessary 
tools and mechanisms for hed-
ging interest, exchange rate and 
liquidity risks in operations with 
proprietary resources, as well as 
in operations with customers.

Therefore, the Global Markets Department 
carries out procedures through its proprie-
tary account to meet its liquidity needs and 
those of external customers. It also actively 
participates as a market maker in fixed inco-
me and in foreign currency and spot and term 
transactions, as well as in money market tran-
sactions. Therefore, it has an organizational 
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structure comprised of a trading desk (inte-
rest rates and currency transactions), front 
office (customer needs) and the structuring 
activity.

Taking into account the objectives assigned to 
the Treasury Department and with the aim of 
optimizing, managing and administrating the 
risks inherent thereto, Senior Management 
has decided to establish roles by areas, quan-
tifiable limits and risk measurement tools.

Methods used to measure risk: The Bank 
uses the standard model for risk measure-
ment, control and management; it also uses 
tools to determine limits for trading positions 
and to revise positions and strategies quickly 
as the market conditions change. 

The main sources of market risk that affect 
the Bank are:

a)	 Interest rate: The portfolios of the Glo-
bal Markets area are exposed to this risk 
when their value depends on the level of 
certain interest rates on the financial mar-
ket. 

b)	 Exchange rate: The banking book and the 
trading book are exposed to this risk when 
their values and transactions depend on 
the exchange rate between currencies on 
the financial market.

The methodologies used to measure VaR are 
assessed on a periodic basis and subjected to 
back testing to determine their effectiveness. 
In addition, the Bank has tools to conduct 
stress and/or sensitivity tests on portfolios 
under the simulation of extreme scenarios. 

(iii)	Limits - Limits were established for the 
exposures to risk of the global market ac-
tivity, by assigning the following:

The main metric is the target average econo-
mic capital (CEMO, for the Spanish original) in 
accordance with the standards defined by Ba-
sel 2.5. This indicator is calculated using the 
VaR; a measurement of stressed VaR is also 
added, resulting in a final measurement that 
is the higher of the two (VaR and Stressed 
VaR) during an average of three months. This 
way, more weight is given to the stress events 
of the current or past market. This measure-
ment is rescaled by the multiplier set by Basel 

of three by the square root of ten to calculate 
the economic capital charge. 

Monitoring is carried out through a “global 
limit”, which, in turn, is broken down by risk 
factor, as well as by desk, currency and pro-
duct, for which there are internal warning sig-
ns when the consumption thereof is 85% or 
higher. Overrunning this warning sign requi-
res express communication from the person 
in charge of the Global Markets Department 
to the Market and Structural Risk Depart-
ment, indicating the strategy to be followed.  
The Market and Structural Risk Department 
informs senior management and the Global 
Market Risk Unit, which will then indicate up 
to what point said strategy may continue.

The limits are approved by the Board of Di-
rectors, while measurement, monitoring and 
control are carried out daily by the Market and 
Structural Risk Department, issuing regular 
reports to Senior Management and monthly 
reports to the Board of Directors.

(iv)	Measurement and monitoring tools - The 
main risk measurement tools include Va-
lue at Risk (VaR), Stress VaR and delta 

sensitivity. However, other tools are used, 

such as stress testing and stop loss. 

•	 Value at Risk - VaR. The VaR measure-

ment methodology used by the Bank is 

based on historical simulation, in order to 

collect the negative impacts that the sta-

tements of income of the trading portfo-

lio may undergo due to negative impacts 

generated by the history of risk factors on 

the Bank’s current position. When histori-

cal data are used, the correlation between 

these data and their occurrence distribu-

tions is included naturally. 

•	 To monitor and control limits for the Glo-

bal Market operations, a measurement is 

carried out based on the "VaR without ex-

ponential smoothing" methodology, using 
two years of information on the financial 
markets.		

•	 Stop Loss: This is a monitoring measure 
of the accumulated losses in the global 
market portfolios with the aim of limiting 
the negative impact on the income state-
ment.
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The stop loss was monitored in 2021 through 

a double control mechanism, implementing 

an annual limit with the aim of controlling 

possible accumulated losses in the income 

statement, accompanied by a monthly loss 

limit. These limits aim to minimize the impact 

on the income statement. 

•	 Stress Testing: It is the generation of a set 

of historical scenarios, which puts pressu-

VaR Figures in COP million

  December  Minimum  Maximum   Average  

 Year 2021 7,831 3,081 14,809 6,390

 Year 2020 5,060 1,512 16,261 5,756

SVaR according to Lehman, Figures in COP million

  December   Minimum  Maximum  Average  

 Year 2021 8,914 6,952 26,38 14,544

 Year 2020  12,577 5,5 16,182 9,503

re on the different risk factors related to 

the different Global Market positions. The 

period observed starts in June 2009 and 

extends to December 2021.

•	 Sensitivity (Delta): This is another mea-

sure BBVA Colombia uses to estimate the 

exposure of the global market portfolios. 

The tool estimates portfolio sensitivity in 

response to a variation of one basis point 

Classification
Dec-21 Local Currency Other Currencies Dec-20

Amount Average Maximum

Public debt 2,141.27 1,559.74 2,198.42 12.24 54.05 2,270.16 2,768.16 3,778.27 35.69 92.26

Corporate 
securities 650.88 502.68 642.29 41.21 68.18 619.21 796.38 1,317.55 33.69 68.98

Cash FX 2.30 0.21 2.30 0.01 0.05 (0.05) 0.01 0.41 1.05 4.90

Forward 70.83 (94.62) 204.79 (6.95) 1.37 544.91 (15.81) 382.61 638.52 1,583.52

Shares 
without 
subsidiaries*

609.6 544.12 609.60 - - 538.3 545.6 991.4 - -

Local Currency Other Currencies 

Average Maximum Amount Average Maximum Average Maximum

in the interest rates, and its purpose is 
to raise internal warnings of interest rate 
risk. Therefore, additional sublimits are 
established by products.

(v)	 Market risk profile and positions

Portfolio positions for the years 2021 and 
2017 (in billions)

Below is a comparative chart that lists the po-
sitions of the portfolios of the Bank, the Trust 
Company and the Broker:

*Include strategic investments made by Banco BBVA Colombia. As a result, they are not included in market risk metrics.
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2021 and 2020 market risk profile (in COP million)

In 2021, the average market risk consumption 
(VaR) of trading operations was COP 6,390 
million, with a consumption exceeding the 
internal limit for authorized economic capital 
by 42%. The average sensitivity of the inte-
rest rate to one basis point (Delta) was COP 
84 million with 20% consumption over the 
authorized internal limit.

Evolution of the trading market risk: Daily me-

asurements and controls were carried out in 

2021 on the consumption levels of the autho-

rized internal limits, regularly reporting their 

compliance to Senior Management. 

The following graphs show their evolution:

Global Market Risks December
2021

December 
2020

VaR - Interest rates 8,003 6,114 15,240 2,785 4,644 5,879 16,329 1,431

VaR - Exchange rates   1,211 1,217  6,837  80   1,430 1,092   8,301  83

Total VaR 7,831 6,390  14,809 3,081 5,060 5,756   16,261 1,512

Economic capital 
consumption limit 42% 37%   48% 32% 28% 29%   30% 27%

Total Delta to 1 bp 58 (84)    294 (642) (16) (226)    (2) (487)

Delta consumption sublimit  8,7% 20%   96% 0,30%  2,4% 34%  73% 0,24%

Average Maximum Minimum Average Maximum Minimum
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During the year, the fixed-income trading 

portfolio was characterized by presenting a 

concentration of the short-term position held 

mainly by TCO and TES with short-term matu-

rities, as well as Certificates of deposit (CDs). 

Although its financial instruments are still 

the traditional ones, there are also sovereign 

green bonds. In 2021, the Ministry of Finance 

issued the first sovereign green bonds in the 

country in order to be aligned with internatio-

nal best practices on environmental benefits, 

sustainable financing, transparency and ac-

countability to investors. The first green bond 

issue will finance associated expenditures in 

areas such as water management and sani-

tation, clean transportation, ecosystem ser-

vices and biodiversity protection, renewable 

energy, circular economy, and sustainable 

and climate resilient agricultural production.

In turn, the derivatives portfolio maintained 

the composition by type of product; the main 

products are USD-COP forwards and IRS in 

IBR. Although these financial derivatives are 

the most traditional ones, BBVA Colombia 

wants to offer new derivative products that 

Monitoring of Market Risk Monitoring of Market Risk

consider sustainability-related KPIs. The sen-

sitivities are concentrated by type in COP and 

USD, consistently with portfolio composition. 

The portfolio characteristics described above 

keep the average VaR low, because short-term 

positions cause relatively low sensitivities and 

interest rate deltas had a conservative risk 

consumption throughout the period. 

The market risk monitoring process is com-

plemented with stress-testing scenarios, 

which aim to estimate the losses that the 

Bank would incur in the event that extreme 

situations occur on the markets. 

It subjects the positions held to strong hypo-

thetical market oscillations based on histo-

rical or possible situations obtained through 

the generation of scenarios. This is done to 

quantify the effect of the results in order to 

identify possible adverse impacts and those 

greater than the VaR figures that could poten-

tially occur, and design contingency plans to 

be applied immediately in the event that an 
abnormal situation occurs.
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Monitoring of Value at Risk (VaR) Regula-
tory Model - Standard Model 

In accordance with Public Notice 09/2007 of 
the Financial Superintendence of Colombia, 
the Bank has been assessing its exposure 
to market risks, of both interest rate and ex-
change rate, on a daily basis. This includes 
the measurement for Global Markets' availa-
ble-for-sale and tradeable positions, and se-

curities classified as to maturity that are de-
livered as collateral in a counterparty clearing 
house. This is done in order to determine the 
effect that possible changes in market condi-
tions may have on the economic value of the 
Bank’s equity. This impact is also reflected in 
the solvency ratio.

The following graph shows the value at risk 
assessment and the solvency margin:

VaR
2021 2020

(Figures in millions)

Interest rate  COP           416,683  COP 319,750 

Exchange rate 19,046 16,593

Total Value at Risk (VaR)  COP           435,729  COP 336,343 

Ene-2112,8 %13,0 %13,2 %13,4 %13,6 %13,8 %

14,8 %

14,0 %14,2 %14,4 %14,6 %

Feb-21
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1
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1
May-21
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Jul-2

1
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Sep-21
Oct-2

1
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Dic-21

Solvency Index

Solvency Index

Value at risk assessment vs. solvency ratio

Consolidated VaR

Market risk profile of the Bank, BBVA Fiduciaria and BBVA Valores

Consolidated VaR
(Figures in millions) 2021 2020

Interest rate COP  417,649 COP  320,785

Exchange rate 19,046 16,594 

Share price 849 936

Collective investment funds 30 36

Total Value at Risk (VaR) COP  437,575 COP  338,531 

The Bank, together with the trust company 
and the securities broker, consolidates the 
risk exposure based on the methodology pu-
blished in Annex 1 of Chapter XXI of Notice 
100/1995 issued by the Financial Superinten-
dence of Colombia, in which a 29% variation 
is reported between 2020 and 2021, arising 
from the interest rate item, mainly due to an 
increase in the portfolio positions of CDTs and 
TCOs.

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity and financing risk is defined as 
the potential loss caused by events that affect 

the capacity to have funds available to fulfill 
liability obligations, either because of the im-
possibility to sell the assets, an unexpected 
reduction in commercial liabilities or the clo-
sing of the regular sources of financing both in 
normal situations and under stress.

The management of financing and liquidity at 
BBVA Colombia is based on the principle of fi-
nancial autonomy, which means that manage-
ment is decentralized and independent from 
the BBVA Group’s other regions. This princi-
ple helps prevent and limit the liquidity risk of 
each of the entities by limiting their vulnera-
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optimizing the ratio between the level of ex-
posure assumed and the target results, and 
by managing the mechanisms and tools ne-
cessary to hedge interest rate and equity ris-
ks. To have the maximum guarantees for this 
management, the Broker has developed a 
series of organizational systems and policies 
for the identification, measurement, control 
and monitoring of the risks inherent to tran-
sactions. Therefore, the Front Office carries 
out - 15- procedures through its proprietary 
account to meet its liquidity needs and tho-
se of external customers. Taking into account 
these objectives and with the aim of optimi-
zing, managing and administrating inherent 
risks, Management establishes the following 
risk measurement tools: Value at Risk (VaR) - 
Regulatory Model 

According to Chapter XXI of the Basic Ac-
counting and Financial Notice (Public Notice 
No. 100/1995) of the Financial Superinten-
dence of Colombia, the Broker measures its 
exposure to market risk (interest rate and 
equity), which incorporates the measurement 
for the positions held with proprietary resour-
ces in order to establish the effect that pos-
sible changes in market conditions may have 
on the economic value of the Broker's equity, 

bility to events that affect the BBVA Group in 

periods of elevated risk. Therefore, the Entity 

acts independently to cover its liquidity needs 

on the market in which it operates.

BBVA Fiduciaria

Interest rate risk management: Given the 

portfolio's exposure to interest rate risk due 

to positions in debt instruments denomina-

ted in local currency rates, VaR is calculated 

for this risk factor in order to estimate the 

maximum potential losses the proprietary 

funds portfolio might experience due to chan-

ges in interest rates.

Share price risk management: Given the 

portfolio's exposure to the risk of price chan-

ges on the positions it holds in local and in-

ternational shares, BBVA Asset Management 

S.A. Sociedad Fiduciaria (Notes to the Finan-

cial Statements - 79) calculates the VaR for 

this risk factor in order to estimate the maxi-

mum losses its proprietary funds portfolio 

would potentially experience due to changes 

in the prices of these variable price instru-

ments.

Exchange rate risk: Given the portfolio's ex-
posure to the risk of currency fluctuations in 
its financial instruments denominated in fo-
reign currency, the VaR of this risk factor is 
calculated in order to estimate the maximum 
potential losses its proprietary funds portfolio 
might experience due to exchange rate fluc-
tuations.

Fund investment risk: Given the portfolio's 
exposure to the risk of changes in value of co-
llective investment fund units, VaR is calcula-
ted for this factor to estimate the maximum 
potential losses the proprietary fund portfolio 
might experience due to price variations in 
such units. 

Sensitivity Analysis (Delta): The basic mea-
sure for estimating the sensitivity of the port-
folios to interest rate risk is the so-called Delta, 
which is estimated by means of modified dura-
tion, the sensitivity of the price of the securities 
to a 1 basis-point change in interest rates.

BBVA Valores

The Broker manages market risk with the 
basic objectives of limiting potential losses, 

whose impact is reflected in the solvency ra-
tio, measured on a monthly basis.

Currently, BBVA Valores is not exposed to ex-
change rate and investment fund factors, be-
cause it does not engage in foreign currency 
transactions and does not have interests in 
collective investment funds.

Policies regarding Assessment at Fair Value

As a policy of BBVA Valores Colombia S.A., it 
has been defined that the party responsible 
for providing end-of-day market prices for the 
valuation of third-party and proprietary posi-
tion portfolios is the Market Risk Department. 

The sources of information used for the va-
luation of the portfolios are those approved by 
the Financial Superintendence and published 
by the official price vendor, Precia, on a daily 
basis. 

The tool used for capturing and disseminating 
the market values to the different manage-
ment, accounting and risk measurement sys-
tems on a daily basis is Asset Control.
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BBVA Colombia

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity and financing risk is defined as 

the potential loss caused by events that affect 

the capacity to have funds available to fulfill 

liability obligations, either because of the im-

possibility to sell the assets, an unexpected 

reduction in commercial liabilities or the clo-

sing of the regular sources of financing both in 

normal situations and under stress.

The management of financing and liquidity at 

BBVA Colombia is based on the principle of fi-

nancial autonomy, which means that manage-

ment is decentralized and independent from 

the BBVA Group’s other regions. This princi-

ple helps prevent and limit the liquidity risk of 

each of the entities by limiting their vulnera-

bility to events that affect the BBVA Group in 

periods of elevated risk. Therefore, the Entity 

acts independently to cover its liquidity needs 

on the market in which it operates.

In 2021, there were no changes in the metrics 

of the internal model to measure the financing 

•	 To achieve the proper diversification of the 

financing structure, avoiding high depen-

dency on short-term financing, a limit is 

set on the attraction of Short-term Finan-

cing (STF), which consists of both whole-

sale financing and less stable customer 

funds. For 2020, the limit was set at COP 

13 trillion. 

The Liquidity Committee and Senior Manage-

ment are informed on a monthly basis of the 

evolution of these indicators for timely deci-

sion-making.

structure liquidity in comparison with 2020; 

these calculations were made on a daily basis 

using three indicators defined as follows:

•	 Monitoring of the balance sheet financing 

structure, Loan to Stable Customer Depo-

sits (LtSCD), which compares the net cre-

dit investment granted with stable custo-

mer deposits, and has an upper limit set at 

125%. The objective is to preserve a stable 

financing structure in the medium term, 

considering that maintaining an adequa-

te volume of stable customer resources is 

key to achieving a solid liquidity profile.

•	 Basic Capacity is the management and 

control metric for short-term liquidity risk, 

which is defined as the ratio between the 

explicit assets available and the maturities 

of wholesale liabilities and volatile funds, 

in different time frames, with particular re-

levance for those of 30 days. This metric 

aims to promote the short-term resistan-

ce of the liquidity risk profile, by ensuring 

that BBVA Colombia has sufficient collate-

ral to deal with the risk of closing whole-

sale markets. The limit for 2020 is set at 

120% at 30 days.

In 2021, BBVA Colombia maintained a solid li-

quidity position, in order to improve the cost 

of the Entity's liabilities; efforts are made to in-

crease customer deposit balances in all banking 

segments, focusing on commercial banking. 

The strategy to maintain the diversification of 

the sources of financing and the robustness of 

the financing structure is maintained. 

The following tables show the evolution of 
short-term liquidity for 2020 and 2021:



334 335

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

January 108% 242% 7.415 107% 796% 4.685

February 108% 437% 5.656 108% 1.443% 4.887

March 103% 420% 5.005 108% 2.083% 4.452

April 101% N.C 3.159 107% N.C 3.263

May 100% N.C 2.377 104% N.C 2.532

June 98% N.C 2.451 104% N.C 2.984

July 101% N.C 2.998 107% N.C 4.465

August 106% 4.691% 4.312 108% 872% 4.288

September 106% 1421% 5.079 108% 2.625% 5.28

October 104% N.C 4.398 104% N.C 3.137

November 105% 757% 5.171 103% N.C 3.582

December 105% 475% 4.43 107% N.C 5.192

Limit 120% 140% 13.000 120% 140% 13.000

Details of Basic Capacity by timeframes at December

2020 2021

1 month 3 months 12 months 1 month 3 months 12 months

475% 234% 137% N.C. 224% 121%

2020 2021

LtSCD (%) CB (%)
Negative 
operating 
cash flow 
(trillion)

LtSCD (%) CB 30 D (%)
Negative 
operating 
cash flow 
(billion)

2020 2021

LRI 7 Days(%) 30 Days (%) 7 Days (%) 30 Days (%)

January 1001.80% 248.50% 1029.80% 242.30%

February 841.00% 240.90% 977.20% 208.40%

March 1177.30% 230.20% 813.40% 202.90%

April 972.30% 244.70% 977.40% 258.50%

Mayo 911.30% 237.40% 656.30% 234.40%

June 964.70% 267.70% 947.60% 217.90%

July 976.10% 220.00% 780.10% 176.10%

August 688.30% 185.70% 878.60% 222.20%

September 845.30% 213.10% 710.70% 182.10%

October 956.40% 240.00% 974.70% 223.60%

Regulatory model –In addition to the main 
indicators mentioned above, BBVA Colombia 
reports the regulatory Liquidity Risk Indicator 
(LRI) using the regulatory weekly and monthly 
format, which contains the short-term con-
tractual and non-contractual flows. For each 
of the time frames (7 and 30 days), the ratio 
between liquid assets adjusted according to 
market liquidity and exchange risk, and the to-

tal net liquidity requirement for the LRI must 
be at a level above 100% (regulatory limit).
In 2021, the Liquidity Risk Indicator (LRI) 
with a 7-day time frame stood at average le-
vels (808%), while the 30-day LRI stood at an 
average of (206%), which indicates that for a 
short-term horizon, BBVA Colombia has more 
than enough liquidity to fulfill its short-term 
financing commitments.
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2020 2021

IRL 7 Days (%) 30 Days (%) 7 Days (%) 30 Days (%)

November 891.70% 232.50% 743.00% 202.80%

December 960.90% 208.70% 857.70% 213.30%

Limit 100% 100% 100% 100%

Management Limit 150% 150% 150% 150%

At the end of 2020 and 2021, the 30-day LRI is summarized as follows:

Contractual Maturities in 2021
in COP million

DAYS 1 TO 7 
-TOTAL

DAYS 8 TO 15 
-TOTAL

DAYS 16 TO 
30 -TOTAL

DAYS 1 TO 30 
TOTAL

CDs 178,684 159,459 530,382 868,525

INTERBANK FUNDS 347,176 - - 341,176

REPOS, SIMULTANEOUS and T.T.S. 2,747,519 - - 2,747,519

TRANSACTIONS WITH DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 115,127 161,950 625,372 902,449

BANK CREDITS AND OTHER FINANCIAL 
OBLIGATIONS - 79,603 99,042 178,645

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE NOT ASSOCIATED WITH CDs AND 
SAVINGS CERTIFICATES (CDATs, FOR THE SPANISH 
ORIGINAL) 130,512 149,157 279,669 559,338

OTHER LIABILITIES AND CREDIT CONTINGENCIES 736,654 33,717 63,219 833,591

BBVA Fiduciaria

In carrying out transactions with its proprie-
tary funds, the Company is exposed to liqui-
dity risk due to the possible insufficiency of 
liquid assets available to fulfill the obligations 
on its account. In order to mitigate the proba-
bility of occurrence of this risk, the Trust Com-

CDs 305,948 346,749 599,060 1,251,757

INTERBANK FUNDS 80,018 - - 80,019

REPOS, SIMULTANEOUS and T.T.S. 205,094 - 38,602 243,696

TRANSACTIONS WITH DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 208,440 205,220 501,551 915,213

BANK CREDITS AND OTHER FINANCIAL 
OBLIGATIONS 54,554 - 171,697 226,252

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE NOT ASSOCIATED WITH CDs AND 
SAVINGS CERTIFICATES (CDATs, FOR THE SPANISH 
ORIGINAL)

100,879 115,291 216,170 432,341

OUTSTANDING DEBT SECURITIES - - - -

OTHER LIABILITIES AND CREDIT CONTINGENCIES 379,600 36,893 101,752 518,245

Contractual Maturities in 2020
in COP million

DAYS 1 TO 7 
-TOTAL

DAYS 8 TO 15 
-TOTAL

DAYS 16 TO 
30 -TOTAL

DAYS 1 TO 30 
TOTAL

Note: They are contractual maturities of principal and interest for time frames of no more 
than 90 days.

pany has mechanisms in place to control and 
monitor this risk. To this end, to address the 
possibility of having insufficient liquid assets 
to fulfill its obligations, this entity has set up 
indicators and tests to control and monitor 
this type of risks. These indicators enable the 
Entity to monitor the inflow and outflow of re-
sources by establishing a quantitative analy-
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sis to avoid possible illiquid scenarios. Since 

the portfolio position is not considered to be 

within the application scope of Chapter VI of 

Public Notice 100/1995 corresponding to the 

rules related to the Liquidity Risk Manage-

ment System, Liquidity Risk Management is 

subject to the investment policy.

BBVA Valores

The Liquidity Risk Management System 

(SARL, for the Spanish original) enables to 

Broker to maintain sufficient liquidity to ad-

dress possible scenarios of own or systemic 

stress. To this effect, the Broker has liquidity 

warning indicators to establish and determine 

its current scenario, as well as the strategies 

to be followed in each case. 

According to Chapter VI of the Basic Accoun-

ting and Financial Notice (Public Notice No. 

100/1995) of the Financial Superintendence 

of Colombia, the Broker measures the Liqui-

dity Risk Indicator to quantify the adequate 

level of liquid assets that must be maintained 

daily and to prevent or mitigate liquidity risk 

during high-risk periods. 

The limits are approved by the Board of Di-

rectors, while measurement, monitoring and 

control are carried out daily by the Market 

Risk Department, issuing regular reports to 

senior management and monthly reports to 

the Board of Directors. 

To estimate liquidity risk, a liquidity risk indi-

cator (LRI) is calculated, which corresponds 

to the ratio between liquid assets, Own Net 

Liquidity Requirement and Third-party Net 

Liquidity Requirement for timeframes of one 

business day and between the second busi-

ness day and seven calendar days. This indi-

cator shows the liquidity coverage for the di-

fferent timeframes. During 2021, the indicator 

did not exceed the regulatory limits.

Counterparty Risk (SARiC)

BBVA Valores

It is the contingency to which the Broker is 

subjected in the event of default of one or 

more transactions by the counterparties, in 

which case it must cover said default with its 

own resources or recognize a loss in the ba-

lance sheets. 

The Market Risk Department is responsible 

for the daily control and monitoring of issuer 

and counterparty risk limits and the settle-

ment of transactions according to the current 

authorizations provided by the Board of Di-

rectors. 

The counterparty risk measurement process 

comprises all the transactions and starts with 

the initial process of identifying the type of 

customer with which the transaction is closed 

for each type of risk. 

The management procedures include the au-

thorization processes of the counterparty li-

mits and an internal monitoring model, using 

tools to control and measure counterparty 

limits, compared to the transactions pen-

ding completion. BBVA Valores Colombia S.A. 

applies clear policies in the event that limits 

are transferred and for the procedure in the 

case of exceeded limits.

Allocation of Limits 

The limits for the operation of the firm's pro-
prietary position are allocated as follows: 

•	 Front Office proposes the credit limits that 

it considers appropriate for the develo-

pment of the operations of the business. 

This proposal is prepared with the support 

of the Market Risk Department of BBVA 

Valores Colombia S.A. 

•	 The Market Risk Department of BBVA Va-

lores Colombia S.A. sends a proposal to 

the Credit Risk Area of BBVA Colombia 

S.A. for study. The Credit Risk Department 

of the bank BBVA Colombia S.A. studies 

the proposal and issues an opinion the-

reon, making recommendations regarding 

the limits. The recommendations of the 

Credit Risk department of BBVA Colom-

bia S.A. are taken into account by BBVA 

Valores Colombia S.A. and are submitted 

for authorization by Risk Committee, for 

subsequent approval by the Board of Di-

rectors.

Structural Risk

Banco BBVA Colombia

The control and monitoring of the manage-
ment of BBVA Colombia's structural interest 
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Limit Dec-2020 Oct-21

Margin sensitivity warning (- 100 basis points) 4.00% 0.78% 0.49%

Margin at risk limit (*) 7.00% 1.31% 1.85%

Economic value sensitivity warning (+100 basis points) 725,000 690.888 326.025

Economic capital limit 700,000 568.855 399.251

Impact in the Event of a 10% Change in the TRM

2020 2021

Impact on solvency 
ratio Real Solvency Ratio Impact on solvency 

ratio Real Solvency Ratio

20 pbs 14.72% 13 pbs 13.76%

rate risk is based on a set of metrics and tools 

that allow the proper monitoring of the Entity's 

risk profile. Structural interest-rate risk refers 

to the potential impact caused by variations in 

market interest rates on the Entity's interest 

margin and equity value. At BBVA Colombia, 

the following are considered to be the main 

sources of this risk: repricing risk, yield curve 

risk, optionality risk and basis risk, which are 

analyzed from two complementary perspecti-

ves: the interest margin (short-term) and eco-

nomic value (long-term). Under this kind of 

structure, a dynamic (going concern) model 

is used, which is consistent with the corporate 

assumptions of results forecasting. 

The monitoring encompasses the Banking 

Book positions and excludes all the Trading 

Book positions, is carried out on a monthly 

basis and consists of a wide range of scena-

rios, which include sensitivities in the event of 

changes parallel to the different impacts, and 

changes in slope and curvature. Other proba-

bilistic metrics are assessed based on statis-

tical methods for the simulation of scenarios, 

such as Margin at Risk (MaR) and Economic 

Capital (EC), which are defined as the maxi-

mum adverse deviations in the interest mar-

gin and the economic value, respectively, for a 

given time frame and confidence level. Impact 

thresholds are established based on these 

management metrics, in terms of deviations 

from the interest margin, as well as from the 

standpoint of impact on economic value. This 

is all done differently for each of the main fo-

reign currencies to which the BBVA balance 

sheet is exposed, and subsequently considers 

the diversification effect between foreign cu-

rrencies.

Below are the average interest-rate risk levels 

in terms of sensitivity for the BBVA Colombia 

balance sheet during the 2021 fiscal year:

(*) Percentage in relation to the projected "1 year" interest margin of each unit.
Values presented in the balance

Structural currency risk. Its purpose is to 
assess and control potential impacts caused 
by fluctuations in exchange rates on positions 
in foreign currency, on the solvency and inco-

me of BBVA Colombia. During 2021, the im-
pact on solvency is maintained in the face of 
movements in 10% of the representative ex-
change rate (TRM, for the Spanish original):

Table of sensitivity: solvency to variations in exchange rates at the end of 2020 and 2021
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Maximum Risk Exposure 2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents  COP            8,339,067  COP             3,427,184 

Financial assets held for trading 2,768,305 1,151,413 

Financial assets available-for-sale 1,892,941 247,400 

Investments held to maturity 2,092,811 2,082,345 

Derivatives and hedge accounting 2,308,641 2,308,641 

Consumer portfolio 22,480,178 20,302,912 

Commercial Loan Portfolio 22,478,301 19,085,946 

Mortgage portfolio 13,994,435 12,988,602 

Credit investment              58,952,914               52,377,460 

Loans approved but not disbursed 1,131,063 784,486 

Credit limits 5,072,602 4,578,901 

Bank Guarantees 3,944,637 3,148,963 

Letters of credit 951,968 616,205 

TOTAL NET MAXIMUM RISK EXPOSURE  COP 11,100,270  COP 9,128,555 

With respect to cash equivalents for risk expo-

sure, deposits in the Central Bank of Colom-

bia are not considered since it is the country's 

Central Bank.

Evolution of Credit Risk Quality and Expo-
sure

At June 1, 2020, Public Notice 31/2019 of the 

Financial Superintendence of Colombia was 

implemented, which amended the credit ex-

posure of derivatives computed in the solven-

cy calculation, so the Bank's total credit expo-

sure is COP 2,978,568 at December 31, 2021.

The maximum risk exposure presented is ba-

sed on the market risk management system 

(SARM, for the Spanish original) that allows 

the Bank to identify, measure, control and 

monitor the market risk to which it is exposed, 

based on the positions assumed in the perfor-

mance of its operations, as well as using the 

regulatory methodology to measure the risk 

of financial instruments. For investments, the 

maximum risk per issuer at nominal value of 

the securities and the counterparty risk of de-

rivatives without intergroup operations with 

collateral were considered.

Credit risk
Banco BBVA Colombia

Risk management and exposure at December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Note: This information contains the implicit risk for the concepts of fixed income and derivatives, 
for which reason no direct cross-referencing with Balance Sheet balances is established.

Portfolio Management & Reporting 

It monitors the Commercial and Consumer 

Reference Models, according to the provisions 

of Annexes 3 and 5 of Chapter II of the Basic 

Accounting and Financial Notice of the Finan-

cial Superintendence, complying with the re-

gulations related to provisions and qualifica-

tions. It also verifies the correct application of 

the regulations for the traditional models of 

housing loans and employee loans.

Continuous monitoring is performed, verif-

ying compliance with the thresholds establi-

shed in the risk appetite framework with the 

follow-up of core metrics for compliance with 

the Bank's objectives expressed in terms of 

solvency, liquidity and funding, and profitabili-

ty and recurrence of income.

We are working proactively, together with the 

recovery area, in order to be able to focus ma-

nagement on customers who can reduce the 

impact on local and consolidated NPAs, which 

in the end provides benefits in terms of wri-

te-offs in the Bank's provisions. 
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Retail Credit

The Retail Risk Department includes the fo-
llowing units:

•	 Individuals Admission Management

Dedicated to the process of analysis and 
decision regarding credit operations origi-
nated for individuals through the different 
channels.

Management of the application of the po-
licies developed for the different lines of 
credit.

Specialized assessment of customer 
profiles according to the established risk 
levels, focused on the Bank's customers 
with direct deposit payroll accounts and 
on lines of credit with direct deduction 
of the installment from the customer's 
payroll, as is the case of payroll loans.

Adjustments to the admission processes 
with the associated policy changes, due 
to the new scenario of general economic 
contraction, securing the risk with the 
requirement of collateral or guarantees 
offered by the government.

Permanent support and training of the 
commercial staff is in place for the correct 
implementation of the operations focu-
sed on the target market for the Bank.

•	 SMEs Admission Management

This is the department responsible for 

the admission of all the Bank's legal entity 

customers, as well as individuals who en-

gage in business according to the Bank’s 

segmentation, with sales under COP 

12,000, as a centralized process since 

December 2017 in a single office, which 

carries out a process of validation and 

arrangement of information of each of the 

proposals, before assessment by the Risk 

Admission analysts. 

The Bpm CAP - PCO tool was mainstrea-

med in September 2020 to centralize 

filing of credit applications for new re-

sources of the SME segment. This tool 

communicates with the Power Curve Ori-

gination tool in order to obtain customer 

information automatically, performing 

online validations that ensure improved 

portfolio quality and mitigate reproces-

sing. The automatic allocation of credit 

transactions to the SME risk admission 

team is already in production and there is 

an assessment model for customers with 

sales of up to COP 6,000, based on qua-

litative and quantitative information. The 

SME PCO Project was completed with the 

flow of the reactive circuit related to the 

application and sanctioning of limits, cap-

turing information for the decision-ma-

king body and the control of delegations 

in the SME segment.

In line with the country's economic situa-

tion and in support of Government regu-

lations, admission was focused on asses-

sing customers with an 70%, 80% and 

90% FNG collateral under the Unidos por 

Colombia Program. Sector reports will be 

updated with Guidelines by subsector so 

that both the office network and the ad-

missions departments can take them into 

account when making decisions.

•	 Monitoring Department 

Carry out actions aimed at measuring the 
risk of individual portfolios and controlling 

their evolution, assessing growth trends 
and the behavior of credit operations 
granted to individuals, in order to establi-
sh objective risk or high-risk risk profiles. 

Continuous monitoring of the quality of 

the placements made under the attribu-

tion of the office network while the portfo-

lio matures in order to ensure the perfor-

mance of the risk indicators. 

The improvement of the processes for 

generating tracking figures through an 

integral vision, as well as the inclusion of 

new axes and dimensions, has allowed 

us to respond more quickly to Bank de-

mands regarding risk appetite, proposing 

changes in admission and supporting de-

cision-making.

In addition, support is provided in the 

preventive management of portfolio cus-

tomers in order to anticipate portfolio im-

pairment based on statistical information 

in accordance with the risk group associa-

ted with each customer's profile.

In turn, there is constant monitoring of 

each of the products, the quality of new 
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originations and the active portfolio 
through IFRS 9 indicators, as well as KPI 
compliance to support the growth of retail 
banking.

•	 Regulation, Policy, Process and Campaign 
Department

It is responsible for updating the regula-

tions in accordance with the guidelines of 

the corporate and the local regulator. It 

also defines the new policies and adjust-

ments of admissions based on the perio-

dic review of the portfolio behavior and 

economic evolution.

In general, the implementation and alig-

nment of policies continues according to 

the guidelines issued by corporate and in 

coordination with Business, figures are 

reviewed and evaluated to support the 

admission process by adapting the most 

relevant filters. In line with the country's 

economic situation, adjustments are 

made to policies, the Commercial Ne-

twork's credit attributions for Consumer 

products remain suspended, approvals 

are concentrated in Risks, and the capa-

cities are returned as of October 2020 for 

housing products. With regard to custo-

mer profiles, there is a focus on the Mort-

gage line, aimed at Payroll and Non-Payro-

ll Wage-earning customers, in Payroll 

Loans, with an in-depth focus on Public 

Sector agreements and in CIB companies 

and Large Companies in resilient sectors.

Automatic, cross-cutting and compre-

hensive credit processes are being pro-

moted through Retail Policies and Cam-

paigns, and while they involve and adapt 

to the established risk levels, they allow 

the development of a digital culture both 

within the Bank and for a better customer 

experience.

Campaigns properly manages the pro-

cesses and circuits for mass approvals 

of current or new portfolios, monitors the 

quality of the products placed in order to 

make adjustments to policies and establi-

shes controls on the limits offered. 

The generation of Pre-approved offers is 

limited to Payroll Customers only, aimed 

at the public and private sector (Resi-

lient Companies), focused mainly on the 

pre-approval of payroll loans and credit 
cards.

Recovery & Workout

With the completion of the PAD on August 31, 
2021, in Q421, priority was given to containing 
entries in non-performing loan portfolio and 
recovering outstanding loans, with the su-
pport of our Emerge Plan, through which we 
have increased contact with customers and 
thus closed our debtors' promises to pay. 

Risk Anticipation Executives (EAR, for the 
Spanish original), FUVEX and external collec-
tion agencies have made every effort to end 
the year 2021 in compliance with the objecti-
ves set by BBVA.

The above actions have led to the achieve-
ment of important results in the recovery and 
containment of the local non-performing loan 
portfolio during the quarter, with a recovery 
efficiency of 50% in October, 62% in Novem-
ber and 61% in December. In December,Free 
Investment loans stood out with an efficiency 
of 58%, Mortgage loans (over 90 days) 113% 
and Vehicle loans at 108%.   

The sources of recoveries are centered on ac-
tual payment by customers, the range of the 
recovery engine and to a lesser extent, res-
tructuring.

Wholesale Credit

In 2021, the Wholesale Risk Department ma-

naged the admission and monitoring of risks 

in accordance with the guidelines of the credit 

risk framework defined by the Holding Com-

pany. The portfolio posted growth of 20%, 

highlighting a COP 1.4 trillion increase in Busi-

ness Banking (annual variation of 21%); COP 

1.2 trillion in Corporate Banking (annual varia-

tion of 28%); and COP 800 billion in Govern-

ment Banking (annual variation of 22%).

As for the post-COVID relief and solutions 

granted in 2020 for a total of COP 3.7 trillion, 

by the end of 2021, 100% of the relief and 61% 

of those redefined had completed their grace 

period. 96% of the total portfolio that recei-

ved post-COVID relief measures and solutions 

is up to date. 

As a strategy to anticipate the impairment of 

the portfolio, we focused efforts on the pre-

ventive alert of customers with activity in the 
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more vulnerable economic sectors, with a de-

crease in their rating and possible defaults in 

the early stages at BBVA and other entities of 

the financial sector, keeping the Emerge Plan 

implemented in the second half of 2020. This 

led to a decrease the non-performing loan 

portfolio ratio from 0.18% in December 2020 

to 0.05% in the same period of 2021.

Finally, at the end of 2021, the rating valida-

tion indicator was 98% in terms of amount 

and 76% in terms of number of customers.

BBVA Valores

In accordance with its investment policy for 

proprietary resources, it limits its exposure 

to credit risk by investing in liquid debt instru-

ments and with issuers that have a long-term 

credit rating of at least AA+ (international 

BB+). Management actively monitors credit 

ratings and given that the Broker, at the end 

of December 2021, had only investments in 

instruments with investment grade ratings, 

Management does not expect any of its coun-

terparties to fail to fulfill their obligations.

OPERATIONAL RISK 

Banco BBVA

BBVA has a general risk management and 
control model adapted to its business model 
and its organization, which allows it to carry 
out its activities within the framework of its 
risk management and control strategy and 
policy and adapt to a changing economic and 
regulatory environment. The Internal Control 
and Country Operational Risk area is respon-
sible for establishing mechanisms to follow-up 
and control its execution under the protection 
of local requirements on operational risk and 
internal control (Public Notice 041/2007 and 
Public Notice 038/2009). 

The internal control and operational risk ma-
nagement model is based on the regulatory 
definition, which establishes that Operational 
Risk "is that which may cause losses as a re-
sult of human error, inadequate or defective 
internal processes, system failures and as a 
consequence of external events, including le-
gal and reputational risk." It has one anticipa-
tory and preventive approach (ex-ante) of the 
analysis of the causes for their mitigation and 

another, which measures the consequences 
(ex-post) through the effectiveness of the de-
fined controls, in order to define cross-cutting 
action plans and achieve the continuous im-
provement of the control environment.

This model is structured on three lines of de-
fense and a governance model: 

First line: Composed of the Business and Su-
pport Areas, responsible for the management 
of the operational risks in their products, ac-
tivities, processes and systems, carrying out 
the identification and evaluation of operatio-
nal risks, establishing the objective risk pro-
posal, carrying out the controls and executing 
the mitigation plans for risks with a residual 
level greater than that which can be assumed. 

Second line: Composed of Internal Control 
and Country Operational Risk, which are res-
ponsible for maintaining the management 
model and assessing the degree of imple-
mentation in the scope of the different Areas; 
and the Control Specialists (Compliance, In-
ternal Risk Control, Internal Financial Control, 
Operational Risk Control, IT Risk Control, Le-
gal Services, Talent & Culture and Responsi-
ble Business), which define the Mitigation and 
Control Framework in their area of specialty 

and contrast it with that implemented by the 
first line. The specialists have a cross-cutting 
role, exercising their functions in the areas 
where the operational risks of their field may 
materialize. 

Third line: Performed by Internal Audit, which 
carries out an independent review of the ma-
nagement model.

Governance Model:

Corporate Assurance Committee: Committee 
that allows the second line of defense to provi-
de Senior Management with a comprehensive 
and homogeneous vision on the identification 
and/or prioritization of relevant situations, 
in order to ensure an adequate control and 
management environment for non-financial 
risks, through the adoption of prompt and an-
ticipatory decisions for their mitigation.

Operational Risk Admission and Product Go-
vernance Committee (CARO&GP, for the Spa-
nish original) It ensures the proper assessment 
of initiatives with significant operational risk 
(new business, product, outsourcing, process 
transformation, new systems, etc.) from the 
operational risk perspective and the approval 
of the proposed control environment.
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Area Internal Control and Operational Risk 
Committee: It ensures the correct implemen-
tation of the operational risk management 
model in the areas and promotes its active 
management, making mitigation decisions in 
the event of identification of control weaknes-
ses and monitoring them.

Continuous management is carried out throu-
gh the implementation of principles and para-
meters of admission, monitoring, mitigation 
and specific tools that support the actions of 
the model; while Control Specialists and Ma-
nagers continuously report to Internal Control 
and Country Operational Risk.

The operational risk appetite indicator (IRO, 
for the Spanish original) is monitored based 
on execution within the thresholds defined 
and assigned by the Board of Directors and 
Corporate bodies.

To strengthen the management of the first 
and second line of defense (1LoD and 2LoD) in 
the Bank's production model, the implemen-
tation of the organizational project started in 
the second half of this year. 

Internal Control Model - Non-Financial Risk. In 
alignment with the Agile Model, this will incor-

porate new management elements in 2020 
for the different roles of the organization re-
garding control:

•	 Frontline (1LoD), responsible for non-fi-
nancial risk management.

•	 Risk Control Assurer (RCA 1LoD), promo-
ter of the proper management of all the 
non-financial risks of the projects and pro-
cesses in the area to which it belongs by 
the frontline.

•	 Risk Control Specialist (RCS 2LoD), en-
sures a proper control environment of its 
risk specialty, cutting across the entire or-
ganization.

To this end, the following activities were ca-
rried out:

•	 Alternatives for financing new resources

•	 Assessment process and skills of the cu-
rrent Internal Control and Operational 
Risk staff

•	 Issuance of resources for the selection of 
RCA and RCS leaders and managers 

•	 Definition, appointment and selection of 
teams (in progress)

In turn, Internal Control and Country Opera-
tional Risk, included the analysis of outsour-
cing within operational risk admission gover-
nance. Relevant services were evaluated, the 
admission flow was reinforced and a unique 
contribution was made to the construction of 
specific control frameworks by service, and 
progress was made in raising awareness by 
training the control teams and Contract Ma-
nagers.

With regard to the risk prevention culture, tra-
ining activities were carried out together with 
the Talent & Culture area, for all staff (Bank 
and subsidiaries). The virtual course "The 
Legal Challenge" to be carried out in 2020 
was available starting in November, while the 
third-party (Outsourcing) ORMS training, was 
carried out through Asobancaria (between 
the months of September and November) 
with the participation of the entity providing 
expert training. 

BBVA Fiduciaria

During the course of 2021, the Trust Company 
continued the actions and assessments that 
allow the permanent monitoring and mana-
gement of the risks related to its activities, 
achieving a level of mitigation in line with the 

realities that can affect the business, in com-
pliance with the standards set out in Public 
Notices 041 2007, 041 / 2007, 038 / 2009, 029 
/ 2014 and 025 / 2020 issued by the Financial 
Superintendence of Colombia regarding the 
implementation and monitoring of the opera-
tional risk management systems (ORMS) and 
the internal control system. Operational risk 
management was managed using the STORM 
(Support Tool for Operational Risk Manage-
ment) tool, whose platform and structure 
satisfies the needs and demands required 
by the new methodology. The ORMS training 
plan is carried out through the e-campus tool 
for all employees when they join the company 

and annual training updates are carried out to 

strengthen the knowledge of all employees in 

compliance with the standard. The company 

reports and follows up on risk events through 

a procedure established under the manage-

ment of the Internal Control and Operational 

Risk area, which analyzes, assesses, controls, 

and monitors the timely recording and pro-

cessing of relevant approvals, along with the 

corresponding action plans to mitigate risk 

exposure levels. At December 31, 2021, the 

financial statements reported losses in the 

amount of COP 103,843 and recoveries in the 



352 353

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

BBVA Colombia's Corporate Governance Sys-

tem is in line with international, corporate and 

local trends and recommendations. Its princi-

ples, elements and practices are contained in 

different instruments that guide the structure 

and roles of the corporate bodies, such as the 

Corporate Bylaws, the Corporate Governance 

Code, the Rules of Procedure of the General 

Meeting of Shareholders, the Rules of Proce-

dure of the Board of Directors and the Rules of 

amount of COP 16,627, and at December 31, 

2020, losses amounting to COP 570,040 were 

recorded in the financial statements, along 

with recoveries amounting to COP 59,319605, 

derived from the materialization of operatio-

nal risks over the year. In relation to the conti-

nuity plan, BBVA AM has an Alternate Opera-

tions Center (COA, for the Spanish original), 

where the respective testing has been carried 

out on the critical processes established by 

the BIA in order to ensure business continui-

ty. In general, the tests performed during 2021 

have yielded favorable results.

Cash and cash equivalents

With respect to cash equivalents for risk expo-
sure, deposits in the Central Bank of Colom-
bia are not considered since it is the country's 
Central Bank.

Corporate operational risk model - In 2021, 
the quarterly Internal Control and Operational 
Risk committee meetings continued, presen-
ting the management and results of the risk 
profile. Other risk exposures include put and 
call market transactions and the settlement 
of inactive accounts.

BBVA Colombia's Corporate Governance is 
based on the distribution of roles between the 
Board of Directors and its different supporting 
committees, each with specific roles allowing 
an appropriate decision-making. 

The Bank's Bylaws establish that the Board 
of Directors is the Company's administration, 
management and oversight body, and in 2021, 
it was made up of five Board members, two 
of whom are of independent origin, pursuant 
to Law 964/2005, and are aware of the res-
ponsibility involved in managing the financial 
and non-financial risks, and are familiar with 
the Bank's business structure and processes, 
which enables them to provide the proper su-
pport and oversight.

For the 2021 fiscal year, the Board of Direc-
tors performed its functions in compliance 
with the previously agreed meeting schedu-
le, maintaining continuous contact with the 
Bank's Senior Management, showing great 
dedication and capacity to adapt to the cir-
cumstances; its knowledge, both of the envi-
ronment and of the Group in Colombia, has 
served not only for the proper performance 
of the functions of the corporate bodies, but 
has also contributed to the Bank and BBVA's 

companies in Colombia adapting to the new 
circumstances.

The four supporting committees of the Board 
of Directors (Audit Committee, Comprehen-
sive Risk Committee, Corporate Governance 
Committee, Sustainability and Corporate So-
cial Responsibility and the Diversity, Appoint-
ment and Remuneration Committee) have 
extensive roles assigned in their respective 
rules of procedure, which provide support in 
subjects specific to their area of competence, 
having established a work system coordina-
ted between the committees, and between 
the committees and the Board. In this way, 
the corporate bodies' awareness of the rele-
vant matters is ensured, reinforcing the exis-
ting control environment in BBVA Colombia.

These Committees are chaired by indepen-
dent Board Members with extensive expe-
rience in their areas of competence, in accor-
dance with their rules of procedure. They also 
have extensive powers and autonomy in the 
management of their corresponding Commi-
ttees, allowing them to call for the meetings 
they deem necessary to perform their roles, 
decide their agenda and have the support of 
Bank executives and external experts whene-

44. Corporate governance

Procedure of the Board's Supporting Commi-

ttees Managers. 

The System is also complemented with the in-
ternal rules of conduct, included in the BBVA's 
Code of Conduct, Code of Conduct in the Se-
curities Market and Code of Conduct for the 
Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist 
Financing, which state the tenets that govern 
the actions of its executives, managers and 

employees. 



354 355

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

ver they consider it appropriate, depending 
on the importance or relevance of the topics 
to be discussed, as well as information from 
other committees based on the coordination 
mechanism between committees for the bet-
ter performance of their respective functions. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the activity of 
the Committees during 2021 fiscal year has 
monitored the risks impacted most by the 
COVID-19 pandemic, focusing on the issues 
within the authority of each committee.

As part of the annual assessment of the Board 
of Directors, the Corporate Governance Com-
mittee has analyzed, in accordance with its 
Rules of Procedure, the structure and com-
position of the corporate bodies, considering 
that they should be balanced and kept in line 
with its needs at all times, and that the Board 
of Directors as a whole should have the rele-
vant knowledge, skills and experience to un-
derstand the business, activities and main ris-
ks of the Bank and its subsidiaries and ensure 
its effective capacity to perform its functions 
in the best corporate interest.

This analysis is carried out as part of the fra-
mework of the progressive and orderly re-
newal of the corporate bodies developed by 

the Board of Directors, with the support of 
the Corporate Governance, Sustainability and 
Social Responsibility Committee, under which 
individuals with different profiles and expe-
riences are gradually brought in, at the rele-
vant frequency, in order to increase diversity, 
as well as to ensure the appropriate circula-
tion of members, guaranteeing a balanced 
presence of directors with new profiles and 
diverse professional experience and previous 
background of members in areas such as fi-
nancial and non-financial risks, enterprise, 
internal control or academia, among others, 
both nationally and internationally; as well as 
their diversity, striving to make women part of 
the Board of Directors. 

The rules of procedure of the Board of Direc-
tors and the Supporting Committees, as well 
as their Annual Corporate Governance Re-
ports can be referred to on the BBVA Colom-
bia website: www.bbva.com.co/ Atención al 
Inversionista/ Gobierno Corporativo.

Risk Management

Regarding our Risk Management Policy, in the 
first instance, the Board of Directors is res-
ponsible for approving the risk management 
strategy and policies, as well as for oversee-

ing the internal control and management 
systems which are incorporated in the insti-
tution's other activities. In greater detail, the 
risk strategy approved by the Board of Direc-
tors includes at least: a) the statement of the 
risk appetite; b) the fundamental metrics and 
basic structure of limits; c) the types of risk 
and classes of assets; and d) the foundations 
of the control and risk management models.   

At the Senior Management or Bank Manage-
ment level, the role of risk management is led 
by the Executive Risk Vice-Presidency, which 
has a decision-making process underpinned 
by a system of committees comprised of highly 
qualified professionals on the subject. These 
professionals study and propose the strate-
gies, policies, procedures and infrastructures 
necessary to identify, assess, measure and 
manage the material risks faced by the Group 
in the development of its businesses.

As a result, please note that the Board of Di-
rectors and Senior Management are duly 
aware of the Entity's business structure and 
processes, and provide the proper support, 
monitoring and supervision; the final deter-
mination of policies, the risk profile and the 
approval of the operating limits of the diffe-

rent transactions under the responsibility of 
the Board of Directors. 

Therefore, building on the framework esta-
blished by the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management, the business units have the 
responsibility of daily risk management. Si-
milarly, in order to manage risk management 
adequately, it is understood as an exclusive, 
global and independent role of the sales units.

At each ordinary meeting of the Board of Di-
rectors, the Entity's risk positions are clearly, 
concisely, quickly and accurately reported, 
indicating exposures by type of risk, business 
unit and portfolio, and their budget alignment 
with the approved risk appetite. Similarly, the 
credit transactions corresponding to its le-
vel of delegation are reported, including the 
companies or individuals associated with the 
Group.

The Entity's risk function is unique and inde-
pendent, where the risks assumed must be 
compatible with the target level of solvency, 
they must be identified, measured and asses-
sed, and there must be procedures in place 
for monitoring and management, as well as 
solid control and mitigation mechanisms. All 
risks must be managed in a comprehensive 
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manner throughout their life cycle with diffe-
rentiated treatment according to type. The 
risk integration model recognizes the diver-
sification among the different types of risks: 
credit, market, liquidity, operational, etc. The 
business areas are responsible for proposing 
and maintaining the risk profile within their 
autonomy and scope of action (defined as the 
set of risk policies and procedures). The risk 
infrastructure is adequate in terms of human 
resources, tools and technology, information 
systems, and methodologies for measuring 
the different types of risks and procedures, 
which facilitates the clear definition of roles 
and responsibilities, ensuring independence 
between the trading, risk control and accoun-
ting departments, as well as the efficient allo-
cation of funds.

Regarding the technology infrastructure of the 
Risk Department, it is important to highlight 
the ongoing optimization and implementation 
of the tools throughout the life cycle of the ma-
naged risks. This is reflected in the following 
aspects: i) The closing of the implementation 
of Power Curve for all lines of credit for Indi-
viduals, and the constant improvement of the 
pre-approved mechanism in digital banking; 
ii) The development and implementation of 

PF Lite as control and monitoring tools in the 
Corporate segment; iii) The project to moder-
nize the tool for the SME segment continued; 
iv) The incorporation of structural issues in 
the Single Development Agenda (SDA), such 
as information automation and process rede-
finition, to help in the reduction of response 
times and risk management.

In the Loan Acceptance Departments, poli-
cies, mechanisms and regulations were re-
viewed on a regular basis with the continuous 
training for the network, maintaining the ade-
quate use of authorities, which has allowed it 
to maintain the leading position in terms of 
portfolio quality and the sustained increase in 
the market limit.

Regarding market risk, during the fiscal year, 
the established controls continued: the mea-
surement limits of Treasury VaR were maintai-
ned and the short-term liquidity was regularly 
reviewed, along with the financial structure of 
the balance sheet.

From a corporate perspective, the Group has 
processes for risk identification and analysis 
of scenarios that allow it to carry out dynamic 
and prospective risk management. The risks 
are demonstrated and measured with the me-

thods deemed appropriate in each case. Their 
measurement includes the design and appli-
cation of scenario analysis and stress testing, 
and controls to which the risks are subject are 
taken into account. In this context, emerging 
risks have been identified that could affect the 
evolution of the Group's business, which inclu-
de macroeconomic and geopolitical risk, and 
regulatory, legal and reputational risks. There-
fore, changes in the regulatory framework are 
monitored on a constant basis, in order to an-
ticipate and adapt to them in time, adopting 
the most efficient and rigorous best practices 
and criteria in their implementation. It is also 
evident that the financial sector is subject to a 
growing level of scrutiny by regulators, gover-
nments and society itself. Therefore, negative 
news or inappropriate behavior can cause sig-
nificant damages to reputation and affect an 
entity's capacity to develop a sustainable bu-
siness. For these reasons, the behavior of the 
Group's members is governed by principles of 
integrity, honesty, long-term vision and best 
practices, all under the Group's Internal Con-
trol Model, Code of Conduct and Responsible 
Business Strategy.

A final risk identified by the Group is business 
and operational risk, which results from the 

evolution of the digital and information tech-
nology world, which involves significant cha-
llenges for financial entities, leading to threats 
and new opportunities, a new framework of 
customer relations, greater capacity to adapt 
to customer needs, and new products and 
distribution channels. Therefore, digital trans-
formation is a priority for the Group.

In terms of internal control and operational 
risk, removing control weaknesses identi-
fied in the Risk and Control Self-Assessment 
(RCSA); operational risk management's fo-
cus on critical processes; and detailed moni-
toring of the operating losses were relevant, 
promoting improvements for the control and 
mitigation processes and activities. 

At the same time and considering threats that 
have been identified as cyberattacks, fraud in 
payment systems, etc., important investment 
is required in security, from both the techno-
logical and human perspective. In the Group, 
with the support of the HR Department, work 
has continued in the training and generation 
of a culture of control for this kind of risk. Ad-
ditionally, the local regulatory requirements 
on operational risk in cyber security were 
met, and through the Technology Risk Mana-



358 359

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

K

Creating Opportunities
Consolidated Report Colombia 2021

gement Department, the necessary campaig-
ns were carried out to raise awareness in the 
digital transformation framework at BBVA.

Audit 

In turn, the Internal Auditor and the Statutory 

Auditor are aware of the Entity's operations 

and made recommendations regarding com-

pliance with the limits, closure of operations 

and market conditions, as well as the tran-

sactions carried out between related parties. 

Specifically, the Statutory Auditor reported 

that it had not observed significant situations 

that would lead it to believe that the Group is 

not following the practices, methodologies, 

procedures and standards established for 

management of the different kinds of risk. 

In view of the above, it was concluded that the 

Group has an adequate general control and 

management model for its business profile, 

organization and region in which it operates, 

which allows it to carry out its activity in the 

framework of the Corporate Governance Sys-

tem, in turn, adapting to a changing economic 

and regulatory environment.

IR (Investor Relations) Recognition

For the sixth consecutive time, BBVA Colom-
bia received the Issuer Recognition (IR) certi-
fication awarded by the IR Committee of Bolsa 
de Valores de Colombia (BVC) for the 2019-
2020 period. The IR certification is awarded 
by Bolsa de Valores de Colombia to issuers 
that voluntarily certify compliance with best 
practices in matters of investor relations and 
disclosure of information to investors and the 
market in general. Considering the relevance 
of having sufficient and timely information, 
at the time of making investment decisions 
and with the objective of making Colombia 
a more attractive market for investment, the 
Bolsa de Valores de Colombia (BVC) promo-
tes among issuers the adoption of best prac-
tices in terms of information disclosure and 
investor relations. As a result of the measures 
taken , BBVA Colombia has positioned itself  
as the main foreign bank in the country and is 
listed as one of the issuers with the best con-
tent standards, with the highest standards in 
Corporate Governance and with the greatest 
evolution in 2016-2019, reiterating its com-
mitment to adopting best practices in dis-
closure and Corporate Governance, thereby 
strengthening the security and confidence of 
domestic and foreign investors.

The Group is considering the possibility of 

carrying out the early settlement of the N-6 

issue of the securitized portfolio, because in 

February 2022 the causes that allow such 

transaction will be fulfilled, since on Decem-

ber 23, 2021 Titularizadora Colombiana infor-

med the Financial Superintendence that the 

TIPS Pesos N-6 Issuance Regulations esta-

blished that the early settlement of the issue 

would take place when the total principal ba-

lance of the mortgage loans on the payment 

date is less than or equal to 5% of the total 

principal balance of the mortgage loans on 

the date of issuance (August 23, 2012).

The TIPS Pesos N-6 Issuance Regulations es-

tablished that, in order to carry out the early 

settlement process of the issue, the process 

to sell the underlying assets should be carried 

out within a term of 3 months following the 

formalization of the grounds for early sett-

lement. The proceeds from the sale must be 

used to pay the obligations of the issue sub-

ject to the priority of payments defined in the 

TIPS Pesos N-6 Issue Regulations. If the un-

derlying assets cannot be sold within three 

(3) months from the date of formalization of 

the early settlement decision, the obligations 

may be paid in kind, by allocating the underl-

ying assets to the investors up to the concu-

rrence of their value, taking the book balance 

as a reference.

At December 31, 2021, the Group had 216 

loans under management for an amount of 

COP 7,681. The settlement draft calls for the 

administrators to acquire this loan portfolio.  

The Bank also has TIPS on this issuance with 

a market value at December 31, 2021, of COP 

11,122.  According to the forecast made by the 

securitization entity, the MZ securities will be 

covered at 92.40%  and the C securities will 

not be covered.

45. Subsequent events
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Banco BBVA

A) Transition from LIBOR

For years, banks have used benchmark inte-
rest rates (IBORs) in their processes and pro-
ducts, such as the LIBOR (London Interbank 
Offered Rate) or the EONIA (Euro Overnight 
Index Average) in their processes and pro-
ducts. However, cases of attempted manipu-
lation of these benchmark rates at the global 
level, together with the decrease in liquidity in 
the interbank unsecured funding markets fo-
llowing the crisis, have diluted their represen-
tativeness and reliability. 

As a consequence, in July 2017, the UK Finan-
cial Conduct Authority (FCA) declared that 
after December 31, 2021, IBOR rates would 
come to an end. As a result, different regula-
tors formed working groups comprised of re-
presentatives from the public and private sec-
tors to develop alternative rates that would 
serve as a replacement for the IBOR rates cu-
rrently applied. They have been referred to as 
alternative Risk Free Rates (RFRs). 

For example, the ARRC (Alternative Reference 
Rates Committee) is a body created in 2014 
by the Federal Reserve and the New York Fed 
for supporting the successful transition from 
USD LIBOR to SOFR (Secured Overnight Fi-
nancing Rate). The latter is considered a more 
robust reference rate (RFRs), mainly because 
it is based on a large market of repo (USD) 
transactions collateralized by U.S. Treasury 
securities. To that extent, the ARRC, with the 
support of multiple market players, has re-
peatedly recommended ceasing further ope-
rations under USD LIBOR as of January 2022, 
thus giving way to the implementation of the 
new reference rates.

Update on the Timing of the Transition from 
LIBOR to Alternative Risk-free Rates (RFR) On 
March 5, 2021, the Financial Conduct Autho-
rity (FCA)1 announced the dates on which all 
LIBOR rate terms will cease to be published 
by any administrator or, failing that, will cea-
se to be representative. This announcement 
follows notification by the ICE Benchmark 
Administration (IBA)2 that it will not be able 
to publish LIBOR terms on a representational 
basis beyond these dates.

The following dates apply to each currency 
and term of LIBOR

•	 All LIBOR maturities in GBP, EUR3, CHF 
and JPY will cease to be published or cea-
se to be representative after December 
31, 2021.

•	 For USD LIBOR maturities, publication will 
cease or cease to be representative in ac-
cordance with the following provisions:

•	 For one-week and two-month maturi-
ties, after December 31, 2021.

•	 For overnight, one-month, three-mon-
th, six-month and twelve-month ma-
turities, after June 30, 2023.

Official Recommendation of Term SOFR 
(USD)

•	 On July 29, 2021, the ARRC issued its 
official recommendation of Term SOFR 
(USD) as the acceptable reference rate for 
the market. These rates are administered 
by the CME Group (CBA), which publishes 
them for 1-month, 3-month, 6-month and 
12-month maturities. This rate, unlike the 
SOFR overnight, has a forward-looking 
format and uses information from SO-
FR-linked derivatives for its construction. 
This allows it to incorporate implicit mar-

ket expectations regarding the behavior of 
the SOFR rate at the indicated maturities. 
As a milestone, it is important due to the 
usefulness of this rate for the operation of 
certain products, particularly those linked 
to term LIBOR rates such as business 
loans.

•	 Confirmation of technical and functional 
requirements:  (12/Dec/19-29/Mar/20): 
Regarding the two branches of operation 
(Global Markets and Client Solutions), 
together with the different departments, 
awareness sessions and work tables were 
held by application (Bank-Trade, Murex, 
Dialogo, STAR, Asset Control, Mentor, Set 
Fx, Swaps Conciliator and Blotter) to iden-
tify any adjustments required due to the 
transition from the IBOR indexes, defini-
tions and necessary revisions at technical 
and functional levels, and to propose lines 
of work incorporating time and econo-
mic estimates. In this regard, some of the 
most important items identified at this 
stage were:

•	 Creation and/or enabling of new indexes 
(SOFR, €STR9), generators and curves 
for the different applications. The activi-
ties associated with this item, on multiple 
occasions, involved parallel configura-

46. Other items of interest
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tions between applications for the correct 
processing of the new indexes. Two (2) 
examples can be mentioned in this line: 1. 
Generators for Murex and Dialogo. 2. As-
set Control in relation to the provision of 
market prices. It is precisely for this rea-
son that end-to-end and non-impact tes-
ting exercises were essential to ensure the 
correct functioning before the adoption of 
the new SOFR and €STR rates.

•	 With regard to accounting, the impact on 
this scope was assessed for the different 
applications; no impact was identified sin-
ce the accounting applications and proces-
ses were not affected by the rate change.

•	 Technical implications were reviewed for 
the premise of allowing the coexistence 
of operations under the IBOR and RFR in-
dexes (LIBOR - EONIA and SOFR - €STR) 
to the extent that both are available and 
accepted for market use.

•	 Definition of strategies at the business 
and systems levels for the restructuring 
of operations (active loans, funding and 
derivatives associated or not with this 
portfolio) whose maturity is subsequent 
to the eventual disappearance of the IBOR 
indexes as accessible and/or acceptable 

reference rates. This includes both the de-
velopment of clauses to amend the con-
tracts signed and the enabling of events 
for the modification of operations in the 
systems (e.g. Restructure and Unwind in 
Murex).

•	 Reporting: A review of the possible im-
pacts at the reporting level (regulatory 
and others) was carried out from the be-
ginning. With regard to the Financial Su-
perintendence of Colombia (SFC), initially 
there were no definitions in this regard to 
determine any impact for reports such 
as codes 531 and 472. Subsequently this 
changed, and through Notice 40 issued 
on July 9, 2021, the regulator indicated the 
codes to be used for the reporting of the 
new SOFR reference rates.

•	 To manage the active portfolio in foreign 
currency (Comex), BankTrade has been pa-
rameterized to allow it to operate under the 
new rate conventions for this product. To 
this end, meetings were held with holding 
companies to establish clear guidelines on 
BBVA's business decisions as a group. As a 
result of these meetings and according to 
the definition established on September 14, 
2021 by the Comex Business Department, 
it was locally determined that for opera-

tions in USD, the rates for loans would be 
SOFR Simple In Advance and Term SOFR; 
with options to use Simple In Arrears if the 
market eventually inclined in their direc-
tion. As a result, the Comex Business De-
partment decided to reject the project to 
enable the In Arrears methodology.

•	 Consolidation of contractual alternatives 
for the migration of foreign currency loan 
operations (June 01, 2021 and November 
30, 2021) or Addendum: for the adden-
dum to the contract in operations under 
LIBOR whose maturity is after June 30, 
2023, a form was prepared through which 
customers accept the change in Clauses 
1 and 4 of the contract for LIBOR-referen-
ced loans ("OPERATION DATA" and "BA-
SIS FOR PAYMENT OF INTEREST"); this is 
due to the change in the established ben-
chmark to calculate interest. Once the Ad-
dendum is signed, Clause 4 would read as 
follows: “Or Restructuring as new Comex 
contracts under SOFR: Another option is 
to restructure the operation in question, 
signing a new contract that directly incor-
porates all the provisions related to the 
new SOFR 18 indexes.” 18.

•	 New format for Comex contracts under 
SOFR 18: Starting in 2022, the Foreign 

Trade Department will begin to implement 
its offer through the new SOFR benchmar-
ks; prioritizing the use of Term SOFR in its 
conditions. To this end, together with the 
legal team, throughout Q42021, we wor-
ked on the construction of a new format 
to be able to start signing contracts under 
this market index.

•	 Contractual tools for the transition in 
derivative markets or for the purpose of 
mitigating the impact on entities with ex-
posure to IBOR rates through derivative 
instruments because of the disappea-
rance of this market reference index, and 
various guidelines and market templates 
have emerged at the international level 
to facilitate the transition process. At the 
international level, ISDA established its 
concept of Robust IBOR Fallback Con-
tract Language12 through its Protocol 
and Supplement documents (2020). The 
participants of a transaction entered into 
under ISDA regulations that adhere to 
this Protocol and Supplement may incor-
porate the new provisions as of January 
25, 2021, on which date both documents 
become effective. In addition, after that 
date, all new transactions under the ISDA 
framework will also have this fallback lan-
guage. In this regard, BBVA Colombia has 
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complied with both documents since De-
cember 29, 2020. On the local scale, and 
in line with the purposes of the ISDA docu-
mentation, Asobancaria updated its mas-
ter contract marco14 local derivatives ori-
ginated in 2009. Although the new version 
includes several changes, one particularly 
relevant to the IBOR Transition is the pro-
vision added in Clause 11 on “Termination 
Events” (Section 11.1.9). According to the 
new master contract, if prior to the Com-
pliance Date15 , the index being used as a 
reference for the settlement of a transac-
tion disappears or is declared as non-re-
presentative by a competent authority, 
this will constitute grounds for early ter-
mination of the transaction if, after thirty 
(30) days following the occurrence of the 
event, the parties have not determined a 
replacement index by mutual agreement 
(Asobancaria, 2020). This provision will 
apply to entities that have signed the me-
morandum of understanding with Aso-
bancaria, which BBVA Colombia did in 
April 2021. 

Below are the details of activities carried out 
on derivatives during the year 2021:

•	 In US dollars, the first operation to be 
migrated was the discount of the LIBOR 

Overnight operations to SOFR Overnight, 
the first operation to be transitioned was 
the Interest Rate Swap in USD and COP 
that were being cleared by a central in-
ternational counterparty clearing house 
through BBVA Clearing Services in Octo-
ber 2020, with a minimum impact of USD 
102.9. As of December 31, 2021, BBVA Co-
lombia did not modify any CSA. 

•	 In EUR, an ISDA was modified where the 
collateral was remunerated to EONIA to 
take it to ESTER. The valuation impact 
was EUR 67 and it affected three swaps. 
This process was carried out in December 
2021. 

•	 The impacts described above are at the 
management level, since the regulatory 
valuation model established by Precia 
does not recognize collateral as a variable 
to be considered for discounting opera-
tions. At the regulatory level, the discount 
of all operations in the dollar leg was chan-
ged to SOFR in May 2021, with no impact 
on the methodology used by the price 
vendor.

The following inventories show in nominal ter-
ms the operations that remained sensitive to 
the change in LIBOR at each cut-off date:

USD-LIBOR

Total amount of unaltered contracts

Figures in COP millions

December 31, 2021

Financial assets

Loans 1,486,772

Financial liabilities

Secured bank loans

Derivatives

CCS and IRS swaps 63,578,266

31 diciembre 2020

Financial assets

Loans 651,921

Financial liabilities

Secured bank loans

Derivatives

CCS and IRS swaps 49,640,245
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The following were the risks assessed for 
the transition:

Financial risk management

Market Risk

•	 Market risk is the risk associated with 
changes in market prices, for example: 
exchange rates, interest rates and share 
prices, which affect the income and/or 
value of positions in financial instruments 
approved by the Bank. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage 
and control risk exposure within accepta-
ble parameters, optimizing return. BBVA 
Colombia uses derivatives to manage 
market risk. These transactions are ca-
rried out within the guidelines established 
by the Risk Management Committee. 

•	 Management of benchmark interest rate 
reform and associated risks, overview.

In the securities market, a fundamental re-
form of the main global benchmark interest 
rates is underway, including the replacement 
of certain interbank offered rates (IBORs) 
with alternative risk-free rates (referred to as 
“IBOR reform”). BBVA Colombia has IBOR ex-
posures in its financial instruments, which will 
be replaced or reformed as part of these mar-

ket initiatives. BBVA Colombia's main IBOR 
exposure as of December 31, 2021 was con-
centrated in US dollar LIBOR, whose alternati-
ve reference rate will be the SOFR Guaranteed 
Overnight Financing Rate. Although US dollar 
LIBOR was planned to be suspended at the 
end of 2021, in November 2020, ICE Bench-
mark Administration (IBA), the FCA's autho-
rized and regulated administrator of LIBOR, 
announced that it had begun consulting on 
its intention to suspend publication of certain 
U.S. dollar LIBOR maturities after June 2023

•	 As of December 31, 2021, BBVA Colombia 
was not exposed to derivatives indexed to 
SOFR. Regarding valuation methodolo-
gies, BBVA Colombia uses the inputs and 
methodologies of its official price vendor 
PRECIA S.A. for the valuation of its finan-
cial instruments. Precia has followed in-
ternational guidelines and best practices, 
considering the reality of the markets and 
the announcements of the main admi-
nistrators of these indexes. During 2021, 
Precia began using information from the-
se SOFR indexes to incorporate them into 
the zero-coupon curve calibration pro-
cess. The related impact on the Bank's 
books was negligible because the level of 
the zero coupon SOFR vs. zero coupon LI-
BOR curves were comparable. 

BBVA Colombia has interest rate and curren-

cy swaps for risk management purposes, 
which are designated in cash flow hedging re-
lationships. Some of these swaps are tied to 
U.S. dollar LIBOR rates. For these contracts, 
the Legal Department is validating the issues 
of the fallback clauses to reconcile with the di-
fferent customers and to be able to migrate to 
the new rates when necessary.

B) Company's Recent Situation

In order to conclude on the continuity of BBVA 
Colombia's business, the Company's recent 
situation will be analyzed so that its financial 
situation can be demonstrated.

When analyzing the breakdown of the balan-
ce sheet as of December 2021, total assets 
showed a growth of 16.3% (+COP 11,098,548); 
the lines that concentrate the greatest growth 
in the Bank's assets are Loan Portfolio, Lea-
se Transactions and Interest, net at 52% and 
cash and cash equivalents at 41%.

In terms of line items, the Bank’s Cash and 
cash equivalents item recorded an annual 
variation of 76%. The loan portfolio increa-
sed by 14%,credit investment increased by 
6.85% and accounts receivable increased by 
24.08%.

In turn, liabilities grew by 15.2%(+COP 
10,407,568). With regard to customer depo-

sits through demand and savings products, 
deposits and current liabilities were the most 
representative line, with an increase of 69% 
over the annual variation.

The Bank’s interest margin grew by 3.4% 
compared to 2020, explained by the increase 
in interest revenue. Operating expenses re-
corded a 5.8% increase, with the fee and in-
surance lines showing the greatest increase. 

Finally, the Bank's income for the period in-
creased by 90.5% compared to the same pe-
riod in 2020, i.e., it ended 2021 with a profit 
of COP 895,243, one of the highest in BBVA's 
history in Colombia.

In summary, the balance sheet growth was dri-
ven by the main operational lines for a credit 
bank (portfolio and funds), which speaks very 
well of BBVA Colombia's business performance.

Projected Financial Information

Similarly, when reviewing the Company's pro-
jections in the country, it was found that, in its 
current financial planning, it is estimated to 
have profits of more than COP 900,000 for 
the next twelve months and portfolio growth 
of more than 10% based on the strategic plan, 
as well as on the country's good macroecono-
mic conditions, which will allow for a year of 
considerable growth.
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The proper management carried out in BBVA 
Colombia allows it to develop its operations 
while maintaining good equity and solvency 
quality indicators.

It is therefore concluded that there is no ma-
terial uncertainty related to events or condi-
tions that would give rise to significant doubts 
on the Bank’s capacity to continue as a going 

The BBVA Group will establish the following as 
its focal points of action in the area of sustai-
nability: (i) climate change, and (ii) inclusive 
and sustainable social development; and will 
set priorities in both areas, particularly in the 
objectives where it considers it can have the 
greatest impact. 

The Bank's priorities in these areas will be, ini-
tially, as follows: 

•	 Regarding climate change: 

o	 Energy efficiency. 

o	 Circular economy. 

o	 Reduction of carbon emissions. 

•	 Regarding inclusive and sustainable social 
development: 

o	 Facilitating access to financial services 
for groups who are not using banking ser-
vices through basic digital solutions. 

o	 Inclusive infrastructure, including ba-
sic services and transportation systems. 

Supporting entrepreneurs, promoting econo-
mic growth and full and productive employment

Conclusions

In this regard, bearing in mind both the situa-
tion in the recent past, as well as what is ex-
pected in the near future, it can be said that 
the Bank has an adequate financial structure, 
which will allow it to carry on with its operation 
in a profitable manner, besides obtaining the 
necessary funds to comply with its short and 
medium-term obligations; due to the proper 
management of the accounts of the Statement 
of Financial Position and Statement of Income.

Performance Metrics and Indicators De-
cember 2021 and 2020

The following are the financial performance 
and indicators defined by Decree 854/2021 
as the minimums to assess a company's bu-
siness continuity. In this case, they are provi-
ded for the end of 2021 and 2020, in order to 
assess the financial management carried out 
and thus assess whether the going concern 
assumption is appropriate:

concern.

C) Sustainability Policies

BBVA incorporated sustainability among its six 
strategic priorities, with the aim of helping its 
customers in the transition to a greener future 
and boosting economic growth to leave no one 
behind and create opportunities for everyone.

Indicator 2021 2020 Income

Equity position COP  5,687,302 COP 4,996,322 Total equity > 0

Net income for the period COP 895,242 COP 469,850 Statement of income Dec 2021 > 0) 
and (Statement of income 2020 >0)

Working capital COP 0,11 COP 0,12 Income < 0.5

Return on Assets 
(ROA) 2% 1% Income > 0

BBVA Valores

In the area of Consumer protection, we conti-
nued the implementation of the Product Go-
vernance Policy previously approved by the 
Board of Directors, which establishes the prin-
ciples that BBVA must observe when evalua-
ting the characteristics and risks of products 
and services, as well as when defining their 
distribution conditions and their monitoring, 
in such a way that the interests of customers 
are taken into account at all times and ensu-
ring compliance with the applicable regula-
tions on customer protection, observing the 
principles of transparency, appropriateness 
and fair treatment. During the year, duly filled 
out checklists on minimum compliance re-
quirements continued to be requested before 
issuing any Compliance assessment, for all 
outsourcing initiatives as well as for offerings 
of products and services targeted at the open 
market or to BBVA clients. In addition, a new 
section on Product Governance was included 
in the forum of the Product Governance and 
Operational Risk Admission Committee (CA-
ROyGP, for the Spanish original), in order to 
monitor the target market, distribution stra-
tegy, training, indicators and conflicts of inte-
rest, among others. 
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Additionally, during the year 2021, the SOY 
BBVA (I AM BBVA) Campaign was launched, fo-
cused on internal and external customer servi-
ce, which establishes general guidelines for cus-
tomer service, provision of service and handling 
petitions, complaints and claims, enhancing 
BBVA's principles with permanent communica-
tions aimed at the entire workforce. 

During 2021, a comprehensive evaluation of 
the Compliance Function was carried out by 
Internal Audit, which concluded that the Func-
tion for entities of the BBVA Group overseen 
by the Financial Superintendence of Colom-
bia (hereinafter SFC, for the Spanish original), 
has monitoring schemes aimed at ensuring 
compliance with legal provisions and the iden-
tification of deviations to appropriately mana-
ge the risks and identifying opportunities for 
improvement that have been the subject of 
the area's activity plan. 

In turn, the action plans under the responsi-
bility of the Compliance Department, esta-
blished by oversight bodies, were addressed 
within the terms to do so, and permanent 
monitoring and support was provided to the 
other Departments of the entity in complian-
ce with their commitments.

Furthermore, we played an active, cross-cut-
ting role in the Committees and meetings at 
the different Entities and at different levels 
through the issuance of opinions that involve 
the aspects within its jurisdiction, as well as 
any others in which it has a say and voting ri-
ghts, due to the nature of its own functions. 

Likewise, the Bylaws for Compliance approved 
by the Board of Directors was incorporated at 
the BBVA entities in Colombia, adjusting the 
document to local regulations and establi-
shing responsibilities for those in charge of 
executing the Compliance Function, 
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